Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

THURSDAY, 30TH JULY, 2009 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Diakides, Gorrie, Mallett (Vice-Chair),
Mughal, Meehan, Butcher and Dobbie

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES

To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 12 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

11.

12.

13.

MINUTES (PAGES 1-10)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 2 June 20009.
DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 11 - 12)

Report of Grant Thornton.

AUDIT STRATEGY DOCUMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2009
(PAGES 13 - 26)

Report of Grant Thornton.

GRANT CLAIMS AND RETURNS PLANNING MEMORANDUM 2008-09 (PAGES 27
- 38)

Report of Grant Thornton.

REPORT ON INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONTROLS (PAGES 39 - 46)
Report of Grant Thornton.

ANNUAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION LETTER 2008/09 (PAGES 47 -70)
Report of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer to consider the Council’s
response to the issues set out in the Audit Commission’s annual audit and inspection

letter.

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING TO HOUSING
BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT - QUARTER 1 (PAGES 71 - 78)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer.
EXTERNAL INSPECTION HOUSING - PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 79 - 140)

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - 2009/10 QUARTER 1 (PAGES 141 -
182)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the work undertaken during the first quarter by the Internal Audit Service in
completing the annual audit plan and any responsive fraud investigation work. In
addition, the work of the Council’s personnel division in supporting disciplinary action
taken across all departments by respective council managers.



14.

15.

16.

17.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2008/09 (PAGES 183 - 260)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to provide a final version of the
statutory Annual Governance Statement, and supporting evidence matrix relating to
2008/09 for information.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE (PAGES 261 - 266)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the current position on risk management implementation across the Council and
provide a revised risk management strategy for consideration and approval.

WHISTLEBLOWING - REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION AND USE 2008/09
(PAGES 267 - 270)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the operation and use of the Council’'s Whistleblowing policy.

DRAFT REPORT TO FULL COUNCIL ON THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE IN
2008/09 (PAGES 271 - 282)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the proposed report to Full Council in respect of the work undertaken by the Audit
Committee during 2008/09.

18. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.
19. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 5 November 2009 at 19:30hrs.
Yuniea Semambo Helen Jones
Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  Principal Committee Coordinator
5" Floor Tel: 020 8489 2615
River Park House Fax: 020 8489 2660
225 High Road Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk
Wood Green
London N22 8HQ 22 July 2009



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Diakides, Mallett (Vice-Chair), Meehan and

Butcher
Apologies Councillor Gorrie
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC91.| APOLOGIES

The Chair welcomed Clirs Meehan and Butcher as new members of the
Audit Committee.

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Gorrie.

PRAC92. URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRAC93.| DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PRAC94.| MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the Audit Committee held on 23 April 2009 be
approved and signed by the Chair.

PRAC95.| DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no deputations or petitions.

PRAC96. GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Grant Thornton presented their report on progress since the previous
Audit Committee meeting. The Committee was advised that the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) report had been
drafted and would be presented to the Audit Committee once input had
been received from officers. It was also reported that it was anticipated
that Grant Thornton would receive the Council’s accounts in advance of
the deadline, and the Chief Financial Officer and his team were thanked
for this positive achievement.

The Chair thanked Grant Thornton for their report, and welcomed the
news that no significant issues had been identified as a result of the
interim audit of the accounts.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC97.

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2008/09

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, presented the
report on the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2008/09.
The Committee was advised that it was a statutory requirement for the
AGS to be published as part of the Council’s statement of accounts and
that it was the responsibility of the Audit Committee to review the draft
document. Ms Woods reported on the way in which the AGS had been
compiled by a core group of key officers and on the format of the AGS,
which was prescribed by CIPFA. The Committee was advised that key
changes in 2008/09 were the introduction of a local code of corporate
governance and the implementation of recommendations from the
previous year's AGS. Actions required to address any gaps in assurance
or evidence were detailed in the matrix of supporting evidence appended
to the report, as well as in the more detailed AGS action plan and other
external action plans. Progress against all the action plans would be
reported to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

Committee members expressed concern that the evidence required
under the CIPFA guidance was documentary in nature, and did not
include information on how procedures were implemented in practice.
Whistle-blowing was raised as an example of an area where policy was
in place, but the report did not clearly demonstrate that this had been
acted on and the Committee emphasised that it was essential to have
greater information on how policies such as this were used in practice.
Ms Woods reported that the in the previous year the external auditors
had looked at the extent to which the documentary evidence could be
relied upon for assurance and that, where it was found that there was a
risk of policies not being followed, this was addressed by an action plan.
It was also reported that the local code of corporate governance had
been developed as a way of drawing together all the existing policies, in
line with CIPFA and SOLACE guidance.

Concern was expressed that the draft AGS did not fully reflect the
position relating to internal control procedures in the course of the
previous year, and suggested that as a result of the significant events of
the year, further work on self-assessment and checking was necessary.
Ms Woods reported that risk and data quality, which were key areas in
this regard, were covered in both the internal and external audit plans for
the forthcoming year. Committee members expressed particular concern
regarding the wording under paragraph 4.7 of the draft AGS that “no
significant issues were identified during 2008/09 by the Audit
Committee”. On this point, the Chair commented with example that the
wordings were not correct. Following clarification by Ms Woods that this
referred specifically to the work programme of the Audit Committee, it
was agreed that this wording be amended.




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

The Chair advised the Committee that he had requested the officers that
additional reports on non-financial activities be reported to the Audit
Committee to ensure that Committee members were able to monitor
these effectively, i.e. external inspection reports action plan updates.
Committee members also emphasised the importance of the Committee
being able to ensure that relevant officers attended meetings of the
Committee to account for any issues arising within their Service.

On the specific issue of treasury management, the Chief Financial
Officer proposed that the wording of the AGS be amended to make clear
that, as agreed at the previous meeting, the Audit Committee was to
monitor the implementation of the recommendations arising from the
national review.

In light of the serious issues identified in the previous year, the
Committee suggested that the report should include specific deadlines
and clear details of the issues identified and the specific actions that
would be taken to address these, and the way in which this process
would be reported to the Audit Committee. Ms Woods reported that
details of the actions to be taken, timescales and updates on progress
with the recommendations made by external bodies would be reported to
the Committee on a regular basis. The Committee requested that this be
reflected in the AGS and it was agreed that the draft would be amended
to reflect this. The Committee emphasised the importance of identifying
corrective actions and not just problems, and raised as an example a
recent issue that had been identified relating to literacy, for which an
action plan and follow up actions were needed to ensure that the issue
was addressed fully.

The Committee requested assurance that external checks were carried
out on the quality of the information being provided, to ensure that the
position being reported was accurate. The Chief Financial Officer
advised that this was part of the internal and external audit work on data
quality, which examined whether information was true and reflective of
the real situation and had been recognised as a key issue. Committee
members noted that there was a wider issue of culture which needed to
be addressed, which went beyond issues relating to data quality. In
response to the advice of the Chief Financial Officer that some of these
issues were addressed in the JAR action plan, the Committee requested
that a sentence be added to the AGS to reflect the fact that issues
relating to culture and practice on the ground were covered in the JAR
action plan.

The Committee asked how checks were made to obtain assurance that
the issues identified with culture and practice in certain Services weren't
present throughout the Council. Ms Woods responded that with benefit
claims, for example, work was sample-checked for quality assurance
and full details were also provided in specific reports. The Committee
emphasised that, while good data was important, it was essential to
follow up and check on the implementation of policies to provide the full
picture.




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

The Chair asked the Chief Financial Officer whether assurance could be
provided that, by fulfilling the requirements in producing the AGS, the
Council’s rating under the Comprehensive Area Assessment would
improve from the present CPA 1 star rating. The Chief Financial Officer
reported that the Council aspired to improve it's rating, but that
improvement could not be guaranteed by meeting the requirements of
the producing the AGS, as the rating would be at the discretion of the
assessors plus there are a number of other service areas that require
improvement.

The Chair asked whether the Chief Financial Officer had applied his full
responsibility and professional expertise in the preparation of the draft
AGS, and the Chief Financial officer confirmed that this was the case.
The Chair noted that no consultation had been carried out in the
preparation of the report, and asked whether, as the AGS related to the
quality of performance, officers were confident that the AGS could help
to recover the Council’s ratings position. Ms Woods clarified that the
document had not been consulted on externally as it was a document to
be produced by the Council, and reported that the Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Executive and other Directors were all included in working
to improve the Council’s rating. The Chair asked whether officers were
satisfied with the wording of the sections dealing with the governance
framework and the review of its effectiveness, as standard wording for
these areas were not provided by CIPFA. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management and the Chief Financial Officer confirmed that they were
satisfied with the wording of these sections.

The Chair asked whether Grant Thornton would assist the Council to
improve their rating in the next assessment. The Chief Financial Officer
confirmed that he would be working closely with Grant Thornton to
ensure that the Council’s systems were fully implemented and effective.

In response to a question from the Chair regarding the group of core
officers working on the AGS and how improvements on the previous
year would be made, Ms Woods confirmed that this group remained
unchanged from the previous year and would be working to improve
performance by reflecting on the issues raised as a result of inspections
focusing on governance, and on the action plans proposed in the draft
AGS and report.

The Chair asked about the Quality Outcomes Board, its terms of
reference and why no reports of its discussions were presented to the
Audit Committee. The Chief Financial Officer reported that the Quality
Outcomes Board was an advisory board to reflect on issues arising from
the JAR, and reported that key issues raised at the board are being
communicated to all Members. It was reported that the advice provided
by the Quality Outcomes Board would be considered and would then
become part of the formal decision making process of the Council, in
accordance with its terms of reference.

In response to a question from the Chair regarding the officer code of
conduct, Ms Woods confirmed that all staff were required to formally




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

acknowledge receipt of the code of conduct and that a record of this was
held by the Council.

The Chair noted that, although the minutes of the previous meeting
indicated that confirmation that everyone was aware of the key risks and
responsibilities would be included in the AGS, this did not appear in the
draft. It was agreed that the draft AGS would be amended to include this
confirmation.

The Chair reported that it had been agreed with officers and also agreed
at the last Committee meeting that the Audit Committee would receive
regular reports on progress with recommendations arising from all
reports and inspections carried out on the Council by external
organisations. Committee members requested these progress reports be
presented to the Committee on a 6-monthly basis, although the Chair
strongly recommended that it should be quarterly instead of 6 monthly,
because the assessments of the external auditors were largely
dependant on the performances of the authority on the remit of those
reports.

Referring to the sections on performance management arrangements
(4a and 4c), risk management (5a, 5h and 6j) and assurance statements
(7a) in the matrix of supporting evidence, the Chair requested that time
limits be identified for each stage of these processes to ensure that all
necessary actions were carried out. Committee members requested that
each audit be reported to the Audit Committee once the appropriate
Service had responded, and that the Committee should then receive 6
monthly updates on progress against the audit recommendations. The
Committee also requested a 6 monthly progress report on the JAR
action plan.

The Chair raised a question as to whether the role of the Head of Audit
and Risk Management was aligned to the latest terms of reference of the
Committee. It was agreed that the Chief Financial Officer would provide
Committee Members with a briefing note on this.

The Committee requested information on the arrangements for the
officers’ register of interests. Ms Woods reported that the register was
held by the Human Resources department, and she would seek
clarification regarding the access arrangements to the register and report
back to the Committee.

It was agreed that all the observations and suggested amendments
arising from the discussion of the draft AGS would be incorporated into
the draft.

Taking into account all the observations and concerns of the Committee,
on a motion by the Chair it was:

RESOLVED

i) That, having reviewed the supporting information, the draft




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

AGS for 2008/09, which will be amended to reflect all the
views and concerns of the Committee expressed during the
discussion of the draft, be approved.

ii) That the approval timescale and process for the draft AGS be
noted.

Clir Butcher requested that his objection to the approval of the draft AGS
be recorded, as he felt that the draft inadequately addressed the
governance shortcomings raised in respect of safeguarding and treasury
management during 2008/09.

PRAC98.

THE REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM OF
INTERNAL AUDIT

The Head of Audit and Risk Management presented a report on the
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit. It was
reported that, in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006,
reciprocal peer group reviews had been established in order to monitor
compliance with CIPFA standards and that the group of peers had been
expanded this year to include more members across London councils.
Ms Woods reported that Haringey had this year assessed and been
assessed by the London Borough of Havering.

The Committee asked what the outstanding action was under the
heading of performance, quality and effectiveness and Ms Woods
reported that this was the CIPFA recommendation that service users’
assessment of the quality of the internal audit service be obtained. Ms
Woods reported that this was in progress; a number of questions had
been compiled for sending to senior managers, who would then submit
their feedback as a further source of assurance regarding the
effectiveness of the service.

The Committee asked where the recommendation in the management
action plan, “that the Head of Audit and Risk Management should
arrange to review the quality, performance and effectiveness of the
service as a whole” had arisen from. Ms Woods reported that among the
list of 70-80 self-assessment questions set out by CIPFA was one asking
whether the service had reviewed the quality and effectiveness of the
service as a whole, which had not been completed. The Committee
requested a note providing the details of the actions that would be taken
to address this issue and how these would be followed up.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding Regulation 6, it
was confirmed that this did not differ from the existing CIPFA guidance.

RESOLVED

i) That the findings of the review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal audit be noted.

ii) That the action plan to address the identified areas for
development be approved, and a that note be provided on the




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

details of the actions that would be taken to address the
issues raised and how these would be followed up.

PRAC99.

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Head of Audit and Risk Management presented a report on the
changes to the terms of reference for the Internal Audit Service. In line
with CIPFA guidance, the Committee received a report on the Internal
Audit service terms of reference for approval on an annual basis. The
Committee was advised that the only changes to the terms of reference
from the previous year were updated references to the Council’s
Constitution.

RESOLVED

That the updated Terms of Reference for the Internal Audit Service be
approved.

PRAC10(

ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT AND ASSURANCE STATEMENT 2008/09

The Chair reported that he had corresponded with the Chief Financial
Officer in advance of the meeting regarding this item, and it had been
agreed that the Chief Financial Officer Comments section of the report
would be amended to read: “The Chief Financial Officer notes the
contents of this report and confirms that the key controls are in place to
mitigate risks facing the Council and that they are being appropriately
managed under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to
provide him with the assurance he has been using the audit, both
internal and external, to mitigate risks facing the Council’. The Chair
noted that both the Council’s internal and external auditors advised that
they did not have responsibility for the management and monitoring of
the Council’s internal control systems, but assisted in providing
assurance.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management presented the annual audit
report and assurance statement 2008/09, which formed part of the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee and was required under the 2006
CIPFA Code of Practice. The Committee was advised that the form and
general content of the report was recommended by CIPFA, but that the
detailed assessment was completed by the Council. A summary of
internal audit work over the past year was appended to the report.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the lack of
information on the outcome of investigations in the report, Ms Woods
reported that these were reported to the Committee on a quarterly basis
as part of the Internal Audit Progress Report and that a monthly report
was also circulated to Members. The Committee asked about the
involvement of external agencies in investigations, and Ms Woods
reported that cases were in general referred to the Housing Benefits
Service by the Department for Work and Pensions, and that Housing
Benefits then passed them on to Internal Audit for investigation. Full
details were provided in the quarterly reports.




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

Concern was expressed that the wording of paragraph 17.2 of the report,
referring to other sources of assurance, gave the impression that no
issues had been identified as a result of external inspections and it was
agreed that this wording would be amended to clarify that this was not
the case.

It was noted that as a document referring back to the previous year, no
new additions could be made to the key areas covered, but for future
reports the Chair requested that child protection and safeguarding adults
be added to the key areas of corporate governance, as the CAA
assessment depended upon these key areas. The Chief Financial
Officer noted the request of the Chair, but reported that the key areas
listed in paragraph 19.4 of the report were not specific service headings,
but areas that related to every service, and so both child protection and
safeguarding adults were already included. It was reported that the new
Director of the Children and Young People’s Service would have
examined all the key areas listed in the report, and applied these to all
CYPS services, including child protection. The Chair requested that the
areas of child protection and safeguarding adults be specifically
mentioned in the paragraph on the key areas of corporate governance
(paragraph 19.4), as these two areas were of particular importance.

The Committee suggested that, if Directors were to report in person to
the Audit Committee on a regular basis, Members could ask them for
details of how they were addressing the key areas of corporate
governance as listed in the report.

The Committee suggested that paragraph 19.4 should include a
reference to the main areas for action, which were listed in paragraph
19.7 below.

RESOLVED

That, with the additional wording under the Chief Financial Officer
comments and the comments, concerns and observations made by the
Committee, the content of the annual audit report and assurance
statement for 2008/09 be noted.

PRAC101

AUDIT COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PLAN 2009/10

The Head of Audit and Risk Management presented a report on the
proposed annual work plan for the 2009/10 municipal year. The work
plan included the standard quarterly items presented to the Committee,
and also incorporated other pieces of work that were already planned
during the course of the year. The report demonstrated the link between
the work planned and the terms of reference of the Committee.

The Chair expressed concern that the plan did not currently include the
periodical update on progress with recommendations from all external
audits and inspections, as requested by the Committee, and it was
agreed that this would be added to the work plan.




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

The Chair requested that, in addition to the planned work detailed in the
work plan, the Committee must be advised by the Chief Financial Officer
of any issues arising that the Committee needed to be aware of in the
fulfilment of its duties.

Following the discussion earlier in the meeting regarding the draft AGS,
it was requested that an update on this item be added to the Committee
agenda for the 30 July meeting and added to the work plan.

The Committee requested that a central record should be kept of all the
requests and recommendations made by the Audit Committee, giving
details of the action requested, the officer responsible for the action and
a deadline for completion, as this would facilitate the management and
monitoring of actions requested by the Committee. This list should be
monitored by the Committee on a quarterly basis to ensure that follow up
action was being taken.

The Committee had resolved at a previous meeting that, where audit
recommendations had not been implemented within the deadline set, the
relevant Heads of Service would be required to attend the Committee
meetings to explain the reasons for this. The Committee also discussed
the possibility of requiring Heads of Service to attend on regular basis in
order to answer questions from Committee members on audit issues
such as priority 1 recommendations not being completed on time.
Concern was expressed that implementing a regular programme of
officers attending the Committee may be beyond the remit of the Audit
Committee but it was felt that it would be useful for Members to be able
to ask relevant officers questions regarding key areas of governance. It
was suggested that, where a significant internal or external inspection
report had been completed, the relevant officer should attend the
Committee to address the issues raised by the report and also to answer
questions from the Committee on other audit and governance
arrangements within their Service. It was agreed that, as an update
report on Environment was on the agenda for the next meeting, the
Director of Urban Environment should attend. This would be in addition
to any Heads of Service attending the Committee.

The Committee raised the issue of it not being possible for the
Committee to approve the revised version of the AGS prior to
submission due to the dates of the meetings. It was agreed that in future
the dates would be arranged to ensure that the Committee could see the
draft a second time to ensure that all the Committee’s comments had
been taken on board. A member of the Committee also raised an issue
relating to the decisions made at the previous meeting, in response to
which the Chair replied that he usually monitored the outcome of the
decisions made, with the Chief Financial Officer.

RESOLVED

i) That, with the additions and comments of the Committee
members, the annual work plan for 2009/10 be approved.




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009

i) That a central record should be kept of all the requests and
recommendations made by the Audit Committee, giving details
of the action requested, the officer responsible for the action and
a deadline for completion.

iii)  Six monthly updates of the progress of all audits by various
Audit agencies, including Ofsted, Social Service Audit, Care
Quality Commission Inspection Reports, Health Care
Commission and others be included in the work plan.

PRAC10Z

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRAC103

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 30 July 2009 at 7.30pm.

The meeting closed at 21:20hrs.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




HARINGEY COUNCIL

Page 11 Agenda ltem 6

3 GrantThornton

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - 10 JULY 2009

Work

Progress

Use of resources and
data quality 2008

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Review of probity and
propriety

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Grants 2007-08

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Accounts planning
workshop, interim
accounts work and
discussion of key issues

Interim accounts audit

Final accounts audit

Following attendance at our 2008-09 accounts training sessions in
January, we held a number of liaison meetings to discuss key issues
and plan for the 2008/09 audit.

The interim audit took place from 23 March to 3 April 2009. There
were no significant issues to report to the Audit Committee.

The Council provided us with an initial version of the draft accounts
in early June, which allowed us to perform early review and challenge
in advance of formal approval of the draft accounts by the General
Purposes Committee. We and the Council have found this process
very useful.

The final audit commenced on 6 July and, whilst in the early stages, is
progressing well. We will report the results of the audit to Members
in September 2009 as part of the Annual report to those charged with
governance (ISA260).

International Financial
Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

In February 2009, we held a workshop to help the Council to prepare
for putting arrangements in place, from April 2009, in time for full
implementation of IFRS in 2010/11.

We have recently completed our IFRS conversion report planner for
the Council and are agreeing this with management. As reported
verbally to the last Audit Committee, the Council has made a good
start with its preparations for IFRS accounting. Our report highlights
the areas of greatest likely impact for the Council and proposes a
number of actions for the Council over the coming months.




Work

Use of resources and
data quality 2009

Page 12

Progress

Work is underway and will continue over the Summer.

There has been recent attention around Parliamentary members
expenses and allowances. As part of our use of resources work, we
will be carrying out a high level review of the Council's arrangements
for member expenses and allowances. We will also be considering
senior officer allowances.

The results of our use of resources work will be reported, with our
VEFM conclusion, in the Annual report to those charged with
governance (September 2009).

Treasury management

The Audit Commission published results from its research on
investments in Icelandic banks in March and recommended a number
of actions for local authorities. The Audit Commission has recently
issued a mandatory work programme, covering local government's
response to these recommendations, for auditors to complete by
October.

We will carry out the mandatory work and assess the Council's
response to these, and other internal and external treasury
management recommendations, during the final accounts audit, and
will re report the results of the audit to Members in September 2009
as part of the Annual report to those charged with governance
(ISA260).

2009/10 audit fees

We agreed our indicative fees letter with the Council and presented
this to the April Audit Committee meeting.

Our full audit plan and updated audit fee will be presented to the
Audit Committee in early 2010, following agreement with
management.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
10 July 2009

Page 2



Agenda ltem 7

Page 13

600¢ sunr

6007 Y2IRIA [ € SUIPUD IBIA AY) IO
JuWNd0(] A391e08 1PNy

Ad3urreH Jo y3noiog uopuor]

uOJUIOY | JUelo) 0



Page 14

d'TT1 3N uojuIoy[, Juein

AJ130UTS SINO X
‘wrea , doueur 9je1odio)) ay) yirm Suniom pue JIpne SUTWOOYI0) 3Y) 0} PIEMIOJ JOO[ AN

"] UOT}OS UI PI[IeIdp JAYIIng ST Judwndop ) Jo asodind ayJ, ‘6007 Y2IBIN [€ SUIPUD Jeak ) J10J AQSULIBH JO Y3NnoIog uopuo|
Jo 1ipne 3y} Joj A331ens pasodoxd ayy ur syuawd[d A3y Ay} WYS31y31y 03 1opio ur paredard uaaq sey (SV) uawndo( £391en§ Jpny Sy,

600 HOUYVIA 1€ ONIANH
AVAA FHL 404 INHNND0d ADALVILS LIANV (TIDNNOD FH.L) AAONIIVH A0 HONOJAO0I NOANO'T

pIeIoD) Iea

600¢ aunf

OHS ZZN uopuo]

peoy YsIy 7z
ASNOH YIed IATY

Ad3uLIeH Jo ysnoiog uopuo|
1901 O [eIoURUL] JOIYD)
JOIoW[Y pleIdn)

Joy Inox
6-800C HA'T/Hd/dd 3°¥ nO



"pantasal SIYBU IV "dT MN UOUIoY ] JUBID 8002 @

[p]
¥
o
(@)
©

A L SIoNRW JANRNSIUIWIPY 1

% yoeoidde yipne any ¢

sanI[IqIsuodsal pue s9[01 pue 9oNIWWOo)) PNy Y} [4 SYSII $SAUISNq pue SUNUNODY ¢

)M uonedrunuwwod ‘Qduapuadapur ‘@oueinsse Aend) v I $9A103[qo pue SuLId) Juowagesuy |

adeq
sadpuaddy Sjusu0Dd

6002 yoJep\ Lg Buipus JeaA - juswnooq Abareans lpny AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo]



Page 16

"QONIWIWO)) JIPNY AY) YIIM UONEIIUNWIWO)) e
pue ‘ooueinsse Ajenb pny e
£NIWIWO)) JIPNY Y} JO SANI[IqIsuodsar pue sI[0y e

:3ur19A00 y x1puaddy ur uoneULIOUT JOYNJ JNO 1S A
sielew JoUl0 St

"UOIBIIPISUOD S,99)) 10D
1PNy 9y} J0J PAIUSWNOOP PUE JUSWSLURW S [IOUNO))
oY} YIIM Pa2ITe pue PAsSNOSIp 9 [[I4 SINSSI FUNUNOIIL
pue jipne JuedjIusIs Jo uonnjosal [enuajod Jo [enjoe Ay,

*ATBSSOO9U AIYM

wnpueIowow $sa1301d JIpne ue BIA JO A[[EULIOJUT JOYII dpel
9q [[I4 UOTBIIUNWIWOD YoNg ‘[IOUn0)) ay} uryiim uosiod
areradoxdde ayp yim siseq A[own € uo jpne ay) Jundvyje
s3urpury pejoadxaun J0 9SI9APE AUB JBITUNUILIOD [[IM A\
sBuipuy

pajoadxaun J0 8SISAPE JO UOHEDIUNWWOD |

"y x1puaddy ur Jno 3as a1e ssauysnqol pue dduapuadapur 1o
UO S[IeJop JAYMIN, "99)IWwo)) JIpny Y} JO UOIUIE Ay} O}
1Y3NnoIq 2q p[NoYs YoIym SId)jew Aue aIe 219y} dAI[2q Jou Op
PUB 6007 YOIRIAl € SUIpU JBaA 9y} 10J JIpne y} Jo 30adsax

ur A11an29[qo pue 9oudapuadapur INO PAIAPISUOD IABY M

‘pantasal SIYBU [V "dTT1 MN UoluIoy L 1UBID 8002 ®

‘spIepue}§
[eorpg (gdV) S,preoq seonoeid sunipny ay) Jo syuswaimnbax
oy Joaw 03 sainpadold pue sarorjod pajuswarduwir oAy I
spJepuels [eolylg €1

“SIom jipne
o SuLINp UONUYIE INO 0) SWOD JBY) [ONUOD [BUIUT

UT S9SSOUYBOM [BLIQJRW AUB UOTIU)JE INOA O} MBIP O],
pUE oapTWIwio)) JIpny Y} 0}

$anssT A3y JO 110daI 9ATIONIISUOD puUE ISIOU0D & 3onpoid O, e

{[10UNOD) 9y} JO SIUSWIAJE)S [BIOUBULJ Y} JIpNE OJ, @

:SMO[[0] SB aIe $9A193[qOo Juswadesus IO
sannoalqo juswabebug g

"092 (INVSD (pue[a1] pue 3()) Sunipny uo pIepuels
[euoneuIaU] JO SiuawaInbax L101epuew oY) 199U 0)

I9pI0 Ul JuowaSeuew 0} 310da1 0) Pasn Os[e SI JUIWNIOP Y,

6007 YOIBIA [ € Surpud Jeak ) 10 [10UN0))
Y Jo yipne Yy J0J A331ens pasodoid ayy ur SUSWI[
A9y au3 yS1yS1y 03 st wnpuerowdw siy) Jo asodind ayJ,

“QINIWUIO))

1Ipny Y} 0) papraoid uaaq sty pue SIOJIPNE Sk JOUAIIJAI

JO SwiId) InO INO S13s 807 ABIN parep ueld Jrpne [[BI2A0 InQ)
swi9] Juawabebug ||

$9AN3[qO pue swid) Judwsesuq |

paloadxa
suodal Jo wioy ay}

3IOM Jipne
ay} Jo adoos pue ainjeu

wes} Juswabebus
auy} Jo Ananoalqo
pue Anbajul sy} pue wuiy
Hpne ay} jo aouspuadapul
8y} uo Buuesq

B aAey Jeyl sdiysuoielol e

-JO uoledlunwwod
salnbal 092 MNVSI




Page 17

"Panesal SIYBU IV "dTT MN UOIUIOY ] JUBID 8002 ®

"1k 9y} SuLmp [1oUN0))
9y} 8 PAlJIUAPI SANSSI [01IUOD [BUIAIUT JUBDIIUTIS Y} SI09[JoI A[[nJ
11 JeY) 9INSUS 0] JUSWJLIS IOUBUIIAOL) [BNUUY Y} MITAI [[IM M

"SONSSI [0JUO0J [eUIIUT JUBdLTUSIS JO ISI] SI jo Jred se JjuowaFeuew
Amsean pue uaIp[Iyo Surprengojes Uo UONBULIOJUL PIPN[OUL

Sey [1ouno0)) Y} ‘SOV SI JO JeIp ISIIJ oY) U] sy} SuIssaippe

Joj sue[d punore uonewlIojur pue Jeak o) JuLnp JuLLINOI0

SONSSI [01JUOD [RUIIUI JUBDHIUSIS JO uondLIosap apn[out 0} paimbaz
SI [10UN0D) 9y} ‘(SDHVY) WUSWJLIS OUBUIIAOL) [ENUUY ST U]

-3unsa) Jassy pax1 no jo ped se Jy'S 03 19)s13a1
19ss® PaxIy snotaa1d oy} woiy uoneI3Iw vlep oyl 159} [[IM 9

*191S139Y 19SSy PaX1 Snoraaxd oy} unyim sIolro
SNOLIBA PI[BaAAI Sey ss2001d uoneisiu eiep Y[, "60/800¢ Sutnp
o[npou JuewdSeURW JASSE JV'S 2U) PAONPOIIUL SBY [IOUN0)) 9Y ],

-areurdoxdde se ¢1 YA pue [ 1S 1surede aouerdwod Jo [9A9]
oy ssasse pue ‘sjuauriredur Jo JusWSSasse Surpnjout ‘s3urp[ing pue
pue] s3I SUIN[BAAI JOJ ASO[OPOYIUI §,[TOUNO) AY) MIIAJI [[IM M

‘Pan[BAISAO
are s3uIp[Iing pue pue[ Jey} MSLI JIpne ue SI 210y} ey s1so33ns
yorym 9rpne jo pourad oy Surmp uoqey aAey sSuip(ing pue

pue[ JO suonenyeA ‘UINUMOP JIWOUOI Y O NP JBY) J0U I

"UOISSIWWO)) JIpny Y woiy swwei3oid yiom A1ojepuewt € Jo
asn ay3 y3noayy ‘voneiuawardwr uo ssardoid Jurssasse Jurpnjour
‘uefd uonoe §,[10UNOY) Y} JO MITAII & INO AIIBD OS[E [[1M A\

"9ouepIng JVV 1 oY} Isurede syueq JIpUL[ad] Ul P[AY SIUSUISIAUL
9 JO JuaWIBAN S,[IOUNO)) AU} MITAI [[IM 9m ‘s1aded Sunjiom jpne
JO MIIASI PUB [IOUNOD) 9} JO SIAJIFJO YIIM UOISSNISIP Y3noay,

*S9$S0[
JuaunsaAur o[qissod 105 ununodde uo OOZ Y2IBN ¥ U0 H1DA
KQ pansst 1919 9y} pue dduepIng siy) s ouerduiod sensuowop
0] AU [[IM [IOUNOD) Y, "SYueE JIPUB[D] oY) WOI) FuIsLIe

syesse [eroueuly jo jusuuredwt oy} Joj SUNUNOJIE JO JUAUNELIT)

9y uo aouepIng aarsuayardwos apraoid g/ pue g/ sund[ng Vv
‘SYuey OIPUB[IO] PoIe} oY) Ul PAISIAUT W/ EF PeY [IOUNO7) Sy L,

suodsay

STy

SYSII SsauIsng pue Bununoooe [enualod |'g

SYSLI SsauIsnq pue SUNUNOIIY T



Page 18

"Panesal SIYBU IV "dTT MN UOIUIOY ] JUBID 8002 ®

"SJUNO33® 60/800C =W

Jo uononpoad 10§ awn ur Jusw[dw 0) paaIde JuduIdeurRW YOIyMm

"90UBUIIAOD) M padiey)) 9soy], 03 1odoy 60/800T Y3 UIyim “10da1 )97 VST INO UI SUOIIEPUSWIWOIAI JO JOqUINU B IPBW A
PIpN[OUT 9q [[IA PIA[OSAIUN UTBWIAI JBY) SANSST AUy JIpne 9y} ‘syunodde Ay Juronpoid 1oJ syjuswaguerre sir oao1idwl pinod [1ouno))
Sunmp pamaraal ureq ore SUOEPUSWITIOIAI 95} Isurede ssa1301g O} QI9YM SBAIR QUWIOS PIYNUPI JIPNE SJUN0IE () /.00T IO

"SQOUBMO[[E JIOIJJO IOTUSS  JUSWIUIIAOS [BO0] UT SJUSWSURIIE MATAI 0} SI0)IpNE paSeInodud
SULIOPISUOD 9q OS[E [[IM AN "SIdUBMO[[B Pue Sasuadxe Joquioul Joj AOU SBY UOISSTWWO)) JIPNY Y} PUB SOUBMO[[B pue Sasuadxo
SJuaWASURLIE S [IOUNOY) ) JO MITARI [AJ] YSTY B INO ATIRD [[IM AN SIQQUIOW AIRJUSWRI[IEJ PUNOIE UOTIUSNE JUAIAI U] SBY I,




Page 19

"SBaTR [RONLID J0J uey) Jamo[ A[jeuontodoid oq Aqpeord£y [[im
SBAIR JOUJO UI YIOM INQ }O0JJI JIpNe InO JO Yonw Snd0J am
Je) SBATR 9SAY) UL STI] ‘[BINLID SB PISLIOTI)RD I INdI0 0)
AT 2I0W ST JUSWII)BISSTW [BLIDIBW JO YSLI AU} IAYM SBAIy
"SUOT}IOSSE JUQWIAIR)S [BIOUBUL} [ENPIAIPUI Y} O JUBAJ[I YSLI
JIpNe 9y} JO JUSWSSISSE UL U0 paseq st yoeoirdde ypne QO
yoeoidde upne unQ '€

"SJUNOJJL ISAY) JO MIIAJI
[eonAJeue aAnue)sqns € urwiojrad pue s)unodde 199ys

doueeq pue AINIPUAdXd puL QWOIUI [BLISJEW [[B SUIAJIIOA e

SJUQWIAIL)S
[eIOURULJ Y} UT SONSSI AINSO[ISIP [BLIAJBUW JUIMIIADY e

reudoidde a1oym ‘sjonuod
[BIOURUL) [RUIUL AU} JO SSAUIANIIYJQ Sunerddo ay) Sunsay, e

A3a1ens ypne 9endoidde ue Sunuowsdwr pue Surdofaasp

‘pantasal SIYBU [V "dTT1 MN UoluIoy L 1UBID 8002 ®

‘WIQISAS [01U0D [RUIIUI Y} JO UTISOP Y} JO JUSWSSISSE )
PUE JUSWISSISSE JBY) UO PAseq ‘pue YSLI JIpne o) JUISSAsSy o

SJUQWIJL)S [RIOUBULJ YY) UO FuLIeaq
© 9ABY A9Y) JBY) JUIXQ ) 0) SWIAISAS [OUOD [BIOURULY
[euraiur ay) Jo uonejuauwd[duir pue ugisop ay) SUIMIIADY e

SJUNOJJ® JUSWSRUR
AU} JO MITAJI B PUB JUIWITRUBW [JIM SUOISSNISIP
y3noay) [1ouno)) Yy} Jo urpuelsiopun Ino Junepdn) e

:sasudwod £393ens JIpne Ino Arewrwuns uj

"PAA[OAUL
JJeIS [Te Yim paaiSe So[qeiown pue ‘yIpne ay) Jo 1e)s )

1e SIseq YSe) [enpIAlpul ue uo pauue[d oq [[Im JIpne InQ “JJels
§,[1ouno)) Jy} 03 uondnisIp Jo WnWIUIW Y YPIM ‘A[JUIIOIIF
JIpNE Ay} JONPUOD PUE SAUIPLIP JIPNE JAAW M JBY) INSUD 0)
we [, 9dueur] erodio)) ay) yim A[Qso[d Sunjiom aq [[Im I
ABarens upny  L'g

yoeoxdde yipne anQy ¢

'S|04JU09
[euJalul uo asuel|al
PUE JO JUSWISSaSSE 1IN0

sjuawale]ssiw [elalew
1O )Sll 8] ssaippe
0] asodoid am Aem ay}

yoeoidde ypne
ay} 01 uoneoldde sy pue
Ajjeusiew jo 1daou0d IN0 e

:JO UOEDIUNWILIOD
sauinbal 092 MNVSI




Page 20

"IN520 0} A[OYI] AIOW ATB SJUSWIL)SSIW [BLISJRW JeY)

JOPISUOD M IAYM SBATR AU} SSAIPPE Jey} SANIANIOR [0O)UOD

Jo Surpuejsiopun ue urure}qo pue SurAynuapr uo st siseyduwd
mQ ‘pauawd[duil uddq dARY Ay} JOUIOYM JUIUIA)AP

PUE ‘SJUQWIAIE]S [RIOUBULJ Y} UT JUSUIIL)SSIW [BLISJBW 0}

Pea[ PINOD 1Y) SYSLI JOAO ‘SANIATIOR [0JJUOD JUBAJ[AI JUIpn[oul
‘SJOJIU0 S, AINUD UB JO UIISAP Y} 9)en[eAd 0} painbar are op
S|0J1UOD |euJdlU| /'€

"PAren[eAd 9q [[IM ‘sanpadord

[0TU0D KoY pajewioIne JO sSAUANIYJe Sunerado ay)

uodn joeduwir 1ey) ‘S[ONUOD [BIAUIT JO SSAUAANIJYYR Funerado
oy ‘sarnpadoid aanue)sqns Ino Jo 2dods ay) onpal 0}
SaInpad01d [01U0d pajewoIne Jo s3s9) wiojrad 0y uerd om J1

‘pantasal SIYBU [V "dTT1 MN UoluIoy L 1UBID 8002 ®

“JUSWIUOIIAUD [ S,[IouUno))
o) UI S[OTUOD [BUIAUL JO MIIAAI B saxnbar yoeoidde

Ino ‘A[3uIp1020y A[[RUIIUI JO XNBAING NIAIIS Aq PIssadord
SUOI}OBSURI) SOPN[IUT YOIYM ‘SUOTIOBSURIT) JO Joquinu d3Ie|

© ssa001d jey) suonedrdde Sununodde 10 WI)SAS 1INdwod
© 9sn saIpoq pajipne jey) sawnsse yoeoidde jipne mnQ
SWIB1SAS pe2JNOSINO pue || JO lipny 9°¢

‘yoeoadde jipne pageuew ayj Jo
1ed se JIpne oy} InOY3SNOIY) JIPNE [BUIAIUL YIIM ISTRI] [[IM A
HpNe |[euJalul uo doueldY G'E

*$$9001d JIpnE Y} UI pasn 9q 0} UOTJBULIOJUT JUBAJ[I 90npoid
puUB WaISAS §,[I0UN0D) 9y} WOIJ AJO3IIp BIEp e} 0) Wea)
JIpNe 9U) MOJ[E [[IM SIY], SHIOMP[I] JIpne Ino Jo ssauala[dwod
pue £ovIndor Ay} UI ISISSE 0} JIOMP[QL) JIpne aY) JO JIels ay) 18
‘[00) 9IeM1JOS UOTIESOLINUI BIep © “YH] oSIUn 03 ue[d ap
v3ql Buisn uonewoine upny '

X X X X S103IpAI)) pue amipuddxyg
X X X X $10)q9(J pue AWOodu|
X X SIUQUI)SOAU]
X X X sjessy 9[qISue],
dansopsiq ¥ suonesnqO 1IN $S015) UALINIDQ
uoneIuISAIJ Jo-m)H X SISy - uoneneA -uopen[eA  /OUISIXH  SsdudpR[duio))

9q 0) PAWAIP AIB [IOUNO)) Y} J0J SUOTIIASSE [BONLID A,
seale [eonud €€

"JoMO| S| Juswae)ssiw
[eusrew o3 Ajiqudaosns

8y} 8Jaym Ing ainjeu

£q 10 9zIs Ul [euSTeW aJe Jey}
89S0y} 8Je Seale [BoljlI0 JON

*JN920 0}
Aj9yj1] @10W S| JUBSWSIRISSIW
[ela1ewW JO XS 8y} a1aym
89S0y} 8Je Seale [BofjlD)




Page 21

"SIUQWIA)R)S [BIOUBULJ AY) JO
uoneuasaid ay) 10ISIP 10U S0P 1 JI ‘Terrajewt Jou pagpnl oq
Aew anpeA 19YS1Y JO W) UB pue ‘(SJUSWN[OW ,SIOJOIIP “3'9)

aInjeu s Aq [eLRew paspnl 9q Aew anfeA MO JO WAL UY

'Sn 0} uonejuasaIdar Jo 1919[

InoA jo jred se [eLdjewilL Se nOA AQ JJo pausis ‘pajsnlpe
10U JI ‘pue noK Y)m passnosIp ‘9Je3aI33e ul pue A[[enpraipur
PIssasse ‘Sjudude)SSIW [erjudjod Jo 9[Npayds B U0 POpIodal
9q 1M A)I[BLIdIEW JO 9,7 URY) JO)JBAIT SIOLI PAYIIUpPI AUy

"SJUQUISIR)S [BIOURULY Q) UO W)l Uk Jo joedwur
A} ssasse 0) J1opI1o ur d3e)s Junodar oy Je paIAPISUOD
OS[E ST "PIONPUOD SI JIom JIpne Jo [9A9] yeridoxdde
ue jey) 2Insud 03 a3e1s Juruueld oy e 39S ST AJ[RLIIBIA

‘pantasal SIYBU [V "dTT1 MN UoluIoy L 1UBID 8002 ®

‘[rouno)) 2y} jo uonisod [eroueury

oy Aparej Juasaxd 193UO[ OU P[NOM SJUIWIAIE]S [BIOUBULJ
A} ‘9INSO[OSIP-UOU IO UOISSIWO SII YSNOIY) ‘JI SJUSWA)R)S
[eIOUBULJ QY) O} [BLIQJEW PAISPISUOD 2 P[NOM W) UY
AujeusieiN g€

*do[oAdp S uoneUIEX? [B1oads

QAISU)X9 QIOWI © JBY) [ONUOD [BUIUI UT SjuawaAoIdur
d1q1ssod [[e apnyoul 03 J0 ‘SaNLIB[NSALIL JAYIO JO SUONEI[BJIP
[T 9SO[OSIp 0} A[LIBSS20aU uodn parfar 2q JoUULd JI0M InQ

“JIPNE SJUNOJIE [eUlj INO SULINP SOOUBMO[[E PUB
sasuadxa s1oquIow Jo 302dsar ur sjuswaFueLIe SULIPISUOD
9q [[14 am ‘A[[euorieu SUIdOUOD J1jqnd JIpIM JO IXUOD Y} U]

‘K391e:s J1pne Ino

uodn pajoeduwir oAy YOIym YIOM SIY) JO J[NSAI B SB PILJIUIPI
U99q 9ARY SANSSI JUBOYIUSIS ON IISIA JIPNE WILIdUI INO

Jo 11ed se powiojiad uaaq Sey JIom S[OIUO0D [BUIUI PUB [ [

"90UBUIIAOS JO BaIe 9y ul Je[nonied ur ‘SwoisAs ok
JUAWNOOP 0) UOTBWLIOJUI [BUOT)IPPE Y} Joyied 0} I9pIo
ur ‘[1ounoy) ayj Jo JusweuBW JOTUIS AY) YIIM W puds e

pue ‘Suniodai [erourulj 0} pIjeal
SWA)SAS [0NUOD [RUIAUI INOA JO UIISAP Y} FUISSISSE

pue ‘ssaursng JnoA JuIpue}sIapun Jo seare A9y Ay} UO SNO0J e

:om sprepue)§ Sunipny yim Ajdwod of,

Alijeusiep 1Ipny 02€ VS|
‘Iny@sn 8q o1 si 1 4l

9ABY 1SNW UONBWLIOJUI YDIYM
olisu8loBIBYD aAllelenb
Arewud e Buiaq ueyy Jayies
wiod yo-1nd 10 pjoysaiyl

e sapinoid Ajjeusiew ‘snyj
"JUBWaILISSIW IO UOISSIWO S}
JO $82UBISWND.ID Jejnoied
ay) ul pabpnl Jol9 10 way
8y} Jo azIs 8y} uo spuadap
Aljeuaie|\ ‘sluswajels
[eloueuly 8y} Jo siseq 8yl

Uo UdYe) SI8sN JO SUOoISIoap
2]WOU093 8y} 82UdN|jUl P|NOD
JusWaleISSIW JO UOISSIWO

S]I I [edYEW S| UOIBWLIO)U|




Page 22

wod N3 @oni3-aurored :g
8L0T 8CLL 0TO -L =ATIMOSXH JIpNY

anIon auIjoIe)

wod M3 @soy3ny-ned g IoZeuey
9SGCCBCLLOTO <L OdIAIRS JURID soy3ny [ned

wod M3 @nassop-ned :q pea
081€8TLLOTO L IudwdSesuy nasso(J [ned
S[1e)ap jJoejuo)) 2Y (D) | JweN

:9pN[oul [[IM JIpne Ay} J0J Wed) Judwd3e3ud InQ
wea] Juswabebuy g

‘pantasal SIYBU [V "dTT1 MN UoluIoy L 1UBID 8002 ®

"9[qerown

SIY} QAQIYOE O} W) JNOA YIIM A[ISO[O JIOM M JeY) [BIUISS
QI0JQIdY} ST I "SAUI[PEIP JNOK J99W 0) APUIIOLFJO SOOINOSAI
Ino Apdde pue 91eUIPIO-00 oM JBY) AINSUD 0) JUAWIFBUBW
109lo1d 9A109)J0 Aq pauurdiopun st ssao0i1d jrpne oy,

600T 1290100 sopIuwo)) ypny 03 Hoday]
6007 1daS ¢ soprwwo)) sasoding [erouan) 03 11oday
600 1dos ¢ uodar )97 VST 3JeIp SSnoSIp 0) UM
600¢
1sn3ny §g SI0M MIIARI 0) JoULIR]
600¢

sn3ny L] o/m

s3urpurj Ino ssnosIp 0} SunJsw JOULILID)

Suroguo SI0M MIIAI 0] JISIA JOSBURA]
600 £Inf 9 SIOMPIaT} 9oUSUIUIOT)
600C Qunf O¢ Aq paxmbar sjunodoy jo reaorddy
MOTAI

600T Y2TeIN S[0TUOD [eUIIUT SUIPN[OUT MITAIL WLIAJU]
eq JUIAY
M

U99q ARy Saurpeap pue d[qeiown pasodoid Jurmor[oy ay,

SOuUO0lSo|IW pue sa|geldwWl]  |'{

SI2)jell 2ANIBNSTUIWPY 1



Page 23

600 [1dy T uo [1ouno)

Ay} 0] JUAS 1O SIUAWAFUBLIE INO UTYIIM JUSWAFBURW

0} pariddns uaoq aaey paredaid oq 03 uoneWLIOJUT JO SISI'T
paJinbal uonewJoju] '

“panssI AIe $9J0U 9] AY) UAYM
anp 9q [[14 S99 Y} PUL IO [BIOUBUL JOIYD) Y3 YIM

paaide axe Aay) Se U0OS SB PA[[Iq 9q [[I4 SIS0 [eUOnIppe AUy

*91qISsod JOAIUM ‘PALINJUL AT $)SOD AI0JAQ $IQJ [BUONIPPE
Aue 9213® pue nok Y)m way) SsnosIp [[Im am ‘ue[d aroqe

"Panesal SIYBU IV "dTT MN UOIUIOY ] JUBID 8002 ®

JU} 0} SOOUBLIBA AUB JIB 91U} J| 'JUSJUOD pUB WIOJ PI2I3e
Ay ur sajep anp Yy Aq pAad[dwod 3uraq sysel/A[qe[reAe
3uraq sonpayds asay) uodn puadap [[1m 9] pue J[qeIown
Pa213e 9y} 0) PAUI[INO SIDIAIIS AY) JOAI[IP 03 A)[Iqe InQ

“JOW QI SN Y)IM PAAIZE SAUI[PLp [V o

pue ‘suoneue[dxa apraoid 0
pue uoneuLIOJuI 9J8J0] sn d[9Y 0 9[qE[IBAE QJB JJRIS INOX e

‘orep
SIOMP[RLJ JO JUSUWIAOUIWWIOD JY) UO sn 0) pajuasaid are
SJUNOJJE [OJJUOD PA[IOUOIAI YIIM JOY)a30) ddue[eq [} e

‘SN 0) 9[qe[IBAR dpBW AL
A[Teo1u0109[9 Py AS0Y) SUIPN[OUT ‘SPI0JI PUE $Y0Oq [[V e

‘600T Tdy 7T
Uo [10UN0)) Y} 0 JUAS )9 SjuduwueLIe 1o Jad se Jipne

SIUNOJJ® [BULY I JO JUIWDUWWOD Ay} 03 Jorid Apear
QJe SJUNOJJE AY) Ul sAINF1J [[€ J0J s[npayds sunioddng e

‘syuauysnlpe Jipne aunnoi 0y AJuo 323[qns J1pne 10J 600
aun[ (¢ £q sn 0} payudsaxd are syunodoe K10jmie)s el e

:7ey) SISeq AU} UO ST 99] JIpne sjunodde pasodoid ay,

:800C [Udy ur eanruwo)

1pny a2y} 0) paprwgns ‘uefd Jipne [[BIA0 INO UI [IOUNOD)
Ay} 0] PASO[ISIP sem (VA SUIPN[OXd) AJewNs? 99 InQ
seod €+



Page 24

0 QUON

SIINAIIS JAYPO

0TI‘ILY 2019eId JIPNY JO 3POD) U} I9PUN YIOM JIPNY

SIJIAIIS JIPNY

:MO0[2q
1IN0 19s aIe 1eaA oY) Sunp [1ouno)) o) parddns sao1AIS
SS2IAISS lIpNe-uou pue lpny (1)

‘seare Juowadpnl £y Jo 10adsar ur uonisod juspuadapur
ApSnqou e urejuIBW [[IM M JIpNe Ay} SULINp SW [ 1Y

*1ouyted [enpIAIPUL JO QO1JJO ‘WLIL)
) JOYIIA JOJ WOodUI 995 [€10) Jo uoniodoid ayerrdoiddeur
ue jJuasaidar jou op [ouno)) ay) £q pred s99y QO e

pue {[rouno)) ay) Y diysuoneyar
ssauIsnq Jo juaunsaaur quawkordwa ‘reroueury ‘Aruej
OU 9ABY Wed) JIpne 9y} pue s1oujred si1 ‘uojuioy], Juein) e

"Panesal SIYBU IV "dTT MN UOIUIOY ] JUBID 8002 ®

{SIBQA 9AT} AI9AQ SAIPOQ PAIpNE JO JIpne Ay}
JJO paIBI0I ATk SIdFBUBW 9JTAIS JURI[O pue sioulred Jipny e

:Jey) QINSUI dM SIOJIpNE sk dduapuadapur Ino urejurew o,
SSaulsSNqoJ pue aduspuadapu ()

"doueInsse Ajenb
0} yoeoidde s uwiy ay3 1oylang ssndsip 03 Addey oq pynom apn

") 3811y oY)

J10J 9)B10)0211(] 2ourInssy Ajend) Yy £q ma1Aa1 03 30a[qns
QI SJUQWIRIE]S [BIOUBULJ JUSWIUIIAOL) B0 JO JIpNE 9y}
‘6007 Wwolj uonippe uy ssa001d maraax AJfenb s uorssruwo))
1IpnY 9y} 03 199[qns aIe S[IOUNOD JO SIPNE. ‘QIOULIAYIIN]

"MAVII Y} JO 91BI0JOII(] OUBINSSY

Ayend) ay3 Aq pazojruowr osfe st aonoeid Jrpne Ay,
"SJUQWZRI UL JIpne Jsa1ul d1jqnd s, WLy 9y} JULIOJUOW
Joy Aypiqisuodsar sey yorym [rouno)) sunioday] [eroueur
oy Jo wire ue ‘run) uonoadsuy 3Ipny

) £q parojruow AU SI d130e1d JIpne s, u0juIoy [, Juein)

aoueinsse Aljenb 1pny

m

SANI[IQISUOdSal pue SI[OI PUB 99NTWIWO))

1PNy 91 YIIM UONBIIUNWWO) ‘Qouspuadopur ‘aoueinsse Aend) v

V XIANHddV



Page 25

“JIpNE [BUIoIUI AQ PAIONPUOD

3unsa) Aue Jo SUOISN[OUOD AY) S [[dM SB ‘PIYSI[qRIS

aARY AaU) SUIISAS 9} JO SSQUIATIORJJS Q) O} Sk JuswaFeuew
wolj s310daI 9AIIAI P[NOYS 9NIWWO)) JIpNY Y[,

"SI JO JUQWIASEUBW A} pUe [01IUOD [BUIdUI

03 uone[al ur 110dar [enuue Y Ul PAPN[OUL SJUIWIL]S

9y} da01dde pue S[ONUOD [BUIUIL JYIO [[B MIIAI 0) paimnbax
ST 99)IWWO)) AY) ‘UONHIPPE U] *S[ONUOD [BIOURULY [RUIIUL
§,]1oUN0)) AY) MIIAI 0) parmbar st eonIIO)) J1pny Y,

"QUOp U23q Sey SIY) Jey) SIOQUIIJA] 03 ddueInsse Jurpraoid e
[0TUO0D [eUIIUI

JO wdsAs o) Sunoyruow pue 3unerddo ‘Furdo[ordp e
SII JO SULIO}IUOW

pUE JUSWATRUBW JUIWSSISSE ‘UOIIBIUIPI Y} ®

:10J 9qrsuodsar SI JuawaSeurW S [1OUN0)) AYJ,

V XIANHddV

"Panesal SIYBU IV "dTT MN UOIUIOY ] JUBID 8002 ®

‘[ouno) jo uonisod

[erouRUL 9Y) ‘QuIn} AUB I8 ‘9SO[OSIP PUE SUOIOBSURT) [[8

JO QInjeu 9Y) MOYS 0} JUAIOLJINS ] [[IM SB SPIOIAI puB SY00q
[ons surejurews [1ouno)) ay) ey} saxmbar osfe uone[sigo|

*AIBSSQIIU JIPISU0D dm suoneuedxad

pUEB UOTJBULIOJUT I} [[B SN 0} J[qB[IBAR SULYEW JOJ PUe SIejje
§,[1oun0)) 9y} JO MIIA IBJ PUB QML) B MOYS YOIYM SJUSWIIL)S
[eroueuty 9y Jo uoneredard oy 103 9[qrsuodsar are SIDJJO
sallljiqisuodsal pue sa|oyYy (n)

600 Iquiaydag 47 uo sapruwo)) sasoding [erouan)
Ay} Je ‘SJUNOJI® JO 39S [euly oy} ApIs3uore ‘pAuasaid oq
114 310da1 )97 VST INO ‘SQUI[PEIp A10INJR)S JOUW 0) JOPIO U]

*$s9001d j1pne oY) woiy syuswaInbal pue suonedadx
$,090IWIWOY) AY) A[[NJ PUL)SIIPUN dM INSUD O) puL
SSQIPPE 0} SN AYI[ P[NOM NIWIWOY) JIPNY Y} JBY) SIdNeU
IQU)0 I AIAY) JI Jeay 0] PISIAUI 9q P[NOM oM ‘A[[eur]

[IOUNOD) AY) UIYHIM UIDUOD UMOUY JO SBAIR AUB 0) UOTIR[I
ur Indur s,0001WWO)) JIPNY AY) SWOJ[OM OS[E P[NOM A\

"SUISLIE SI9)jBW QYY) 9JBIIUNWWOD 0} JOPIO

ur saInpadoid Ino JO uoISN[OU0d Ay} FUIMO[[0F PIWWO))
oy} yIm 300w 0) dsodoid os[e om uonIppe U] "YIom Ino

JO JUAWAOUAWIWOD AY) JO ddUBAPE UI JIpne Yy} Jo 2dods ay)
way) Yym 3urssnosip asodoad am ssao01d jipne oy Jo red se
pUB 9NIWWOD) IIPNY Y} YIIM UOHBIIUNWIOD SUWOI[IM A\
99IWWOD HPNY 8yl YIm uoiediunwwod  (Al)



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



- Page 27 Agenda ltem 8
& GrantThornton

London Borough of Haringey

Grant Claims And Returns Planning
Memorandum 2008-09

July 2009



Page 28

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Contents Page
1  Background 1
2 Approach to certifying grant claims and returns 2
3  Developing the managed audit 3
4  Relationship between grants certification and other work 4
5 Roles and responsibilities 5
6  Grants protocol for 2008-09 claims & returns 6
7  Claims history at London Borough of Haringey 7
8 Team and timing of work 8
Appendices

A Summary of all claims and returns for the year ended 31 March 2009

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Page 29

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Background

In addition to our audit of the Council's financial statements and use of resources,
we are required to certify grant claims and returns above predetermined thresholds.

In carrying out work in relation to grant claims and returns, Grant Thornton UK
LLP acts as an agent of the Audit Commission, on behalf of the grant paying bodies.
The work that the auditor is required to undertake is specified in a Certification
Instruction, issued by the Audit Commission for each scheme, following discussion
with the grant paying body. Although the auditor is required to cover all relevant
Audit Commission tests the overall amount of work required on each claim will vary
due to:

=  the impact of approach and thresholds for certifying claims and returns (see
the next section for details);

=  the size and complexity of the claim and the relevance of each test to
transactions at the Council;

= the history of the claim at the Council and whether there have previously
been any significant issues or concerns;

= the quality of working papers produced by the Council to support entries on
the claim; and

=  the extent to which Internal Audit has been used to verify entries in the claim
and the we are able to rely on the work undertaken.

As agents of the Audit Commission we are required to recover, in respect of each
grant claim and return, a fee that covers the full cost of the relevant work
undertaken. These rates are based on the hourly rates for certifying claims and
returns set out in the Audit Commissions "Work programme and scales of fees 2008-
09 and indicative fee proposals for 2009-10 and 2010-11" for local government,
housing, criminal justice and fire and rescue services.

We are required by the Audit Commission to charge 2008-09 fee scale rates on all
Code audit and non-Code work relating to the financial year 2008-09. These rates

are given in the table below.

Table 1: Fee scale rates

Grade of Staff Rate per hour
Appointed Auditor 365
Manager 200
Audit Executive 130
Other Staff 100

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



2.1

22

23

Page 30

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Approach to certifying grant claims and returns

The approach to certifying grant claims and returns is set out below.

*  For claims and returns below a de minimus amount set by the Audit
Commission (currently £100,000), the Audit Commission will not make
certification arrangements, regardless of any statutory certification
requirements or any certification requirement set out in the grant terms and
conditions.

*  Asacondition of our appointment as an Audit Commission Auditor we are
prohibited from certifying claims and returns below the de minimus amount.

*  For claims and returns between the de minimus amount and a threshold set
by the Commission (currently £500,000), we are required to undertake
limited tests to agree form entries to underlying records, but will not
undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure or data.

] For claims and returns over this threshold, we will assess the control
environment over the preparation of the claim or return and make a decision
as to whether or not to place reliance on this environment.

= Where reliance is placed on the control environment, we will undertake
limited tests to agree entries on the claim or return to the underlying records,
but will not undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure for data.
Where reliance is not placed on the control environment, we will undertake
all tests in the certification instruction.

We will assess the degree of work to be undertaken on each claim and return due for
certification in 2008-09 in accordance with this approach.

It should be noted that these arrangements, along with the overall number of claim
and returns requiring certification, have continued to reduce in the number of claims
and returns for which grant paying bodies require external auditor certification, as
part of reducing the burden on local authorities.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 31

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Developing the managed audit

This plan currently assumes that we can place reliance on the work of Internal Audit
in respect of the key financial systems of the Council, including the systems
underpinning significant grant claims and returns.

As part of the managed audit approach we are keen to develop the extent to which
we are able to place reliance on work carried out by Internal Audit on specific
elements of systems and controls in relation to a number of claims for 2008-09 and
beyond, in particular:

*  housing subsidy; and

" national non-domestic rates (NNDR).

To enable us to increase reliance on Internal Audit work we will need to agree the
scope and timing of the work to be performed by Internal Audit on systems and
controls in accordance with the requirements of individual certification instructions
produced by the Audit Commission. We are willing to share the certification
instructions with the Council when they are published.

Where we identify Internal Audit work on which we may be able to place reliance,
we re-perform elements of Internal Audit's testing to confirm the accuracy of the
results. This can reduce the amount of testing we are required to undertake with a
corresponding reduction in the fees charged for the grant certification work.

We have discussed the possibility of relying upon the work of Internal Audit with
regards to these specific claims and returns for 2008-09. However, given that 2008-
09 Internal Audit Plan did not include specific work on grant claims and returns
testing we will not be able to specifically rely upon Internal Audit work during the
2008-09 certification process.

For future years we can discuss the scope of such work within the Internal Audit
Plan if the Council considers this to be appropriate. We would envisage involving
Internal Audit on those claims and returns for which we identified inadequate
control environments to be in place in prior years. In the case of these particular
claims and returns the full Audit Commission tests would be required.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Page 32

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Relationship between grants certification and
other work

The 2008-09 accounts audit is due to be completed and the audit opinion signed by
30 September 2009. This is before the certification deadline for some of the major
claims and returns.

In order to gain assurance that the accounts are not materially misstated with respect
to grant income and related expenditure, we perform analytical procedures and key
tests from the certification instructions which are material to the Council's accounts
as a part of our accounts audit work.

By the earlier of 30 September and the date on which the accounts are signed, we
will complete sufficient work on the certification of these material claims and returns
to conclude that there were no material misstatements to the accounts due to
expenditure incurred or income received. We will complete the remaining tests, to
cover the requirements of the certification instructions, prior to the certification
deadlines.

As in 2007-08, we will undertake one integrated piece of work on benefits, covering
claim certification, data quality and some elements relevant to the accounts opinion.
The scope of this work is set out by the Audit Commission in the housing and
council tax benefits certification instruction and HB COUNT workbooks. The
housing and council tax benefit claim was required to be submitted to us by 31 May
2009 and we can confirm it was received on time.

We are required to complete enough work to inform our use of resources
assessment by 14 August 2009, and our value for money conclusion and accounts
opinion by 30 September 2009. All work on this claim, including any additional
testing as a result of identifying errors in the initial sample, is required to be
completed by the certification deadline of 30 November 2009.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



5.1

52

Page 33

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Roles and responsibilities

The table below summarises the respective roles and responsibilities of the parties
involved in the certification process.

Table 2: Roles and responsibilities

Party Role and responsibility

Grant paying body Set conditions of grant and deadline for submission for pre-
certified and certified claims.

Audit Commission Issues certification instructions for auditor work.

Council Submits claims for certification to the Appointed Auditor within
grant paying body submission deadlines.

Appointed Auditor Certifies claims submitted in accordance with Audit

Commission Instructions and within certification deadlines.

The Council’s role can be further analysed areas as follows:

the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that supporting
accounting records are sufficient to document the transactions for which
claims are made. These records should be maintained in accordance with
proper practices and kept up to date, including records of income and
expenditure in relation to claims and returns;

the Council should ascertain the requirements of grant schemes at an early
stage to allow those responsible for incurring eligible expenditure to assess
whether it falls within the scheme rules and to advise those responsible for
compiling claims and returns to confirm grant entitlement;

the Council should ensure all deadlines for interim and final claims are met to
avoid sanctions and penalties from the grant paying bodies;

to comply with Audit Commission Certification Instructions, claims and
returns should be supported by adequate working papers. The Council
should have procedures in place to ensure that not only are the claims and
returns prepared for external auditor certification but also that the
documentation is in place to support the information declared;

grant-paying bodies usually require the Council’s certificate to be given by an
appropriate senior officer. This is typically the Chief Financial Officer or an
officer authorised by written delegated powers; and

the Council should monitor arrangements with any third parties involved in
the certification process.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



6.1

Page 34

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Grants protocol for 2008-09 claims & returns

The following summarises the proposed protocol for the certification this year:

The Council has identified all claims and returns and this information is
incorporated into Appendix A to this grants plan.

When each expected claim or return is completed, a scan of the signed
original version should be emailed to the Audit Executive, Caroline Glitre at
caroline.glitre @ gtuk.com. The original claims and returns should be retained
by the Council with one central named co-ordinator.

If additional claims and returns are identified by either us or the Council they
will be incorporated into the appendix in this grants plan.

All claims and returns should be sent to us, even if below the de minimus
limit so that we can confirm that no certification is required where necessary.
We are required to report the value for these claims to the Audit
Commission in our annual grants return.

We will inform the Council's grants co-ordinator as to which claims and
returns have been received, and also to highlight any which have not been
received after a submission deadline. We will also provide a monthly update
on the status of certifications.

Our monthly correspondence will also include copies of the certification
instructions for any new claims and returns received.

Once claims and returns are received we will arrange staffing for the
certification and will liaise with the named coordinator at the Council
regarding dates for the certification work.

We intend to certify all claims and returns in accordance within the deadlines
set out by the Audit Commission. If we receive any claims after the
Council's submission deadline, we will endeavour to certify them within the
Audit Commission deadline but, where this is not possible, within the
permitted three months from receipt.

Once we have completed our on-site certification processes we will collect
the original claim or return from the named coordinator.

A copy of each certified claim or return will be sent to the named
coordinator when the certification process is complete, along with a copy of
a qualification letter if applicable.

We will issue a bill at the end of each month (with the first bill being issued
in July 2009), which will break down the overall fee on a claim by claim basis.

We expect to complete the certification all of claims by late 2009. After this
point we will issue a grants report highlighting any issues we feel should be
brought to the Council’s and Audit Committee's attention.

We will then discuss with Internal Audit, the possibility of incorporating a
number of claims and returns for 2009-10 into their 2010-11 Plan.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



7.1

7.2
7.3

7.4

Page 35

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Claims history at London Borough of Haringey

The most significant claims in 2007-08 were:
. housing and council tax benefit;
*  housing subsidy; and

= national non-domestic rates.

There are an estimated fourteen claims and returns to be submitted for 2008-09.

In our 2007-08 grants report the key points we reported to the Audit Committee
were:

= QOverall the Council improved their performance against key targets, with
only 5 of the 17 claims and returns being qualified and 5 claims and returns
amended (29%). In 2006/07 there were 6 amendments (33%) and 7
qualifications (39%) to the 18 claims and returns;

=  The qualified claims were the Housing and Council Tax Benefit Scheme, the
General Sure Start grant, the Housing Subsidy claim, the National Non
Domestic Rates Return and the Teachers' Pensions return; and

- 88% of grants claims that required certification were submitted on time. This
was an improvement on the prior year when performance against this target
was at 83%.

The table below summarises performance against best practice targets.

Table 3: Performance against best practice targets

Performance Target | Best Practice Target |Performance |Performance
in 2006-07 in 2007-08

Claims submitted on 100% 83% 88%
time
Claims amended 0% 33% 29%
Claims qualified 0% 39% 29%
Certified within Audit 100% 67% 100%
Commission deadline or 3
months from receipt

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP

. All rights reserved




8.1

8.2
8.3

8.4

8.5

Page 36

London Borough of Haringey
Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09

Team and timing of work

The team will be led by Caroline Glitre and managed by Justin Collings who will
review the certification work performed on all claims and returns, with the exception
of the housing and council tax benefit and national non-domestic rate claims which
will be reviewed by Richard Lawson. The Appointed Auditor, Paul Dossett, will be
responsible for final review and certification of the claims and returns, supported by
the Client Service Manager, Paul Hughes.

Our work will be undertaken between June and December 2009.

Appendix A sets out details of the deadlines for submission of the claims to us,
certification deadlines and an estimate of the input required.

The estimated time for each certification is set out in the appendix to the plan and
makes the following assumptions:

= the certification instructions for 2008-09 do not vary from 2007-08 to any
significant degree, except where there are known adjustments;

*  the Council provides adequate working papers to support each entry in the
grant claim/return;

= the Council’s staff are available to deal with our queries in a timely manner
and provide such explanations and supporting evidence necessary to support
entries; and

. we have assumed that there will be no change in the scope of our work due
to the control environments in place during the year.

Should these assumptions not prove to be correct once we commence our work
then the budgeted number of days will be increased or decreased accordingly.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 37

paniasal sybu ||V "d71 YN Uoluioy L JueID 6002 ©

(80-L00T Ul 6¥Z°LO1F) 000063 A1orewixoidde aq [[14 60-800T UL JIOM UOHEBOLILIN0 10§ 35 INO e} JJBUWINS M
SI0M UOTIBOTJTIIS) Tuanbasqns Jo 1[nsal e se pansst seam 110dax sjueil 6o-800g 9y 101J8 PIpUSWE Sem WIR[O [0V T YL «

Suniodazx
091v3 00S‘v3 - - - - pue uonensmurwpe ‘Suruued sjuein)
(swre[o aA1g oy jo

€6E V3 00v' v U0 01) JUSWIPUAWY A 60/L/1¢E 60/7/0¢ swire[o ajeredas ¢ - V(T duersold d[sulg

€ETYF 00CTv3 - A 60/CI/1¢ 60/6/0¢ SINIUNUIWOT) 10 [ea( MIN
110doy

0v6°9F 006°9F pue justpuary A 60/11/0€ 60/9/0¢ (T %) wmar suoisuad s1ydes |,
sHoday

SOE017F 00€°01F pue justpuary A 60/6/5C 60/9/9C UuInjal sajer SNSaWOop-uou [euoneN

8TS'CTF 000°SF - A 60/01/1¢ 60/9/0¢ SINI[IdE] pa[qesI

8€T'8F 00T°83F - A 60/01/6 60/8/8¢ wImar ejep aseq Apisqns VIH
1odoy

$89°97F 00L'9F pue jusupuawy A 60/Cl/1¢ 60/6/0¢ Ap1sqng Suisnoy

€973 00¢°SF uodoy A 60/01/1¢ 60/6/0¢ HeJs aIns [eIoual)

8L9't3 009'vF JuSWpUAWY A 60/6/0€ 60/L/€ $1d1209y [ende) SulsnoH jo utood
110doy]

S99°'1¥3F 00S°6TF pue justpualy A 60/11/0¢ 60/S/1¢ QWIAYIS SHIJOUQ Xe) [IOUNOD pue Fulsnoy

80-L0 60-80 Teak xord ulpea(q ulpea(q
39J [eNPY 39 pajewinysy JWI0IINO IBIA IO | Ul PAYNIY) | uonedynad) | Luoyny wrep)

6002 UYOTBIA [€ POPUL JeaA 9U) JOJ SUINidl pue swield [[e Jo Arewwng vy xipuaddy




Page 38

o Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication



- Page 39 Agenda ltem 9
& GrantThornton

London Borough of Haringey

Report on Information Technology Controls

July 2009



Page 40

London Borough of Haringey - IT Controls

Contents Page
1  Executive summary 1
2 Purpose and scope 2
3 Recommendations 3
Appendix

A Action Plan

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 41

London Borough of Haringey - IT Controls

I Executive summary

1.1 Introduction

This review provides an independent assessment of the effectiveness of the design
of the London Borough of Haringey's (‘the Council's) general controls over
information technology in areas that may impact on the financial statements. This
report is intended primarily for use by the Council in developing its control
framework over information technology provision in the future.

The review was conducted as part of our normal audit planning procedures, to arrive
at an assessment of the risk that controls fail to prevent material error or fraud. This
assessment is designed to establish the feasibility of placing reliance on internal
controls to reach our opinion on the truth and fairness of the Council's Annual
Financial Statements.

1.2 Conclusions

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management
activities and controls are suitably designed. There are no significant findings arising
from the audit. However, we have highlighted a small number of points for
consideration by management that seek to enhance existing controls. These can be
found at section three with an action plan to record management's response.

1.3 Responsibility of Management

We would point out that the matters dealt with in this report came to our attention
during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements of the Council.

Our work did not encompass a detailed review of all aspects of the system and
controls, nor have we included all possible improvements in internal control that a
more extensive examination might develop. However, we would be pleased to
discuss any further work in this regard with the Council.

1.4 Use of this report
This report has been prepared solely for use by the Council and should not be used
for any other purpose. We assume no responsibility to any other person.

1.5 Acknowledgments

We would like to record our appreciation for the positive co-operation and
assistance provided to us by the IT department and other staff at the Council during
the course of our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
July 2009

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 42

London Borough of Haringey - IT Controls

2 Purpose and scope

2.1 The purpose of this report

The purpose of this report is to highlight the key issues arising from our IT audit
work, performed in preparation for the audit of the financial statements of the
London Borough of Haringey for the year ended 31 March 2009.

The document is also used to report to management to meet the mandatory
requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISAUK) 260.

2.2 The scope of our review

The review covered both administrative and operation controls over the Network
and SAP application. The Human Resources, Payroll, Finance and Training and
Events modules are currently deployed within SAP.

Other applications utilised by the Council include:

e [-Plan, I-Build, I-Gaz: property management system

e  Framework-I: Children and Young people Services system
e OHMS: Housing Management system

e RadiusICON: Cash receipting system

We have not sought to review controls over these or other applications.

2.3 Obijectives
The objective of the review was to assess the adequacy of the design of the Council's
general controls over information systems under the following headings:

e Security Administration

e cstablish effective security environment
e manage internal user access

e manage remote and third-party access
e monitor access to I'T systems

e Program Maintenance

e establish effective maintenance environment

e initiate change requests

e design, develop and configure program changes
e promote changes to production

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 43

London Borough of Haringey - IT Controls

e Program Execution

e establish effective program execution environment
e schedule batch programs

e execute authorised programs

e monitor execution of programs

e New System Implementation

e cstablish effective new system implementation environment
e initiate new system project

e define system requirements and specifications

e design, develop, configure and integrate system

e implement and deploy system

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 44

London Borough of Haringey - IT Controls

3 Recommendations

All recommendations listed in the following table are of low priority and are
designed to assist in the achievement of best practice.

3.1 Acknowledgement of Acceptable Use Policy by users

The PCI Gap Analysis report states that staff are not required to acknowledge
in writing acceptance of the security policy and procedures. Upon inquiry, we
found that this was per HR's advice.

Management should review the existing procedures for policy
acknowledgements with a view to introducing a process whereby all existing and
new staff are required to acknowledge, in writing, their understanding of the
security policy and procedures.

3.2 SAP password complexity

There are currently no controls in place within SAP to prevent the use of
common/predictable passwords. However, management is considering utilising
the single sign-on facility for access to SAP.

Alternatively, we recommend that the table containing common passwords
prohibited from use (Table USR40), should be populated and updated on a
regular basis. This would help in maintaining active password controls and limit
the risk of unauthorised access into SAP.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 45

"90ue)SUuI STY) Ul
[nyd[oy 210w UA2Q 2ABY P[NOD
npny siskfeuy den 10d
JUQDAI AY) UT JUIPIOM Y,

“paxmbai a10j0101)

st aanpadoad 29 Korjod

sy} Jo Surugis yeredas e
IOPISUOD JOU Op JUSWTRURIA

“(K3moas

our) saapadoid pue sarorjod
[T 01 @OUIIJAI SAPN[OUl
Suipiom s11 Aq YoIym I9119]
D291, ay) Surpnjour xipuadde
ue se sey yomym Adooe

u31s 0) paxnbar are (3oenUOd
POPUIWE JO MU B PIAIIIAI

‘sarnpasoid pue Aorjod A31noas ay)

Jo Surpuejsiopun Iy} ‘SUnLIM Ul ‘93pI[mouyde
0) paxnbair are Jjeis mau pue SunsIxd

18 £Aqa1aym ss2501d & Suronponur 03 MAA

B )M Sjuawdgpapmoude Aorjod 10y sarmpasoad

paxmbay QuoN | smaipuy uef aAey Je )sedkojdwa [y | MmO 3UIISIXQ AY) MATAAI P[NOYS JUIWIFBURIA I's
1O
e uonOy | dqisuodsay asuodsay yudwdSeueyy | AJIOLLJ UONEPUIWWONNY | JPoU

ue[J UOTIOY




Page 46

‘sjonuod piomssed
SIOMIQU I ] JUSLIND YIIM
SUIT U 2q T[IM MOITAI STU T,

‘parendod aq M OFISN
9[qe) MAIARI S1Y) Jo 1ed

se pue s[onuod piomssed
3unsixa urpnyout 1,54

dVS Aq uayelpun 3urdq

ST SWASAS JVS [[B 03 $S900.
JO MIIAJI B I} JIOYS Y} U]

‘dewrpeor A391e1S

LI Surwooyliog oy jo 1red
Se passnosIp 9q 0} pauued
SI OIyM UO USIS 9[3UIS JO

"dV'S OIUI $S9008 PasLIoyIneun Jo YSuI
Q) JIWI] pue [0u0d promssed dAnde Jururejurew
ur djoy pinom sy, ‘siseq re[n3al e uo pajepdn
pue paendod oq pnoys ‘(0yYSN 2IqeL) osn
woij paquyoid spromssed uowrwod 3urureIuod
9[qe) oY)} JBY) PUSWIWOIAL IM ‘A[QANBUIY

*KyI[Ioey uo-ugis A[3urs
oy Sursiin 9[qrssod a1aym ‘pI[qeua aIe SFUINAS
Axordwod arerrdoadde ey ainsud pue s3unjas

6007 19qUIRDQ(J | SMAIPUY UB[ | QUO SI UONNJOS WId) SUO[ AU, | MO plomssed JV'S oY) MIIAAI pP[nOYS JUSWATeUR]N | 7€
10430
e uonOy | dqisuodsay Isuodsay yuduSeueyy | AJIOLL] UONEPUIWIONY | JoY




Page 47 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 30 July 2009

Report Title: Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 2009

Report of: Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
N\

Signed:

Contact Officer: Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.To consider the Council's response to the issues set out in the Audit
Commission’s annual audit and inspection letter.

2. Introduction by the Leader (for the Cabinet meeting 16 June 2009)

2.1. This report makes clear the areas where the Council needs to focus its efforts
during the coming year to address the shortcomings outlined in the JAR
inspection at the end of 2008. We have already set in place a range of measures
to address the failings made clear in both the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter
and JAR. Our JAR action plan approved by partners has also been approved by
Ofsted and sets out an ambitious but achievable action plan which we are
determined to deliver against.

2.2. Although the overall rating and direction of travel judgement are disappointing the
report highlights that the council's performance in all other areas bar children and
young people is 3 out of 4 and in culture is 4 out of 4. It is also encouraging to see
that our use of resources score is 3 out of 4. Our Corporate assessment/ capacity
to improve score of 3 out of 4 should also give confidence that through concerted
effort of both the Council and partners our performance in Children and Young
People can improve significantly over the coming year.




Page 48

. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1. The annual audit and inspection letter is part of the formal process of external
audit and inspection and provides an independent assessment of the Council's
position in terms of progress in meeting its strategic objectives.

. Recommendations

4.1.To note the audit and inspection letter.

4.2. To note the response and actions as set out in the report agreed by Cabinet on
16 June 20089.

. Reason for recommendation

5.1. The recommendation provides a response to the issues raised and sets out clear
actions in terms of improving the Council’s performance in these matters.

. Other options considered
6.1. The recommended actions are considered to be the best options for the Council
to move forward.

. Summary

7.1. The annual audit and inspection letter presents the external assessment of the
Council. The Council is given an overall star rating of 1 with an assessment of not
improving adequately. This is primarily derived from the inspection of Children’s
Services carried out in late 2008. The report also outlines how the Council is
addressing the key issues raised by the external assessment process and these
were agreed at Cabinet on 16 June 20089.

Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1.The report and the recommendations contained within it are in accordance with
the statutory framework.

Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments

9.1. The audit and inspection process has a strong emphasis on equalities and
diversity. The Council has been assessed as performing well in this respect.

10. Consultation

10.1. There is no consultation planned.




Page 49

11. Service Financial Comments

11.1.
considered as part of the overall financial and business planning process and are
included within the previously approved budget.

The resource implications for implementing the actions in this report have been

12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
12.1.

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 2009 — Audit Commission

13.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
13.1.

None

14.Background

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

The Annual Audit and Inspection Letter from the Audit Commission is an
important external assessment of the Council’s overall position.

The Annual Audit and Inspection Letter is compiled by the Council’s relationship
manager and the external auditor. It summarises the conclusions and significant
issues arising out of the audit and inspection work for the Council in the
preceding year and from the audit of the Council's accounts. It includes
information from the Direction of Travel statement and from the Comprehensive
Performance Assessment (CPA) scorecard.

Cabinet agreed the response and actions as set out in this report on 16 June
2009.

15. Annual Audit and Inspection Letter

15.1.

15.2.

The Annual Audit and Inspection Letter reports on the Council's overall CPA
score, which reflects the serious problems identified with the Children’s Service
in November 2008 which (given the additional weighting in the overall scoring
this service has) gives the Council an overall star rating of 1 with an assessment
of the Council not improving adequately.

Within the CPA scorecard it is recognised that other services are performing
well with 3 out of 4 for value for money, environmental services, adult social
care, benefits and housing. While the Council is rated as performing strongly (4
out of 4) for libraries, leisure and recreation services.



Page 50

15.3. The full CPA scores are:

Performance area Rating
Overall performance 1 star
Financial management and value for money 3 out of 4 rating
Cultural services (libraries, leisure) 4 out of 4 rating
“Environmental services 3 out of 4 rating
Adult social care 3 out of 4 rating
Housing 3 out of 4 rating
Benefits services 3 out of 4 rating
Children's services 1 out of 4 rating

15.4. In addition to the overall position the letter covers four separate service
inspection areas that were reported in the last year.

15.5. The inspection of the Allocations and Lettings Service in October 2007 (reported
in December 2008) where the Council was judged as providing a ‘poor’, no-star
service having promising prospects for improvement. There is considerable
focus in the Council on addressing the concerns highlighted in this inspection.

15.6. The inspection of adult social care services were judged to be ‘good’ on
delivering outcomes with ‘promising’ capacity to improve. This is a two star
service. While the assessment:of the housing benefit service was that the
Council achieved a score of 3 (out of 4).

15.7. Ofsted’s annual performance assessment in December 2008 assesses the
services for children and young people as being 1 (out of 4). The full scores are

as follows:
Performance area | Rating
Enjoying and achieving, including student attainment 3
Making a positive contribution, including young people's
participation in decision-making and reducing juvenile- 2
offending rates
Achieving economic well-being, including staying-on rates o
and 16-19 achievement
Staying safe, covering child protection and safeguarding 1
Being healthy, including work on child health and teenage 1
pregnancy
Capacity to improve
Overall effectiveness 1

15.8. Scoring a 1 on safeguarding means the overall score is 1.



15.9.

15.10.

15.11.

Page 51

The APA judged that in staying safe there has been a serious deterioration in
performance and limited impact from services. The specially commissioned joint
area review in November 2008 judged safeguarding services including
performance management in this area to be inadequate. The APA judged that in
enjoying and achieving and economic wellbeing, services were making a greater
difference. Impact is evident in terms of: improved outcomes in the Foundation
Stage; attainment that is continuing to improve at all key stages; a higher
proportion of young people gaining qualifications by age 19; and there is better
attendance in schools.

The Council is assessed as delivering value of money and has good financial
standing. The Use of Resources score improved from a 2 to a 3 for financial
reporting and maintained overall an assessment score of 3 out of 4.

In the area of accounts and governance the comments are generally positive
and this is reflected in the important auditor opinions that the accounts for
2007/08 are unqualified and that the value for money conclusion is also
unqualified.

Key actions needed

15.12.

Four areas for key actions have been identified by the Audit Commission and
set out below are the actions taken / planned to address these areas:

1. Address the main findings and recommendations made by Ofsted in the
Special Joint Area Review.

15.13.

The Council and its partner agencies have submitted an action plan to

government responding to the specific points identified by OFSTED in the JAR

but also setting out the framework for a journey that will take 3 years to progress

from where the council currently is to being an exemplar. The action plan covers

a number of key changes namely:

closer working between social workers, police officers and health staff;

recruiting and developing top quality staff;

putting more resources into safeguarding;

improving systems and procedures;

strengthening the managerial and political supervision of the system,

including setting up a Children's Trust, and;

e a stronger, more robust Local Safeguarding Children Board with
independent chairperson.



Page 52

2. Accelerate the pace of improvement in environment (recycling) and
Homelessness.

Recycling

15.14. The Council's Greenest Borough Strategy and Recycling Strategy sets out how
we will improve recycling services and performance in the next two years. Key
actions include:

ensure the same high standard of recycling service across the borough,
including;

provision of the full mixed material recycling service (including plastic
bottles and cardboard, as well as food and garden waste collections) to
final 4000 kerbside properties remaining on the original kerbside service;
provision of the mixed material recycling service to remaining private blocks
of flats (all Council-managed estates were provided with services in
2008/09);

provision of the mixed material recycling service to flats above shops;
provision of food waste collections to 10 schools (all schools were provided
with the mixed material recycling service in 2008/09);

participation drive to increase participation in recycling services and the
amount recycled, and ensure value for money is achieved from the
services provided;

deliver awareness raising campaigns to reduce waste, increase
composting and reduce contamination;

improve the range and amount of materials recycled or reused through the
Reuse & Recycling Centres;

promote and develop local re-use and waste reduction schemes;
introduce on-street recycling bins for public places and review the network
of bring banks in the borough, and;

actively engage with local businesses by establishing an environmental
information scheme.

Homelessness - Temporary Accommodation (TA)

15.15. In April 2008 there were 5,389 households in TA this has reduced to 4568 as at
March 2009 moving towards a target of 2,600 2010/11. A steering group
chaired by the Chief Executive oversees the work being undertaken to reduce
the number of households in temporary accommodation. Actions include:

produce a TA Procurement Strategy;

set up an Registered Social Landlord RSL and Lettings Forum;
complete an audit of Supported Housing;

produce in consultation with stakeholders a multi-agency strategy and
action plan for tacking rough sleeping in Haringey;

set up and launch a rent deposit scheme for non-priority homeless;
develop a Move-On strategy to free up TA, and;



Page 53

e the London plan for the annual housing provision target for 2007/8 -
2016/17 is 660 - 970 for Haringey. 50% of all new homes should be for
social housing.

3. Maintain its sustained focus on addressing staff sickness levels and recruiting
key personnel.

15.16.

156.17.

15.18.

15.19.

15.20.

156.21.

The Council has been working hard to improve sickness absence rates over the
last two years. Use is made of the best sickness reporting tools in London to
help managers monitor and address sickness absence in the council. Regular
meetings take place within directorates and at board level to monitor and
challenge management action for addressing sickness. These will continue.

In the last two years sickness levels have reduced from 10.1 days in April 2007
to 8.5 days in January 2009. Current sickness levels are comparable or better
than many other public sector employers. The figure on which the relationship
manager made her assessment was 9.67 — based on December 2007 — so
considerable progress has already been made.

The CBI absence and labour turnover survey 2008 identified the local
government average sickness absence level at 9.2 days, and the average for
public sector organisations with over 5000 staff as 9.7 days. Within London the
London Councils sickness absence and turnover survey report 2008 showed
average sickness level as 10 days, although this excluded schools staff.
Haringey council current average excluding schools staff is 10.1 days.

There are no Haringey specific problems with recruitment or retention across the
Council as a whole other than those nationally recognised. The turnover rate is
12.6% which is within the London boroughs rate of 13.7% (2007). The level of
agency workers covering vacancies is currently at approx 10% of the workforce.
This is better than many other London boroughs. A recent London Councils
benchmarking survey of 13 boroughs (June 2008) showed the average agency
level at 15.9%.

There are some occupations that we have difficulty in recruiting to such as
Planners, Occupational Therapists, Transport Engineers, Social Workers -
Children & Families, Adults and Youth services, but all other London boroughs
experience difficulties in recruiting and retaining these occupations. The London
Councils recruitment and retention report May 2007 has regularly, since 2000,
listed these occupations in the top 10 of difficult to recruit and retain
occupational groups.

Therefore we are not too different and indeed better than many other London
boroughs in our ability to resource our workforce.



Page 54

15.22. Nevertheless, the council will continue to focus on managing and improving
sickness levels in the future as well as recruitment and retention.

4. Ensure its Treasury Management strategy continues to form a robust member
led process for protecting the Council's financial assets.

15.23. The Cabinet received an independent external review of its treasury
management arrangements by Price Waterhouse Coopers in February 2009
making a number of recommendations which were agreed for implementation
and have or are being implemented. A separate national report by the Audit
Commission was published in March 2009 and the recommendations for local
government have been picked up and included in the action plan for this service.
The progress in implementing these recommendations will be monitored by the
Audit Committee as part of its routine quarterly reporting. Separate quarterly
reports on the management of the treasury management function are being
considered by the General Purposes Committee.



Page 55

Annual Audit

and Inspection
Letter

Haringey London Borough Council
Audit 2007/08
March 2009

‘B g&'rﬁ?rt]ission



Page 56

Contents

Key messages

Purpose, responsibilities and scope

How is Haringey Council performing?

The audit of the accounts and value for money
Looking ahead

Closing remarks

w O O W

Status of our reports

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body.
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive
directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body.
Auditors accept no responsibility to:

. any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or
o any third party.




Page 57

The main messages for the Council included in this letter are as follows.

The London Borough of Haringey is not improving adequately. The Council’s
failure in its key priority to safeguard children has been publicly reported and it
currently delivers an inadequate service for children and young people. There was
insufficient strategic leadership and management oversight of the safeguarding of
children and young people and a lack of rigorous arrangements for the
management of performance. There is now new managerial and political
leadership of this service, but it is too early to tell whether such changes will lead to
improvement.

Improvement has been demonstrated in other services. Education standards, while
still below average are improving faster than the national rate and that of similar
councils for most groups at Key Stages 1, 2, 3 and for five or more GCSEs
including English and mathematics and adult social care has improved and is now
good.

Robberies and violence against the person are also reduced.
The Council received an unqualified opinion on its 2007/08 accounts.

The Council received an unqualified conclusion on its arrangements for securing
value for money during 2007/08.

The Council has improved aspects of its performance under the Use of Resources
framework, including moving from a Level 2 to a Level 3 for the Financial Reporting
theme. It delivers good value for money and has good financial standing.

The key actions needed by the Council are as follows.

The Council needs to address the main findings and recommendations made by
Ofsted in the Special Joint Area Review including the need to establish a rigorous
approach to performance management and the need for strategic leadership and
management of the safeguarding of children and young people.

The pace of improvement in areas such as environment (recycling) and
homelessness needs to be accelerated.

The Council needs to maintain its sustained focus on addressing staff sickness
levels and recruiting key personnel.

In the light of the Icelandic banking crisis, the Council needs to ensure its Treasury
Management strategy continues to form a robust member led process for
protecting the Council's financial assets



Page 58

This report provides an overall summary of the Audit Commission's assessment of the
Council. It draws on the most recent Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA),
the findings and conclusions from the audit of the Council for 2007/08 and from any
inspections undertaken since the last Annual Audit and Inspection Letter. It also
includes the results of the most recent corporate assessment.

We have addressed this letter to members as it is the responsibility of the Council to
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business and that it
safeguards and properly accounts for public money. We have made recommendations
to assist the Council in meeting its responsibilities.

This letter also communicates the significant issues to key external stakeholders,
including members of the public. We will publish this letter on the Audit Commission
website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk. (In addition the Council is planning to
publish it on its website).

Your appointed auditor is responsible for planning and carrying out an audit that meets
the requirements of the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice (the Code). Under
the Code, your appointed auditor reviews and reports on:

the Council’'s accounts;

whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (value for money conclusion);
and

whether the Council's best value performance plan has been prepared and
published in line with legislation and statutory guidance.

This letter includes the latest assessment on the Council’s performance under the CPA
framework, including our Direction of Travel report and the results of any inspections
carried out by the Audit Commission under section 10 of the Local Government Act
1999. It summarises the key issues arising from the CPA and any such inspections.
Inspection reports are issued in accordance with the Audit Commission’s duty under
section 13 of the 1999 Act.

We have listed the reports issued to the Council relating to 2007/08 audit and
inspection work at the end of this letter.



Page 59

How is Haringey Council performing?

How is Haringey Councll
performlng’?

The Audit Commission’s overall judgement is that Haringey Council is not improving
adequately and we have classified Haringey Council as one-star in its current level of
performance under the Comprehensive Performance Assessment. These
assessments have been completed in all single tier and county councils with the
following results.

Figure1  Overall performance of councils in CPA

-~
Mot Improving Adecuately One star performance
Direction of travel against other councils Performance against other councils
improving strongly 24% 4 star 42%
improving well L5 A 3 star 8%
improving adequately 14% 2 star 17%
not improving adeguately g &
Eootimprodng 4% 1 starf| 2%
Ostar 0%

Source: Audit Commission (percentages may not add up to 100 per cent due to rounding)

5 | Haringey London Borough Council



Page 60

Element

Direction of Travel judgement

Assessment

Not improving adequately

Overall 1 star
Corporate assessment/capacity to improve 3 out of 4
Current performance

Children and young people*® 1 out of 4
Social care (adults)* 3 outof4
Use of resources” 3 out of 4
Housing 3 outof4
Environment 3 out of 4
Culture 4 out of 4
Benefits 3 out of 4

The London Borough of Haringey is not improving adequately. The Council’s failure in
its key priority to safeguard children has been publicly reported and it currently delivers
an inadequate service for children and young people. There was insufficient strategic
leadership and management oversight of the safeguarding of children and young
people and a lack of rigorous arrangements for the management of performance.
There is now new managerial and political leadership of this service, but it is too early
to tell whether such changes will lead to improvement. Improvement has been
demonstrated in other services. Education standards, while still below average are
improving and adult social care has improved and is now good. Robberies and
violence against the person are also reduced. However there remains a considerable
challenge to improve quickly in areas such as environment and homelessness and to
reduce the level of teenage pregnancies. While the Council delivers good value for

money and has good financial standing which will provide capacity to improve, there is
still difficulty in recruiting to some key services and higher than average staff sickness
levels. Prospects of further improvement to important services remain uncertain.



Page 61

The Audit Commission’s inspection of Haringey’s Allocations and Lettings Service in
October 2007 judged that the Council provides a ‘poor’, no-star service that has
promising prospects for improvement. The service is not sufficiently customer-focused,
does not consistently measure its effectiveness among diverse groups and is not using
ICT to tailor services to needs. The service can be easily accessed and there is a clear
and visible commitment to driving improvement. The Council has taken positive steps
to address capacity issues, however, staff capacity is reduced, for example by high
levels of sickness absence, and the service is not consistently learning from customer
feedback. Overall improvement in performance indicators is mixed and progress in
implementing service improvement recommendations and delivering targets in key
strategies has not been consistent. The full assessment can be accessed via the
inspectorate's website www.audit-commission.gov.uk.

An important aspect of the role of the Comprehensive Area Assessment Lead (CAAL)
is to work with other inspectorates and regulators who also review and report on the
Council’s performance. CAALs share information and seek to provide ‘joined up’
regulation to the Council. During the last year the Council has received the following
assessments from other inspectorates.

An annual performance assessment of children's services.
An annual performance assessment of adult social care services.

An annual performance assessment of benefits service.

A summary of the overall judgements for each assessment are detailed in the
paragraphs that follow.

Ofsted's annual performance assessment (APA) in December 2008 of Haringey’s
services for children and young people judged their overall effectiveness at a grade 1
(out of a possible 4). The APA found that Haringey delivers inconsistent services for
children and young people and is inadequate overall. The APA judged that the
contribution of services to improving outcomes in the areas of being healthy and
staying safe were inadequate, whilst making a positive contribution and achieving
economic wellbeing were adequate and enjoying and achieving were good. The APA
judged capacity to improve, including the management of children’s services, to be
inadequate.



Page 62

The APA judged that in staying safe there has been a serious deterioration in
performance and limited impact from services. The specially commissioned joint area
review in November 2008 judged safeguarding services including performance
management in this area to be inadequate. The APA judged that in enjoying and
achieving and economic wellbeing, services were making a greater difference. Impact
is evident in terms of: improved outcomes in the Foundation Stage; attainment that is
continuing to improve at all key stages; a higher proportion of young people gaining
qualifications by age 19; and there is better attendance in schools. However, the
number of schools performing below floor targets remains too high and the proportion
of young people not in education, employment or training, although reducing, is above
that in similar councils and the national average. The full assessment can be accessed
via the inspectorate's website at www.ofsted.gov.uk

The Commission for Social Care Inspection's annual performance assessment in
October 2008 of Haringey’s adult social care services judged there to be ‘good
delivery of outcomes with 'promising‘ capacity to improve services. The service has a
two star rating overall (out of a possible three stars). Outcomes were assessed as
good across the seven outcome areas including economic well-being and improved
quality of life. Leadership and the commissioning and use of resources were assessed
as promising. Strengths included partnership working and the well developed approach
to joint commissioning. Areas for development included the need to increase the use of
direct payments and the need to develop further the prevention framework. The full
assessment can be accessed via the inspectorate's website, www.csci.gov.uk.

The assessment of the benefits service for 2008 concluded that the Council achieved a
rating of 3 (out of a possible 4). The full assessment can be accessed via the
inspectorate's website www.audit-commission.gov.uk.




Page 63

The audit of the accounts and value for money

The audit of the accounts and
value for money

17 Your appointed auditors have reported separately to the General Purposes Committee
on the issues arising from their 2007/08 audit and have issued:

an audit report, providing an unqualified opinion on your accounts and a conclusion
on your VFM arrangements to say that these arrangements are adequate, on
30 September 2008; and

a report on the Best Value Performance Plan confirming that the Plan has been
audited in accordance with statutory requirements.

Use of Resources

18 The findings of the auditors are an important component of the CPA framework
described above. In particular the Use of Resources score is derived from the
assessments made by the auditor in the following areas.

Financial reporting (including the preparation of the accounts of the Council and
the way these are presented to the public).

Financial management (including how the financial management is integrated with
strategy to support council priorities).

Financial standing (including the strength of the Council's financial position).

Internal control (including how effectively the Council maintains proper stewardship
and control of its finances).

Value for money (including an assessment of how well the Council balances the
costs and quality of its services).

19 For the purposes of the CPA the appointed auditors have assessed the Council’s
arrangements for use of resources in these five areas as follows.

9

Haringey London Borough Council



Page 64

Element Assessment
Financial reporting 3outof4
Financial management 3 out of 4
Financial standing 3 out of 4
Internal control 3outof4
Value for money 3 outof4
Overall assessment of the Audit Commission 3 out of 4

Overall, your appointed auditors reported on an improvement in the Council's
processes for the production and audit of its accounts this year. The response to audit
queries was, in the majority of cases, timely and adequate.

In February 2008, services within the PFI contract with Haringey Schools Services
Limited were suspended, resulting in the facilities management element being
transferred back to the Council and a requirement for the assets to come back onto the
Council's balance sheet. There were several complicated accounting entries required
as a consequence and adjustments were made to the accounts originally submitted for
audit.

During the 2007/08 financial year there was an increase in the deficit reported at
Alexandra Park and Palace and there were some complications over the granting of a
lease to the proposed service provider at Alexandra Palace. The relationship between
the Council and Alexandra Palace and Trust was reviewed to determine whether in
accounting terms the Trust should be consolidated into the Council's accounts. Your
appointed auditors concluded that although there were additional controls put into
place at the Trust at the instigation of the Council, these were of a temporary nature
and were not sufficient, in accounting terms, to warrant the Trust being included within
the Council's group financial statements. However we will revisit this issue when the
Council is required to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards in 2010/11.

The Pension Fund accounts were audited and reported on separately for the first time.
Your appointed auditors reported to the Pensions Committee on 20 October 2008, with
no significant improvement issues identified.

The Whole of Government Accounts were audited by the statutory deadline with no
significant issues to note.



Page 65

The UoR assessment reflected improvement in several areas, including an overall
score increase from 2 to 3 for the Financial Reporting theme. This was the only overall
theme score that changed from the prior year. The Council's Financial Standing
arrangements have developed well and represent a sound basis on which to address
the impact of the recession. The overall score in this area would have been higher if it
were not for the Council's £37 million deposits with Icelandic banks and the potential
risks that this may pose to the Council's longer-term financial position. We recognise
that large numbers of local authorities and other public bodies are facing similar risks
in the context of unprecedented failures in the banking sector.

The detailed findings from our work are highlighted in the Use of Resources and Data
Quality report. Key areas for continued improvement in Use of Resources are as
follows.

The Council should ensure that it publishes information enabling electors to
understand and exercise their rights in respect of the Council's accounts in
accordance with the statutory timetable.

Measures to address cost/performance issues should be implemented as planned
within the Achieving Excellence programme.

The Council's increased understanding of diverse local needs should become a
driver for improved VfM throughout the borough.

Finally, the Council needs to ensure that it identifies and pursues efficiency
opportunities through sharing procurement activity with key partners.

Under our Code of Audit Practice responsibilities we are required to review the
Council's Data Quality arrangements and test specific indicators. This is under a frame
work specified by the Audit Commission and applied to all councils. Based on this
framework the Council's Data Quality management arrangements have a number of
positive features although there are some system weaknesses. Improvement
opportunities include the key challenge of ensuring that high-quality data is used by
and shared within strategic partnerships, and developing a robust corporate approach
to validating externally reported data, for example, returns to government departments,
their agencies and regulators. The Council is in the process of procuring and
implementing a new performance management system, which presents an opportunity
to make significant further improvements.

A value for money review was undertaken on the Council's arrangements for tackling
Health Inequalities. This focussed in particular on the joint work of the Council and
Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust. Overall it was found that Haringey is relatively
advanced in its arrangements for tackling health inequalities. A number of
recommendations were made, in particular to expedite the development of the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment. It was also recommended that the structure of the Well
Being Partnership Board should be improved to provide a better balance between
strategic development and performance management.



Page 66

A review of the arrangements the Council has in place to ensure probity and propriety
in the conduct of its business was completed during the year. No serious weaknesses
in the Council's processes or systems were identified as a result of the review. The
review also took into account the requirements of the new Use of Resources
Framework and areas that the Council should look to develop if it wishes to be able to
demonstrate that it is performing well. A number of recommendations were made that
focussed on strengthening partnership arrangements, a key focus of the new
Framework. Other key findings included that the corporate risk register did not include
the risk of fraud occurring and that a formal training plan for Members of the Council's
Standards Committee should be developed. An action plan for implementation of the
recommendations arising from the review has been agreed with the Council.

The certification of grant claims submitted by the Council is undertaken in accordance
with instructions from government departments. The largest of these is the housing
and council tax benefit claim, with a value in 2007/08 of some £250 million. The
Council has improved its arrangements for the production of grant claims this year,
although there are still areas for improvement as outlined in our grants report. In
particular the Council should endeavour to submit all claims for audit by the required
deadline.



Page 67

The public service inspectorates have developed a new performance assessment
framework, the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA). CAA will provide the first
holistic independent assessment of the prospects for local areas and the quality of life
for people living there. It will put the experience of citizens, people who use services
and local tax payers at the centre of the new local assessment framework, with a
particular focus on the needs of those whose circumstances make them vulnerable. It
will recognise the importance of effective local partnership working, the enhanced role
of Sustainable Communities Strategies and Local Area Agreements and the
importance of councils in leading and shaping the communities they serve.

CAA will result in reduced levels of inspection and better coordination of inspection
activity. The key components of CAA will be a joint inspectorate area assessment and
reporting performance on the new national indicator set, together with an
organisational assessment which will combine the external auditor’'s assessment of
value for money in the use of resources with a joint inspectorate assessment of service
performance.

The first results of our work on CAA will be published in the autumn of 2009. This will
include the performance data from 2008/09, the first year of the new National Indicator
Set and key aspect of each area's Local Area Agreement.

Along with other local authorities the Council will be required to implement International
Financial Reporting Standards from 1 April 2010. This will involve a significant amount
of additional work in a number of key areas including valuations of fixed assets, review
of contracts and the recording of annual leave. The Council will need to start to put
arrangements in place from April 2009 as this represents the comparator year which
must be reported in the 2010/11 accounts.



Page 68

Closing remarks

Closing remarks

35 This letter has been discussed and agreed with the Leader, Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer. A copy of the letter will be presented at the Cabinet on the
24 March. Copies need to be provided to all Council members.

36 Further detailed findings, conclusions and recommendations on the areas covered by

audit and inspection work are included in the reports issued to the Council during the

year.

Table 3 Reports issued

Report Date of issue
Audit and inspection plan June 2007
Opinion on Best Value Performance plan December 2007
Health Inequalities June 2008

IT Controls June 2008
Opinion on financial statements September 2008
Report to those charged with Governance September 2008
Pension Fund report September 2008
Opinion on Whole of Government accounts October 2008
Value for money conclusion September 2008
Review of Probity and Propriety November 2008
Use of Resources and Data Quality December 2008
Grants report January 2009
Annual audit and inspection letter March 2009

37 The Council has taken a positive and constructive approach to audit and inspection

work, and we wish to thank the Council's staff for their support and cooperation during

the audit.

Haringey London Borough Council

14



Page 69

Closing remarks

Availability of this letter

38 This letter will be published on the Audit Commission’s website at
www.audit-commission.gov.uk, and also on the Council’s website.

Jackie Barry-Purssell
Comprehensive Area Assessment Lead

March 2009

15 | Haringey London Borough Council



Page 70

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone.

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people.

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070.

© Audit Commission 2009

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact:

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Tel: 0844 798 1212 Fax: 0844 798 2945 Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk




Page 71 Agenda Item 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Audit Committee On 30" July 2009

Report Title. Progress Report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

Report of : Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

¥,

Signed :

Contact Officer : Tim Fisher, Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation (020 8489
1954) ,

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information Only

e

. Purpose of the report

1.1. To advise and update Members on the Counter Fraud performance of the
Benefit and Local Taxation Service from the 15t April 2009 — 30™ June 2009.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. N/A '

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1. The Council has a published Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. The
activities stated in this report directly relate to the Council maintaining effective
counter —fraud activities as defined by this strategy

3.2. The requirement to maintain effective counter fraud activities is a
requirement of the Corporate Area Assessment as defined by the Key Line of
Enquiry — Service Outcomes for Users and the Community

4. Recommendations
4.1. That Members consider and note this report and the work being carried
out by the Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud
activity.




Page 72

Reason for recommendation(s)
5.1. N/A

(o]

. Other options considered

6.1. N/A

7. Summary

7.1. - The Benefits and Local Taxation Service continues to maintain and
further develop an effective approach to counter — benefit fraud activity. It has
achieved 11 successful sanctions against those found to be committing benefit
fraud during quarter 1 2009/10

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1. The Chief Financial Officer notes the contents of this report and confirms
that the counter-benefit fraud activity undertaken is provided within the overall
benefits & local taxation cash limit.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1.The Head of Legal Services has been consuilted in the preparation of this report,

and advises that there are no specific legal implications which arise out of the
contents.

9.2. Legal Services will continue to support Benefits and Local Taxation, in terms of
advice and prosecution work, in order to maximise the level of Government subsidy
available for recovering overpaid housing benefit.

10.

Head of Procurement Comments —| Required for Procurement Committee]
10.1. N/A

11.

Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments
11.1. N/A

12.

Consultation
12.1. N/A

13.

Service Financial Comments

13.1. The role of the Fraud Investigation Team does not attract direct financial
subsidy from Central Government as there is no specific statutory duty to
maintain counter fraud activity in respect of Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Benefit.

13.2. However, there is a clear expectation on Local Authorities to maintain
effective counter fraud activity. This is currently measured by the Corporate Area
Assessment through the Key Lines of Enquiry.

13.3. The Benefits and Local Taxation Service maintains a dedicated team at a

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 73

cost of £910,177 per annum to tackle benefit fraud. The role of the Fraud
Investigation Team is clearly defined in the Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy
relating the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

14. Use of appendices /T ables and photographs
Appendix 1 - Detailed breakdown of sanction cases achieved during Quarter 1 2009/10

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1 The background working papers are located within the BLT Fraud Section, 10
Station Rd, Wood Green. The BFI Report was published in October 2007 and is
available on the internet under www.bfi.gov.uk

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

Report Template: Formal Bodies

BACKGROUND

Counter fraud performance is primarily judged against successful outcomes in
respect of Prosecutions and Sanction based activity. Counter-Fraud staff are
empowered to investigate suspected benefit fraud and have a range of
sanctions that can be applied to those who admit to fraud or where there is
sufficient evidence to warrant a prosecution.

The Council has adopted an Anti - Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit. This specifies the type of activities
which underpin effective counter fraud activity.

COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

The performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the first quarter of
2009/10 is summarised in table 1.

The Benefits and Local Taxation Service has set an annual target of 140
sanctions for 2009/10. Despite a relatively slow start to the year it is
anticipated that performance will pick up over the remainder of the year.
Activity will be primarily focussed on data-matching activities which include the
National Fraud Initiative and the Housing Benefit Matching Service referrals.

Successful outcomes for 15t quarter 2009/10

Sanction Type Number Target Status
Issued

Caution 4 Accepted

Admin Penalty 2 Accepted

Prosecution 5 Guilt

Total 11 35

Table 1

A more detailed breakdown of cases forwarded for prosecution and sanction is
included in appendix 1 of this report. This gives details of the type of fraud
discovered. Each decision to prosecute or administer a sanction is taken in




8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Page 74

accordance with the Sanctions Policy. This takes a range of factors into
account when determining what appropriate sanction to apply, particularly the
level of planned dishonesty involved.

OVERPAID HOUSING BENEFIT

Counter fraud activity has identified £137,765 in overpaid benefit, this includes
overpayments for non sanctioned cases, and a further £1,263 in Administrative
Penalties. Central government subsidy is paid in relation to overpayments is at
a rate of 40p to the £1.00 or 40%. Consequently, it can be estimated that
£55,106 has been generated in subsidy, this effectively results in a 60%
shortfall against benefit expenditure.

The subsidy arrangements are designed to incentivise local authorities to
recover overpaid Housing Benefit. Currently, recovery performance in relation
to all in-year created overpayments is approx 51%. Based on this figure

the potential recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit arising through fraud could
amount to £70,260.

When combining subsidy paid, plus recovered overpayments for the year it is
estimated that counter fraud activity could recover in the region of £125,366.

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY

The Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy - relating to Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Benefit is published on the Council’s website, along with the
Sanctions Policy and advice on how to refer suspected cases of benefit fraud.

The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy outlines the types of activities the
Council will use to both detect and prevent benefit fraud and how the Council
will utilise all appropriate methods to identify benefit fraud, either directly or in
partnership with other organisations. This includes active participation in the
various data matching exercises that take place to identify possible fraud and
error.

The Audit Commission have supplied the Council with data relating to the
National Fraud Initiative 2009 (NFI 09). This is a data-matching exercise
undertaken every 2 years by the Audit Commission and Local Authorities. Data-
matching is where two data-sets are matched together with the aim of linking an
individual to both which may then identify discrepancies in information.

A total of 8,511 referrals relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit
were received. These are classified into high, medium, and low priority groups.
A breakdown of these are contained in table 2 below.

Priority Group Number of Matches %
High 4058 48
Medium 562 7
Low 3891 45

Table 2

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



9.5

9.6

9.7

Report Template: Formal Bodies

Page 75

It should be noted that the priority classification does not relate to the
probability of fraud. The priority refers to there being a likelihood that the two
data-sets relate to the one individual which in-turn could result in the uncovering
of a discrepancy.

Within the high priority group priority will be given to the 885 payroll matches
and 1580 pension matches. Investigations will be undertaken to establish
whether any of the individuals identified can be associated with discrepancies
over the information they may have given in support of their Housing Benefit or
Council Tax Benefit claims. Once the high priority matches have been cleared
attention will then be given to the medium priority group matches. Testing will
take place on the low priority matches before a decision is taken to allocate
resources to these cases.

Counter fraud activity will focus on NFI 2009 over the coming months and a
more detailed outcomes report will be made to the next meeting of the Audit
Committee.



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77

uoIINd3s0dd =d
Ajjeuad aAnesiuiwpy =y

uonne) =D
$8'797'T7 02'622'¥S7
0007 d| Bupiom auid -1ayisbol buiAl|£0-23a-8T 60-UN[-GZ |£6°8S6'8TF |/0-92Q-/T PERIERIVEYE NI600T
0007 D] supatd xel - buines SWaH|60-unc-S0 60-Un(-6Z  |0¥'0bE'CF  |60-4dV-£C SWgH| HOO0T00Z
0007 D| supatDd xel - buines SWaH|60-un(-TT 60-unt-6¢ |66°££6'SF  [60-unc-80 SWEH| SNOT00Z
0007 D| supaiD xel - buines SWGH|60-UNC-ST 60-unft-6¢ |10°€6S'TF [60-uer-£C SWEH| WNOT00Z
0007 0) JuapIsay 10N|60-4dv-90 60-UnC-1T  |pZ'SY6'vTF [60-41eW-£¢ | swesl buissadoid v88¢ZtC
CIRX & v| supatDd xel - buines SWAH|60-924-+0 60-Un(-6Z |16°00€F 60-Ue[-6T SWaH| 1170100¢
8v'6TC'TF v buiwie|d @ buplopm|60-1eW-0T 60-AW-TZ [8S5°+96°'CF |60-0°4-SC SWEH| H10T00C
0007 d buiwie|d B bupIoM |[80-100-T 60-Un(-0€  |9S9°/8S'TF [80-120-T0 dma V+019T
0007 d| PpaJepaq@ jou sniels Juspnis|80-bny-6T 60-1dv-60 [ZT°€TE'CF [80-bnv-8T V149430 V6,09T
00°0F d buiwie|d g buplopm|90-AeN-20 60-1dv-0Z [8E€°TSO'TF |90-4dv-£0 lapuiyied V68SST
0007 d buiwie|d g buplom|z0-AeN-T0 60-1dv-T0 [80°9€C'TF [£0-4dv-9C 21|qnd JO Jaquiay V8ESST
junouwe wn;._. P319A0JSIpP pneldj Jo wn;._. 9}ep pajeald _—QO ﬂ.ww._m< dO |ejol paso|d 92.1N0S |e.LId)aYy Jo QN4
uad pv V1| uonoueg uoljouesg ajeq AU| 3)eq
T xipuaddy 01/6002 T 4231end :poliad 104 pauoioues A|INJssaddns sased Jo s|iejap pasiwAuouy

aJuew.Iouad pneld J9juno)




Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

INo.]

Audit Committee On 30 July 2009

Report Title: Allocations and Lettings: progress in response to the Audit
Commission’s inspection recommendations

Report of: Phil Harris, Assistant Director Strategic and Community Housing
H’b\/m

Contact Officer :

Signed :

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. To consider the Audit Commission’s recommendations for the Allocations and
Lettings service and the progress that has been made as outlined in the action
plan in Appendix 1.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1.The work being undertaken in response to the Audit Commission’s Allocations
and Lettings report contributes to two of the council’s priorities to; a thriving
Haringey, the allocations and lettings service plays a part in the improvement of
housing within the borough. The service also contributes to; a caring Haringey
which is focused on supporting vulnerable adults and includes initiatives to
prevent homelessness.




Page 80

. Recommendations

3.1. That the Council's Audit Committee note the progress that has been made in
response to the Audit Commission’s Allocations and Lettings inspection from
November 2008. The specific actions being undertaken to address the
recommendations are set out in Appendix 1 - Housing Improvement Plan for
2009/10.

. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1.To demonstrate that progress has been made to the Allocations and Lettings
service to improve this service area.

. Other options considered

5.1. All the areas for improvement are contained in the Housing Improvement Plan for
2009/10.

. Summary

6.1. The Audit Commission inspected Haringey's Allocations and Lettings service in
2007 and reported their findings in November 2008. The report judged the
service to be ‘poor’, but with promising prospects for improvement.

6.2. The report pointed out areas of strength and weaknesses that needed to be
addressed and these are contained in the action plan in Appendix 1.

6.3. The report recognised that the service has a good track record in making
improvements as can be shown with the response to a previous inspection which
resulted in the introduction of the Home Connections service, setting up a
nominations and partnering agreement with housing associations, carrying out a
re-registration exercise to update the housing register, introducing a new letting
policy and the creation of the Preventions and Options service.

6.4. The Audit Commission’s report pointed out positive aspects of the service for
example:

e The service could be easily accessed through the website and through four
Customer Service Centres (CSCs). There was generally a good approach to using
Equality Impact Assessments. The service, often through partnerships, delivered
positive outcomes for a range of diverse groups. There has been some good work
to prevent homelessness, carry out occupancy checks and improvements to the

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 81

management of the housing register.

There was a clear and visible commitment to driving improvement from both senior
councillors and senior managers. The service demonstrated an openness to
challenge and a high level! of self-awareness, reflected in its future plans. The
performance management, monitoring and reporting frameworks are all generally
sound. The rate of improvement had increased, there was a good track record of
responding to external recommendations and there have been some significant
improvements for customers, although there remains more to do.

The Council has taken positive steps to address capacity issues. It has
restructured and appointed a new Assistant Director with knowledge and
experience of these services and of leading change. Other important posts have
also been filled. The ICT systems are capable of supporting the service well.

6.5 The report’'s recommendations, which have formed the focus for improvement are

as follows:
The Council should improve the customer focus of its service by:

Setting up systematic methods of keeping applicants informed of the progress of
their cases, measuring satisfaction, and involving users in service improvement,
including through the complaints procedure.

Updating information provided to service users, improving telephone access to the
service, and reducing the time taken to book appointments.

Developing a proactive and holistic approach to preventions and options, linking
outreach work carried out by the occupancy, preventions and options and housing
management teams.

Reducing the use of temporary accommodation in the Midlands, while being
mindful of the individual wishes of temporary accommodation residents currently
living there.

The Council should improve the choice-based letting service by:

Developing a more efficient and equitable bidding process by: filtering out
ineligible bidders, encouraging those with low points to seek alternatives,
identifying and supporting those who have not bid, particularly vulnerable
applicants.

Making the verification process more simple, flexible and user-friendly, and
ensuring that reasonable efforts are made to contact priority bidders to view
properties.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 82

The Council should improve its use of resources by:

Maximising the supply of permanent accommodation by: closely monitoring
nominations to housing associations, facilitating a balance between transfer and
homeless applicants, developing a comprehensive under-occupation scheme and
increasing outcomes from mobility schemes.

Building an analysis of risk into the budgeting process in regard to subsidy
changes, and maximising rechargeable income.

Improving data collection by ensuring that documentation is not lost, that data is
input accurately onto IT systems and that information is consistent across different
databases.

The Council should improve its approach to staffing by:

Taking steps to reduce the reliance on temporary and agency staff, and
addressing high levels of sickness absence in the service.

Developing and resourcing a training plan for staff, clearly linked to the aims of the
service.

6.6 The Strategic and Community Housing Service has developed a Housing

Improvement Plan for 2009/10 which addresses the business plan objectives and
areas for improvement from the Allocations and Lettings inspection. (see
Appendix 1 for details). Lead officers have been identified, together with service
improvement groups to carry out the identified actions.

6.7 Following the inspection progress has been made against the areas outlined in

particular:
e The production of a temporary accommodation reduction strategy..

¢ Review of the rationale for TA placements outside the borough with a view
to ensuring that all families placed in Birmingham and Luton will be
enabled to either settle in the area of their placement or return to the
Borough. Following from changes in our procurement policy, by March
2010 all of the households living in temporary accommodation will be either
within the Borough or within a one and a half mile radius of the Borough
boundary.

e The production of a multi agency Homelessness Strategy which was
developed with the full involvement of partners. Delivery of the Strategy is
driven by nine Delivery Groups, many of which are chaired by partner
agencies. .

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 83

Improvements to choice based lettings leading to a simplification of the
process.

Improvement in telephone performance, which has made the service more
accessible to customers.

A significant reduction in the employment of temporary staff and addressing
levels of sickness.

Permanent recruitment to key management posts leading to greater stability
at all levels of management.

Implementation of a full service restructure with all staff receiving new JDs
and giving a greater clarity of direction.

Developing service user engagement through the establishment of a TA
User Forum.

Simplification of the verification process and a move to pre verification,
which has benefited customers and increased efficiency.

Significant reduction in the number of direct lets made and support in place
to allow customers to be able to participate in Home Connections.

The establishment of a Private Sector Lettings Team which has led to a
significant increase in the number of assured shorthold tenancies accessed
both by households facing homelessness and households who have
chosen to move on from TA.

6.8 As part of the work of the improvement plan the Strategic and Community
Housing Service is:

Addressing value for money through the effective procurement of
accommodation. The delivery of both an Emergency Accommodation
Reduction Project and a PSL renewals project will drive the procurement of
TA in 2009/10 leading to improved value for money and better standards.

Reviewing the approach to under occupation and over crowding. .

Further improving choice based lettings by developing a more efficient and
equitable bidding process.

Developing a new Lettings Policy.

Producing information which will allow customers to assess their prospects
of rehousing and promoting alternative housing options.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 84

e Delivering an extensive training programme to support the implementation
of the new structure.

6.9 The Strategic and Community Housing Service has tackled and is continuing to
address the issues raised in the inspection report by linking improvements to
business plan objectives for the homelessness and lettings service, the ALMO
client monitoring function and the overall aims of the Strategic and Community
Housing Service.

7. Chief Financial Officer Comments
7.1.

8. Head of Legal Services Comments
8.1.

9. Head of Procurement Comments —[ Required for Procurement Committee]
9.1.

10. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

10.1. There is considerable pressure for affordable housing in Haringey with the
need outstripping supply. A large number of households, some 30% are in the
social rented sector and there is a relatively small owner occupied sector.
Nearly half of the borough’s population is from black and minority communities
and housing need disproportionally affects these groups. Considering the
specific housing pressures that exist in Haringey improvements to the
Allocations and Lettings service are important to create a service that supports
the reduction of homelessness and ensures those in need are appropriately
housed.

11. Consultation
11.1.

12. Service Financial Comments
12.1.

13. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
13.1. Appendix 1 - Housing Improvement Plan for 2009/10.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 85

14.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1. Allocations and Lettings, Audit Commission inspection report, November
2008.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



1 Jo | ebed

‘ue|d Juswaaoidwi| BuisnoH [jeJaAQ ayy pue ueld
uononpay V.1 9y} uo suodal saAldoal Aybiupoy sy@aw yoiym pleog juswarosdw| BuisnoH ssaiboud siojuow yoiym [ NS BuisnoH ojul s1aoiO pea
J1ay) ybnouy) podal So|S 9say | "suonoe ay} Ino Buikiied yym payse) aJe jey) sdnols) juswanoidw| ao1AI8S 8y} yim Buoje paiyjuapl aie si1aoljo peaT

'S90IAIBS BuisnoH pue Ajunwwo) pue 2d16a8)el)S Jo Aljeuonouny ||[eJaAo pue uoiouny Bulojuow jusi) QY ‘e2IAIes
sBuns| pue ssaussajowoy ayj Jo Juawaroldwi 8y} JOA0D ey} SaA08[qo ue|d ssauisng JNo 0} SUoljepusWIWOo9al a)ejal 0} pasiueblo si ueld siy]

‘Aauouw 1o} anjeA poob sapinodd pue paljusd-1awoisnd ‘esodind
Jo} ) ‘pabeuew [jom si )1 jey) Buunsus ‘eoialeg BuisnoH Ajunwwos pue 2ib9jesS 8y Jo juswaAcidwl SNONUIIUOD 8y} dA3IYoe O] :G aAldalqo

*10J09S
pojual ajeAld ayl o) sisuleq Buinowsals pue ‘sbums| paseq 9o10yo Bunowold pue Buipusixe ‘Aljigow Buisnoy Buibeinoous ‘esn Ojul ¥oeq sawoy
Adwe Buibuug “Yoojs Buisnoy |eroos sAabulieH Jo asn isaq Buew Ag uonednooo Jspun pue BUuipMOIOIBAO ‘SSBUSSS|OWOY 9pjoe) 0] :f 9AI3d3IqO

"sjuswalinbal s, [1ouno0) ay} Bunesiunwwod pue Buluiwiaiep 0}
yoeosdde painoniis e ypm Joayaboy ‘sjuswsbuelle yuswabeuew souewlopad pue aoueuly sAabulieH 10} SBWOH JO 108dsal ul uonouny juald
1snqol e Buuanep pue Buidojaasp Aq 3o03s Buisnoy s,|Iouno) 8y} JO 8dueudlulew pue juswabeuew Jusdd 8yl ainsus 0] ¢ 9AR23[qO

Page 87

"SaIJIUNWIWOD d|qeule)sns Ajjeluswuoldiaug pue Buolis pjing djay pue sjuapisal Jo spasu
8y} 198w 0} ‘Buppom diysisuped aanosye Buunsus pue juswisaaul Bunoesye Ag ‘Buisnoy sjgeploye Jo Juswdojeaap ay) asiwixew 0] :g aAldalqo

‘suonjdo Buisnoy jo abueu e jo uoisinoid sy} pue sdiysiauned Japaq ‘Buniom Japews ‘uoljusnaid
SSOUSSa[BWOY dA088 Ybnouyl ‘010z yoteN Aq ‘uonepowwioosoe Alesodwa) ul Spjoyasnoy ssajowoy Jo Jaquinu 8y} aAjey O] | 9A1399[qO

01/600¢ S3AILOAr90 NV1d SSINISNA

Aabuliey

de

01-600C NV1d LNIINIAO™UdINI ONISNOH X




1 Jo Z ebed

‘abueyoxa |eninw Jo S19| 19841
ybnouy) ‘6- anow 0] adue)sisse Jojealb

Page 88

Buiobup| uaAIb sjdoad pue pajabie) ale BuipMOIOISAO
pue uonednoo0-Japun Jey] aINsud sanssi Aljiqibie pue Aljeuoneu
M SIY | "snhiels Jepulyyied BuipmolioianQ suondo yym Buijeap uo aouepinb aonpouyul pue
V1 S,|louno) 8y} Jo Jed se pamainal pue yoddng| ewayos aAluBdUI Ssalppe ‘sH0ayd Aouednooo
'sbumoe BuioBup| Buteq si Buipmoiosano pue uonjednooo-1epun | BuisnoH Jo pesH pue uonednoado Japun ybnolayy 1 aonpay| L
9IS ‘uoljnoasoud Joy [eba 0} palisjel sbumen
uononpay u@aq aAeY Sase? Jo Jaquinu yy “swwelbouid pue spasN VL @onpal alojelay)
vl Bulobup| Buljjos e jo ped se usyeuepun s YoM siy] o] BuisnoH Jo pesH| pue v ul pnely Buisiwiuiw o) yoeoidde sroidw| ¢
600¢
Jaquieydeg ‘yoeoudde
M8U J08}8. 0} HiH Yim sjooojoud puswy e sbuipe pue
spaaN BuisnoH jo
OIS "yoeoidde mau uo yeys suondo peaH pue suondo
uononpay 6002 9 9OIAPY pue sbBui}a pue SjUsWSSasSsy pue poddng sjueoap pue siajsued) Juswabeuew Buisnoy
\val Jaqweydeg pue sQINL HiH Joj sbuyeuq juiol sbuesry | BuisnoH Jo pesH -aJ 0} yoeoudde mau aalbe 0) H4H UIM MOM| 2L
AbBajesss
6002 JuswaIno04d JNO SSNIJSIP 0} SUOIIBIDOSSY
Joquiejdes BuisnoH yum Bunesw |aas| ybly e dnjog e
Aplisgns JO Sw.a} Ul SN 0} JuaIdId Jsow sbume
ay} ale Aay) se 9|qissod se sTyH pue s1Sd pue spasN "UOI}EPOWIWOD2E. JO Juswaindold
OIS V1 BuiobuQ Auew se ainooid pue uiejal 0} ajeljobaN | BuisnoH Jo pesH aAI08Ye ybnouy) Asuow 1oy anjeA anaIydy| Lo

‘suonjdo Buisnoy jo abuel e jo uoisinoid ay) pue sdiysiauped Japeq ‘Buiyiom Jauews
‘uonuanaid ssausssjawoy aAl3oays ybnoldyy ‘010z yoJeN Aq ‘uonepowwodoe Aleijodwa) ul SpioYyasnoy SSajswoy JO Jaquinu 8y} aAjey 0] :} 9A1323lqo

9IS
JueAs|oy

ajessawil]

uaddey 31 ajew 03 suoioy

1991J0 peaT

uolnepusawwodal jo Aiewwng

ealy




1 Jo ¢ abed

ul uonouny jualld 1snqod e Buuaaldsp pue buidojaasp Aq %00}s Buisnoy s,[1Iouno) 8y} JO dueuUSlUlBW pue Juswabeuew jualdld 8y} 8insud 0] :¢ aAd3lqO

6002 IMdy

sjuswabuelie
diysiauped paliajaid Jualind ay} Malnay

sdiysiauped

pue juswdojars
‘ABajens

BuisnoH jo pesH

Buisnoy sjgepJoye Jo Juswdojarsp
ay) 8SIWIX_W 0} SUOIRI0SSY BUISNOH YlIM YIOAA

L'¢

"S8lJIUNWIWOD 8|qeule)sns A||ejusWwuoliAuS pue buoss pjing djay pue sjuspisal Jo

spaau ay) }9aw 0} ‘Buiyiom diysieuned aAnosye Buunsus pue juswisaaul Bunoemne Aq ‘Buisnoy sjgepJloye Jo JuswdojeAsp 8y} 8SIWIXeWw 0] :Z 9A1393lqo

Page 89

600z| 19841s 8y Yo siedesls ybnou djay o} soIAIeS
Joaquieydeg| yoesauno ue dn jes Buipunj 579 03 108lgng
AobBulieH ul Buideals ybnou Bunjoe) suondo
6002 Joj ued uonoe pue Absjess Aousbe-ijnw pue poddng KebBuney
Joqueldeg| € sisapjoysyels yjim Uole)NsSuoD Ul 89Npold e BuisnoH Jo pesH ul siadeg|s ybnoud Jo Jaquinu ay} aonpay| /|
UO 9AOW JO 82IN0S
6002 |euonippe ue se sjualjo ssajowoy a|buls
JaquwianopN| Joj suondo pajual ayealdsisodap jual e dojaasq
6002 4290100 ABajens uQ-anoj\ B 8onpoud
oIS 600¢
suondo Jaquieydag JopeaT wea ] S)NpY 9|geIounNA B 1INIoSYy (syuapisal ybnouoq Joy pasnuiond Buiaq ale asay)
pue suondo| pue |easjal 1o} Spoylaw aAl08ye sey ybnoloq
9OINPY 6002 ybnouioq pue joddng| ay; jey; Buunsua) spjoyasnoy ssajowoy a|buis
BuisnoH| 48gqojoQ - Bny|  ayy ul Buisnoy payuoddns jo yipne ue a)8jdwo)| BuisnoH jo peaH| 1o} uonepoww o2y pauoddng jo asn anoidw| 9|
"\ | S} uo syo9ayd Aouednoaoo
Buiobup Jo awuwelboud Buijjol e sey j1ouno) ay |
sbumaen
"YO01S Jusuewad S}l UO ¥oayo pue spaaN| Buipmolioiano pue uoljednoso-iapun Buissalppe
9IS V1 Buiobup|Aouednaso 9,0z e axeuspun AsbulieH Joj sewoH| BuisnoH jo pesH AQ ¥o01s Buisnoy [e100s Jo asn 1saq axeN| S|
oIS
jJueAs|ay ajeasawi] uaddey 31 ayew 03 suoljoy 1921140 pea uolnepusawwodal jo Aiewwng ealy




1 Jo v abed

‘suoneolgnd — s1asn 82IAI8S YIIM 10BJUOD

BuiobuQ [le ul abessow Ju1SISUOD JO AJSAIOP ainsug
a|qissod sI jeym uo uolnewloul apiaoid suondo Buisnoy
9IS 600z| 01 218 1ueseA 1se| uaym ‘eale ‘odA) Ag Buisnoy pue uyoddng| jusueuwuad Joj suondo dNsijeal 810w JapISU0D 0}
sbuma| Joquwaldeg [e100s ||e Buimoys dew ybnoioq e aonpoid| BuisnoH Jo peaH| pabeinoous aie syueondde 1eyy ainsug :Buipplg| Z'v
SUOI}08UUO0) BWOH UOo salouabe
Bulobup|iauped pue yejs 1oy swwelboid Buiuiely sanuiuo)
sbuie
9IS 6002 wjsAs suonoauuo) pue spoaN sso204d Buippig 8|ge)nba pue juaidiye
sbuma| Joquwaldeg owoH bBuipesbdn Joj suondo Japisuo)| BuisnoH Jo peaH|alow e dojaaaq :sbuma paseg ao10y) anoidwy| |y

"10}08s pajual ajeAlld ayj 0] sialleq buianowal pue ‘sbume| paseq aaioyd buowoud pue Buipuaixa ‘Ajijigow Buisnoy Buibeinoosus ‘asn ojul ¥oeq
sawoy Ajdwa Buibuuqg Yoojs Buisnoy |eloos s AabulieH Jo asn 1saq Bupjew Aq uonednoado Jspun pue BuipMOIDIBAO ‘SSBUSSa|aWOoY apoe) 0 ¥ 9A13d3lqO

Page 90

sdiysiauped
spJemuo pue juswdojarag
6002 ‘ABoyens
Aep Bunieig SPIO/\ UO M3IASY Juspuadapu| BuisnoH jo
wea| 8y} woJ} suoiepuawwodal juswaldw||pesH pue sbume] (seyeone Ayajes ouyoo|3
109(ouid pue spoaN pue sec) pJeme O} uaye} awli} sAoldwl ‘Y00)s
SPIOA BulobuQ| spioa uo souewlopad Hi4H Jojuow 0} enunuo)| BuisnoH Jo peaH| UMO S,|1IoUNOD By} UI) punoJleuln) pIoA aaroldwif z'¢
Juswealbe
swabeuew ay) Jo mainal ay) jo Jed
010z uoJtey]  se uumyeep si siiedal Jo anssi syl ainsuy e sdiysiauped
wea| pue juswdojaraq
100[oid KobuleH 1o} sawoH ‘ABojens uolouny
SPIOA| 0L0¢C ydJielN YHm Jusweaibe Juswebeuew sy} malney e BuisnoH jo pesH|  Buuopuow jusio }sngod e wiopad o) snunuo)| L'

"sjuswaJlinbal s |louno) ay) BunesuNWWwoo

pue Buluiwis}ap 0} yoeosdde painjonis e yim Jayabo) ‘sjuswabuelie Juswabeuew asuewlopad pue aoueul) s AsbulieH 1o} SOWOH Jo j10adsal

9IS
JueAs|oy

ajessawil]

uaddey 31 ajew 03 suoioy

1991J0 peaT

uolnepusawwodal jo Aiewwng

ealy




1 Jo G abed

Page 91

Jaqweydeg Uim wes} sbuieT J0joag leAlld ysligelsg e BuisnoH Aseuoneiosiq ‘S1SY 01 sases| yoeq
suondo puey ‘s ,ybnoloq Jayjo Jo ajol ay) Buissaippe
SpJOjpuB| 0] SOWBYIS SAUBDUI pue poddng sapnjoul) ybnouoq ayj ul (s SY) Saoueus |
9IS 1Sd BuiobuQ yseo pue jisodap jual apiroid 0} SnuiUOD e BuiSNOH JO pesH ploY HOUS paJnssy Jo Jaquinu ay) aseasoul| 9’y
Aoljod
JO uoneald ‘uonednoaso-iapun
mnoybnouy | pue BuIpMOIOISA0 pUB BWOoY Je SSajowoy,
0] yoeoudde smainal Aoljod sbuma ainsug
600¢
Jaqwaoa| |eaosdde Joy jauigen o} Aoijod sbume ay) axe L
sbuman
9IS 6002 SJap|oyaye)s pue siequiaw ‘sjudl|d pue spoaN
sbumpe]| Jequweydag ‘}Je1sS UM uole}nsuod yuow aa4y} Jonpuo)| BuisnoH jo pesH Aoljod sbuijye] mau e dojpreq| G'v
suondo
ue|d uonoe BuipmoIdIBA0 pue uoddng
6002 4890100 1US.INd 3Y] 0] UOIIONPOJIUI Ue 8onpold| BuisnoH jo pesH ABajeng BuipmoltosonQ ue dojpnaq| v
6002 Sanss| Y)m [eap 0} Jabeuew joenuo)
Jaquiaydag wiodde pue sTyH yum sdiysuonejal abeueyy e
"21n}onu}s ayj Jo Bupjiomal ay} Jo
600z| Hed se sbuia 10)08g ajeAld/wes | suondo
Jaquieydag pUE UOUBABIH BU} O} YIoM Ajjiqow uI] e
*J0}J08S |Be100S 8y} "'sawByYos AjljIqow wo.y
600z| ssotoe uonednooo Jspun o) yoeoidde pssibe SaWo9IN0 Buisealoul pue awayos uoiednado
Jaqwaldag ue dojaAap 0} sisuped STSY UM MIOA\ e -Japun aAisuayaidwod e Buidojonsp ‘syuedldde
suondo SSO|aWOoY pue Jajsuel} usemlaq aoueleq
‘BuiAdnooo Japun pue pyoddng e Buneyjoey ‘syH 03 suonjeulwou bulojuow
BuloBup| o9 0} umouy ase oym spjoyasnoy HiH 1obie] e BuisnoH jo pesH| Ajesojo Ag woooe wiad jo Aiddns sy ssiwixep| €
2]9 sjuie|dwod 0] sesuodsal
oIS
jueAs|ay a|easawi] uaddey }1 ayew o0} suonoy 1921430 pea uoljepusawiwodal jo Arewwnsg ealy




1 Jo 9 abed

9IS
uononpay

V1

OIS s
uonoBUU0D
SaWOoH

0L0¢C YdieN

— 6002
Jaquieydag

SUOI}0BUU0YD) BWOH Yim a|qnedwod ale
sopelbdn 1o sabueyo waisAs Aue jey) ainsug

PHOMI
Jejnoiued ul pue swa)sAs a|qe|ieAe. Jay)lo
yum SpNHO Buiedwoo mainal e j1onpuo)

sbuime

pue spasN
BuisnoH jo pesH
pue suondo

pue uoddng
BuisnoH jo pesH

wia1sAs SNHO @Yl JO MaIA8I B 1oNpuo?)

LG

‘Asuow 1o} anjeA poob sapinoid pue paljuad-sawoisnd ‘esodind

Jo} )1} ‘pabeuew ||am si J1 1ey} Buunsus ‘@d1neg BuisnoH Ajlunwwo) pue d168)ens 8y} JO JuswaAoidwi SNONUIUOD 8y} SABIYJE 0] :G 9AI3d3lqO

"'splezey | Alobajeo Buipuejsino ale

Bulobup| I8} 81aym pajjejsul usag aAey sainsesaw
Auenod |any ataym saiiadoud (e ayebisaaul e
600¢
Joquieydeg ABajens yiwiep sigqeployy aje|dwo) e (Jojoeg
w_u alenlld) Jabeuepy
o ‘ABajens Juswanosdw| ABajens yiuwuepp
(e 600Z AINnp|  YlwuepA 8|qepIoyy 8y} UO UOIE}NSUOD LEeIS e BuisnoH a|geployy pue Auenod |any asealoap 0) YIOA| 8%
[
0 (doyoag
ajeAlld) Jabeuep
‘wesa | JuswaAoidw] BuisnoH ul Jepes wes | Juswanosdwi| -asn ojul yoeq saiuadoud Aildwe Bulig 01 uoibay
600z AInr| sewoH Aidw3 pue BuisnoH paleys 0} JINI0syY e BuisnoH| -gng uopuo YyuoN ay; yum diysiaured ul JOAN| L
600¢
Jaquieldeg
winJoj jxau
600¢ aunr
ul pjay sem spJojpue| yum sdiysuonejal poob ysiigeisa
wnJoyjseq| 0} swnuoy spiojpue| Auapenb yum anuuo) e
(s1201140
6002 Jjejs jusuewlad UOISJIBAUO0D JO Juswjulodde’ sjuswAed Jijeusag
oIS
jJueAs|ay ajeasawi] uaddey 31 ayew 03 suoljoy 1921140 pea uolnepusawwodal jo Aiewwng ealy




1 Jo L 8bed

wea) 1998foid dn jos pue ueid

Page 93

600Z AIne 100l0ud e 9onpoud g|qissod si100loud ayy j| e
sbumaen
OIS uoneJjsibai-jjos bunuaswsdwi Buipiebal pue spaspN
sbume 6002 AInp|pip Aejwolg g1 pue uspwe) g7 jeym je 3007 | BuisnoH Jo pesH uonessibal-jjas uo Apnis Ajjiqises) e Jonpuo)d| 9°G
uondaoal uo yejs Jo Jaquiawl
Buisnoy pauiesy e Buiaey jo Ayjiqissod
6002 3y} pue S89IAI8s Jawoisnd Aq papinoid suondo
Jaquisydag sl Jey) @olAl9s uondaoal ay) sjebiseau| e pue uoddng
9IS BuisnoH jo peaH s||eo auoyda|a}
suondo 6002 SHO®S 0} pauJnjal S82IAI8S pue aosueul pue asnoH xady }e sainp uoidasal Buipnjoul
pue aoIApYy| Joquweldag Jowojsnd wouy s|jeo Buiney ajeblyseAu| | BuisnoH Jo pesH S92IAJIBS Jawo)snd yum diysuonejas Mainay| GG
"S}ISIA /| Jeinbau jo ued
BuioBuQ| Se PaIBA0D 8q [|IM SIU} ‘1 Ul SPIoyasnoy Jo4 e
"SpIq WoJ) Yoeqpaa) aiow apiaoid
Buiobu| 0} SUONOBUUOD SWOH JO JUBWAO|SASP JaylLng e
sbuime
oIS ‘Siy) pue spasN
sbume BuioBuQ| 404 Ayunpioddo aAIb |m uonessibal-ai [enuuy  e| BuisnoH Jo pesH ssaJb0ud Jiay) Jo pawlojul sjueoidde Buidasy|| +°G
S9OUBISWNJIIO JIdY} MBIAI 0} Wea | sbume
9IS sjuawissassy ay} Ag Ajlenuue pajoejuod pue spasN SMaIABJ [enuue
sbuman Buiobup SI L ul ployasnoy Aians jey} ainsug | BuisnoH Jo pesH Jo awuwelboud - 1o)sibay BuisnoH mainay| ¢€'G
0102 Aoljod sbuiya 0} paxul| — sjulod siajsuel) Juswoabeuew Jo syueoldde
Arenuep| 1O MaIA Jusledsuel) BUIAID s}9y00q 80Npold e Bunuiod oy ainpasoud usaplm spinoid (syuedldde
sbuma| 01 uonewlojur jo Aoualsisuod pue Ajjenb anoiduwi
oIS wes | Juawssassy ay} Ajuo pue spasaN| ‘jueoidde ue juiod 0} sejEOSBWI} BONPAI {SSBO0E
sbuimen Buiobup| o3 bunuiod Buisiesjusd jo swwesbold Buljoy | BuisnoH Jo pesH| Bunouysas Bunuiod ssijenus) Bunuiod sroidw| Z'g
oIS
juensjoy a|easawi] uaddey }1 9yew o) suonoy 192110 pea] uoljepusawiwodal jo Arewwnsg ealy




1 Jo g abed

bulobuQ| pasn buiaq aJe suoiedlISSE|D )eINdde BINSuU]
SINHO Uuo sjielap soseqelep Juaiayip SS0JOe JUd)SISU0D
Jo Aoeunooe ay) pue Jajsibay BuisnoH ay) s109lold |eloadg S| uoljewJojul Jeyy pue ajeindde si SNHO
Buiobup| 1e Buoo| syosloid Buisues|o elep yium anuiuo) 1O J0)03U1IQg uo pauleluod eiep |le ainsug :Ajubajul eleqlel s
sdnoib
‘ueld 1INS /1ebeuepy| sjqesauina Ajlenuajod uo saibajens pue saioljod
BuloBup| sssauisng ay) ul sy|3 sJeaAh Jxeu epnoul 0] | uddng ssauisng 10 Joedwl ay) puejsiopun 0} sy|3 a|dwo)| LL'G
Jabeue
SN204 JBwo}sn)
ajelodion
"Juswdojarap Jiabeuepy spJepuels
600z AIne Japun Ajjuauind spiepuejs 92IA19S  e|joddng ssauisng 90INIBS BSIIBAPE A|9pIM pue ajediunwwod| 0L°S
M_.u BulobuQ aouew.lopad Jojluow 0} SNUUOYD) e
()
ob Juswaalby
© 600¢ [®AS7 BJIAIBS 8]eJ0]03liJ B SpJEMO] Jabeuepy $S900E auoyds|a) pue sasua)
o Jequisydes ydom pue sbupesw diysiouped ysiige}s3  e|uoddng ssauisng 9oIAI8G Jowoisn) Jo souewlopad anosdw|| 6°G
Buiobup sdiysisupied
ABsjeu)s suoneoiunwwod JsAlleg  e|pue Juswdojers(
6002 ‘AbBajens suoljeoIuNwWwWon Jo swwelboud
Jaquieydeg ABsjess suoneoiunwwod dojpaeg | BuisnoH jo peaH| ybnouy) siesn aoiAles yum juswebebus ainsul| g'G
Jabeuep
6002 'ssa00.d uoneljsibal-al |lenuue SN204 Jawolsn)
Jaquieydeg OJul oeqpas) JaWolsno JOo Juswsis pling e ajelodion
Jiabeuepy passalppe pue payiuapl aJe sanssi bulnsua
600z| Aemuns Buimalp 8y} ul paulejuod suonsenb sdiysiauped pue Jo} ssao04d dojansp pue sAaAins uoloejsies
Jaquisydag| mainal 0} s1901O Buimalp pue HiH Yim MIoN\ | ABejeng BuisnoH JBWO}SNI Jua.Ind JO MaIAal B no Aue)| 26
oIS
jueAs|ay a|easawi] uaddey }1 ayew o0} suonoy 1921430 pea uoljepusawiwodal jo Arewwnsg ealy




1 Jo 6 abed

AyAnoy pajajdwon — auQ xipuaddy

Page 95

600¢
Jaquieydag
ul BuiJels Aoljod ajel0diod
BulobuQ UNM 8uljul paiols Buleg ale sajlj ainsuy e suondo
pue uoddng
6002 BuisnoH jo pesH
Jaquwisydeg pue sbume
ul Buipess pue spasN
BulobuQ so|l} ojelbajul pue aindeg  e| BuisnoH Jo pesH wswabeuew ajj 0} yoeoisdde mainay| GL°G
sbunssw
Burioyuow
196pnq dMa ay: Aq paesodoud aq Aew awooul a|qeabieyo-al Buisiwixew
Alqiuow 1e| ey} SaAljeuss)}e snoleA Jo Joedwl [eloueuly aoueUIl4 pue sabueyd Apisgns 0] pJebas ul ssaoo.d
MB3IABI Japun 8y} Buissesse Jno peaued sishjeue 1o6png  e| BuisnoH Jo pesH Bunebpnq sy ojul ysu Jo siskleue ue pling| t1°G
SSQUSSa|aWOoY o}
oIS
juensjoy a|easawi] uaddey }1 9yew o) suonoy 192110 pea] uoljepusawiwodal jo Arewwnsg ealy




1 10 0| ebed

CRIIEIETE]
9|S JuBAd|dY ajeasawi] uaddey 31 ajew 0} suooy uoljepuawiwodal jo Ailewwng uonoadsu




1 Jo || ebed




1 Jo g| ebed




1 Jo ¢| ebed




Page 100

1 10 7| ebed



Page 101

&‘ ggr%ission

19 November 2008

Dr Ita O'Donovan Direct line 0844 798 2758
Chief Executive Email ad-brown@audit-

Haringey Council .
5" Floor, River Park House commission.gov.uk
225 High Road

Wood Green

London

Dear Dr O'Donovan

Haringey Council allocations and lettings inspection — Final report

Please find attached our final report on the inspection of the Haringey Council’s allocations and lettings
service. The planned publication date is Thursday 27" November when the report will be placed on
the Audit Commission website. Please note that the report is to remain under embargo until 00.01 on
that date.

You are invited to provide a formal response to the inspection recommendations which will be
published alongside the report on the Commission’s website. Such a response should cover the
actions which your organisation will be taking as a result of the inspection and how your organisation
intends implementing the recommendations made in the report. It cannot:

¢ include issues about the inspection process or the conduct of the inspection
e be more than two pages in length or in a font smaller than size eleven

If you do wish to send in a response, we must receive it within two months of the publication of the
report, by 27" January 2009. Please note that the Commission retains full editorial rights over all
material placed on its website. If you do not wish to respond, the following statement will be published
next to the report: “Haringey Council was asked to respond to the recommendations made in this
inspection report but they have declined to do so.”

On behalf of the Housing Inspectorate and the inspection team | would like to thank you and your staff
for your help and co-operation during the inspection. If you have any questions or comments about
anything contained in this letter, please feel free to contact me.

Yours sincerely

A

Adrian Brown
Lead Housing Inspector East London Region

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London, SW1P 4HQ
T 0844 798 1212 F 0844 798 6187 www.audit-commission.gov.uk



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103

Allocations and
Lettings

Haringey London Borough Council
November 2008

‘M 8(')'rﬁ%ssion



Page 104

Contents

Local Authority Housing Inspections

Summary

Scoring the service

Recommendations

Report

How good is the service?

What are the prospects for improvement to the service?
Appendix 1 — Performance indicators

Appendix 2 — Reality checks undertaken

co O A~ W

11
14
29
35
37



Page 105

The Audit Commission is an independent body responsible for ensuring that public money
is spent economically, efficiently and effectively and delivers high-quality local services for
the public.

Within the Audit Commission, the Housing Inspectorate inspects and monitors the
performance of a number of bodies and services. These include local authority housing
departments, local authorities administering Supporting People programmes, arms length
management organisations and housing associations. Our key lines of enquiry (KLOESs)
set out the main issues which we consider when forming our judgements on the quality of
services. The KLOEs can be found on the Audit Commission’s website at
www.audit-commission.gov.uk/housing.

This inspection has been carried out by the Housing Inspectorate using powers under
section 10 of the Local Government Act 1999 and is in line with the Audit Commission’s
strategic regulation principles. In broad terms, these principles look to minimise the burden
of regulation while maximising its impact. To meet these principles this inspection:

is proportionate to risk and the performance of the Council;

judges the quality of the service for service users and the value for money of the
service;

promotes further improvements in the service; and
has cost no more than is necessary to safeguard the public interest.



Page 106

Haringey Council provides a poor allocations and lettings service, with promising
prospects for improvement.

The service is not sufficiently customer-focused. It can be difficult to contact the
service by phone, information including service standards is not clear or well publicised
and while there are some good examples of consultation with users this remains an
area for improvement. There are significant weaknesses in the Home Connection
scheme and in dealing with applications for housing.

The service does not consistently measure its effectiveness among diverse groups and
is not using ICT to tailor services to needs. Services to the increasing number of
residents in temporary accommodation are poor. There are some weaknesses in the
approach to working with private landlords and housing association partners and the
service is not maximising the use of incentives to address under occupation. The
approach to value for money within the service is under-developed.

The service can be easily accessed through the website and through four Customer
Service Centres (CSCs). There is generally a good approach to using Equality Impact
Assessments. The service, often through partnerships, is delivering positive outcomes
for a range of diverse groups. There has been some good work to prevent
homelessness, carry out occupancy checks and improve to the management of the
housing register.

There is a clear and visible commitment to driving improvement from both senior
councillors and senior managers. The service demonstrates an openness to challenge
and a high level of self-awareness that is reflected in its future plans. The performance
management, monitoring and reporting frameworks are all generally sound. The rate of
improvement has increased recently, there is a good track record of responding to
external recommendations and there have been some significant improvements for
customers, although there remains more to do.

The Council has taken positive steps to address capacity issues. It has restructured
and appointed a new Assistant Director with knowledge and experience of these
services and of leading change. Other important posts have also been filled. The ICT
systems are capable of supporting the service well.

However, staff capacity is reduced for example, by high levels of sickness absence
and the service is not consistently learning from customer feedback. The track record
is mixed. Overall improvement in performance indicators is mixed and progress in
implementing service improvement recommendations and delivering targets in key
strategies has not been consistent. Insufficient progress has been made in
cross-cutting areas in particular customer access and value for money.



Page 107

We have assessed Haringey London Borough Council as providing a ‘poor’, no-star
allocations and lettings service that has promising prospects for improvement. Our
judgements are based on the evidence obtained during the inspection and are outlined
below.

Prospects for improvement? ‘a poor service that has
promising prospects for
Excellent improvement’
Promising ﬁ
A good
service?
Uncertain
Poor

Poor Fair Good Excellent
* * X %* % %

We found the service to be poor because of the following weaknesses.

The service is not sufficiently customer-focused. It can be difficult to contact the
service by phone. Information is variable in quality, and service standards are not
clear or well publicised.

While there are some good examples of consultation with users this remains an
area for improvement.

The approach to value for money within the service is under-developed.

The service does not consistently measure its effectiveness among diverse groups
and is not using ICT to tailor services to needs.

The service does not consistently measure its effectiveness among diverse groups.

The scoring chart displays performance in two dimensions. The horizontal axis shows how good the service or function
is now, on a scale ranging from no stars for a service that is poor (at the left-hand end) to three stars for an excellent
service (right-hand end). The vertical axis shows the improvement prospects of the service, also on a four-point scale.



Page 108

The operation of the Home Connection scheme is not currently efficient or
customer-focused.

Performance in dealing with applications for housing is weak and again not
customer-focused.

Services to residents in temporary accommodation are poor. Residents are not
routinely kept informed of progress with their cases and most have not been
offered help and options advice.

The number of people in temporary accommodation has increased in the last three
years and performance across a range of homelessness indictors is poor.

The service is not maximising the use of incentives to address under occupation.

There are some weaknesses in the approach to working with private landlords and
housing association partners.

However, there are some areas of strength. These include the following.

The service is delivering, often through partnerships, positive outcomes for a range
of diverse groups including vulnerable adults, homeless families, people requiring
aids and adaptations and victims of domestic violence through the Hearthstone
project.

There is a good approach to completing Equality Impact Assessments although
there are weaknesses in their application.

The Council has invested in the service to support a stronger emphasis on
prevention and the Preventions and Options team have carried out some good
work to prevent homelessness.

The Council has improved the management of the housing register through a
re-registration process and revised its letting policy.

The service can be easily accessed through the website and through four
Customer Service Centres (CSCs) although some aspects of the customer
experience of their use could be improved.

There is a comprehensive system of occupancy checks that is making a positive
impact in dealing with fraud and reducing the use of temporary accommodation.

The strategic approach to working with partners is generally sound.

The Council works well with private landlords on a day-to-day basis producing
some good outcomes allowing people in housing need to access private sector
housing.

On balance, the service has promising prospects for improvement because of the
following.

There is a clear and visible commitment to driving improvement from both senior
councillors and senior managers.

The service demonstrates an openness to challenge and a high level of
self-awareness that is reflected in its future plans.



Page 109

The performance management monitoring and reporting frameworks are all
generally sound.

The service has a good track record of responding to Audit Commission
recommendations.

The rate of improvement has increased recently and there have been some
significant improvements that customers would recognise although there remains
more to do in many areas.

The Council has taken positive steps to address capacity issues at all levels within
the service for example, through service restructuring and the appointment of a
new Assistant Director with knowledge and experience of managing these services
and leading change of this nature.

Other important operational posts have also now been filled to help address
weaknesses in the service.

The ICT systems are capable of supporting the service well.

However, there are some barriers to improvement. These include the following.

Staff capacity is reduced for example, by high levels of sickness absence and the
high proportion of agency staff.

The service is not consistently learning from customer feedback.

Overall improvement in performance indicators is mixed and progress in
implementing service improvement recommendations and delivering targets in key
strategies has not been consistent.

Insufficient progress has been made in cross-cutting areas in particular customer
access and value for money.



Page 110

Recommendations

Recommendations

13 In order to rise to the challenge of continuous improvement, organisations need
inspection reports that offer practical pointers for improvement. Our recommendations
identify the expected benefits for both local people and the organisation. In addition,
we identify the approximate costs” and indicate the priority we place on each
recommendation and key dates for delivering these where they are considered
appropriate. In this context, the inspection team recommends that the Council shares
the findings of this report with tenants and councillors and addresses all weaknesses
identified in the report. The inspection team makes the following recommendations.

Recommendation

R1 The Council should improve the customer focus of its service by:

« setting up systematic methods of keeping applicants informed of the progress of
their cases, measuring satisfaction, and involving users in service improvement,
including through the complaints procedure;

¢ updating information provided to service users, improving telephone access to the
service, and reducing the time taken to book appointments;

» developing a proactive and holistic approach to preventions and options, linking
outreach work carried out by the occupancy, preventions and options and housing
management teams; and

» reducing the use of temporary accommodation in the Midlands, while being
mindful of the individual wishes of temporary accommodation residents currently
living there.

The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

e the Council will be better able to identify and address areas of weakness in the
lettings and allocations service;

e improved customer access to, and satisfaction with, the service;

e the service will be able to offer advice to applicants in the community, particularly
those in temporary accommodation, linking this to support for vulnerable residents
and occupancy checks; and

e the service will be able to offer a full range of support services, and applicants will
be able to bid and attend viewings through the Home Connections service.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with medium costs.
This should be implemented within six months.

? Low cost is defined as less than 1 per cent of the annual service cost, medium cost is between 1 and 5 per cent and
high cost is over 5 per cent.

Haringey London Borough Council | 8



Page 111

Recommendations

Recommendation

R2 The Council should improve the choice-based letting service by:

» developing a more efficient and equitable bidding process by: filtering out
ineligible bidders, encouraging those with low points to seek alternatives,
identifying and supporting those who have not bid, particularly vulnerable
applicants; and

« making the verification process more simple, flexible and user-friendly, and
ensuring that reasonable efforts are made to contact priority bidders to view
properties.

The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

e the service will have a lower volume of bidding, and will be able to focus on
applicants with the highest needs; and

e the service will be geared towards the needs of applicants rather than to the
requirements of the lettings process.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with medium costs.
This should be implemented within six months.

Recommendation

R3 The Council should improve its use of resources by:

« maximising the supply of permanent accommodation by: closely monitoring
nominations to housing associations, facilitating a balance between transfer and
homeless applicants, developing a comprehensive under-occupation scheme and
increasing outcomes from mobility schemes;

» building an analysis of risk into the budgeting process in regard to subsidy
changes, and maximising rechargeable income; and

¢ improving data collection by ensuring that documentation is not lost, that data is
input accurately onto IT systems and that information is consistent across
different databases.

The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

e anincrease in the supply of permanent housing for residents in housing need;

e a planned approach to maximising income, and to minimising reductions in income;
sand; and

e more confidence in the planning process, including the lease end process, an
enhanced ability to individually tailor services and higher customer satisfaction.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with medium costs.
This should be implemented within six months.

9

Haringey London Borough Council




Page 112

Recommendations

Recommendation

R4  The Council should improve its approach to staffing by:

« taking steps to reduce the reliance on temporary and agency staff, and
addressing high levels of sickness absence in the service; and

» developing and resourcing a training plan for staff, clearly linked to the aims of the
service.

The expected benefits of this recommendation are:
e reduced costs, and more staff capacity to achieve service aims; and
e liproved staff knowledge and skills.

The implementation of this recommendation will have medium impact with low costs.
This should be implemented within six months.

14 We would like to thank the staff of Haringey London Borough Council who made us
welcome and who met our requests efficiently and courteously.

Dates of inspection: 15 October to 19 October 2007

Regional contact details

Audit Commission
1st Floor

Millbank Tower
Millbank

London SW1P 4HQ

Telephone: 0207 828 1212
Fax: 0207 976 6187

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Haringey London Borough Council | 10



Page 113

Haringey is a north London borough, with a population of 224,300. Haringey is the
tenth most deprived borough in England. The average household income is

£35,984 per annum, and the average house price is £327,804. Both figures are
marginally below the London average. However, this average hides a wide range of
incomes - for example, council tenant households have an average income of £10,823.
About 60 per cent of the population of the borough cannot afford to purchase a

property at lower quartile prices.

Thirty per cent of households are in the social rented sector. The Council's stock of
15,230 general needs properties is managed by an Arm's Length Management
Organisation, Homes for Haringey. One in five households is in the private sector,
substantially above the London average, while the owner occupied sector is smaller

than the London average.

Nearly half the population are from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities. One
in ten of the population are asylum seekers or refugees. The population demographic
is changing. For example, there are increasing numbers of Polish migrants settling in
the borough. Nearly one in five households contains at least one person with a

designated special need.

The need for affordable and stable accommodation outstrips supply. There is a
shortfall of 4,865 per annum in the provision of affordable housing®. Housing need
particularly affects BME households, with 40 per cent of Black African and Asian
households living in unsuitable accommodation. Overall, one in five households in the
borough is overcrowded. A recent Joseph Rowntree Foundation report on Tottenham
identified competition for housing as a key influence in social cohesion between

different social groups.

In March 2007, there were 14,494 households on the housing register, with the

following characteristics".

Household requirement

1 bedroom
2 bedroom

3 or more bedrooms

Source: Housing Needs Survey 2005 Update
Source: Housing Register statistics 2/3/07

Number of households
6,231
5,045
1,491



Page 114

Report

Table 2 Source of applicants on housing register
Source Number of households
General register 8,319
Tenant transfer 1,490
Homeless 4,558

Table 3 Average waiting time for applicants

Number of bedrooms required

Average days waiting time

1 bedroom 767

2 bedrooms 1,706
3 bedrooms 2,214
4 or more bedrooms 2,187

20 It can be seen that there are substantial waiting times for accommodation, particularly
for larger properties. Haringey has 5,861 households in temporary accommodation, the

largest number in the country.

Table 4

Households in temporary accommodation (Quarter 1 2007)

Type of temporary accommodation

Numbers of households

Bed and breakfast 83
Annexes 1,334
Private sector leasing 1,995
Housing Association Leasing” (HALS) 1,678
Hostels 309

21 The government has set a target that councils reduce the number of households in
temporary accommodation by 50 per cent by 2010. Haringey’s target is to have less
than 2,603 households in this type of accommodation. The largest part of this
reduction will be in the HALs sector, which the Council aims to reduce to 300 units in

2010.

° This is temporary accommodation provided by Housing Associations. These are currently provided by four

associations: Pathmeads, Circle 33, Newlon, Solon

Haringey London Borough Council | 12




Page 115

The Council has 57 members (30 Labour, 27 liberal Democrat) covering 19 wards. The
Cabinet has nine members, including the Leader and the Cabinet member for housing.
There is a system of scrutiny panels, overseen by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

The Audit Commission assessed Haringey as being a council that is improving well
and demonstrating a three-star overall performance, under its Comprehensive
Performance Assessment.

There have been substantial changes in the structure of the housing service in the last
two years. An Arm's Length Management Organisation (ALMO) was set up in

April 2006, and achieved two-star status in 2007. A new business unit, Strategic and
Communal Housing Service (SCHS) is responsible for retained housing services,
including allocations and homelessness. SCHS is located within the Urban
Environment directorate, and has the equivalent of 150 full time staff (FTE).

Strategic and Communal Housing Services comprises the following teams.

Strategy and performance, which includes performance and quality, and
partnerships.

Housing need, which includes homelessness preventions and advice, allocations,
the Vulnerable Adults Team and Hearthstone.

Housing supply, which addresses development, management of temporary
accommodation and liaison with landlords.

Finance, which deals with resourcing and rent management.

Private sector housing is currently located within the enforcement business unit, but
will be transferring into SCHS in late 2007.



Page 116

The Sustainable Community Strategy sets out a vision for 'a place for diverse
communities that people are proud to be part of'. Housing provision is aligned to the
aim 'healthier people with a better quality of life'.

The vision of the housing service is 'to meet the borough's current and future housing
needs, and by doing so, make a major contribution to social inclusion and the
socio-economic well-being of Haringey'. The Council acknowledges the large number
of people in temporary accommodation and in unsuitable housing conditions is a
challenge to achieving this vision”. As at May 2006, there were 8,000 people under
16 years old in temporary accommodation. Therefore, the Council's lettings and
allocations service plays a key role both in addressing individual need, and in
promoting health, social cohesion and regeneration.

Access and customer care is an area of weakness for the service. The service can be
easily accessed through the website and through four Customer Service Centres
(CSCs) although some aspects of the customer experience of their use could be
improved. Information is variable in quality, service standards are not clear or well
publicised and it can be difficult to contact the service by phone. While there are some
good examples of consultation with users this remains an area for improvement.

The Council is using its website to improve access to services. Haringey Council’s
website is easy to navigate, and is available in a number of community languages. The
Council is taking steps to widen access to the internet (only 21 per cent of Haringey
Council tenants have home access) through terminals at Customer Contact Centres
and libraries. The 185 terminals located in libraries are well used, and library staff are
available to offer help and advice. Internet bidding is used regularly by residents;
three-quarters of successful bids are via the internet. Most key documents can be
downloaded from the website, including the Home Connections leaflet. In addition,
appointments with Preventions and Options officers can be made remotely although
some applicants have to wait for more than three weeks for an appointment, and not
all requests for an appointment are answered.

Source: Haringey Council Plan



Page 117

Information provided through leaflets is of variable quality and accuracy. Some
information is comprehensive and useful- for example the Home Connections booklet
explains the bidding process clearly, and the lettings standard is translated into

six languages, and has helpful photographs of acceptable standards. However, some
information is not complete, clear or accurate. The Home Connections property
advertising sheet at local offices has small print and is difficult to read. The successful
bidders' feedback and updates are not consistently reported. Information provided to
residents in temporary accommodation is limited and inaccurate; one contact detail is
more than ten years out of date. Poor quality information will limit the ability of service
users to access services.

The Council's housing service has a compensation scheme for applicants who have
received an inadequate service. This has paid out £3,345 since 2002. The scheme is
not advertised, which may contribute to the lack of claims. This means that the current
scheme does not reimburse users for service failure, or act as a financial incentive for
service improvement.

It can be difficult to contact by phone. Customers have experienced problems
contacting the service. In response, the service has re-directed callers to Customer
Service Centres. This has improved performance in terms of the proportion of calls
answered, and speed of answering calls, but the service is not meeting targets.
Enquiries about transfers are the second most common reason to contact the housing
service; as a result of poor performance, service users are unable to obtain relevant
information and advice.

Positively, the service can be easily accessed through four Customer Service Centres
(CSCs) but some aspects of the customer experience could be improved. The public
access areas in the CSCs are pleasant and well maintained, with CCTV, play areas
and private interview rooms. It is quick and easy to see the receptionist, and they are
polite, helpful and able to answer straightforward requests. However, the customer
experience could be improved. The operation of the ticketed queuing system is not
clear to some users, there is no information on how to use computer terminals, or what
they can be used for and some terminals in one office were out of order. The public
telephone does not have a hood so potentially confidential conversations could be
overheard. One office was closed at lunchtime, with no indication when it would
reopen. Once referred on by the receptionist, service users wait for long periods to see
more specialist officers in the CSC, and in practice are given conflicting advice - for
example regarding the end of temporary accommodation leases.

A number of residents seen were negative about the way they were treated at public
offices. While we experienced generally professional and helpful attitudes towards
service users, we also observed some unfriendly behaviour and raised voices towards
callers at offices. As a result, people approaching the service at local offices may face
long waits and an unsatisfactory outcome for their queries.

There are problems with lost documentation and information. The Council's housing
service requests that service users provide a range of information, but when this is
handed in, it is frequently mislaid, causing delays and frustration among applicants.



Page 118

Service standards are not clear or widely advertised. For example, the timescale to
respond to housing register applicants is not clearly stated, and is different in a range
of documents. Personal callers are not given specific dates by which their queries will
be answered. Therefore, service users do not know whether the service they receive is
satisfactory, or whether they should complain.

The Council does not manage the expectations of service users well. A number of
policy documents acknowledge the high demand and low supply of social housing. A
high level of points is needed to obtain social housing, and the majority of people on
the register have no realistic chance of being rehoused through Home Connections. At
present, 80 per cent of those registered have less than 600 points; the average points
level for a successful bid is 750 points. There are two main mechanisms through which
applicants can judge their chances of obtaining social housing - the points level of
previous successful bidders and staff advice. In practice, staff are unable to provide
specific advice on prospects for successful bids, and information on successful bids is
not provided each week. This means that many of the 45,000 bids made each week
are wasted, and applicants are not encouraged to consider more realistic options for
permanent housing such as the private rented sector.

There are some good examples of consultation with users but this remains an area for
improvement. At the time of inspection, residents in temporary accommodation had
just received their first newsletter, together with a survey and an invitation to attend a
focus group. Positively, the Council is conducting a survey of new tenants that includes
questions about lettings. There are some examples of good practice in consulting
users. For example, the consultation on the new lettings policy in 2006 involved a
range of stakeholders, and led to changes in the policy. The service does not currently
have an informed understanding of the views of service users

Haringey's allocations and lettings service responds to complaints in target times, but
does not systematically learn from complaints. It is exceeding its 90 per cent target to
respond to complaints and councillor enquiries within target times and replies are
reasonably comprehensive. The replies explained how to take the complaint to the
next stage but did not mention the council's compensation scheme or whether it
applied. Residents can be reasonably confident that if they complain, it will be
investigated properly, but will not know if they are entitled to compensation.

Strengths and weaknesses are in balance in this area. The service is delivering, often
in partnership, positive outcomes for a range of diverse groups including vulnerable
adults, homeless families, people requiring aids and adaptations and victims of
domestic violence through the Hearthstone project. There is a good approach to
completing Equality Impact Assessments although there are weaknesses in their
application. The service does not consistently measure its effectiveness among
diverse groups and is not using ICT to help it tailor services to clients needs. Capacity
issues mean that limited support is provided for vulnerable applicants.



Page 119

The service is identifying and supporting people with complex needs. The Vulnerable
Adults Team has been located on the Preventions and Option team since 2005. It
provides an important multi-disciplinary focus for the Preventions and Options service.
The Vulnerable Adults Team included generic workers, plus specialist officers from the
childrens’ service, Connexions and probation services. The team works closely with
Haringey Advisory Group on Alcohol (HAGA) and the Drugs Advisory Service (DASH)
and is co-located with the medical assessment team. About 40 cases are referred to
the Vulnerable Adults Team each month. Examples were provided of effective joint
working and of outreach work with ex-prisoners and people with mental health
problems leaving hospital care. The co-location of specialist services means that the
service can identify and support residents with multiple and complex needs.

The Council's domestic violence service is strong. A substantial number of housing
applications are from victims of domestic violence. The service manages the
Hearthstone project; this project is advertised widely, and provides a range of
innovative services, including counselling, legal advice and family support. Clients are
offered the option of emergency housing or security measures in their homes - the
Sanctuary Scheme. This scheme has assisted 18 victims of domestic violence to
remain securely in their homes in the last year. The Council is working closely with
partners such as the Primary Care Trust to provide a freephone out-of-hours advice
line. The Council is also providing additional resources for physical expansion and
more staff for the Hearthstone service. The service provides strong support and
prevents homelessness among victims of domestic violence.

SCHS has productive links with the Supporting People team. The SP team provide
funding for a range of support services for homeless residents. In 2006/07, floating
support was provided to 708 homeless families and over a thousand single homeless
people.

The housing service workforce reflects the diversity of the local community. As at
March 2007, 55 per cent of staff were from BME communities, and 9 per cent had a
disability. This indicates the Council uses the full range of skills in the local population.

The Aids and Adaptations service has enabled a substantial number of people to stay
in their homes. In 2006/07, the Council completed 240 major adaptations, plus

116 adaptations funded through the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG). In addition, the
Aids and Adaptations service has made assessments, supplied equipment and carried
out works within target times. This has helped residents maintain independence, and
has also reduced pressures on the lettings and allocations service.

The Council has a good approach to completing Equality Impact Assessments
although there are weaknesses in their application. The Council has completed
Equality Impact assessments (EIAs) on different aspects of the service, including the
re-registration process and choice based lettings. There is a useful corporate guide
and template to complete these assessments. Some of the assessments have utilised
relevant data; for example, the EIA covering re-registration shows that BME
communities have not been disadvantaged by the process. However, the assessments
are not always fully comprehensive or accurate. For example, the issue of vulnerability
is mentioned but not included in the action plan for re-registration, and the assessment
incorrectly states that the Council monitors ethnicity against quality of letting. In
addition, stakeholders are not always involved in developing assessments.



Page 120

The service is not using ICT to help it tailor services to clients needs. Although the
OHMSs' system has a facility to register and flag people who have disabilities, or who
are potentially vulnerable or violent, in practice this is not used systematically by staff.
Data is not entered on the system, and staff are not clear about how they can access
and use the information provided. As a result, some potentially vulnerable service
users do not receive the support they need.

The service does not consistently measure the effectiveness of its lettings and
allocations service to diverse groups. There is no user satisfaction measurement for
the homelessness assessment service or income recovery teams. In addition, the
Home Connections feedback form does not ask age, gender, disability or sexual
orientation and has different ethnic definitions from the HFH welcome visit form. This
makes it harder to compare and learn from different sources.

Capacity issues mean that limited support is provided for vulnerable applicants. A
number of policy documents identify the need to support vulnerable people in
temporary accommodation, and help them bid successfully for properties through
Home Connections. However, there are limited resources to identify such households,
and to offer practical support in the biddings process. As a result, people in housing
need may not obtain the accommodation they need.

SCHS does not consistently ensure that its suppliers comply with the diversity agenda.
While equalities is a standing item on meetings with Registered Social Landlords
(RSLs), it has little in place to ensure that other suppliers of services, such as private
landlords who supply temporary accommodation, comply with the Council’s Equal
Opportunities Policy. This may lead to people not receiving services which meet their
needs.

Weaknesses outweigh strengths in this area. The Council has invested in the service
to support a stronger emphasis on prevention but this is not yet leading to consistently
positive outcomes. The service carries out some good work to prevent homelessness
and increase the supply of accommodation but services to residents in temporary
accommodation are poor. Residents are not routinely kept informed of progress with
their cases and most have not been offered help and options advice. The number of
people in temporary accommodation has increased in the last three years and
performance across a range of homelessness indictors, including length of stay in all
forms of temporary accommodation is poor.

The number of people in temporary accommodation has increased in the last

three years. The Government has set a target that councils reduce their use of
temporary accommodation by 2010. Haringey’s use of temporary accommodation has
increased since this target was set in December 2004. By October 2007, the Council's
use of temporary accommodation had increased by 208 households since the baseline
was set. The Council's lettings and allocations service does not have a robust plan
setting out targets to reduce temporary accommodation and the activities that will
contribute to this reduction. This means that there can be reduced confidence that the
Council can achieve the 2010 target.

OHMs is a computer database system used by a number of local authorities



Page 121

Residents in temporary accommodation are not routinely kept informed of progress
with their cases. Residents in temporary accommodation are unsure of the
responsibilities of managers and generally dissatisfied with the service offered. Their
main concerns are that they are not kept informed of the progress of their case,
managers frequently change, and that it is difficult to contact their manager. They also
complain of missed appointments, an issue identified in the Council’s documentation
and confirmed in a reality check.

Part of the problem is the range of housing managers' duties. Each manager has a
patch on average of 180 leased properties, and 120 hostel units. They also liaise with
landlords on behalf of the Council and service users. In addition, they act as ‘informal’
contact for residents of emergency accommodation, as the service is not confident that
emergency accommodation agents used can fully address the needs of residents. The
Council's housing service expects housing managers to inform residents of their
options, but there is no evidence that this happens in a systematic way.

The Council has invested in the service to support a stronger emphasis on prevention
but this is not yet leading to consistently positive outcomes. At the time of the
inspection both long-term residents in temporary accommodation and recent tenants
confirmed that they had not been interviewed regarding their options while in
temporary accommodation. In addition, when leases come to an end, the lettings
section should receive six month’s notice from the Housing Supply Group. In practice,
due to the high volume of lease ends, and shortage of staff, the lettings section is only
given four month’s notice. At this stage, residents are given extra points and
encouraged to bid for permanent housing, but no advice is given about their options.
As a result, many residents find themselves back in emergency temporary
accommodation at the end of their lease. This revolving door process means that the
use of temporary accommodation is maintained, and has a negative impact on the
health and social integration of homeless households".

The Council is not providing sufficient support for households placed outside the
borough. Around 90 households have been placed in temporary accommodation in the
Midlands. Although they have a designated housing manager in the temporary
accommodations team, it is unclear how advice and support can be offered in any
practical way. Given the tight schedules for bidding through Home Connections, there
is no realistic possibility that these residents can view properties. People living in
temporary accommodation in the Midlands do not receive monetary assistance to
travel; in one example, a resident was required by the Council to attend an interview in
London but arrived to find the office closed. The placement of households in the
Midlands means therefore that service users are separated from support networks,
and receive limited advice and support from the service.

The Council is responsible for many internal repairs for privately leased properties, and
agents responsible for repairs in emergency accommodation; this is outlined in the
recent newsletter. However, residents feel that repairs issues are not resolved through
officer visits, and that they are passed between the Council and their agents.

The links between health, homelessness and temporary accommodation are set out in a number of pieces of research;
see for example, data provided by the London Health Obervatory



Page 122

Residents in hostels are positive about the service they receive from hostel managers.
The Council's housing service has initiated surgeries in half the 34 hostels. The Audit
Commission Supported Housing report of 2006 recommended that steps be taken to
ensure move-on of hostel residents to permanent accommodation. As a result, the
Council has set aside a quota of 100 properties per year. Halfway through 2007/08
six months, the Council has completed 37 move-on transfers, slightly behind target.
However, improving the supply of move on accommodation has helped the Council
align its services more closely to those who need support.

The service does carry out some good work to prevent homelessness that is leading to
some positive outcomes. Applicants approaching the Council attend a preventions
interview, which sets out a range of housing options. For example, family license
termination is a major contributor to homelessness in the borough, and many young
people approach the Council for housing following family conflict. In these cases,
Preventions and Options officers provide a range of options to the young person. They
contact the parents of the applicant immediately, and home visitors may call on the
family. The service also uses a mediation service to attempt to resolve family disputes
among its 16 and 17 year old clients. In the last year performance in preventing
homelessness has improved and the Council believe that 900 cases of homelessness
will be prevented by the end of the year. However, some areas for improvement
remain. For example, the visiting process is used to verify details rather than resolve
the situation, and only 12 cases of 'homeless at home" have been completed.

The service is effective in the provision of new homes with housing association
partners. Haringey is in the top 25 per cent performers in terms of the development of
housing association homes. It is also in the top five nationally for development of
affordable homes. This means that the Council is working well with its association
partners to provide more affordable homes.

Performance for temporary accommodation is, however, limited. Rent collection rates
and costs are on target for the year, but the average length of stay in both Bed and
Breakfast and hostels is in bottom 25 per cent of London councils. This means that
people are spending extended periods of time in temporary accommodation which will
impact negatively on their health and well-being.

The Council aims to reduce the level of temporary accommodation by encouraging
landlords to convert leases to Assured Shorthold Tenancies. This process has started,
albeit on a small scale.

Housing Associations currently supply 1,678 units of temporary accommodation
through the Housing Association Lettings Scheme (HALSs) to the Council. The
Council’s internal audit report notes that there are problems in monitoring these units:
invoices are not paid in time, associations do not provide information promptly and the
Council cannot confirm that these temporary accommodation units are of adequate
quality and managed well. The Council's housing service is appointing a Contract
Manager to address these issues, but at present, it cannot be fully confident that
occupants of HALs are receiving a good quality service.

The Council offers additional points to applicants if they stay in their homes rather than presenting themselves as
homeless- this is known as the 'homeless at home' initiative.



Page 123

As well as offering preventions and options advice, the Council can reduce the use of
temporary accommodation by addressing under occupation of social housing, and
checking the occupancy to leased properties.

The service is not maximising the use of incentives to address under occupation.
Some incentives are offered to encourage people to move from large accommodation.
However, the maximum incentive of £2,000 is paid to those who move to one-bedroom
accommodation, and not necessarily to people releasing larger units. This means that
someone releasing a two-bedroom unit may receive a greater sum than someone
moving from a four-bedroom unit, even though the latter could release a chain of
moves for residents. A leaflet advertises the scheme, but the information provided is
not comprehensive.

There is currently no systematic way of identifying and targeting under occupying
households, nor any cost analysis to balance incentives against outcomes. For
example, successions of tenancy may be a source of under occupied property, but
they are not identified. In one file case, a resident moving from a four-bedroom to a
one-bedroom house was given points and advised to apply through Home
Connections. The points level awarded in the current lettings policy are insufficient for
this household to obtain a one-bedroom flat"". This means that the Council is not
maximising the use of its stock, and that resources are not being directed effectively to
address housing need.

There is a comprehensive system of occupancy checks that is making a positive
impact in dealing with fraud and reducing the use of temporary accommodation. SCHS
introduced a system of occupancy checks in June 2007. To date, the occupancy team
has visited 235 occupants in temporary accommodation, who have not been in contact
for some time. In 25 cases, this has led to discharge of duty. The occupancy team has
also identified 127 Section 193 cases ' where residents in temporary accommodation
might convert their temporary accommodation to permanent accommodation. Of this
group, 15 have recently had their temporary tenancies converted, and 50 are awaiting
conversion.

There remain some areas for improvement in the service's approach to occupancy
checks. There is a lack of guidance on dealing with nationality and eligibility issues and
no system of photographing residents when they move into temporary
accommodation. Not all team members have been trained in validating documentation
nor do they have direct access to a commonly-used IT system designed to identify
fraud, although this can be accessed through the team leader.

The current points for under occupation are 500 points for 3 bedrooms, and current successful bidding for one-
bedroom properties is between 600 and 1,500 points. The new lettings policy, which commences January 2008, will
award higher points for under occupation

Section 193 properties refer to low demand council properties used as temporary accommodation



Page 124

Haringey’s management of the housing register is an area of weakness. The operation
of the Home Connection scheme is not currently efficient or customer-focused.
Performance in dealing with applications is weak and again not customer-focused.
However, the Council has improved the management of the housing register through a
re-registration process and revised its letting policy.

The operation of the Home Connection scheme is not currently efficient or customer-
focused. The scheme operates by advertising homes on the website on Wednesdays
and through the CSCs each Thursday. Applicants then must bid for properties by
Monday. On Tuesdays, the five applicants with the highest level of points are selected
and contacted; on Wednesday properties are viewed and offers are made after the
details of the applicants are verified. Over 4,300 bids are received each week, while
only up to 20 properties are advertised. Many of these bids come from people with no
chance of success and there is no filtering of ineligible bids. This wastes time for staff
and customers.

When applicants with high priority cannot be contacted by telephone, allocations
lettings officers move on to the next applicant. There is no system of leaving messages
or using alternative methods such as texting; as a consequence, 40 per cent of
applicants miss their chance to be offered housing. Not all information about the
service clearly emphasises the importance of maintaining up-to-date contact details,
and applicants whose details are wrong are not informed. Service users find it difficult
to update their contact details, and have to provide information several times before
records are amended. This contact system results in residents with high needs missing
the opportunity for rehousing.

In some areas the Council's policies and their application are not clear. For example,
the Council’s policy states that some people are ineligible for housing by virtue of
‘unacceptable behaviour’. Examples include rent arrears or anti-social behaviour.
However, some staff are unclear about the level of rent arrears that is allowable within
the system. In addition, the high level of arrears (up to £1,500) allowable does not act
as an incentive for many to reduce them. In addition, some staff are not clear about the
implications for applicants of refusing offers. In terms of antisocial behaviour, the
current lettings policy implies a blanket exclusion policy, which is not allowed within
current legislation. Other documents state that antisocial applicants will not be housed
near older people. The lack of clarity means that service users may be unclear about
their rights and responsibilities, and staff may not treat applicants equitably.

The verification process causes delays in the lettings process and frustration among
applicants. Points are verified after the property is viewed; it is not uncommon for
points to be amended with the result that applicants accept the property but the offer is
subsequently withdrawn. The verification interview only takes place on Thursday and
Friday; if the appointment is missed, the next available slot is a week later, extending
the void period. There is a standard form informing people which documents are
required for verification, but the form is unclear as to whether all the listed forms are
required, or some of them. The housing application form states that documents are
required, but does not state what these are. All these factors lead to an inflexible
service, costly in staff time and rental loss.



Page 125

The Council's performance in dealing with applications is weak and its approach is not
customer-focused. The Council is failing to meet its target to process applications in
14 days. The average time to process applications is currently 86 days while in one
case, it took, 8 months to point an applicant. Other weaknesses include:

acknowledgement slips and requests for language translations are not always
acted upon,;

conflicting and contradictory information is sent to some applicants about their
priority;

the standard letter does not outline an appeals procedure, or recommend action for
those who are about to be made homeless;

there is lack of clarity about whether applicants living with their families should be
awarded points for shared facilities;

there is no written procedure for pointing applicants, or for management transfers;
and

OHMs data is unreliable. Information is sometimes entered into the computer
system inaccurately, and service users find it difficult to have incorrect information
amended. In addition, problems are caused by lost documentation.

This means that there can be only limited confidence among applicants that their
cases are processed accurately, and that their circumstances are fully considered.

The Council cannot state with confidence that lettings policy is achieving its stated
aims - that is, to address overcrowding and to offer choice. Ninety-three per cent of
successful bids are homeless or in temporary accommodation “. Only 7 per cent of
successful bids are from the transfer list, against a target of 50 per cent. This means
that overcrowded households may not benefit from the revised lettings system. It also
means that the service is missing the opportunity to set up transfer chains .

The Council needs to do more to promote the Home Connection scheme to applicants.
Two-thirds of people on the housing register have not bid through Home Connections,
and a third of those with maximum points have not bid. This means that the system is
encouraging multiple bids from those with little chance of success, but is not
supporting potentially vulnerable and needy applicants who have not used the system.

The second stated aim of the system is to offer choice. However, the proportion of
allocations outside the Home Connections system is high. The proportion of lettings
through direct lettings, although reduced, does not meet targets. Two-thirds of these
direct allocations are to people whose temporary accommodation leases are ending.
This means that the direct allocations system is increasingly geared towards managing
temporary accommodation, rather than dealing with exceptional transfer cases.

July 2007 figures

A transfer chain refers to an offer of accommodation which sets up a chain of moves. For example, a tenant moving to
a three-bedroom property will vacate a two-bedroom property. The person moving to this two-bedroom property will
release a one-bedroom property.



Page 126

There are weaknesses in case management. We found that some forms for
management transfers were not always completed or were inaccurate. It was also
difficult to read some of the documents and identify clearly who had made decisions. In
addition, there are sometimes unexplained delays between, for example, incidents of
harassment and the completion of the management transfer form.

The Council has reacted to a previous inspection to improve two aspects of the
service. A previous inspection criticised the Council because its register and lettings
policy had not been updated for a substantial period. The Council has now completed
both tasks. Following a thorough consultation process, a new lettings policy was
adopted in 2007. However, the policy has been subject to substantial changes, and a
revised policy will come into effect in January 2008. This revised lettings policy
addresses some of the problems with the current one - for example; it increases the
points for under occupation, and is more accurate regarding exclusions. There are,
however, still some anomalies. For example, the revised lettings policy does not refer
to single homeless people.

The Council has improved the robustness of the housing register. In 2007, the Council
had the first of what it intends to be an annual review of the register. In the first review
since 2001, the Council removed approximately 15,000 from the register. Some of
these have now been re-registered as the Council audits non-responses, and

63 re-registration forms are received each week by the Council. Together with the
recent Housing Needs Survey, the updated housing register means that the Council
can more accurately predict the demand for homes.

Currently, in partnership working there is a balance of strengths and weaknesses. The
strategic approach to working with partners is generally sound. Positively, the Council
has nomination agreements in place with housing association partners but some
important aspects of its monitoring arrangements could be improved. The Council
works well with private landlords on a day-to-day basis producing some good
outcomes but has had limited ongoing strategic engagement with them over the last
two years. Longer void periods have led to delays in securing permanent housing for
those in need.

Positively, the Council has nomination agreements in place with housing association
partners but some important aspects of its monitoring arrangements could be
improved. Housing Associations own and manage 12,738 permanent homes in
Haringey; over half of these are owned by five associations. The Council has taken
steps to maximise the supply of affordable homes by updating the nominations
agreement ~. The Council has agreed monitoring arrangements with its partner
housing associations. Information on voids and lettings is provided to the Council on a
quarterly basis. Although some checks are in place arrangements to ensure that
nominations are in the right place and of the right quality remain an area for
improvement.

Council are required to have a nominations agreement with Housing Associations in their areas. The agreement
outlines for example the proportion of vacant properties the association must offer to the council



Page 127

The Council’s relationship with Housing Associations is formalised through a number
of groups. At a strategic level, there is a well attended Housing Associations Forum. At
a more operational level, the lettings subgroup examines allocations issues. The latter
group has not met regularly over the last two years. This meant that until recently
issues that were important to a number of Housing Associations such as the sharing of
information about antisocial behaviour or vulnerable or potentially violent nominees
had not been successfully resolved as quickly as they should have been.

However, the Council does work effectively with associations at an operational level.
Housing Associations report that nominations are generally accurate, and they are
provided within target timescales.

Work with private landlords is leading to good outcomes allowing people in housing
need to access private sector housing. Haringey has a relatively large private rented
sector, and the Council has procured a significant number of units for use as
temporary accommodation. SCHS has developed a number of schemes to encourage
private renting. Following a successful pilot of an Accredited Lettings Scheme ” (ALS),
it was fully introduced in 2007. The Council has also set up the Landlord Direct
Lettings Scheme (LDLS). This offers incentives to landlords who wish to manage their
own properties, including a dedicated housing benefits officer. The schemes are
advertised through a range of attractive and comprehensive leaflets, and on local
minority ethnic community radio networks.

The Council has set a target that these private letting initiatives supply 30 extra units of
accommodation per month. This is below the original target of 60 per month °, and
presently it is achieving 22 per month. This is, however, on an upward trend, and our
contact with the Housing Supply Group showed that staff are efficient and well
informed about these schemes.

The Council funds some smaller scale initiatives. For example, ‘invest to save’
resources are used to prevent homelessness through rent deposits. The Council also
uses these resources to underwrite potential overpayment claims, which may threaten
tenancies.

The Council works well with private landlords on a day-to-day basis but has had limited
ongoing strategic engagement with them over the last two years. Private landlords are
keen to work with the Council, and the Landlord Forum held in October 2007 attracted
90 landlords. Private sector officers have regular meetings with the 26 local lettings
agents who supply 1,700 units of emergency accommodation. Officers regularly meet
lettings agents who operate the Accredited Lettings Scheme. However, the recent
Landlord Forum was the first for a long period, and there is little evidence that the
Council has worked strategically with landlords for some time, limiting the sector's
effectiveness.

The ALS is an initiative in which the Council manages property on behalf of private landlords. Landlords are
encouraged to participate through pre-screening of tenants, and the provision of rent deposits and rent in advance
Homelessness strategy 2003-08



Page 128

The Council and ALMO have maintained a generally productive relationship, but
performance in terms of void periods is poor. The average re-let time for empty
properties is 38.7 days ', against 29 days in 2006/07. Some of this is caused by delays
in the verification process; as a result, the Council is losing income and applicants
have to wait longer for permanent housing.

Over the last 18 months, there has been a significant decline in the number of moves
completed through mobility schemes and mutual exchanges. As a result, more
pressure is placed on the housing register.

Overall, weaknesses outweigh strengths in this area. The service does not
demonstrate a robust system to ensure value for money in the lettings and allocations
service, acknowledging that a systematic approach to value for money is ‘under
development’ in the service.

A focus on value for money is not embedded throughout the housing service. There is
a system of business and pre-business planning, and these include sections on value
for money, efficiency and risk. However, the 2007-2010 Business Plan acknowledges
that 'an approach to dealing with value for money issues is under development’. There
is a lack of reported performance data, and limited comparative information to inform
policy in this area.

Although the income recovery team has done some limited comparative work with
services at three other similar London boroughs, managers do not have a clear
understanding of costs in their service. As a result, the service is unable to
demonstrate value for money against measures of cost, performance and perception.

The Council has generated substantial income over the last three years through the
expansion of temporary accommodation. However, it is unclear how the lettings and
allocations service, and the vulnerable people it serves, have benefited from this
additional income. The Council pays an average of £236.00 per week to landlords of
private properties, and receives an average of £355.32 per week in rental income from
these properties. This generated a net income of £8.48 million in 2006/07. This surplus
income is used in part to support council services, and as a reserve against future
subsidy changes rather than being reinvested in housing service improvement.

The subsidy system will change in 2009, which means that this source of income will
be removed. Potential risks attached to the change in subsidy regime are
acknowledged in the medium term financial strategy, the pre-business plan and the
business plan, but there are no specific plans in place to identify the scale of the
subsidy reduction, or build this into budgets. This means that the service could face
unplanned reductions in budgets over the next two years.

Year to date September 2007



Page 129

There are weaknesses in the controls in place to effectively manage claims from
landlords for damage to their property. Over half of the 246 properties handed back to
landlords in 2006/07 were subject to a claim for damages. The average settlement
agreed was £1,928.63. There are 120 cases where the landlord has either refused to
settle, or are expected to make a claim. Decisions on dilapidation payments to
landlords are taken by surveyors outside the housing service. Costs under £3,000 are
settled without any further checks; those over £3,000 are monitored by a manager in
the temporary accommodation team. The cost of dilapidations is met from the
homelessness budget. The budget is not managed to full effect, with no targets or
benchmarks to guide officers; therefore, the Council cannot demonstrate value for
money. As the number of private sector lease ends increase over the next two years,
the sums paid out will increase substantially.

A system to recover rechargeable costs from landlords has only recently been
introduced. In addition, there are no systems in place to charge damages to temporary
accommodation residents. The Council pays significant sums each year to Homes for
Haringey to repair temporary accommodation, but since 2003, the computer system
has not facilitated recovery of these sums from landlords. Although the system has
recently been adjusted to address this issue, it is likely that much of the monies paid
out will not be recovered. This means that there is a loss of resources available to
improve services.

The housing service has a high number of temporary and agency staff. As well as the
impact on service, this is an additional cost to the Council in terms of wages and
training.

There has, however, been investment in initiatives which both add value and provide
value for money. These include:

floating support offered through Key Support, HARTs and Sixty Plus have
prevented eviction in 200 cases, saving an estimated £260,000 °;

the Preventions and Options service has spent £150,000 from the £562,000
corporate ‘spend to save’ budget. It has calculated that it costs £1,200 per
intervention, and this represents a cost-effective way of reducing homelessness;
and

the Empty Properties office is presently conducting a street survey of registered
empty properties, drawn from Council Tax and Housing Register records. Forty-five
properties, previously registered as empty have been confirmed as occupied,
resulting in £64,427 additional Council Tax.

The income recovery team provides good value for money in collecting rent from
occupants of temporary accommodation. At 97.65 per cent of rent roll (2006/07), rent
recovery is high, and the team has a low staff: resident ratio compared to
benchmarked services.

These are voluntary sector floating support schemes, funded through the Supporting Housing service. HARTs focuses
on families, Key Support on 16-17 year olds and Sixty Plus on older residents.



Page 130

In terms of controlling and reducing expenditure, the Housing Supply Group monitors
market rents and area reference rents, and this information is used to maintain
temporary accommodation rents 10 per cent below market levels. The service also
uses the Bed and Breakfast Information Exchange (BABIE) to monitor bed and
breakfast costs and keep costs down. As a result, the service is meeting its targets to
control average costs of private sector and nightly rented accommodation.



Page 131

This is an area where strengths and weaknesses are in balance. There have been
some significant improvements that customers would recognise although there
remains more to do in many areas. Positively, the rate of improvement has increased
recently with steps made to address a number of issues raised in reports and by this
inspection. The service has a good track record of responding to Audit Commission
recommendations. Overall improvement in performance indicators is mixed and
progress in implementing service improvement recommendations and delivering
targets in key strategies has not been consistent. Insufficient progress has been made
in cross-cutting areas in particular customer access and value for money.

The service has a good track record of responding to Audit Commission
recommendations. A previous Audit Commission report identified a number of key
weaknesses in the lettings and allocations service. To address these weaknesses, the
service has made some significant changes in the last year:

a choice based lettings service, Home Connections, has replaced the previous
complex mixture of choice, fast track lettings and direct lettings;

a new nominations and partnering agreement has been concluded with Housing
Associations;

SCHS has carried out a re-registration exercise to update the housing register;
a new lettings policy has been introduced; and

the housing advice and homelessness service has been merged to form the
Preventions and Options service.

Progress in implementing service improvement recommendations arising from a series
of internal and external reports and delivering targets in key strategies has not been
consistent. In some cases, actions arising from these reports have not been
undertaken; for example, a number of actions recommended for the Housing Supply
Group have been delayed. In addition, a number of important targets set out in the
Homelessness Strategy 2003-2008 have not been achieved. These include developing
a landlord training scheme and starting a ‘temporary to permanent’ initiative ~. Other
targets, such as providing a newsletter and consulting residents in temporary
accommodation, have only partially, and very recently, been addressed.

Only 18 temporary to permanent transfers have been achieved against an annual target of 100 set out in the 2003/08
Housing Strategy



Page 132

There have been some significant improvements that customers would recognise
although there remains more to do in many areas, as follows.

Home Connection is simpler than the previous complex mixture of allocation
schemes, and has led to a rise in the proportion of properties accepted by
applicants. However, the operation of the Home Connection scheme is not
currently efficient or customer-focused, and a significant proportion of allocations
are direct lettings, bypassing the choice-based lettings system.

The new nominations agreement sets out the expectations of the Council clearly.
However, some important aspects of its monitoring arrangements could be
improved.

The re-registration process removed 15,000 applicants from the register. Positive
steps were taken to identify and support vulnerable applicants. However, there
remains a risk that some vulnerable applicants may have been removed in error.

The new lettings policy was informed by a comprehensive consultation exercise.
The policy reflects national and local priorities, and engaged with important
diversity issues. However, some issues were not included, and the pointing system
has not fully delivered the aims of the policy. A revised lettings policy is due to be
fully introduced in January 2008.

The Council has invested in the Preventions and Options service to support a
stronger emphasis on prevention but this is not yet leading to consistently positive
outcomes.

The Council is currently undertaking the Phase 2 Lettings Project, the aim of which is
to build on the changes above. The aims of this phase include: interviewing
non-bidders in the Home Connections process, an options paper on out-of-London
moves and comprehensive monitoring of the nominations process.

Positively, the rate of improvement has increased recently with steps made to address
a number of issues raised in reports and by this inspection. For example:

a new lettings policy was agreed in July 2007, and will be fully implemented in
January 2008;

officers have started the process of verifying the details of the top pointed
250 applicants. This will save time verifying details when offers are made.
Following the inspection, a more flexible system of verification was introduced;

a user survey has recently been posted, and residents in temporary
accommodation invited to participate in a series of focus groups;

a meeting of the Lettings Sub-Group during the period of the inspection adopted an
information sharing protocol; and

the service has responded quickly in a number of areas to improve the service for
customers for example, it changed its approach to the Home Connections scheme
by reducing the number of bids and increasing the number of days on which
properties can be viewed.



Page 133

Overall improvement in performance indicators is mixed. In May 2007, 8 of the 15
top-line management targets were green, and seven red”". In terms of housing advice,
an increased number of households have received housing advice which has resolved
their situation. However, the number of households who are re-presenting as homeless
within two years of initial contact has increased, and is above the London average. The
number of households in temporary accommodation increased in 2006/07, albeit at a
slower rate than previously.

There has been a significant decline in the number of applicants accepted as
homeless. The overall number of applications fell from 576 in Quarter 1 2006 to 186 in
Quarter 1 2007. The proportion of applicants accepted as homeless has fallen by

53 per cent in the last year. The acceptance rate per 1,000 population is 1.1 per 1,000
households. Although still slightly above London average for acceptances, the reduced
level of acceptances has contributed to the recent reduction in the use of temporary
accommodation. This recent reduction in temporary accommodation provides an
opportunity for more effective management of this accommodation.

Haringey's use of temporary accommodation has increased by over 60 per cent
between 2002 and 2007, although usage peaked at 5,909 households at the end of
2006/07. In Quarter 3 2007, the total number of households in temporary
accommodation fell to 5,415°".

In terms of housing supply, the average time to re-let empty properties has increased
by eight days, and the average length of time spent in hostel accommodation was
longer in 2007/08. On the other hand, the number of private sector vacant dwellings
brought into use met the target of 100 in 2006/07.

The Council has reduced the number of empty private sector properties from 3,093 in
2002 to 1,961 in 2007. Homes empty for more than six months have fallen at a faster
rate, from 2,075 to 1,001 in the same period. The number returned to occupation fell
between 2005/06 and 2006/07, but continue to meet targets. This reduction increases
the amount of housing in the borough available for people in housing need. However,
the housing service has noted that a cut in resources, from £3 million in 2006/07 to
£0.5 million in 2007/08 will affect these programmes.

Insufficient progress has been made in cross-cutting areas in particular customer
access and value for money Customer access and in particular the provision of
information, consultation with users and access by telephone remain areas for
improvement. A systematic approach to value for money is still developing and while
the service is delivering positive outcomes for a range of diverse groups there remain
some weaknesses in its approach to equality and diversity.

Green light- achieving year-to-date targets: red light- not achieving year-to-date targets
Data provided by LB Haringey subsequent to inspection



Page 134

This is an area where strengths outweigh weaknesses. There is a clear and visible
commitment to driving improvement from both senior councillors and senior managers.
The service demonstrates an openness to challenge and a high level of
self-awareness that is reflected in its future plans. The performance management
framework is sound and generally performance monitoring and reporting is also sound.
However, the service is not consistently learning from customer feedback to improve
performance.

There is a clear and visible commitment to driving improvement from both senior
councillors and senior managers. The Leader of the Council has explicitly identified
this service as a key priority for the Council. There is also a new impetus and focus to
drive improvement from senior managers following the successful work to support the
ALMO achieving two-star status in 2007. Both councillors and senior managers have
expressed a commitment to provide resources to the service. This gives confidence
that improvements will be delivered in the short term.

Performance monitoring and reporting arrangements are generally sound.
Performance monitoring arrangements have been discussed and developed with
managers. Detailed performance information is provided to each manager with 16 key
items of performance information reported to Senior Management Team each month.
Performance reports including the choice and presentation of data was recently
improved to reflect current priorities. For example, the percentage of agency staff is
now included each month. However, there are some areas for improvement. There are
weaknesses in the systems to ensure reliable and accurate information. For example,
as at July 2007, Home Connection had 17,000 applicants, but the housing register had
13,000°“. Positively, the Council is currently undertaking a data-cleansing exercise to
address this issue. In addition, there are no targets set for the mediation service in
terms of timescales and outcomes. As a result, it is difficult to assess the success of
this service.

The performance management framework is also sound. Individual managers report to
the management team if their performance is at variance with targets. High-level
arrangements include senior managers reporting to the portfolio holder weekly, and to
the Chief Executive Management Board. A six-weekly report to the Leader details
performance against 18 national and local indicators. This system encourages
ownership of targets and accountability for performance among managers.

There is a sound process linking service aims to staff performance. Staff have annual
appraisals, which are explicitly linked to business plan and wider Council aims and
include personal development plans. However, not all staff have well developed and
SMART targets- in some cases they are very detailed, in others, not. Although not fully
comprehensive, the performance management system does provide an effective tool
linking strategic objectives to individual and team performance. As a result, the service
can identify and respond to weak performance.

Home Connections data analysis report December 2006-July 2007



Page 135

The service demonstrates an openness to challenge and a high level of
self-awareness that is reflected in its future plans. The service has used internal and
external reports to challenge its service delivery and identify areas for improvement.
The service's future plans are generally SMART and importantly demonstrate a high
degree of self-awareness about its strengths and weaknesses. While progress to date
has been mixed these plans do address many of the key weaknesses identified in this
report for example, addressing weaknesses in the lettings process.

The service is not consistently collecting and analysing customer feedback to improve
performance. While the service now responds quickly to complaints it has
acknowledged that it is not maximising the opportunities to garner learning. To address
this the Senior Management Team recently adopted a 'learning from complaints
protocol'. In addition while there are some good examples of consultation with users,
the service does not currently have an informed understanding of the views of service
users. Service related data is also collected from a range of sources but importantly
key information and trends are not analysed. For example, data shows that nearly all
appeals against offers of accommodation came from Black and Minority Ethnic
applicants. This is a potentially significant piece of information, but has not been
identified or reflected upon. These weaknesses mean that the service may be missing
opportunities to improve the service.

The Council has taken positive steps to address capacity issues at all levels within the
service. The Council restructured the service and appointed a new Assistant Director
with knowledge and experience of managing these services and leading change of this
nature. Other important posts have also now been filled to help address weaknesses in
the service. The ICT systems are capable of supporting the service well. However,
staff capacity is reduced by high levels of sickness absence and the high proportion of
agency staff. This means that there is a balance of strengths and weaknesses in this
area.

The Council has taken positive steps to address capacity issues at all levels within the
service. The restructuring of the allocations and lettings service which took place in
2005 has focussed resources to address service weaknesses and has made some
positive impact. Importantly, a new Assistant Director has been appointed who
provides knowledge and experience of managing these services and leading change
of this nature. Other important posts have also now been filled to help address
weaknesses in the service for example, supporting vulnerable applicants to bid through
the Home Connections scheme. The Council is also appointing a Contracts Manager
to improve the management of the Housing Association Lettings Scheme (HALSs).
Additional external resources have been secured to fund two officers to work with
tenants and property owners to convert leased properties to Assured Shorthold
Tenancies. In addition, a successful £100,000 bid has been made with the Council's
North London partners to develop a sub-regional under occupation scheme.



Page 136

The service has 150 Full Time Equivalent staff. Compared with similar organisations, it
is well staffed, and other resources, such as those provided through Supporting People
are adequate. This means that the service has resources to achieve its aims.

However, these resources are not deployed effectively. A large amount of resources
are used to verify documentation and validate claims for housing, rather than prevent
homelessness.

Sickness and absence within the service is high. On average, each staff member is
absent for 18 days per year, and this rises to more than 27 days in the income team.
This is substantially higher than the rest of the Council and comparable organisations.
The Council has a robust procedure for dealing with illness and absence; however,
there is currently little evidence yet of targeted work to address the issue, such as
requiring management staff to attend training. This means that the organisation is not
maximising service delivery and value for money.

The service has a high proportion of agency staff. Concerted action over the last

six months has reduced the percentage of agency staff from 29 per cent to 24 per cent
of staff, but the figure remains high. As a result of the high turnover of staff, there is a
lack on continuity for customers and other stakeholders such as Housing Associations.
In addition, the Council has to invest in induction and training for staff who may only
stay for a short amount of time.

There is a mixed picture regarding investment in staff training. A part time legal officer
in the validations team has provided a series of internal training sessions on different
aspects of housing law, and some individual training profiles show ongoing staff
investment. However, there is no systematic identification of training needs, nor a plan
to address gaps in training, such as validating documentation and mediation. This
means that there is limited alignment between training and the aims of the
organisation.

The Council has as yet not fully identified and made plans for potential losses of
subsidy income. The Council has generated substantial income over the last three
years through the expansion of temporary accommodation. Potential risks attached to
the change in subsidy regime are acknowledged in the medium term financial strategy,
the pre-business plan and the business plan, but there are no specific plans in place to
identify the scale of the subsidy reduction, or build this into budgets. This means that
the service could face unplanned reductions in budgets over the next two years.

The ICT systems are capable of supporting the service well. In line with our earlier
criticisms of how the system is used, managers acknowledge that ICT could probably
deliver far more than they currently ask of it, and the Council is improving systems.
The allocations and lettings service is moving to paperless filing. The Council was in
the middle of scanning case papers onto the ICT system during the inspection and
aims to complete the exercise by the end of November 2007. This will give all staff
immediate access to case records at any office, helping to ensure people are dealt
with quickly and consistently.



Page 137

What are the prospects for improvement to the service?

Appendix 1 — Performance

iIndicators

2005/06

London
average
2005/06°°

2006/07°*

Target
2006/07

2007/08
YTD July

Target
2007/08

Number of
households for
whom advice solved
their situation (BVPI
213)

381

380

400

900

500

% change in number
of families placed in
TA (BVPI 203**)

7.36

1.87

5.66

Number households
in TA (HS203ii*)

5709

Proportion families
re-presenting as

homeless within 2
years (BVPI 214%)

1.55%

0.95%

2.3%

8%

Average length of
stay in hostel (BVPI
183b)

67.41

17.57

61.83

18

82.37

60

Average time relet
council property
(BVPI 212)

29

35

27

38.7°°

27

Number households
rehoused- Moving
Out of London HS1*

54

60

Number under
occupied tenancies
moving to suitable
accommodation
(HS 2)*

98

60

> Pl benchmarking

** This column taken from hard copy
> * means that the indicator was deleted from the basket of headline indicators

“YTD September 2007

35 | Haringey London Borough Council




Page 138

What are the prospects for improvement to the service?

2005/06 London | 2006/07°° | Target | 2007/08 | Target
average 2006/07 | YTD July | 2007/08
2005/06"
Empty private sector | 414 257 101 100 111 100
dwellings returned to
occ. (BVPI 64)
Proportion rent 96.27% 97.65 95 96.28 96
collected for all TA
Cost per PSL lease 904.67 842.24 | 891.40 907
Cost per nightly 41.23 40.20 41.11 42.20
rented accom.
% telephone calls 51 77 45.23 79
answered within
15 seconds
% telephone calls 59 85 47.34 84
answered
Additional Pls for 2007/08
2005/06 2006/07 | Target |2007/08 Target
2006/07 | YTD 2007/08
% Member’s enquiries 68 95 90
answered on time
% Stage 1 complaints in time 63 95 90

" PI benchmarking

“® This column taken from hard copy

Haringey London Borough Council

36




Page 139

Allocations and Lettings | Appendix 2 — Reality checks undertaken 37

Appendix 2 — Reality checks
undertaken

1 When we went on-site we carried out a number of different checks, building on
the work described above, in order to get a full picture of how good the service is.
These on-site reality checks were designed to gather evidence about what it is
like to use the service and to see how well it works. Our reality checks included:

interviews and focus groups with staff and managers at all levels;
mystery shopping to public access offices;

a focus group with residents of temporary accommodation;
telephone interviews with applicants on the housing register;

interviews with Councillors, including the Lead Member for Housing and the
Leader of the Council;

observation and shadowing of interviews;

file reviews;

telephone interviews with Housing Associations;
shadowing of occupancy checks; and

visit to Hearthstone Domestic Violence service.

37 | Haringey London Borough Council



Page 140

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone.

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and
rescue services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for
money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services
and make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local
people.

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070.

© Audit Commission 2008

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact:

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Tel: 0844 798 1212 Fax: 0844 798 2945 Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk




Page 141 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 30 July 2009

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2009/10 Quarter 1

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken during the first quarter by the
Internal Audit Service in completing the annual audit plan and any responsive fraud
investigation work. In addition, the work of the Council’s personnel division in
supporting disciplinary action taken across all departments by respective council
managers.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2.2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports to both
managers and the Audit Committee on progress against the agreed audit plan and the
implementation of audit recommendations ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and progress
during the first quarter 2009/10.

3.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.




Page 142

3.3 That the Audit Committee considers whether any further action is necessary to
ensure that outstanding priority 1 recommendations are fully addressed.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of the annual
internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed recommendations as part of its
Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, progress reports are provided on a
quarterly basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and associated appendices and included in the recommendations for the Audit
Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
work undertaken in the quarter ending 30 June 2009 and focuses on:

» Progress by Deloitte and Touche (internal auditors) on internal audit coverage
relative to the approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports
issued and finalised;

e Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations with special
attention given to priority 1 recommendations; and

¢ Details of investigative work undertaken relating to fraud and/or irregularities that
fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team, including
information in respect of disciplinary action taken.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within the Audit & Risk
Management Unit and from records held by Deloitte and Touche and the Council’s
corporate Human Resources business unit.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that no specific legal issues arise out of the contents.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer confirms that budget is available for the existing service

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 143

provided by Deloitte Touche.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements
in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides
to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of individual internal audit reports and follow up
programmes and their comments included in the final report which is circulated in
accordance with the agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the five year contract which was
awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with EU
regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are contained and managed
within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix A — Deloitte and Touche Progress report
Appendix B — In-house Team — investigations into financial irregularities
Appendix C — Council-wide disciplinary information

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15.Performance Management Information

15.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local performance
targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form part of Corporate

Report Template: Formal Bodies



Page 144

Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below
shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and gives a breakdown between
the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pl Ref. | Performance Indicator 1* Quarter | Year to date | Target

A1 Audit work Completed vs. Planned | 79% of 20% of total | 95%
programme planned Q1 | programme

programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 3.7 3.7 3.75
high)

A3 Time taken to complete 15.8 weeks | 15.8 weeks | 12 weeks
investigations (2008/09 referrals)

A4 Priority 1 recommendations 74% 74% 95%
implemented at follow up (2008/09
audits)

16. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

16.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the first quarter of 2009/10 to date is detailed at

Appendix A. In this quarter, a total of 20 projects have been finalised, including 6 school
visits to assess compliance with the Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSIS).
All except one school achieved the required outcomes against FMSIS and will be receiving
their certificate from the Department for Children, Schools and Families.

16.2 The programme of planned follow up audits is also reported at Appendix A. The work of

internal audit and the new reporting requirements to both the Audit Committee and Cabinet,
which receive details of all outstanding Priority 1 recommendations as part of the 2009/10
corporate performance reporting arrangements, have ensured that managers take greater
responsibility for implementing recommendations. Full details of all the outstanding
recommendations are shown in Appendix A.

16.3 Work is ongoing, in conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, to ensure that Directors

17.

were aware of the required actions necessary and from 2008/09 onwards, the
implementation of Priority 1 recommendations has been included in the PI reporting
requirements for all departments. Directors are kept informed of progress and Internal Audit
are satisfied that managers are taking action to address the issues raised in the original
recommendations. Revised timescales have been agreed where appropriate.

In-house Team — Fraud investigation/lrregularities

17.1 In accordance with the Council's Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that fall

outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the Information
Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were completed by the In-house
Team to date in 2009/10 and any which were brought forward from 2008/09.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 145

17.2 Within the first quarter, no new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation, and

five cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees. The five cases
completed in quarter one took 15.8 weeks on average to complete. Internal Audit work
closely with officers from personnel and the service involved to ensure that the investigation
is completed as quickly as possible.

17.3 The council has a dedicated email address and telephone number, which is advertised on

the Council website, by which members of the public can report instances of suspected
fraud or irregularity. The In-house Team manage and monitor these referrals. During quarter
one, 22 referrals in relation to new allegations were made via the council’s email reporting
facility. Of these, ten related to housing benefit, and six related to council tax/council tax
benefits issues and were referred to the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team for
further review. Three related to Housing/Right to Buy issues and were referred to the
Strategic Housing Division for further review. Three referrals were not related to fraud.

17.4 During the first quarter of 2009/10, the in-house team have also completed:

¢ Internal audit reviews of grant usage during 2008/09 for Supporting People, and the GAF
project, which has enabled the final grant claims to be submitted in accordance with
central government and external audit requirements; and

¢ Training and guidance to relevant departments across the council and Homes for
Haringey in relation to the National Fraud Initiative (NFI). This has ensured that the
investigation processes into potential data matches can begin. A report will be provided
to the Audit Committee later in the year to advise of progress and actions taken by the
Council in respect of NFI.

17.5 The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. In 2009/10,

18.

there have been no referrals for investigation. This is a substantial reduction on previous
years’ figures. Improvements in procedures, including the introduction of ‘positive pay’
whereby the council’'s banking team receives information on cheques before they are
cleared, and new cheque security measures have reduced the opportunity for attempted
fraud in this area.

Council-wide disciplinary statistics

18.1 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the first

quarter of 2009/10. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been provided by
the Council’'s Human Resources business unit in line with council statistics reported
elsewhere.

18.2 Improved processes, monitoring, management information and liaison between service

departments and HR has been put in place. These improved processes have resulted in an
average of 70 days per case in quarter 1. This level has been maintained over the previous
four quarters.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

V XION3ddV

600C A1ng
‘PIT MpNY [euIdU] 003§ JI[qnd dYONnoJ, 29 dNIO[d(J

Ad3uLIeH JO y3no.aog uopuo|
0102/600¢

110ddY JIpny [ewaduy | J331en()
jpny [euajuj



Page 148

V XIAN3ddV

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

........................................................................... \A“—ﬁﬁﬁﬁu—ﬁmgomwum '%o “—QOEDH—NU—W

............ 60/8007 SUONBPUAWWOIY ¢€ -] Ao SurpueisinQ - 1odoy] ssar3oid paqrernq

........................................................................... 60/3007 — J[qeL QD MOT[O]

......................................................... 80/L00T — SUOIEPUSUIIOIY Q.anwozom
......................................................... £0/9007 — SUOTIEPUSTULIONY Q.anwozom
.......................................... 90/S00Z % SO/£007 — SUOIEPUSUIOdY Q.anwozom
.................... Alewuung pue SjudWSSasSy — S[O0YIS Ul pIepue)S JUSWISBURIA [BIOUBUIL]

...................................................................... @O\%OON “tomom mmo.ﬂwocﬁm HM@S&N

.................................................................................... %P.NEESW ®>ﬁ:\~00vmm

sjudjuo0)

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734



Page 149

[ 98eq 01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

"'600T A ur pansst aq [[1m 110dax [eury oy} pue
Sasuodsar JudwdSeuRW AU} PIAIIIAI JABY A\ 9IBI0II( SAIN0SIY dterodio) ayy urypim ued JuowaIndoid a3 Jo 1ed se pajojdwod
Sem UoIyM ‘S[9JSOH JO jipne ue SuIMO[[0} 00T dun( ul 31odorx jyeIp € ponssi os[e am ‘ue[d PNy [eUIU] (0]/6007 U Jo Med sy

S[00YdS ATBWILI] JO S}Ipne A)1qO.1d JO }Ie)}S e
SIIPNY JUSWYSI[BISTH SIIIAIIS [BII0S o
:01/600T 1 1931en() Jo Arewwing /S)Y3IYSIH A

SUOIEPUAUIIOIAI 99130k1d 159 J0/pue sIopew Jourut - £ AJLiotdg
UOT}0’ JUSWFRURW [BO0] JOJ SUONIEPUSWIWOIAI IY)0 - 7 AJLiolLg
JudWOFeURW JOIUSS JO UONJUSNE dY) Jof sansst olewr - [ AjnioLig

:$911039180 SUIMO[[0] 9} 0} SUIPIOIOE PASNLIOLId oIk SUONEPUIWOIAL INO “IOPUIWAL B S

“dapIwo)) ypny Ay} 03 payrodar Ajsnoraaxd jou asoy e proq ur
PAWSIYSIY SHpNe Y], "2PIWWO)) PNy Ay} 03 pajodar pue pansst st jodar [eury oy dwn Ay) Aq SIAJ1JJO [1ouno)) Aq pojuswd[duur
Uddq 9ARY Apeol[e ABW SUONEPUSWIWIONI PUB ‘JIpne oy} JO dWl Y} JB SWIISAS Oy JO snie)s dY) JOJ[JAI SI[qe} payoene Y[

‘sy10dal
JIpNe [eUl} [ENPIAIPUI OU} Ul Pa[IeIdP A[[NJ oIe ‘Uona[dwod 0} SUI[pesp Y} pue IdJ1Jo d[qIsuodsar ay) Surpn[oul ‘SUONEPUIUIOIAT
A} SSAIPPE 0} SUONIR SIADFO "PAAIS. Uddq dARY W0daI ST} UM PAYSI[YSIY SISSIUNLIM [01JUOD AUR SSIIPPE 0} SUONBPUIWUWIOIAL
[IV pansst 3urdq 110dax [eury o) 03 Joud passnosIp a1e sondsip Aue pue ‘SI901JJO [1OUNO)) YIIM PIIZe I8 SUONBPUIOII [V

‘3sanbax uodn syrodar yrpne ano Jo sa1dod [nJ yPIm papraoid 9q OS[e [[IM IPIWWO)) Y} JO SIDQUIAJN “dIPIWWO)) JIPNY A}
JO SIOQUISIA 0} SISeq A[qjuow & U0 papIAaoid SI YoIym UOIBWLIOJUI AJewuns dy} Joy31o50) smelp 110dar 9y ], “UOIIRWLIOJUL JOJ Papn[oul
SI S3UIpuly }JIpne doULRINSSE PAIWI] Y} JO AIeWWnS PI[Iejop AI0W Y "SMOIAI JIPhE [BUIUI JO ISIN0D Y} JuLnNp PIPNuIpl uddq
QAR YOIYM [1OUN0)) Ay} pue syudwredap [enprarpur Suroey sYsL A9y oy} Jy31y31y 03 pausisop os[e s1 310dar SIy) Jo Jeurio) Ay [, -dwrn
IOAO pageuew UIdq I8 SYSLI MO UO UOTIBULIOJUL YIIM SIQQUIAJAl IPIAOId [[IM [YOTYM JIOM SWISAS A3 JOJ [9ARI) JO UONOIIP ) JO
UON)BIIPUL UB SIAIS pUB dJUBINSSE [RNULRISNS JO [[N] PIASIYIR JABY [OIYM SBIIR ISOY) UO uorewiojul sapraoid jodar oy, -o3e)s [euly
1 MOU dIe YOIYM $310dal [[B JO S[TeIOp SuIpnjour Jeak [eroueul} ()1/600 Y} 10 dnmuwo)) 3pny a3 03 110dax 1031enb 3811y ano st siy [,

uondnpo.nuf

Arewiuing dADRNIIXY

V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734



Page 150

7 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

b 0 0 P lenuelsans | 60'90°9¢ | 600¢ Atenuer bundieoay yseo

(NYD) uswabeuepy

4 1% 0 VIN lepuelsgns | 60°90°9¢ 6002 IHdy sdiysuonejey Jawoisn)d dvs

0 0 L VIN lenueisqns | 60°90°GZ | 6002 Atenuer sjuelo peseg ealy

Buluoissiwwo)

L S 0 VIN lequelsqns | 60°90°GL | 800Z 4890300 (N3S) spaaN [euoneonp3 [e1oads

0 %4 4 VIN lenueisqns | 60°90°GL | 600 Atenuer juswiaindold 8ljus) ainsisT

L 14 0 > lequelsgns | 60°90°20 6002 Yoiely sloypald

[ouo) Aseyabpng

L 0 0 — lenueisqns | 60°G0'9Z | 6002 Atenuer '® Juswabeuey\ [eloueul oibajens

0 1% L > lepuelsgns | 60°G0°0C 6002 Yoieiy syjouag xe| [1ouno) ¢ buisnoH

0 %4 3 — lenueisqns | 60°G0'LL | 6002 Atenuer sloygaQ Apung

(eyeu010811Q

L € 0 VIN lenueisqns | 60°°G0°0Z | 6002 Atenuer SOQV) Juswabeuep\ souewiopad

4 I 3 <= lenueisans | 60°0'2¢ | 600 Atenuer Xe] [1ounod

0 0 0 VIN lequelsgns | 60°¥0°LC 6002 Yoieiy 108loid Aed [enb3 jo uonejuswa|dw]

€ € 0 > lenueisans | 60°%0°GlL | 6002 Atenuer HANN

0 0 0 > Ind | 60%0°90 6002 Yoiely JuswisaAU| pun4 uoisusd
€ (4 I

Ja0day
SjudwIuIo ) (&yrror1g) [PARIL] [PAI] [eury jipne IPLL PNy
SUOI)BPUIUITI0INY JO uondAII(Q | dduerInssy | Jo yeq Jo
Jo J_quunyN e
"UONeWIOJUI

SIQUISIA] 10J papraoid os[e d1e s3unel oouUBINSSE [BIIUBISQNS, 1O [N, SAIOOAI JOU Op YJIYM S}Ipne [[& JO SoLeWwWNS pa[reld

"dopIIwo)) 1Ipny Ay} 03 pajrodar Ajsnoraaxd jou asoy) d1e p[oq ur pIYSIYSIIY SHIPNE Y[, "99PIWW0)) JIpny Y} 0}

panodar pue pansst st 110dar [eury oy oW Ay} Aq SIAJIIJO [10Uno)) Aq pajudwddwr uddq aAey Apeaife AeW SUONEPUIWIOII ) JBey}
Palou 9q JSnu I JIpne JY) JO W} A} JB SWISAS Y} JO Snje)s Ay} pue Idyrenb SIy) ur pasieury syrpne ay) Ino s)9s d[qe) SUIMO[[0] Y],

V XIAN3ddV

:60/8007 — ATewiwing $sd.130.4J JIpny

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 151

¢ 93eq 01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

:([rey 10 ssed 19310 se pajtodar SI yoIyM) pPIISIA
s[ooyos Arewtld 9z 9y} Aq prepuel§ ay3 yam aouerjdwod 03 spie3ar yim jipne SISIA] InO JO SINSaI 9y N0 S}OS MO[dq d[qe) Y[,

'6007 10quuio}dag WOy 11e)s 0 PA[NPAYDS e SHISIA INO PUB §0)(T
aun( ul S[OOYDS SAY} 0} UOISsas Jurures} SISIA] ue papraoid ypny [euIu] YHm uonoun(uod ur ‘wred J, ddueur, uoneonpy LofuLieyq
‘SIS 93 M douer[dwod yoayd 0} S[00YdS ATeWIIJ JO 9,07 SUIUTRWAI Y} 0} SHSIA JAJOAUI [[IM ()]/600T SULNp SIom InQ

"pIepurl§ Ay} JOW Sey [00YdS Y} JBY} PAULIFUOD ‘6007 YIIBN
€ U0 panssI sem YoM aodar [eury InQ "dNUd) W0 PXIS ASSulLIRH - 007 12q0I0(0 UI [00YdS AIBPUOIIS dUO PIAIISIA OS[B M

"pIepuel§ 9y} $)93W [00Y0S Y} JBY) UWLILJUOD 0} Sh 9[qeud 0} pajuowo[duwl usaq dABY SUOIBPUSUILOIAT AY 9} JOYJOYM SSISSe
0} 1eoK o) ur 10je] JISIA dN-MO[[0] B S[NPAYDS [[IM IA\ ‘PIepue)s 3y} Sulfie] se passasse Udaq Sey [00Yds du() "piepuels ay) Suneauw
SB POSSIsSe Uddq dABY S[OOYIS G ‘OSay} JO "PAISIA sJooydS Arewilld 9 [[e 10J suodal [eury pansst 9ABY A “01/600 [IUN PILIJIP
U99q 9ABY S[OOYDS 3SAY} JO 1Y) JO Ipne YL (%) S[O0YIS 6T POPNOUI (/800 UI S[0OYOS AJewILIJ 0} SHSIA JO S[NPAYDS InQ
"010T YQIBIA IST€ Y £q SJOOYDS JO %(0T @
pue :600C YOIBIN ISTE oY) £q SOOYDS JO %01 e
“800T UOTBIN IST € o) £q S[OOYDS JO %01 e

:SMO[[O] S SIBIA 991U} A} JOAO PISSISSE 9q [[IM S[OOYDS sy} Jet) pauue[d SI I SIY) JAJIYIL O, ‘0[O YIIBN
<1 € £q pIepue)s ay) Jo spudwaIMbar ay) Joot A2y} 19YIoYM 0} Se PIsSasse dq 0} Ik S[ooYdg [erdadg pue Joruny ‘syueju] ‘Arewrtid [[V

"(SISINA)
S[OOUOS Ul pIiepuelS JUSWASBURIA [eIOURUL dU) JO sjudwaiunbar oy yam douerdwod Sumodyd PIAJOAUL 6()/8007 SuLnp jIom InQ

n%.:wﬁ:-:-m pue SjuduwIssaIssy SISIAAH

V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734



Page 152

¥ 98eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

Tred 60°'L0°20 600¢ Ateniqoq Jooyog Arewitid o[eSunySIN
ssed 60°90°20 8007 JoquId( [ooydS Arewlid snijeusd] 1S
ssed 60°S0'S1 8002 1290300 Arewiid [[TH J[[oMsnjy
ssed 60°S0°S0O 6007 Arenue( [0090S ATewILId UdJIL) PnoJIS
ssed 60'+0'¥C 800C 19qUI2AON Jooydg Arewitid )Y S Jned IS
ssed 60/¥0/¥C 800C 1oquiado(] Jooydg Arewrtid AQATeH "D WeRI[[IM
ssed 60/€0/81 800C 1oquiado( [0oyog At S[[IquMo
ssed 60/20/LT 800C 19qUI2AON [000g ATBWILIJ SUINOG[I A
ssed 60/20/SC 8007 JoquId( [00Y0S Arewild WL, Jojempeorq
ssed 60/20/ST 800C 19qUI2AON Jooyog Arewrtld 2)e3y3IH
ssed 60/T0/L1 800€ 1990100 Jooydg ATewtld AeSuliIeH (ON
ssed 60/20/L1 800C 19quI2AON [ooydg Arewilid DA S UepIy 1§
ssed 60/20/60 8002 1290300 [00Y0g spuesu] DY SUIEYD) UL 1239 1S
ssed 60/20/60 800C 19qUI2AON [00Yog ATRWILI] UMOPIOYIAL,
ssed 60/20/S0 800C 1quIa0o(] Jooyog Arewrid AJq[eA BT
ssed 60/10/€C 800C 19qUI2AON A1asInN Sled SPuB[poO
ssed 60/10/0C 8002 1290300 Jooyog [e192dg (]SO
ssed 60/10/0T 800¢ AInf Jooyog ATewtid suinogsdue)
ssed 80/60/9C 800¢ AIng [00ydg Joruny juowjog
ssed 80/60/ST 800¢ AIng JOOYOS JuBIU] JUOW]Og
ssed 80°60'9C 800C AIng [00Yog [e102dg 9[1AN dYdUE[g
ssed 80'60'9C 800¢ AInf Jooyog Jorunf Ae3uliiey yinog
ssed 80°60'9C 800 AIng [00yd§ ATeuLl] SISIS UADS
ssed 80°60'9C 800¢ Anf [00ydg ATEULI] dNUAAY SOPOUY
ssed 80°60'9C 800¢ dung 1004dg ATeWLJ UdAID) A,
ssed 806010 800C dung Jooydog Arewlid 9[eA Y],
(Ireq/ssed) y1odoy JUDWSSISSY [00YdS ATewiLIg
quIodnQ [eurq jo ajeq Jo e

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 153

G 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

6002 12quiapdag :aulpna(q pasiaay

6007 Toquaidag 107 pao[dwod 9q 03 paroadxo

SI Inq PaAe[op Uddq sey juduntedop 2InsIOT pue syodg
0OSd Y 10 WISAS Mmau ay) Jo operddn aremiyos oy
‘sydwoye pafrey 931y} Surmor|oy

WoJSAS oY} JuISsoooe  S[eNpIAIpUl JudAdxd 0] e
[1im opeiddn siy], -93ejueApy PI[[ed [9pPOW JOMAU B 0)
X210 ], SuIsn WOy SS01de JutAow 9 [[1M juduredap oy,

007 42qui223(J :2u]pva(
sjdwayie uo3oj pryeaut
aannadar Suimoloj ssoooe juaralrd

AJINJ O} JOPIO UI WIISAS ) J091109 20027 WIJSAS JUIWITRUBTA]
ssaadoag uy | 0} siorddns aremyos 03 jsonbay KeN /3uto3uQ 1 3INSIT XAAOL
90/500¢
'$s9001d 9y 91e)I[10B] 0} pAUSISOp UJ9q Sey WI0J-9
MU Y "1BOTJ [sed A13od II9Y) BIA 9SINqUIIAI 9YEW 0} J[qe
9q IoSUO0[ Ou [[IM SOJBI0IORIN(] UIYIM PIJBIO[ SISOIFJO
JUN029Y 1sa1dwy ‘600z [Hdy LZ WO 199130 Yim [joiked
oy y3noayy passadord s1 sasuadxs jo juowkeq -ooejd
ur o1e sosuadxd Jo Sumure[do uo dduepmn ‘6007 [Hdy
woJy [[oifed y3noayy passadoid oq 01 swred sasuadxa 60/800 ouljpvaq
1oy Tesodoad oy juswapdur 03 ooe[d ur ind a1am suonoy ‘syuowiled swired asuadxo
o3euewr 01 [[01keg 10 pado[aasp
paywuwduwy | Suraq st ssoooxd  Sunuo  uy 90°€0'1¢ I sasuadxy 7 [[01heq
S0/v00¢
ulpeaq
uonejudwdduy
epdn/sHuswmo)) SNJe)S/SSAIS0.1g [euIsLIQ Lrorig BIIY JIPNY

90/S00T PU® SO/$(0(T SUOEPUIWWOINY | A)IoLid Jo uoneyudwddu] - 310day ssaa301d pafreIdq

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 154

9 a3eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

uorje[al ur syulod JO [BAOWAI / PIBME Q) UL POA[OAUIS] =
uonedrdde ue Jo Surssaooid o) YIIM PIAJOAULS] =
$I901JJO UB 9I3UM SISED Sopn[oul

SIYL, “yim Furjeap aie A3y} Jey) 9sed AU Ul 15a19jul [euosiod
© 9ABY ASY) 1B} PISO[OSIP ABY OUM JJIS JO S[IBIAp Ay}
PIOO3I [[IM IISITAI Y], "V S,.J0I02II(] JUBISISSY oY) 1M
PaIBO0] 2q [[IM UYoIyM 600 Isndny §1 Aq aoe[d ur 1931391

B OARY] [[IM 9M UOHBPUIWWIOAI ST} Ypim A[dwod 03 10pIo uf
:60°L"€1 e se arepd)

"LINIS 03 Ua3B) oq [[TM "[[oM
Se wed I, Juswegeuew J01udS 9y} 03 sarjdde 11 se ‘suorjeorjdde
)s1301  uisnoy Isnl  ueyy suopeordwil  IOpIM  (IIm
ONSSI U ST SIY) 1R} PIIIUIPI SBM 1 PUB “DOUI)ISIXD UI J1)SIFAI
Aue JO areme dIe Jjejs OU Jey) PIWIIJUOD JARY JUSWOTBURIA

:60°1°6 18 se a1epdn

"PIeAIO) USYR) 9q [[IM SIY ], "SUOIBMIS
[ons SIOA0D [YOIYM IISITOI ISOIIUL JO UOIIRIB[OIP OU SI IS [,
*JOTUQS

oYy Aq M J[eap SI 9Sed JY) ‘mouy ASY) Jey) SUOIWOS
IO PUSLI B SOA[OAUI 3SBO B JBY} SSIJIJUOPI JOOLJO UB SIYM
*JOO1JJO IOTUAS B AQ I J[BIP SI ASBO ) ‘A[IUe] d)eIpawul
IOy} JO Joquowl B IO JjBIS JO Joquiawl B Aq opewr Juloq
s1 uoneorjdde ssaussojowioy 1o uoneordde Suisnoy e jey
PAYIIUSPT SI 31 SIYA\ "Uononpul I3y} jo ed se 3sa10jul Jo
10I[JU0D AUB QIB[09P 0} POU I} UO PISIAPE JB JJBIS MAU [[V
160" "1 UO JUSWOFeUR WO} PaAIadal 9jepdn

$saa80ag U

(600 Aonuvp 2ulppa(J pasinay)
L00T dunf

‘siseq Je[ngal € uo
parepdn pue 1901J0 paje3d[ap € Aq paulejurewn
oq pInoys I9)si3al 3soIdu] JO uoneIe[odd V

‘sjueorjdde nyssaoons jo [eaoidde pue
sjutod jo Surpreme ‘suonedrdde jo Surssasoid
o ur oaey Aewr A9y} 3sorour  [euosidd
Aue 91B[O9p A[[EWLIO] P[NOYS JJeIS JUBAQ[AI [[V

suonedddy 1935139y Suisnoy jo Sunuiog

LINHANOUIANT NVEAN

SNJe)S/SSAIG0.1 J

_ ulpedq uoneywduwR[duw] [euIsLI) _ JNTRTA R | _

UOI)EPUIWW0INY _ JEN|

L0/9007 SUOBPUIWWO0INY ¢-] Ao Jo uoneyuduwddu] - 3.10day ssd.a3oag pafreldq

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 155

L 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

‘syuowt
Jo 9[dnoo IXoU oY) Ul JOUSWWOD [[IM  IOSBUBIASTIOM
osymn 03 300foxd wopejuowd[dwir Yy TOUNO)) Ay Aq
parddns Hq1T ay3 Jo uoisioa pajepdn oyj Suisn oq [[1M Yons
Se pue NMd(] UO SHIOoM WISAS [ JOUL “IOSBUBIASIIOAN
‘wosAks I 9erodioo umo 1Yy Aq pooerdar 9oq
[ wdsAs s1y) se asuke Sunepdn o jou [[im asudiojuyg

60 %1 2repdn

"10e1u09 A33urieyH oy} uo pajuswaldwr oq [[Im DHJTT pue
JoFeuB SYIOA\ UOUM JJEp B WIIJUOO 0} 304 are osudigjuyg
‘spremId)je 9[qissod se uoos se J0

payuowordur st 10FeUBIA] SYIOA USYM DJTT Y} YA JUI] 0}
IoFeur SYI0AN JOJ JUSWAIZE 908 [[IM [IOUNO)) dY L, 60 Uel
/ 80 99 ur uaddey [[1m 1o8euRiA SI0A\ Sulsn 03 aueyd dY)
jey) Sunewnso Apuannd st asudioyuyg sypodar doueunrojrod
Jo uononpoid oy} ur 3sisse 0} HJTT oy Suisn Joj [enusjod
oy} 03 predar im asudiojuyg yym page3ua sey [10uno)) Y[

8007 19qUIDAON] 18 1epdn jusuraSeur]y
drqedrjdde aa3uog oN

L00T ¥sn3ny

‘astidiagusy
Aq 1240 uaYD) U22q 24ADY PL0IIY AdSULIDE]

:2JON JIpNY [puL2IU]

‘sy10dax
ooueutojrod jJo uononpoid oyl Ym  )SISSE
0] pI0d0y ASSuLIBH 18 WISAS JSLIABRIA U}
uo popeojdn 2q p[noys UOIBWIOUl P[OYISNOH,

JUIUWIISBURIA] ISBAN

600 ISnSny’ pI:oujpva( pastaay

(aseo ' ur 3s210)ul [RUOSIOd AUB ISO[OSIP [[IM JJeIS

16y} uo1})0adXo U SI 919U} PUB SAIISNBYXS JOU SI ISI[ SIY])
ooue)sisse 10} suondQ pue 0IAPY

0} Sunjuasaid s1 oym juedrjdde ue YJIm POA[OAULS] w
1Sd / LSV ue se [rouno)) a3 03 K1xodoxd

© PO19JJO sey oym pIlo[pue] 9eALId € YIIM POA[OAUTS] =
UOIIEPOWTOd0E

juouewrdd / A1e10dUd) JO UOTIBOO[[R AU} YIIM POAJOAUL S =
SosB

ssausso[owoy Jo [eaoidde JuowISSISSe I} Ul POAJOAUL S| =
uonedrdde ue 03

SNJB)S/SSAIG0.1 J

ulpedq uoneywdwR[duw] [euIsLI)

JNTRTA R |

UO)EPUIWW0INY _ JEN|

V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 156

{ a3eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

oU) WIOJUI O} UdMELOpUN SeMm UOnE)NSuod jo aseyd [enur
ue pue yJomawely o) Surdo[aadp st dnoi3 Aouade nnu y
160'7'6 epdn

*so139181S 959y} Sunjul] S9jeI0dIOdUl YoIyM

‘UONR[SISO[ 9AJOAU] 0) AN, MOU JY) JO JUNOIOE e} 0)
juowrdo[aAap Ul ST Sromawel] judtegesuy Ayrunwo)) JSH
MU Y "9SIN0O U0 [[BIS SI A303ens oy} Jo juawdo[oAdp oy
:60'1°€C Aepdn

“Iopew Syl ut JSH 9yl
Jo sdnoiS-qns ay [[& JO SONIAIOE Y} UIdA0S [[IM AS9jenS
uoI}B)[NSU0)) pue suonedUNUIWO)) JSH Y.L, sioued sj1 pue
[ouno)) oy ssoroe suonoe pue sojdrounid Arejuswejdwod
yoddns M Syl C[IOUNOD) Ay} JOJ SUOHEIIUNWIWIO))
Jo peoH Aq po[ Sureq st sor3orens oyl jo judwdo[ordp
oYl 'dSH 9y3 pue [ouno) 9oy} J10j yoq padojaasp
Surtoq s1 A39jeng uoneynsSuUO) Pue SUOHBIIUNWWO)) V

ssaag0ag U

800T AeIN

“PasIIIN oq [[IM SSUIPUT} UOT)BI[NSUOD
MOy pue uoneynsuod 10j Ayiqisuodsar
‘uorye)Nsuod  JO  Spoyjowl  ‘pajnsuod  dq
[[IAM OUM OUIJSp PINOYS pue ‘SISP[OYINLIS pue
S[enpIAIpUI 9[qISUOdsaI [[e 0) PoIEITUNTIWIOD

oq pInoys so1391e1Ss uorye)Nsuo))
JuowadueIie
digsiouped  yoeo 103 A391BnIS  [[BISAO

oy umpm  pajerodioour pue padopadp 9q
pInoys A391ens UONB)NSUOD PAULJIp A[IB[O V

sjuduwdueLry diysioupied

I®ddd — SHALLADAXH AATHD

-91qeor dde 193U0] OU ST UOTIEPUSWOIAT

SIY) I0JOIAY ], "S1030eJIU0d AImny pasodord SuImorAdl uoym
DJTT PIm YUI] oY) 10J JOO[ [[Im [IoUno)) ay) Jety) paurerdxs
sem 1 J9eUBJA S0UBULIOJIOJ PUE JUSID S} PUB SIOINOSNY
[EIUSWIUONIAUY JO PBoH 9U} UM UOLEINSU0D U(Q) ‘WISAS
oy} 0} Spew 2q [[IM SIUSWPUSWE IdYMN) Ou Jey) A[OYI] SI
11 Pud Uk 0} 9s0[0 Juruod asLIdIANUY M JOBIIUOD Y} 0} an(J
60°L'€1 aepdn

SNJB)S/SSAIG0.1 J

ulpedq uoneywdwR[duw] [euIsLI)

JNTRTA R |

UO)EPUIWW0INY _ JEN|

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 157

6 33eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

e pue sndwed SuruIed] dAISN[OU] ULe] Jojempeolq -
s309fo1d 1ofewr 7 10y [eaoidde pue juswdo[oAdp Jouq
100foxd M padoord 01 UOAIS oq p[nom depurll °q
{8007 1oquiaoa( £q [eaoidde [1ouno) 103 panruqns
pue payelp 9q pnom Id Qwweidord JDd V B

Jo 1dooa1 uo ey gpO7 ISNSNy Ul PISIAPE dI0M PNy

‘spremuo ()1/600¢ 10J owwesdold eydes Arewrig 1oy uerd
K1A110p pasodoid s Ad3uLieH Jo sIseq 9y} poULIOf pIq SIYT,
"800 dun[ ur JSO Y} 0} papIwqns sem (ase)) ssourisng
owwel3old) prq oSuey) 10} A39ens Arewnd 9yJ,

:60°T°ST drepdn juowageuey

:p1q ay3 Jo [eaoxdde

$S31304J uf

K[oyerpawul 11e3s 0}
pa1sa33ns saduey) I

(aid
poonpar e se yons) sjoaford poje[ar
10J ssoo01d [eaoxdde ue Surdojordp
IOpISUOD  pINOYS  JUOWISBUBIA

SIoMOWeT{
juowdSeue]y 109[01g S,[10UN0) A
yIm oul ul ‘ooueur 9jerodio) pue
Josuodg 109f01g oy Aq Ppasuoyne
9q pmoys pue spaloid Aoy

[le 10 padojordp oq pinoys (did)
juowmodo(q uonenmu] 309foid vV

1

dwweagord eynde) Arewrad

HOIAYAS SH'TdOdd ONNOA ANV NTIA'TTHD

Jepd/syudwrmo)

SN)e)S/ssaI301g

auljpesd
uonejudwd[dury
[euI3LIO

Kuoug

UoNepUIWUWOINY

IR

80/L007 SUOEPUIWWI0INY €-] AJLIoLI] Jo uoneyudwd[du] - 3.10ddy ssd.130.ag pafreIdq

0107 14dy :aulppa( pasiaay

“JedA [eIOUBULY

oy Jo pud oyl Aq poydope pue pomaradl A[ewio} 9q 0)
pa10adxa st A39181§ UONIBINSUO)) YT, SIOMIWELJ SIY} Jopun
S[[e} ASo1eng uoneynsuo)) oyl Iomowel] Juowofe3ud
Amunwwod ayy padojoasp dnoi3 AousSe nmw dyJ

60°L €1 arepdn

'600¢ [HdY
Jo puo oy 1e diysouped d130)ens Adsuniey o) Aq padide
oq [[1M JI0MIWRIJ Y, YIOMOWERIJ JeIP AU} U0 SMIIA I}
oA13 sdnoi3 Ajrunwuiod pue S[ENPIAIPUL £QaIoym Aemispun
Apuoumd s1 uoneynsuod aseyd puooss Y yJomowely

SNJB)S/SSAIG0.1 J

ulpedq uoneywdwR[duw] [euIsLI)

JNTRTA R |

UOI)EPUIWILOINY

| 1Y

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




01 93eq 01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

Page 158

oy} 10} (QId QYL "SIOPIOYaeIS SnOLIBA Y} wolf sasuodsar
Sunreme st nq 939[dwod A[enaia st owwelrdold [ende)
Krewrd oy} 10 Id Y} ‘IO o[qisuodsar oy 1od sy

'60°'7'8 epdn)

*(,oseo ssaursng,/piq s A33uney 1oddns 01 pajsanbau
uoyeWIOJULl [eUORIPPE dY} Jo [eaoxdde JSOHO JO
1d10001 913, — QUOISIW Y} 03 393[qns st Yred [LoNLID)
6007 mdy — qid swweidord O Jo [eaoxddy -q

PU® 1600
JoIBN — (Id dwweidoxd gHd yeip oy uondpdwo) e

:a1e sauolso[rwu swwer3old pajoafoad juasard oy,

"s9seo ssaursng 109foxd oy jo uoneredaxd
pue saprys A[IqIsed) oyl yium pasooid o031 [eaordde
pue syouq 103foxd gOJ 2Anoadsar oy 01 [eaoxdde oae3
pieog owueidorg/rosuodg 100f01g oy ‘YOO IOQUISAON
ul piq S[ouno) Yl 0} Joeqpadj Yyl jo 1deoar uQp

‘JuswaIndoid 2
juowageuewt a3ueyd 1] 10 painbar st [e1op 210N °q
pue (AJISIOAIP pue 9910Y)) 10J PaIInbal sI [1ejop 910\ B

16007 YoIeIN 15T € Aq uerd A1oarjop surueigord oy; uniim
SUOIIIPUO)) IN ¢ O} 0UIIYPE JO 9OUSPIAD JO UOISSIWIQNS
oy} [un pauyop sem [eaoidde (aseo ssaursng) piq ayfJ,

"800C 1°9qUILAON
[mun asuodsal B QAI903I j0U PIP INq 8007 Joquioydeg

£q JDS woy ssuodsar e Funedonue orom [10UNOD YT

"800 I1oquIdAON Aq pa3o[dwiod aq pynom
SOSBd SssauIsng dY) JO JeIp & pue sAIpnis AN[IqIsed] O
pue {800z Ioquaidog Aq 109foxd uorsuedxa [00yoS

auljpesd
uonejuduR[duy
djepd/syudmwmio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euwISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWULOINY JEN |

V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 159

[T 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

'9A0(QeE 29§

6002 12quiardag :aunpnaq
9A0QE SIUSWILIOD 998 ISBI[J

pajudwdduwy Apaed

ooeld
Ul MOU WAISAS

ssoursng oy} ‘syooford ioqrewus 104

SIoMIWel ]
juowddeue]y  1090lord S, JrOUNO)
oyl ynm aur ur ‘owwerdord oy
Sumpum sjoofoxd enprarpur [[e 1o
pue oswei3oid 9y 10J padojordp
9q poys ase) sseuisng VY

6007 12quiapdag :aunpvap pasinay

‘(93pu19[0) ‘uorsuedxa

oNUOAY  Sopoyy ‘weq JIdrempeolqg) syoloxd  gDJ
oy} Jo yoea 10J (A12A110p Jo a3e)s ayp 1ad se) s 10 syoug
109[01g pue a3uey)) 10, A391enS Arewnid oy st swwerdord
-qns Jey} INOQe UONBIUSWNOOP JUALIND INO  ‘ssa00id
Suruorsstuuod 9y} 03 Jorid pope)s sem  oweI30I]
dDd ayp uaAlD) (Yim [eap om syoafoxd soueusjurew [jews
KI9A Q1) JO QwOS AIOA I0J 9q pnom siy o3 suondooxd)
pajeard 9q Aqensn m rd 109foxd orerdwdy [rouno)
piepuels & ‘pajeniul st owweidord-gqns e uryym 309foad
yoed se ‘uoy] -puads jo uonesnuoud pue saurowny A9y
‘suonoLnsal Jurpunj Aue ‘ounueidord-qns jey) Jo sawodIno
oy 3utulgop poleaId 9q [[IM JUSWNOOP FUIUOISSIWIIOD
yoys B ‘pauoIssuod  sI owweidold-qns mou  [oed
SV (snid Jende) qnox ‘¢ eseyq sanuo) s, uaIpiy) ‘d0d
ore oseyd uoneyuowddwr ur sownueidord-qns JUILIND)
Sdd umgynm sswwerdord-qns mou 0} Suido[aaop are am
yoeordde Suruorssiuwos ay) pue (Sdd) swwei3old [00yos
-01d pue AIeWILIg oY) UL SOWAYDS [[8 SULIDAIOP 0} yoroidde
oy sureldxa ey ‘(6007 doS Jo puo Aq poo[dwood)
uonuM  Suldq  ApuolInd ST JUOWINOOP MJOMOWRI) Y
60°L 1T 2repdn

"padoroAap aq [[Im ase)) ssauisng pue (J[d [enpIAIpul
ue ournweidoxd o) unpm s3odfoad rolewr 103 jey) pouueld
SI 3 "ose)) ssoursng oy opnjour s swtuerdord ajoym

djepd/syudmwmio))

SN)e)S/SSI1301g

aurped(q
uonejuwIduy
[euI3LIO

FNTRTI AR

UOIEPUIUIUIOINY

P

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 160

71 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

‘6007 UoIeIN Aq paseyoind aq 01 A[OYI[ SI WAISAS MU Y, uonejuawadur
[emoe "SIOST 9OTIAIDS
*KyTRUONOUNY SIY) S[qRUD 0) I-IOMAWET] | — 600¢ 1quualdag 0} papraord sI oreo oYM SISBO
ur Suijou APULIINO SI QIOY) Jey) POWLIOJUI QIOM I JUBAQ[QI U} [[B JOJ Jouuew A[owl) B
oseyoind woIsAS Ul Pastel 9q 0} SIJIOAUIL J0J $s001d

pawdwddwy Apaed | — 6007 YOIEN 7 | ® 2oed ur ind pmoys juowoSeuey b
‘sosodind uaniar xe) 10J 4au IO SS0I3
PONIPaID S 1SQIdUI JY)  IOYIAUM
payoads oq pmoys 3 ‘sased
[le U] "ploy Aoyy 1ey) spunjy Jo [oA9]
6007 12quiapdag :aujpnaq pasiady oy} UO Paseq ‘SIUSIO [ENPIAIPUL
-ooueul 9je10dio)) yum 0} 3s919jul 9} SUPIPAId puR JOUUBW
SUOISSNOSIP A} WoJJ asuodsal e J0J Surrem e IJTAIOS oY ], oreudordde ue ur syunodoe asoy
:60°L €T 9repdn uo pautes jsaiqul [[e Suruonrodde
0} USAIS 2q PINOYS UONBIIPISUO))
600¢ 114dy :auljppa( pasiady
"SJUSI]O 9} JO J1JaUq
‘600 [H1dy Jo puo oy} I0J ‘sjunodde ueq JuLeoq
Aq u9ye) 9q [[1M UONOR JUBAJ[SI JBY) POWLILJUOD dABY OUM JSQI0)UI Ul SpuUnj JASn  9OIAISS
‘goueur, 91e10d10)) UM UOISSNOISIP UL [[1IS SI OIAIOS QYL diysooyuroddy  Surpjoy  19pIsuod
0} ooueur ojerodio) jo peoy
paywduduwy Apaeg 6007 YoIeN Z | o yym aster prnoys juswoSeueiy €
diys19A1999y 29 diysaajuroddy
SADIAYAS ALINNNINOD 2 AANLTAD ‘SLINAV
‘pieog weans oyl Aq
poai3e pue doueur] a1eiodo)) £q Jjo
paudis 2q os[e jshuwr ase)) ssauIsng
oy ‘ownueidord oy 03 odax
jeyy sjoofoxd 103 JBY) puR ‘WERI)
juowddeuewr 10 Josuodg  300loig
oy} Aq paaoxdde oq prnoys ase)
ulfpesq
uonejudwd[duy
djepd/syudmwmio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euwISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWULOINY JEN |
V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 1LIANV ATHILEVNO - 1IdNV TVYNJIILNI 31110713d




Page 161

€1 98eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

‘SISeq [ENPIAIPUI UB UO A[[ENUBW PAYI9YD 18 SWLIOJ }sonbal
juswAed [[e ey} 0s Ss19FeurN 1) YIm SuDIom AUaLInd
ol wed) oY) ‘I9AMOH pajuswojduir u9aq jou  sey
SIY} SIIOAN [B100S [3Im USMeMopuUn Sulaq SMIIASI 0} an(]

:60'70°60 21epd Juowageur|y

“IOU)INJ PISSNISIP 2q 0} SPadu [[1s ey} ssad01d Suro3uo
ue SI SIY} ‘IOAOMOH ‘Jeis Aq Suipod JvS 91eInddeul
JO 9nSSI Ay} QWIOIIIA0 P[NOYS SIY} :UOISIAI dduRUL] Y} £q
paurejurewr 9q [[Im Surpo) ‘paaoidde st o[npayds Ap[oom
e Aqaroym o[qe1 dn yoor, © oonpoid 03 st esodoid v -a1e)
[eI00S puB Ajunuwiwio)) Ioj J9ZeUR]A AU} YIM PISSNISIP
Suroq Apuoumd ore Siyl SUIAIYOR JO SPOYIOW  MIN

AJMuop1 0} IOpIO Ul SWLIO 1Sonbay
JuowAed 9Y} pue SIOSN  JIAIIS
Aunwwod 03 padieyd syuowied
UoOM}9q  STJUOW  0Mm]  AIdAD
Pa19[dwod 9q pInoyYs SUONBI[IOUOIAT
pepuswiuiodal  IyMny S ]
‘JuowAed Surssaooxd uoym (wio,g
jsonboy JuoWARd O UO PIjou
Se) WOISAS Yl U0 9POd 1S00 VS
1001100 9y} ndur 03 doueyrodwr oYy
JO papurnwai 2q OS[e P[NoYs SIAIYSe)
"suIo,] 1sonbay] juswke

[[e 9pOd 3S00 3091100 9y} JIAJUQ
0} douerodwil Ay} JO SIONIOA [BI00S

drqedrdde 1a3uof oN V/N 7| 01 juos oq PpInoys JOpuIURl Y S
‘uonejudwRduw WIuod 03 Inp 194 J0uU AUIPLIQ
60°'L €T 2repdn
'600¢ 1oquiaydag 10J pa[npayos [[1s
SI 90BJIIUI [[N SYL "I9S U3Qq Sey ABJA UL Joam PIy} oy}
Jo 2jep aa1] 03 & pue paseyornd usaq SeY WIISAS Mau oY [,
1601 60 9epd) JuswoSeue
“JUBAQ[QI QIOYM JoUUBW AW}
B Ul posiel JB SAOI0AUI ‘pojd[dod aJe SJUSWISSISSE UIYM
1B} 2INSud [[IM SIY] "9A1302[qo SIY) 2AdIYde 0} YV dVS
0] PAOURISJAI SSOID “‘s110dal UOTRI[IOUOIAT ASN [[IM IDIAIIS
oy ‘@oueul, 1-j1omawel,] Jo uonejuswadwr oy Jo WSI uf
:60°1°ST 9repdn) JuswoSeuey
"WR)SAS SUISIRYD oY) PUL [-IOMIWEIL,] UIM)Oq
00BJIOIUI ARy 0) FuDOO] 2q [[IM JUSWASBUBRIN 6007
oquoydog 01 pake[op 9q 0} oABY AW PAINSIJuod 2q 0}
00BJI1uI oY) Surmole ‘uoneuswd[dwl [BNIoR Y} ‘IOAIMOL]
sulpeaq
uonejudwd[duy
djepd/syudmwmio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euwISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWULOINY JEN |
V XIAN3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 162

1 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

6002 12quiapdag :aujppa(q pasiaay

"SIOIAIAS

[€39] woy 901APE pue Yoeqpady Junreme (s st Aorjod oy,
:60°L°€1 repdn

‘6002 ABIN Aq Pa3o[dwiod 2q PINOYS SIY} — IJIAPE [BS9]
Sunreme ore juowedop oyl YOIYM UL UOII0OS FUIUTEWIAI
ouo woly pede pasiaal ueaq sey Aorjod g4 UONDAS YL

:60'70°60 21epd Juowageury

"o1ep

MIIAQI ' opnjoul [[im dredwdy siyy -oje[dud) SIIIAIS
Aunuwwo) 2 aImn) ‘S}Npy PIzIpiepuels Yy} YIm
oul] ur payeIp-a1 3urdq st Aorjod g UONOIS POMAUAI Y
:60/10/S1 2yepd() JuswdSeuey

‘JJBIS JUBAJ[QI [[B 0} PAIBITUNWIIOD
pue pajep 9q P[nNOYS SIUSWNOOP
[[e Jey} POPUSWIIOIAI JAUYMNJ ST I]

*A1BSS200U JT ‘parepdn
pue ‘A[jenuue 3sed[ je pue ‘ApJensal
PoMaI1AdI 9q pnoys sainpadcoid pue

paywdudduwy Apaeg V/N ¢ | samorfod [[e 18y} PIPUSWIUIOIAI ST I| 9

‘sanpasoxd
JULIIND ISIAI 0} oueul djeiodio) Yum Iom 0) pasdu
[[IM 921AISS Y} [nyssaoons si [esodoad siyy J1 -o[qeordde
I03U0[ OuU SI UOIBPUSWILOAI SIY} OS 3SO[0 0} IJIAIS
s1o1yses aurpuoly oy} Joj [esodoid e sI 2191 ‘uonIppe UL
“WIed) JUSWISSASSY d0UeBUIL,{ 9y} Woij pajsanbar
Q1B SOPO0J 1091100 SB PAPUIWIAIL 9q 0} PISU JOFUO] OU SIIOM
[€100S *SIPO9 3509 Ay} 0} SuIrje[a1 SANSSI QIOW OU dIB IO,
:60°L €1 9repd) JuswoSeuey

"19S U99q SeY 6007 ABJAl JO QUI[PBAIP PISIAAL "SI01IQ SUIPOISIW AUk 091100 pue

ulfpesq
uonejudwd[duy
djepd/syudmwmio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euwISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWULOINY JEN |
V XIAN3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 163

GI 98eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

0 0 0 0 0 8 I L 0 8 ! L 0 | renueisqng Sovd1v
0 0 0 0 0 9 I S 0 9 ! S 0 | renueisqng oseqere PIIOM-]
0 0 0 0 0 01 C 8 0 01 z Q 0 | renueisqng uonedrddy [-1omower]
I 1 I 1 0 8 0 ¥ ¥ 11 I s S panwry JUAWIAIND01] S[BLISYRIA Sutued[)
0 0 0 0 0 9 € € 0 9 € € 0 | renueisqng JANN
01/600C
Jo zO ur pajordwoo
oq 0} dn mofjog-1 | 0 0 [4 0 [4 [4 0 0 14 [4 I [ | Tenueisqng Xe [, [founoy
0 0 0 0 0 L I S ! L ! S [ | Tenueisqong sontadoid jo [esodsiq
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [mAg jusursaAU] pun uorsuad
0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g 193po [BIOUAD) puE FUNUNOIIY
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 mA SJUSWASURIIY DUBINSUJ
$321n0s3y eaodio)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | renueisqng | 109fo1q Aeq enby jo uonejusworduy
0 0 0 0 0 S 0 ¥ I S 0 ¥ I [enuesqng SO0 JudWAO[dwd-01d
AO®d — SPANNIIXY PIY)
0 0 0 0 0 L4 I € 0 L4 I € 0 | [epuelsqng ampaosoid syurejduwo)
I®ddd — SPARNIIXY JPIYD)
0 0 1 ! 0 ! 0 ! 0 € 0 € 0 | renueisqng | Ainosg 29 uswaSeury uoneWIOIU]
IpPIM-[IdUNO))
Surpue)sinQ anp
suonepuowwoddy | 194 (ssardoad| ~duy
1 ALioLig JON ug JON | V/IN |IBJOL | € (4 I |[Be0L]| € (4 I
pajudwdduny L1033)8)
[9A]
SUOI)EPUIWW0INYY dUBINSSY vVIdVv LIdnV
IO NPV 60/8007 - 21qe L dn moqjoq
V XIAN3ddV 01/6002 LIOd3Y LIANVY ATHILAEVND - 1LIANV TVYNYIALNI 31110713d




Page 164

91 93eq 01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

9 14 14 8 I 601 | ST | 08 | €1 | SCI | 9T | 06 | 61 [ejoL

0 0 0 0 0 9 0 € € 9 0 13 ¢ | Ienuesqng aInjny ayy 10§ sjooydg ulp[ing

193[0a1q pue ddueInssy

‘QuSIA 399[0ag — $93810333.11(] [TV

1 0 1 1 0 6 0 8 I 11 0 6 4 [enuesqng SAJIAIRS ﬁOQQOHH Howﬁommmm

0 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 | renueisqng | esnof Amquisg — senuo) s, uaIp[y)

! ! ! 0 0 8 ! 9 ! 01 ! 9 € payry [eISUa) — 31Uy S UIPIIYD

we,

0 0 0 0 0 [4 0 ! ! (4 0 I [ | Tenuesqng Jojempeold — Salua) s UIP[IYD

SIIIAIAS

s.91doaq Suno X 29 wdap[y)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0]o]o 0 00O g A3a1e1g 2% SuIuOISSILIWO)

! 0 0 0 0 L ! 9 0 8 | 9 I ] renuesqng WNLIOJBUWRIT) 79 SOLI9)URT)

0 0 0 0 ! 8 ! L 0 6 1 8 0 | [ehuelsqng SWOH [eNUIPISAY ISNOH Py

0 0 0 0 0 8 ! L 0 8 ! L 0 | I[ehuelsqng SWOH ale7) [eNUaPISIY poomUBIY

SIIIAIIS

Aunwuwo)) 2 31NN ‘sympy

I (4 0 I 0 I 0]o] o € 0 | ¢ | 1 [ renuesqng (595830014 1010B1U0D)) SARMYSIH

JUIWUOITAUY URqI)
uerd y1pne 01/600C

ayp jo 1ed se
dn pamor[oy oq [[im
SUOI}BPUSIIOIAT
S/09YL 0 0 [4 0 0 0 0 0 (4 0 [4 0 V/N A194009y 193sBSI(J BIIALD
durpue)sinQ anp
suonepuowwoddy | 194 [ssardoag| ~duy
1 Auorig JON uj JON | VIN |I®BoL | € [4 I |®oL]| € [4 !
pajudwdduny L1033)18)
[9AT
SUOI)EPUIWW0INYY dURBINSSY vVIIV LIdNV
V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 1LIANV ATHILEVNO - 1IdNV TVYNJIILNI 31110713d




Page 165

L1 93ed

V XIAN3ddV

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

SUOIEPUSWWOIAI JO Uonejuawa[dull pajIe)s dALY SI1901J0 — pajuduwddur Ap.aed

"UQye) U229 JOU SBY UONIR JANBUI[E ‘PISSAIPPE U9 JOU SBY UOHBPUSWIIOII A} — pjudwddwr JoN

"SI Q) SS2IPPE 0] UAYE) UIq SBY UONIL JANBUIAE IO ‘WISAS 3} ul sagueyd 03 anp 9[qedijdde 103u0] ou SI UOPBPUIWWOII Y} — V/N
‘sosuodsar Jo o[dwes & POIJLIOA 9ARY 9A\ SUOIBPUAUWIIOIAI JO SSAIF0Id o) UOILOIII9I-F[9S YSNOI) PAILIIPUT SeY SIA01JJO0 — pIjudwdjduy

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734



Page 166

81 o3ed

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

“uoNBIUIWI[dWI UWLIJuod 01 dnp 304 10U UI[PBI

"$309Y0 a3 Sunajdwod 13213J0
oy AQq JJo PpoudIs pue poIUIWNIOP
ore 3unso) ojdwes oYy Jo S)nsal
AU} IBY) POPUSWILIOIAI IYMNJ ST I

"SaINPaooId pue Ad1j0d
uonodoId Bl S [I0UN0)) Ay} pue 10y
uonodjold eled oyl yum dduerdwod
1surede syun ssouisng jo ojdwes e 1oy
soonoexd [eoo[ Jo Funsoy orporad o
JoJ ssoooxd [ewIoj ® ySIqeIsd pInoys

60°L €1 repdn 60/C1/1¢€ 14 JuowoeuLwW JeY) POPUSWIWOIAI SI ] 7

“BJEp [EIJUSPLUOD JO

93e10)s pue jJuoWdSeULW Y} 0) pIedol

ynm  siopraold  9o1a10s  Aued  paoy

e 9oe[d u1 saanpasoid ayy Jo Aocenbaope

‘uoneuawadwl WILuod 0} anp 394 Jou AuIpPed oy} SSOSSe pue  IojluoOW  P[NOYS

60°L €T 2epdn 60/21/1€ z JuoWdSeURW JBY) PIPUSWIIOII ST I | |
A)INJIS PUB JUIWISBUR]A] UOJBRULIOJU]
HAIM TIDNNOD
uljpeaq
uonejudwdduy
dyepd/sjudwrio)) SN)e)S/S$I1301g [euISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWW0INY JEN|
60/8007 SUOIBPUIWWOINY € — [ AJLIOLLJ surpue)sing) - 310day $S9130.4J pafreIdq
V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 1LIANV ATHILEVNO - 1IdNV TVYNJIILNI 31110713d




Page 167

61 93ed

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

6002 12quiaydag :aupnap pasiady

‘pojuswardur AJ[ng usaq

10U SBY UOIIBPUAUWILIOdAI JY) pue Iom FuroSuo SI siy} jey
PaynUAPI sem 31 uoIssndsip uodn 6007 YoIRIN PIET AU UO
sonssI 393pnq SSNOSIp 03 P[OY Sem FUNOW SIOP[OYNLIS A3 V
60°L €1 :9repd) juowadeurjy

60/L/T¢E

3unsoo paseq-013z orenrdoxdde
ue opnpour prhoys pue (sioSeury
BOIY QU) puB SIOIAIRS  Surued[)
JO 193euUBA U} JUSWOTRURIA SONIIOR,]
JO peoH o)) SIOp[OYaeIs Aoy o) YIm
uoneynsuod ur pajd[dwod aq pnoys
Sumos 108pnq TenIur oy ‘uonIppe Uuj

"SPdU JUALIND
S ,9JTAIOS AU} JO JAIII[JAI PUB ONSI[RAT
SI 39S 193pnq Y} Jet} INSUD 0) PISIAAIL
A1orendordde pue pomaraar oq prnoys
ssooo1d 3umas-103pnq S, 901AIS YT,

1

S[RLId)BIA] SuIuBd[)

‘uerd yipne 01/6002
oy jo ired se dn

PaMOTJ0F 3q [[IM STYT,

60/v/1¢

“Jouuew Ao € ur

I03po] [e10UA3 oY) UO SIUNOIOB JOALIOD
AU} 01 PIILOO[[BAI 3q P[NOYS JUNOIIE
osuadsns oy} U0 SWAN  PAYNUIPI
Jey)  POPUSWIWIOOAI  JOUMny ST J|
"108BURIA 90URUL] UOTBXE |,

[800] pue Syjoudqg Yy} Aq palojiuou
9q pInoys °‘sdouefeq JIop[o Jenonted
ur ‘qunoooe osuddsns oy}  SuLedd
uo ssaidoid jey) pPopuUSWIIOIAI SI I|

‘uerd ypne (01/600¢
Ay Jo jred se dn

PaMO[[0] 3q [IIA SIY],

60/70/1¢

‘sIseq
Apuowr & uwo Ppojordwod 9q Pprnoys
(dVS pue SNIAVY SuIpnjour) suwo)sAs
oo e s (ATIOMI) wshs
Xe] [IOUNO) Y} JO UONRI[IOUOIAI
oyl JeY)  POpUSWIWIOIAI ST ]

1

Xg [, [Iouno))

STOUNOSHY HLVIOJLIOD

jepd)/syudmiuio))

SN)e)S/SSI1301g

aurpedq
uonejudwRduy
[euI3LIQ

FNTRTI AR

UONBPUIWIIOINY

P

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 168

07 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

‘uerd y1pne 01/600C
oy jo ued se dn

"PooUdUIIOD Sey uorssaigord
oY) Io)Je IO 210Joq IS 9T ‘AoSuLieH
18 WJSAS U} Sk d1e)S dWes Ay} J8 uUdye)
oIe pue IS Y Y} 1B WIISAS PAIIA0IAI
oy woy poonpoxd are  spodar
JUWIdSBURW JRU} 9INSUD PINOYS 159} AY)
10} Suruue[d "sown JUIIP I8 1Ie)s 0)
P1e30139s 9q 01 uoIssaigord pojewoine
oy pue ssoooxd dn oeq oy 0} USAIS
9Q P[NOYS UOIRIIPISUOD “)SA) AIDA0IAI

PIMO[[0J 39 [[IM ST, 60/9/1¢ [4 o)sesip jxou oy Fumuuerd  uoym !
AI9A03Y J13)SeSI(] BIIAL)

‘paurejurewt

A[oyenbope  oq  pmoys  papraoad

$95In09 SurureI) Jo SpIodal ‘UonIppe uf

6007 12quizpdas :autjpva(J pasiady ‘popraoid st Ajiqrsuodsar

"JedK urwod oy pue odesn uo saulEpms ojep-03-dn

IOAO opew 9q 03 [[1s a1k sajepdn pue parjddns j00ys Suuren 1B} 2INSUS 0 JJBIS JO SIOQUISW JUBAS[QI

oweS "9Jep 9A0OQe O} Je Se pajudwo[dwl jou sem SIYL 0] papraoid st ururer) 19YsaaI Ie[N3oI
:60°L°€1 arepdn 60/€/1€ € /[ENUUE JBY) 9INSUS P[NOYS 9OIAISS Y, €

"Pa1e31)SOAUI SAJUBLIBA AUB PUB SIS

Ieruuis AQq Yo03s Jo oesn 9y} Jojruoun

A[oyeIndoe 01 pasn 9q PINoys SIYL

‘s1o1pddng

6007 12quiapdag :autjpnaq pasiaay oy Aq sIseq Je[n3al € Uo Juas 9q pP[noys

pajuswarduwr AJ[nJ u9aq sey [0HU0d yorgm ‘3ooyspeards agesn [eorwayd o)

SIY} JOUIOUM QUIULIDIOP jou pnod om 1drddns oy woxy Suisn so)Is JUQIAYIP A} Ssoide aFesn

o[qe[reAt opew 3uloq jou uoreudWNoop painbar oy 03 oang 3o03s Jo uostredwod & 939[dwod pnoys
60'L'€1 Aepdn 60/¥/1¢ [4 SOIAIRS 9y} Jey) PIpusWlodar St i 4

*9S1019Xd

sulpeaq
uonejudwdduy
epd)/syudmiuio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWO0INY JEN |
V XIAN3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 169

[Z 93eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

"udye) uonde
Surpiegor juowoSeurwW WOL OBQPISJ Funpreme SI SIYL

'60°L €1 depdn

60/9/1¢

“3urpueisino [[us
I UOIyM SYIOM dU) AJ1JOdI 0} udYe)
SI UONOB QAIJOALIOd Jey} PUB ‘WIISAS
wiyuo) oy} woy syrom 939[dwoour
10] s3of 1o oonpoxd  pnoys
Q0IAIDS AU} JBY) POPUIWIOIAI SI I

‘uaYe)
uonoe FuIpse3al JUSWSeURW WO Jorqpady Sulreme SI SIY [,
'60°L"€1 epdn

60/¢/1¢

‘siseq
AJown) ® U0 USYELIOpUN U SBY UOIOL
oreridordde jeyy Ajuoa 03 suonoadsur
Jo ordwres & yoayd prnoys juswoFeuew
jey) pue  ‘usyeupopun - suonodddsul
0} UOIjR[dI UI UAYE) suonde uo syodar
9JeIouad 0} posn 9q PINOYS WISAS
WIJUuo) oY) JBY) PIPUSWIWIOIAI SI I

1

(53583201 1030€13U0))) SABMYSIH

LINHIANOYIANT NVEAN

epd)/syudwrmo)

sN)e)S/ssa30.1g

aurppeaq
uonejudwRduy
[euI3LIQ

Kuoud

uonepuUaWWoINY

IR

“uerd yipne (01/600¢
oy jo jmed se dn

PaMO[[0] 3q [JIA SIY],

60/L/1¢

"3uns9) JUAWNI0P

0] 159) AIOAODAI QU} UO Pasn dq .
pue {s3[nsax pajoadxd

pue posn oq 01 ejep 2y} Juirejop
o[npayds 1s9) & aredard 03 pasn oq .
‘wISAS Juswogeury Sunyred oy

Kq passao01d suonoesuer) A3 AJIUOPI «
:PINOYS YITYM ‘S1S9) AIOA0IY

Iosesyq omny dyy 10y sueld 3s9)
porrelop oxedord prnoys juowoSeue|y

epd)/syudmiuio))

SN)e)S/SSI1301g

aurpedq
uonejudwRduy
[euI3LIQ

FNTRTI AR

UONBPUSWIIOINY

P

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 170

77 93eg 01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|
[1ouno)) oy}
Aq uonualar 10y ‘Apdwoid juswnoop
oy} Sswmar pue SuJIS  JOJOBIIUOD
Ol 1BY) QINSUS P[NOYS IJIAIOS Y} pue
9[lJ UO PaUILIdI 9q PINOYS IOJOBIIUOD
o) 0} UOIJeLIBA JOBIUOD 9} JO 010U
3u1AI3 Juowmoop paudis ayp Jo Adoo v
*J0JOBIUOD Y} AQ pue IOIJO [I0UNO))
6007 19quialdog :ouIpeap PasIAdy jueAd[al oY) £q [eaordde paudis e Aq
poyoddns oq prnoys suoneLeA 10eU0d
‘pap1aoid 9q 10U p[nod [[e 18y} POPUSWIWIOIAI JIOYMUNJ SI I|
10811000 Y} JO Ad0D pauSIs B I0AMOH "payrwur (SUOISPIRIA) *J0JOBIIUOD OB
Ko[moI1D uyof JO J[BYSq UO SUOIELIBA 1oeNU0d 9y} Jo Adoo pue [1ouno) 9y} uoomiaq doe(d ur si
Pousis & popraoid 991AIOS [B39] UIYIIM IOAMET SIOBIIUOD) YL JUOWddISEe POuSIS B JeY) 2INSUd Pnoys
60'L'€1 Aepdn 80/Cl/1¢ ! IOIAIRS 9y} Jey) PIpUuSWOodal St I £
ulfpeaq
uonejudwdduy
epd)/syudmiuio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWO0INY JEN |
V XIAN3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 1LIANV ATHILEVNO - 1IdNV TVYNJIILNI 31110713d




Page 171

€7 98eq

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

6002 12qua1dag :outjpna(q pasiaay

"SSOUYOIS

0} 9Np AUOP J0U AIIM (0()7 JOqUII( PUL JIqUIDAON SYIUOIN

60°L° €1 arepdn

80/01/1¢

"JOMIIADL
pue 1aredoxd oyr yoq £q parep
pue poudis pue ‘100yJo juopuddopur
ue Aq payodYd 3q P[NOYS UONRI[IOUOIAT
o} JBY) POPUSWILIOIDI IYMNJ ST I

(o1 SurotoAut V)
‘uorsnpouod jdwoid & 03 dn pamoyoy
pue poje3NsoAUl ‘PAIIUAPI Aq PINOYS
owooUl  dNPIGAO  pue  sdrouedolosip
Aue jey) pue ‘Onp SWOOUI 0} PIAIOIAI
QWOOUI [[B JO UOIRI[IOU0AI A[yjuow
© Oyeuopun 0} PIpuUIdI dq P[noys
JJBIS JUBAQ[AI JBY) PIPUSWWOAI SI I|

1

WINLIO)BUWIAI)) PUR SILIIJOWI))

SADIAYAS ALINONAWINOD ANV TANLTND ‘L'1INAV

epd)/syudmiuio))

SN)e)S/SSI1301g

aurpeaq
uonejudwRduy
[euI3LIQ

FNTRTI AR

UONBPUSWIIOINY

P

V XIAN3ddV

01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734




Page 172

7 93eq 01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

6007 12quiapdag :autjpna(q pasiaay "JOBIUOD U} UI JNO 39S SpIepuels Iy}
jsurede douewniofrdd IO} SUIAJUPL
"SI0JBOIPU] 9OUBULIONIJ A9 Jo Sunzodar ou APuoring st SSunoN syrodax Apxoiurenb opiaoxd 03 suonesiqo
o190y} Inq ‘popraoid arom soynutwu Sunoowr A[193renb jsey oy SI030BIIUOD) [eNI0BUOD JI9Y) JO PIPUIWAI 9q P[NOYS

60°L°€T 2repdn —80/11/€ I SI0J0BIUOD Y} POPUSWIWOIAI SI ] 1

SIIIAIIS Jaodsue.a ], 193udssed
‘sanred yjoq Jo suonesiqo
[ENI0BUOD PUB ‘SUOHIPUOD PUB SULIO)
6007 12quIaIa(J :2UlPVI( PISINY O} [[€ SHUSWNOOP YOIYM ‘Sanua)) NUuI']
‘syuowt o) pue SanUL)) S,UAIP[IYD Y} UIMIdq
M3y ' ur ooe[d ur oq m pue ssor3oxd ur Apuornd SI SIYT ooeld wr nd oq pnoys JuowWdAITe

:60'L'€1 Aepdn 80/Cl/1¢ I PAUSIS [BULIOJ B Jey) POPUSWWONI ST | ¢
"PoIO3LJR SI SIY} 2Insud 03 paydope oq
[Ix owerdord Jururer) € pue pouren
ANy 21e JJeis jey) 2Insud [[IM SS1ud))
6007 12quiapdag :autjpna(q pasiaay "SOIUQ0 AU} 0} J[qE[IEAB OpBW 9q [[IM
*SOIURY Y} 0} J[qE[IBAR dpBW 2q [[IM Ay} ‘paroidde douo Koy ‘panroxdde oouo pue padofaasp 9q
pue yeip ur pado[oAdp uddq oAey sampadoid pue sororjod [ sarmnpaocoird pue sarorjod oxodsoq
ojodsaq 9y, -1ouLIRH UO 9qe[reAt sarorjod [1ouno) AdSurreyq oyl jPuLey U0 9[qe[reae sarorod
OII0USS QY) QI pasn Apuonmd samnpadoid pue sa1010d [ouno) AdSuueH OlQUSAS oY) dJe
60°L €1 9repdn 80/C1/1€ 1 pasn Apuarmd sompaocoxd pue sa1o10d | |
[BIIUIN) - A1JUI)) S, WAIP[IYD
SADIAYAS SH'TdOdd ONNOA ANV NHIA'TIHO
ulpeaq
uonejudwdduy
epd)/syudmiuio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWWO0INY JEN |
V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 1LIANV ATHILEVNO - 1IdNV TVYNJIILNI 31110713d




Page 173

GZ 98¢

01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

'600Z 12quiaydas :outjpva(q pasiady

‘syjuouw
XIS urm pajejdwod sampasoid oy daey o3 sueyd pue
90IAIOS AU} JO JuoWSeURW 0) UONHIPPE Ul OIAIRS Jodsuer],
oy Aq pojerado sompooord [e Sunepdn pue SUIMOIAAIL
Jo ssao0xd oyy ur Apuamund S pue gOO7 Aleniqdj woij
se pajutodde uooq sey 1o3eury suonerddO Modsuel] mau y

‘siseq o1porrad
e uo ‘grerrdoxdde axoym ‘asoy) Sunepdn
pue FuImoIAdI Furpnpour ‘sarnpodord
oy} Sururejurews Joj JOOIJJO POJRUILLIOU
' 0] paudisse oq pinoys Ajqiqisuodsar
Jey)  POpUSWIWIODdI  IoyMUny ST )]

"90UQIQJAI JOJ JJeIS JUBAJ[I [[B
0] 9[qe[IeAR dpewt pue [9A9] djeridordde
oy 18 poroidde ‘pajep ‘pojusmndop
oq pInoys sojerado 9OIAIOS
podsuer] 103uossed oy yomgm Aq

:60°L €T 91epdn Q0 AON 7 sainpaooxd aY) 1By} PIPUSUIWOIAI ST ] 7
uljpeaq
uonejudwdduy
epd)/syudmiuio)) SN)e)S/SSI1301g [euISLIO FNTRTI AR UOI)EPUIWO0INY JEN |
V XIAN3ddV 01/6002 LYOdIY 1IANV ATHILIVNO - 1IdNV TVNY3LNI 31110173d




Page 174

97 93ed 01/600T 1oday T 101N — Npny [euIdiu] Ao3uLe Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

ULE VHDT UOpUuoT 1001§ MON S[HIT | “OSNOH [[IH :991J0 PaIasISoy 79[ S8SH Joquunu pasajsiSar yim sojepy pue pue[Sug ul pord)siSol s1 pojur] Ipny [eUIU] J030dS d1[qnd SYono, 2 N0
"PAAISSAI SIYSLI [V "PIIWIT NIPNY [EUISIU] J0JOIS dI[qNd dYONO], P Mo 60070

‘UIID A NSJBUWIYO], SYONOT dPIO[R( oY) £q J0U
pue SIJBI[IJJE IO SILIRIPISQNS IIY) JO SULIT JOQUIAW Y} £q PIPIA0Id oIe SIOTAIOS "SOWEU PJE[AI IO IO ‘ NSJeWO], dYONO], dPI0[(,, ‘ ANI0[2(,, Souwreu oy} 1opun Junerddo Anyuo 2397 Juopuadopur
pue 2Je1edas € ST SULITJ JOqUISW Y} JO YOBH "SUOISSIUIO 1O S}OB S IOUI0 [oBd 10§ A[Iqel] AU. Sey SULI) JOqUIoul J1 JO AUB JOU NSJBWYO ], 9Yono ], dRI0[( JOYIU ‘Yons se ‘pue ‘(UONBIJOSSE) UIIIA SSIMS
® SI NSJBWO], 9YONO], dPIO[R( ‘NSIBUIO], AYONOJ, PO JO WHIJ IOqUIdW WOPSUry pajIun) oY) SI Yorym ‘T 9NI0[e( JO ATRIpIsqns & ST pajIuur] JIpNyY [eUIoju] 10)0dS d1[qnd 9yonoJ, 29 onIofeq

P PNy [RUIAIU] 10103 JI[qNJ SYONO T, 29 IO[I(] O) SOUIIJAI A1 9)II0[9(] O} SIOUAISJAI JUSWNIOP SIY) U]
600T AInp
uopuo

POIIWIT JIPNY [UIIU] 10)23S d[qN YIN0 ], 2 INI0P(

‘preog
SpIepue}§ 90URINSSY pue JIpNy [euoneurdiu] ay) Aq pansst (000§ AVSI) siuowddesur 9ourINSSY U0 pPIepue)S [BUOHBUINUT ) Yim d[qeredwos jou st j1odax
JIpNE [BUIOIUL JNO Ul POPIEME [OAJ] SOUBINSSE OUJ, 'WISAS [01JUOD [BUISIUI S[BI[OI B JO 90UBUIUIBW J} JoJ jueriodul sI judwoSeuetwl £q SUOEPUIUIION]
mo jo uoneyuowo[dwr A[ow} pue 9ANROYYH  SHUSWINOOP ISAY} JO ANONUIYINE OU) INSUS 0) Pue MIom jipne Ino jo sasodind oy} 10 suorjoesuen
pue Sp10oaI SUNUNOIOE IIOY} O} SSAJ0B [N sn apraoid 0} juswoSeuew! U0 A[9I dm [ONS SB PuUB 90UBOYIUSIS pue SII 1s9)eaId Jo Juroq se juowddeurwd
AQq polIIULPI Sk Sedle UO SNO0J 0} PAUTISIP It soImpadold Jipne [eUIoju] "pneyj SAISn[[0d jsurede Jooid 9q jou Aewl pue SOUBINSSE AN[OSQE JOU PUB J[BUOSBAI
op1aoid AJuo ued [0IUOO [BUISIUI JO SWIIISAS PUNOS UAAY ‘sonue[n3aur 1o pney Jo Ajjiqissod ayj 03 spiedar oaey o0} pamnbar are “Iom 19y} SUnonpuod
ul ‘s103Ipny  “AJIe[n3oLIl JO PNeI JO SOJUBISWNOID [[B AJ)uopl 0} uodn poldl JOu ‘S[ONUOD [RUIAUI Ul SISSIAUNeom pue syiduans [[e AJruapr o) uodn
PaI[a1 3q J0U P[NOYS JIpne [euIdjul Aq pawiojrod YIom pue JUIWIFRUBW UM SISAT SINLIB[NSILIT JAYI0 PUB PNelj JO UONOJOp Pue UonuAdId oy) pue S[01U0d
[euIdiul JO wolsAs punos e 10} Ayjrqisuodsar ayp jeyy asiseydwo oAy “soonoead juswoFeuew punos jo uonedrdde oy 1oy sonijiqisuodsal s juswddeuein
J0J 9)MIsqns & Se UYE} 9q JOU P[NOYS PuUB JOU SI oM JIPNe [eUIUl Jo douewojrad oyl -payuswd(dwn a1e Aoy) 210joq joeduwil [[nJ 1oy} 10} nok Aq
Passasse 2q P[Noys sJudWAA0IdWI JOJ SUOIBEPUIWIWIOIY "OPBW g JYIIW Jey) SJUSWA0IduI [[B IO JSIXS Jey) SASSAULIM ) [[B JO JUWRIS QAISUIIdwoo
® AJ11BSSO00U JOU oIk PUBR YIOM }IpnNe [BUIAUI INO JO ISINOO Iy} Julmp UOHRUINE INO O} dWEDd YoM 9soy) AJuo are 110dal SIy) ur pasrel siopewl oy L

“MO0[9q N0 33S suoneIIWI] 3y} Jo siseq ayj uo paredard st yorgm jaodar sty 103 Ajrqrsuodsar ae) o
AMqisuodsay Jo judwdje)s

V XION3ddV 01/6002 LYOd3Y 11ANV ATH3LAEVND - 11dNV TVNY3ILNI 31110734



Page 175

Z jo | ebed

(4/9) Jenddns
UHM JUSWIBA[OAUI

Je|nba. JuUsawWuUOIIAUg
0 0 ¥ jo uonebe|y ueqin
[eaddy v

(4/g) seoinosay $92IN0SaYy
passiwsI|g L L L JO asnsi 9jelodion

(d4/9) oIs yo

1S|Iym ssauisnq

Buiuuni safojdwo

Buipuad L L | Jey uoneba)ly

pabpoT 13

|eaddy 1y (4/g) swiep
asuadxa Je| 92IAI9S
passiwsiq 9aAojdwg nBa.i|/sSuoI}oIAUO0D s,9|doad
Buliojow asoosip Buno)
Buipuad Ateujidiosig L L | 0} ain|ie} pabajly '3 Uaip|iyo

uonebisaauj
Areuydiasiqg
0} Joalgns 60/90/0<
(umouy }1) SI192140 je uanolid | pajebiysaaul

(3) anjep | awo9InQ Areundiosiq JO "ON s9skd JOo 'ON | sased jo ‘oN | adA] Ayue|nbaul| aje.o0}23.iqg

60/800¢C INO¥d 4/d ® 0L/€0/L€ - 60/¥0/L0 AILVOILSIANI STILIIVINOIHAI — LIANV ASNOH NI

9 XIAN3ddV




Page 176

Z Jo g ebed

€ € L jejol
1diaoal
-uou Jo swieo
V/N V/N V/N 0 senbayo HgT oiyloads-uoN
uonebisaauj
Areuydiasiqg
0} Joalgns 60/90/0<
(umouy }1) SI192140 je uanolid | pajebiysaaul
(3) anjep | awo9InQ Areundiosiq JO "ON s9skd JOo 'ON | sased jo ‘oN | adA] Ayue|nbaul| aje.o0}23.iqg

9 XIAN3ddV

60/800¢C INO¥d 4/d ® 0L/€0/L€ - 60/¥0/L0 AILVOILSIANI STILIIVINOIHAI — LIANV ASNOH NI




Page 177

Haringey Council — Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis April 2009 to June 2009

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 April 2009 — 30 June 2009.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who

¢ hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts
e are considered as Supernumerary (employees that have been on a Temporary Contract for more
than 52 weeks)

Note that this data excludes:

e Casual or Sessional Workers
e Schools
e Agency Workers

Legend
Adults, Culture & Community Services AS
The Children & Young People’s Service C
Corporate Resources CR
People & Organisational Development PO
Policy, Performance, Partnership & Comms PP
Urban Environment UE
Haringey Council HGY

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour

Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public
Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council

(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)

1 of 6



Page 178

Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure based on data retrieved from SAP.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate

Directorate Cases Open Cases Closed No of cases No of employees
AS 6 6 12 11

C 16 10 26 23

CR 3 0 3 3

PO 1 0 1 1

PP 1 0 1 1

UE 13 6 19 19

HGY 40 22 62 58

Please, note that the total number of cases is 62, but this only represents 58 employees.
The reason being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently.
For example, an employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

e Urban Environment has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at
2.79%

e 40 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period.

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

Stage Cases Open Cases Closed Total %
Invest. - not suspended 17 11 28 45
Invest. - suspended 15 11 26 42
ET 2 0 2 3

Appeal 6 0 6 10
Total 40 22 62 100

2of 6



Page 179

The following table identifies the outcomes of the 22 cases that were concluded.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

Appeal dismissed 0 0 0 0 0 0
Appeal upheld 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dismissal 0 4 0 0 4 18
No action 2 2 0 0 4 18
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0
Part upheld 0 0 0 0 0
Verbal warning 5 0 0 0 5 23
Written warning 4 0 0 0 4 18
Final writ warning 0 1 0 0 1 5
Resigned 0 1 0 0 1 5
Suspension lifted 0 1 0 0 1 5
Relegation/Demotion 0 1 0 0 1 5
Compromise Agreement 0 1 0 0 1 5
Total 11 11 0 0 22 100
o 23% of cases resulted in a Verbal Warning
e 18% of cases resulted in Dismissal
This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.
Reasons for Disciplinary Cases

Reason Cases Open Cases Closed Total %

Assault 0 0 0 0

Attendance 5 0 5 8

Behaviour 15 8 23 37

Fraud / Theft 1 2 3 5

Misuse of resources 2 1 3 5

Negligence 7 3 10 16

Other 10 8 18 29

Total 40 22 62 100

e The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 37%

3ofé



Page 180

This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Disciplinary Case employee representation
by Ethnicity and Gender

Female Male All
Ethnic Class Total % Total % Total
B&ME 16 43 21 57 37
White 8 38 13 62 21
Not Declared 0 0 0 0 0
Total 24 41 34 59 58

%
64
36

0
100

e 33% of the workforce is male, but the male representation of the disciplinary cases is significantly

higher at 59%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

Disciplinary Case employee representation by
Ethnicity and Grade Band

(T = Total no. in grade band, WF = % of total disciplined employees in Directorate)

PO8+

Dir Ethnic MANUAL SC1-SC5 SC6-SO2 PO1-PO3  PO4-PO7

Group T WF T WF T WF T WF T WF
B&ME O 00 4 364 2 182 1 91 0 00
AS White 0 00 3 273 0 00 1 91 0 00
Total 0 00 7 636 2 182 2 182 0 00
B&ME O 00 3 130 3 130 4 174 4 174
c White 0 00 O 00 2 87 2 87 2 87
Total 0 |00 | 3 (130 5 |217| 6 | 261 6 | 261
B&ME O 00 0 00 2 667 0 00 0 00
CR Whte O 00 0 00 O 00 0 00 0O 00
Total 0O 00 0 00 2 67 0 00 0 00
B&ME 0 00 0 00 1 9 0o 00 o0 00
PO White 0 00 O 00 0 00 0 00 0 00
Total 0 00 0o 00 1 " 0o 00 o 00
B&ME O 00 0 00 O 00 0 00 1 00
PP White @0 00 O 00 0 00 0 00 0 00
Total 0O 00 0 00 O 00 0 00 1 00
B&ME O 00 8 421 3 158 0 00 1 53
UE White 0 00 4 211 0 00 2 105 0 00
Total 0 00 12 632 3 158 2 105 1 53
B&ME O 00 15 259 11 190 5 86 6 103
HGY White @~ 0 00 7 121 2 34 5 86 2 34
Total 0 00 22 379 13 224 10 172 8 138

4 of 6

O W wWw o o o o —H

WF
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
13.0
13.0
0.0
33.3
33.3

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
5.3
5.3
0.0
8.6
8.6

TOTAL
T WF
7 63.6
4 36.4
11 100
14  60.9
9 39.1
23 100
2 66.7
1 33.3
3 100
1 100
0 0.0
1 100
1 100
0 0.0
1 100
12 63.2
7 36.8
19 100
37 | 63.8
21 36.2
58 100



Page 181
Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases

Case status Total
No. of cases heard 10
No. of cases not concluded 15
No. of cases not concluded - leaver 1
Total 26

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

The table below looks at the 26 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If the case has not concluded by the end of the period, the number of working days is calculated
from the start date of the current disciplinary stage to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and average days suspension for cases heard within that period.

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

Avg Total Avg
. 61-  121-  181- Total Total daysof @ Max. days of
Directorate 1-60 240+ cases
120 180 @ 240 cases days total Days cases
heard
cases heard
AS 4 2 2 0 0 8 514 64 151 4 100
C 1 7 1 0 0 9 757 84 124 5 88
CR 0 2 0 0 0 2 159 80 84 0 0
PO 0 0 1 0 0 1 176 176 176 0 0
PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UE 5 1 0 0 0 6 207 35 82 1 98
HGY 10 12 4 0 0 26 1813 70 176 10 94
Total cases

heard 2 6 2 0 0 10

On average, 70 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter.

50f6



Page 182

Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate

450
400 +
350 A
300 -
250
200 A
150 -
100

50 A

176| 176 176

AS C CR PO UE HGY

B Avg. days Max. days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter and highlights Haringey Council’s
average number of days per case.

No. of Cases and Average days taken per Case
by Quarter

200

160 1

120

Jul08 - Sep08 Oct08 - Dec08 Jan09 - Mar09 Apr09 - Jun09

Total Number of Cases B Average Days per Case

The average number of days taken per suspension case has been significantly consistent over the last
year, showing the benefit of the ongoing scrutiny and focus on management action.

6 of 6



Page 183 Agenda Iltem 14
o

_ﬁ_‘_M

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 30 July 2009

Report Title: Annual Governance Statement 2008/09 — Final Version

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To provide a final version of the statutory Annual Governance Statement, and
supporting evidence matrix relating to 2008/09 for information.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services. Part of this is completed by providing
assurance to managers and the Audit Committee on governance and control issues in
key risk areas as part of the annual audit plan and making recommendations for
improvement where appropriate.

2.2 Governance arrangements form a key element within the revised Use of Resources
assessment and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports
to both managers and the Audit Committee on the assurance provided on key risk
areas ensure that the requirements of the CAA assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Audit Committee notes the final version of the Annual Governance
Statement and supporting evidence matrix for 2008/09.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)
4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s draft AGS as part of
its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and provide information on its




Page 184

sources of assurance from across the Council, reports are provided on a regular
basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee throughout the financial
year, culminating in the production of the AGS.

4.2 A draft AGS was presented for review and approval at the Audit Committee meeting
of 2 June 2009. Comment and feedback from Members was incorporated into the
draft AGS and a final version is now presented to the Audit Committee for
information.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The production and publication of an AGS is a statutory requirement as part of the
2006 Accounts and Audit Regulations. The process to gather evidence and produce
the AGS is contained within internal audit's remit and the review and approval of the
draft AGS rests, at Member level, with the Audit Committee.

6.2 This report provides a final version of the AGS, following review by the Audit
Committee on 2 June 2009. Comment and feedback from Members has been
incorporated into the final AGS.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that no specific legal issues arise out of the contents.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The chief financial officer has no additional comments to add.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with governance arrangements and their implementation are
managed across all areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of
the community. Improvements in managing governance and controls will therefore
improve services the Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 185

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of the draft AGS. The Audit Committee provided
comments on the draft AGS in accordance with the agreed Audit Committee terms
of reference.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within
internal audit to support the production of the AGS is contained and managed within
the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget. Service departments manage risks
and governance arrangements as part of the routine work to achieve their business
plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices

13.1 Appendix 1 — Final Annual Governance Statement
Appendix 2 — AGS — matrix of supporting assurance and evidence

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1Since 2007/08, the Council has been required to produce an Annual Governance
Statement (AGS) for publication with the council's annual accounts. The AGS
comments on the Council's governance framework as a whole. Corporate governance
brings together an underlying set of legislative requirements, governance principles and
management processes.

15.2The preparation of an AGS is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit
(amendment) (England) Regulations 2006. These regulations require local authorities to
produce an annual statement, in accordance with ‘proper practice’.

15.3 A draft AGS was provided for review at the Audit Committee meeting on 2 June 2009.
Members provided feedback and comments which they wished to see incorporated into
the final version. Members also requested that the final version of the AGS was
presented to the next meeting of the Audit Committee.

16. Analysis

16.1 In order to comply with the statutory reporting deadlines, the AGS for 2008/09 had to
be approved with the Statement of Accounts at General Purposes Committee on 26

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 186

June 2008. The Leader and Chief Executive are required to sign the final version of the
AGS on or before 30 June 2009. This deadline was achieved.

16.2 The final version of the AGS and matrix of supporting evidence which are presented as
appendices to this report have been updated to reflect the comments and feedback
received at the Audit Committee meeting on 2 June 2009. All recommended changes
have been incorporated into the final document which was signed by the Leader and
Chief Executive.

16.3lt is acknowledged that the AGS is presented prior to completion of the external audit of
the statutory external audit of the accounts. It is anticipated that any significant internal
control issues which arise as a result of this, can be included in the AGS and re-
submitted for officer and member consideration and approval before the closure of the
statutory audit period on 30" September 2008.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Page 187
Appendix 1

Annual Governance Statement 2008/09
Scope of responsibility

Haringey is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently
and effectively. Haringey also has a duty under the Local Government Act
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in
which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this, Haringey is also responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management
of risk.

The authority has a framework of corporate governance in place which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework ‘Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government’. In 2008/09, Haringey Council
formally approved a local code of corporate governance which has been
published on the Council’s website.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and
culture and values, by which the authority is directed and controlled and its
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the
community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the
delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can provide a reasonable
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement
of Haringey’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Haringey for the year ended
31% March 2009 and up to the date of the approval of the annual report and
accounts.

The governance framework

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the authority’s
governance arrangements are:



Page 188



a)

Page 189
Appendix 1

Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and
intended outcomes for citizens and service users

Haringey has well established and documented aims and objectives in order
to improve the quality of life for people living and working within the borough
and ensure that high quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively.
The Council, together with its partners, has developed the Sustainable
Community Strategy 2007-2016 which sets out a joint vision and objectives.
The Sustainable Community Strategy was developed after extensive
consultation with residents and stakeholders through the ‘Have your say
Haringey — shape the future’ campaign. The Community Strategy is published
and is also available on the council’s website and a summary of the strategy
has been translated into ten languages.

The Council Plan is linked to the Community Strategy and sets out the
priorities of the Council and how these will be achieved in practice over the
period 2007-10. The Council’s objectives are informed by what residents and
service users say and their views are captured in our annual residents’
survey.

Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority’s
governance arrangements

The implementation of the Community Strategy is monitored through the
delivery of the Local Area Agreement, which contains all the required national
and local targets. In support of the Community Strategy, all the Council’s
business and financial planning documents reflect its vision and objectives.
Delivery of these is through an integrated annual business and financial
process, which are subject to full consuitation and review by the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, formal adoption by the Cabinet and
approval by the Council.

Progress against the business plans is reviewed mid-year as part of the
Council’s formal pre-business plan review process. The Council’s Medium
Term Financial Strategy 2009-2012 sets out the three year budget for the
Council. It supports the Council Plan and allocates resources over all the
council’s activities, including to the council’s priorities, and is monitored on a
regular basis to ensure that resources are aligned to council objectives.

Measuring the quality of services for users, ensuring they are delivered in
accordance with the authority’s objectives and that they represent the
best use of resources

The Council is committed to delivering value for money. This is achieved
through a variety of mechanisms including a well established business
planning process, and a robust performance management system. Haringey
has comprehensive performance management systems, which include
Business Plans, Service Improvement Plans and National and Locali
Performance Indicators. Performance measurement is undertaken at various



Page 190



Page 191
Appendix 1

levels and is subject to review both internally by managers and members and
externally by the Council’s external auditors. In addition, during 2008/09 an
independent review of data quality arrangements was undertaken by external
consultants.

The Cabinet receive regular reports highlighting key financial and
performance management information, which include a corporate ‘balanced
scorecard” and allows them to effectively monitor compliance with all key
policies and Council objectives. Cabinet agendas, reports and minutes are
available on the Council’s website. An independent survey of a representative
sample of residents and service users is completed on an annual basis and
reported to senior officers and members to ensure appropriate action can be
taken in specific areas.

During 2008/09, the Council implemented a Quality Outcomes Board in order
to look more widely at improving services and outcomes for stakeholders
across the board. The Quality Outcomes Board will provide expert external
advice, support and challenge over the next year and feedback is provided to
senior managers and Members. The Quality Outcomes Board will look at key
areas including child protection, housing and effective partnership working
through the Haringey Strategic Partnership.

Following the inspection into safeguarding arrangements by OFSTED in
November 2008, which highlighted a number of issues in relation to
governance and controls, an agreed action plan was put in place. Regular
reports against the identified actions are being made to the Secretary of
State and other government officials.

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive,
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation
arrangements and protocols for effective communication.

The Council’s Constitution sets out the policy and decision making
framework of the authority and is held in hard copy and on the council’s
intranet and external website. The roles and responsibilities of the whole
Council, the Cabinet, other committees, all councillors including Cabinet
Members, and officers is clearly documented, and it also contains protocols
governing the relationships between members and officers and job
descriptions of the council’s Statutory Officers (Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer). The roles and functions of all
councillors in relation to governance issues are clearly documented, including
their responsibilities for ward duties and the governance of the Council.

The Constitution is reviewed on an ongoing basis and updated to reflect
functional and organisational changes to the Council. The council’s scheme
of delegation is contained within the Constitution and is reviewed and
communicated on a regular basis to all appropriate officers and members.



Page 192



e)

Page 193
Appendix 1

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining
the standards of behaviour for members and staff

Haringey has well established codes of conduct for officers and members,
which are regularly reviewed and subject to approval by members. The
Council requires all members to formally acknowledge receipt of their code
of conduct on an annual basis. Members are provided with regular briefings
on the code of conduct as part of the established induction and training
programme. The council’s Member Learning and Development Strategy also
incorporates specific sections relating to corporate governance issues.

The Council’s officer code of conduct has been reviewed and updated on a
regular basis. Following the last comprehensive review in July 2006, all staff
employed by the Council were required to formally acknowledge receipt of
the code of conduct. All new members of staff receive training, including the
code of conduct, as part of their induction processes. Regular articles are
included in corporate and staff newsletters outlining expected standards of
behaviour in specific areas.

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions,
a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which
clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and controls
required to manage risks

The Constitution Working Group is an established group which meets on a
regular basis to monitor, review and update the Council’s Constitution and
associated governance arrangements, based on a rolling work programme
and taking into account any new legislative and statutory requirements. The
Council’s Statutory Officers meet on a quarterly basis and review key areas
of governance.

Haringey has a Risk Management Strategy which is reviewed and updated
on an annual basis and, through a variety of processes and procedures,
ensures that risk management is embedded across the organisation and its
activities, including being an integral part of the business planning process.
The Council has a corporate risk register and all departments and business
units have risk registers in place. The corporate risk register is reviewed on a
regular basis by the Chief Executive’s Management Board and the Audit
Committee and updated as a result of feedback received. Regular reports are
provided to both the Chief Executive’s Management Board and the Audit
Committee detailing progress in embedding risk management throughout the
Council.

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in
CIPFA’s ‘Audit Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities’

Using CIPFA and the Institute of Public Finance guidance, the Council’s Audit
Committee has been assessed as meeting all good practice requirements.
The Audit Committee has received reports on the outcome of the



Page 194



Page 195
Appendix 1

assessments and monitors compliance with best practice as part of its terms
of reference.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies
and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

The Council’s Constitution contains the Financial and Contract Procedure
Rules, which specify the governance framework for all its operational
functions. Officer Employment Rules and a Monitoring Officer Protocol are
also contained within the Constitution. The Constitution also includes the
roles of key compliance officers, including the Council’s Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer, as well as specific functional responsibilities for the
Cabinet, committees, other bodies and officers.

Regular internal and external audit reviews check compliance with Financial
and Contract Procedure Rules across the council. During 2008/09, all the
Council’s key financial systems received a ‘substantial’ assurance rating from
internal audit.

Financial management is based on a framework of regular management
information and review to inform managers and members of the current
budget position. Key elements of the financial management system include
integrated budgeting and medium term financial planning systems, regular
budget monitoring reports to the Cabinet, systematic review of all key
financial control processes, monitoring of key financial and other targets, and
formal project management processes.

Whistle-blowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the
public

Haringey has a well-established and publicised anti-fraud and corruption
policy and strategy, including a fraud response plan and Whistle-blowing
policy which complies with relevant legislation and is monitored and
managed by Internal Audit. The Council also has a free-phone telephone
number and email reporting facilities which are contained on the external
website to receive reports of suspected frauds, which can be done
anonymously. These are monitored and managed by Internal Audit and all
referrals are subject to review and investigation where sufficient details are
provided. Fraud and corruption policies and procedures are contained within
the Employee Handbook, the council’s intranet and website and reguiar staff
newsletter items are published which explain how and where to report
suspected fraud.

The Council also has a corporate complaints policy, and agreed procedures,
which are subject to regular review and updates. The Council’s policy and
procedures are complaint with all relevant statutory requirements and are
publicised on the Council’s external website and at various public sites
across the borough. Reports are provided to members on a regular basis,



Page 196



Page 197
Appendix 1

summarising the numbers and types of complaints, together with the
outcome and resolution of these.

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

Haringey Council has implemented a Member Learning and Development
Strategy. The Council was the first in London to achieve a Member
Development Charter which recognises the work carried out by the Council
to provide members with the support, skills and training needed to develop
and manage council services and budgets effectively.

The Working at the Political Interface Programme which was launched in late
2008 delivers a programme of learning and development and service
improvement activity that will improve council officers’ understanding of the
role, and complexity of the modern member, including the implications of the
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and related
legislation.  The programme also focuses on the difference between
executive and non executive councillors and the legal framework that
Councillors operate within, together with effective communication and
appreciating diversity. This programme feeds into the member learning and
development programme which is overseen by a cross party member
working group chaired by the Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and
Involvement.

The Council also delivers a Leadership Programme for all managers, which
includes a variety of training courses, workshops and work-related projects.
All staff within the Council receive an annual performance review and
appraisal, which is linked to the council’s competency framework, and results
in individual work targets and development plan. Every year, the Council
provides a programme of learning events for managers and staff based on
the council’s vision and values, aims and objectives, and key service delivery
requirements.

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and
encouraging open consultation.

The Council's publishes a resident’s magazine, Haringey People, ten times
per year containing information on council activities. Hard copies are
delivered to all residential addresses and the magazine is also available via
the Council’s intranet and external website. Once a year this includes a
summarised annual report and set of financial statements.

The Council also runs seven Area Assemblies, which are informal, and
discussions take place on issues which are important to the residents of the
area. The Assemblies are open to everyone; are held in local community
buildings in all parts of the borough; and are attended by council officers and
members. Details of meetings are published on the Council’s website and
Assembly Newsletters are produced after each meeting.



Page 198



Page 199
Appendix 1

The Council joined with local public agencies, community groups and
businesses to create the Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) in April 2002.
The shared vision for the future of Haringey and the HSP priorities are set out
in the Sustainable Community Strategy which is published and available on
the Council’s website. All agendas and minutes from HSP Board and Theme
Board meetings are also publicly available and are accessible via the
Councii's website.

The Joint Area Review report into Haringey’s Children Services identified the
need to improve governance of children safeguarding arrangements. The
Council has recognised the need to address key governance issues but in
addition, the action plan in response to the Joint Area Review also includes
actions to address and improve operational practices and corporate culture
within the Children and Young People’s Service. The meeting of the Children
and Young People Strategic Partnership Board in December 2008 proposed
to move towards a Children’s Trust model to take ownership of Children and
Young People’s issues.

At a full Council meeting on December 2008, the Leader of the Council also
announced the establishment of a Corporate Parenting Working Group and a
Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Panel. Both forums are cross-
party and will provide an advisory and oversight role. Periodic updates will
be provided to the Cabinet and Cabinet member for Children & Young
People, including any recommendations that should be considered to
improve polices practice and member development activity.

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships
and other group working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report
on the governance of partnerships, and reflecting these in the authority’s
overall governance arrangements.

The Council has identified its key partnerships, based on the Audit
Commission’s definition, and has reviewed the governance arrangements
and structures within these. The Council has collated corporate governance
assurances in the form of terms of reference and/or the Constitution of the
partnership. Governance arrangements within the Haringey Strategic
Partnership, the Council’s key partnership, are clearly identified and defined.
The Council’s member services division provides secretariat support to the
HSP to ensure that its governance arrangements are robust and in
accordance with the agreed arrangements. During 2008/09, the HSP
adopted a local code of corporate governance which complements the
Council’s own internal control and governance arrangements.

The Council has been working with Alexandra Palace and Park to provide
additional support and resources were provided to Alexandra Palace during
2008/09 to ensure that improvements in governance and controls were
implemented. Independent reviews of governance and control issues were
completed and reported to appropriate officers and members. Agreed action



Page 200



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Page 201
Appendix 1

plans are in place and subject to follow up to ensure that key risks are
appropriately managed.

Review of effectiveness

Haringey has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of senior
managers within the authority who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal
Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors
and other review agencies and inspectorates. Annual performance and self-
assessment processes are in place for Children and Young People’s
Services, Adult Social Care and Housing Benefits. From 2009/10, the Audit
Committee will review reports from external assessments and actions taken
by management to address any recommendations made on a six-monthly
basis.

Under the Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) Haringey
achieved a rating of one star (out of four), as a result of weaknesses identified
in Safeguarding within the Children and Young People’s Service. In the CPA
Use of Resources assessment, Haringey achieved a rating of 3 (out of 4)
overall. During 2008/09, the Audit Commission report on the council’s
Housing Allocations was finalised and a zero star rating was awarded. A
project team has been working towards implementing the recommendations
of the housing allocations inspection during 2008/09.

As part of the Council’s overall improvement programme, a new electronic
performance management system was implemented during 2008/09.
Information on performance indicators, risk registers, business plans and
governance will be held within the system and enable data quality and
governance to be managed and reviewed more effectively.

Risk management is an area which is continuously under review and the
Council’s Risk Management Strategy has drawn together the various
elements of risk management, including risk registers, health and safety,
business continuity and emergency planning and project management into a
process which is aligned to the Council’s business planning cycle.

During 2008/09, the council implemented a new performance management
system, which will be further developed to incorporate risk management and
provide improved links between risk and performance issues. All managers
and officers responsible for managing risk and maintaining risk registers are
aware of their roles and responsibilities and this is affirmed by Directors and
Assistant Chief Executives in their annual assurance statements. The new
performance management system, which has been implemented in line with
the Council’s data quality strategy, will enable the validation of data across
the council. Internal and external audit will review data quality arrangements
during 2009/10 to ensure the system is robust and information is accurate.



Page 202



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Page 203
Appendix 1

Directors have submitted a statement of assurance covering 2008/09 which
is informed by work carried out by internal audit, external assessment and
risk management processes. The statements provide assurance that any
significant control issues that have been brought to their attention have been
dealt with appropriately. Key governance issues which have been identified
and which remain outstanding have been incorporated into the action plan.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management provided an Annual Audit Report
and opinion for 2008/09, which concluded that in most areas across the
council there are sound internal financial control systems and corporate
governance arrangements in place. All of the council’s key financial systems
received a ‘substantial’ assurance rating and the follow up programme
concluded that all high priority recommendations had been appropriately
addressed. The internal audit plan also includes reviews of all the key non-
financial systems, which are identified from risk registers, business plans and
internal audit assessment.

The Cabinet undertakes regular monthly reviews of financial and service
performance, based on a range of key performance indicators and financial
and budget management information. Cabinet also review the delegated
decisions and significant actions undertaken by council officers, or urgent
actions taken in consultation with Cabinet members, to ensure they comply
with the scheme of delegation. Minutes of sub-bodies are also reviewed by
Cabinet, including procurement decisions and actions.

The Council’s Audit Committee has responsibility for internal and external
audit, risk management and corporate governance issues included within its
terms of reference. The Committee receive regular reports throughout the
year detailing progress made against the internal and external audit plans,
highlights of any significant control weaknesses, together with the outcome
of the follow up programme of audit reviews. The Audit Committee also
specified deadlines for implementation of high priority internal audit
recommendations to ensure key governance and control issues were
addressed in a timely manner.

4.10 Key governance issues, including treasury management, were also reported

411

to the Audit Committee during 2008/09 including the recommendations made
by the Council’s independent review of treasury management arrangements
and the generic recommendations made by the Audit Commission.
Additional oversight on all external inspection reports will be provided by the
Audit Committee during 2009/10, including reviewing progress on
implementing recommendations. The Audit Committee provides an annual
report on the work it has undertaken to full Council.

The Council’s Standards Committee is chaired by an independent person
and received reports from the Monitoring Officer on the referrals received
from the Standards Board for England. An annual report on its work is
presented to full Council for information.



Page 204



412

4.13

Page 205
Appendix 1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee undertakes a planned programme of
work. Reports on the outcome of the reviews, together with any
recommendations are presented. The Cabinet respond to the

recommendations presented by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The
Overview and Scrutiny Committee also provide challenge to the Cabinet’s
budget proposals.

The Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive have been advised on the
implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by the Audit Committee, and a plan to implement enhancements
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

5. Significant governance issues

5.1 In 2007/08, a number of actions were reported in the AGS to deal with
outstanding governance issues. Some of these have been incorporated into
the body of the AGS as actions have been completed. The summary below
highlights what the council has done to address those issues for which work
has been ongoing during 2008/09 and where further work will be carried
forward into 2009/10:

e The Housing Improvement Board has been working towards
implementing the recommendations made by the Audit Commission
review and this will be continued in 2009/10; and

o Further work will be done in 2009/10 to fully embed governance
arrangements in respect of the Haringey Strategic Partnerships

5.2 The Council proposes over the coming year to take steps to further improve
governance arrangements in key areas and these are set out in the action
plan below. The action plan will be monitored during the year to ensure all
issues are appropriately addressed.
Issue Action Responsibility Due date
External assessment | Ensure that the recommendations | Director of December
- Joint Area Review in the JAR action plan are Children and 2009
(JAR) implemented in accordance with Young People’s
the agreed timetable. Service
Performance Implementation of Chief Financial July 2009
management — recommendations following Officer
treasury independent review of treasury
management management arrangements and
revised CIPFA guidance
External assessment |Ensure that any recommendations | Director of Adults | March
- Adult Services arising out of the independent Culture and 2010
inspection of the Adult Services Community
function are fully addressed. Services
External assessment |Ensure that all recommendations Director of Urban | March
— Housing Allocations |arising out of the independent Environment 2010




Page 206



Page 207

Appendix 1

Issue Action Responsibility Due date

inspection of the Housing

Allocations Service function are

fully addressed.
Performance Implementation of Information ACE - PPP&C March
Management ~ data | Governance Board project 2010
quality timetable and actions
Performance Ensure that the new performance | ACE - PPP&C March
Management — data | management IT system is 2010

quality

embedded across the council for
performance, risk and projects to
maximise its effectiveness

Councillor Claire Kober
Leader of the Council

Dr. Ita O’Donovan
Chief Executive




Page 208



Gz jo | ebeyd

00p*60-90-G 1 A ®ousplAe Builioddns Jo xiew - 60-8002 SOV

J9JIH0 J8y10 pue gNZD I1eulgqe) 8yl o1 suodey
paJiinbal se sjesw
pue sanss| [eUOIINISUOD UO 1yBisiano sey dnolb

Jojyuow pue yum Adwods
‘Juswie|dw ‘e1ediunuwIoD
‘srenjens ‘Ayuspl

Buppiom Jsquiew Aped-ss0I0 B S| Y2IUM HAMHD e 0} sainpeno.id aAosyg o]}
6002 YoIBN ,0€ UO |1ouno) (Iny Aq
pasibe pue HANHD AQ pasiopus swsyos pasinal
- 6002 Yot ul pa1ejdwiod sem Yoiym MaInss
"suawasinbai w9931 Jo ped se pejepdn uonebsieg jo sweyosg e
aAile|siba| yum uendwon sjuswalinbe.
pue asodind ioj }} ensud Aioinjess juensiel jo seidoo ploy seoineg [ebe e
01 siseq oipousad e uo| Adoo piey ul pue jouelUl UO S|CE|IBAR UOIINIISUOD) e
mw pamainal aq 0] uolrebajsp ‘sIseq JenbaJ uo
AN jJO awaYyos aonoeid |  pPamaInel S| pUB suoioun} Aloiniels Aey saiiusp suonebiqo
@© 1890 UlM 92UEDIODDE U| uonebelep JO sWaYS PUB UOHNYISUOD [IOUNOY) e Aioniess Jo piey pioosy o]
(0]
o "yoiep
w0E U0 [1ounog |iny Ag peaibe awsyos pesinsl
- 6/800¢ Ul pamsinai uonehsjeq Jo aweyog e
(19010 LGLs U901 Bunoluopy ‘@oinIes pred
10 pesH) siebeuell JuBAS|aJ JO SUONALIOSSP qOr e
SUBYO 8INIONIS e
"siseq Jejnbeu
[1oUnNo0Y uo pamairal pue aoeld ul uoebs|ap Jo swWBYog e
1IN} Aq seah yoes pesibe 9JUSJ9J81 JO SWIS] 8810 e
Buleq aiopeq Ajjenuue "paulep ‘Buisusdll B e ‘seenIuWOo paysigese suonebijgo
pamaInSl SO1IIWIWIOD | [IOUNOD JHj1oads JBYIO |8 PuUB ‘Jaulge)) oyl JO 80y e Ajreurio) ese suonebigo | Aiomniers rediouud Apuepl
[le 10} 9oUBIB)8l JO SWID | "UOIINHISUOD S,|IounoD) e AJoiniess oy seijiqisuodsey | 0} peysi|geise WSIUBYOS|N el
9DUDPIAS JO BJUBINSSE ‘JUSWIUONIAUS
ui sdeb payiuspl :@oueInsse aoueusanob ajeirodion
SSeJippe 0} SUoloY :Ag pasuaping jo ssjdwexs/sa0inog 8y}l 1o spuswele Aoy | 1oy

2 Xipuaddy

9ouapiae Buipoddns Jo XU — 60/8002 1USWSIELS 8OUBUISAOKL) [BNUUY




Gz 10 g obed

20P'60-90-GL YA @ouapiAe Buioddns jo Xijew - 60-8002 SHY

Dan 4.0
ragez1u

s1e21110 10} sseo0.d fesreidde ayi ul Aousiedwiod
Ay e s| sseuaiemy [euonesiuebi( pue [eoil|od
ssaualeme

[euonesiuebio pue [eofjod uo uswsie oyloads

e sey siebeuew 1o} swweiboid diysiepesT
6/800¢ Buunp paJsAlep

pue padojarsp Buieq si821jJ0 pue siequusul

10} swiwelboid eoepsiul [eopijod syl 1 BUuBIOM
"89] 1IWIWOYN Splepuels 0} peuodal pue paiojuow
Buluiel} 9oUBWIBAOD [BOIYIe 1B 8ouBpUSlIE JOqUIBIA
'siaysellel

[enuUUE YlIIM 10npuos) jo apon uo Bujuresy Buipnjoul
Buiures; UoIIONPUI 9ABY SIaqUIsW Palosie Aimau |y
(8002 Aep Ul epew sebueyo Jusdal 1SoL)
uoie|sibe) Wweosl AQ paiinbal epoo siequisw 0}
sjusWpUSLUE 0] pepuodsal pue senssi eoueuIsAob
[eoiyie 1o} 1yBISISN0 sey 880y spiepuels
‘uononpul uo swwesboid

pue ABejeis oyoads sey swiwelbosd N

sej0J oiy108ds U0} Buiules uoioNpul UIYlMm papniouj
‘Jels

||e 01 penssi-al pue siseq Jeinbal e uo pemeine.
‘aoeid Ul }ONPUOD JO BP0 SI9OIYQ PUB SIegqUBiN
SJUBAS

Buljeliq JaquIBLL ‘@ousIsyuol s Jepes B8 selpoq
uensiel Ag palinbal se paiepisuod pue pasedsid
uoIsioap Joj suodai 7 sbuyeug - uone|sibs] mau

jo suoieoijdwi 8y} uo sdnoib sequiew pue sdnoib

pasn aJe
pue 1sixs abueyd annesibe)

SOUDPIAS 10 9OUBINSSE
ui sdeb payiuapi
SSalppe 0] SUolldyY

:Ag psousping

:@oueInsse
10 s8|dwexs/sa2ino0sg

JJUSWUIUOJIIAUS
oouewsaob s1ei0diod
ay1 10 sluswole Aay

-48Y

2 xipuaddy

aouapins Buipoddns jo Xulep — 60/8002 1USWalelS 80UBUISACY) [BRUUY




n4

rage 211

G2 J0 ¢ ebed

90P'60-90-G1 pA 82uspIAe Buipoddns Jo xulew - 60-8002 SOV

01 siequisuw jpued buipsenbaies 6002 Aely / judy
ut jeued o3 psjuodde aq 03 Jequuisw Juspuadsepui
"pealbe Yol '600z IMdy Ui peysijgeiss [sued
201108i1d pue Adijo4 Buiprenbejeg s, usipjiyD) men
6002 Iudy — ga4 wouy

Buipsenbajes Jayssaiiel pPaAI9OSI SIOJ|IDUNOD ||y
800¢ 98 Ul

palutodde sreys pseog Buipienbeyeg uspusdsepuj
jeaosdde 4oy

6002 IHdy-piw ul Jeisiuiu s, uslpliyd pue g3.1S40
0} pauiwigns pue paonpoid ueld uoiloe Yy yeiq
‘papodal pue eoe|d u sueld

UOI10E - $80IN0S8Y JO 8SMN VdD ‘SIUNODJE [euly

o} "6 suolrepuswwooal Yodal Jpne [eulsxy
sjure|dwos piaydn Aue

0] @suodsal Ul UsME] UOIIOB SAI1081I00 [0 80USPIAT
soueuIsn0b [eolyle

‘B8 seaue ysi Asy paliuspl Jo uoneiuss|dul

:8J sue|d suonoe uo spodal BUuLIOHUO
‘'suoljepuswiiosal 1sulebe

uswiansiyoe Jojuow o3 soeld Ul suejd uonoy

1080 ‘148 ‘a3LS40 60 sjuswssasse
[eulalxe pue spodel Ipne [eulaixs/jeulaiu]

punoy
aJe 9ouel|dwoo-uou JO sease

-USMe] Usaq sey UOIOe 1By} 81eilSUOLISP 0] 80UBPIAT | SJoum Us)e] S| UOIIOR SAI108)IT pL
‘SI9OI0 pue siaguwisul 1o} sewweliboid
1uswidojeAsp aininy WO [[IM SBUWIOOINO "Sddd
Siequiswl Jo ainjes| AaY e S| SSeusIBMY [BOIU[Od e
$$800.d UoONPU| JeDIHO Jo Ued pue
90UDPIAS 10 BduUBINSSE JJUBWIUOIIAUS
ut sdeb paynuepi :@ouBINSSE aoueusanob eresodioo
SSalppe 0} SuUonoYy :AQ paousping jo sejdwexa/saoinog By} Jo sluswee A8Y | :joYH

2 Xipuaddy

@ouapiae bBuipoddns jo xUBW — 60/800¢ USWSIRIS 90UBUISAOK) [BNUUY




Gz 10 ¢ obed

00p'60-90-G} A @ouspire Bupioddns Jo Xuiew - 60-8002 SOV

ealy (2007 8y} Lo AsAlsp 8yl ybnoayi paiojuow

s uonelusws|dwi sy pue pesibe Ajutofl uesq

eney ABsiesis 8y 0 saAoe[qo 8y "91L02-2002

ABerens Ayunwwon AsbuueH ey) pedojeAsp
sey siouped sy yum saylebos ‘Iounoco ey e

seAioelgo pue senuoud uo
SJOP|OYSNEIS YUM UONBYNSUOD

sannosiqo
a1e40di00 ysloe1se
01 92e|d Ul WSiUBYOSIN

124

40
clc

-ooe|d Ul suejd uonoe pasibe
UM ‘S8Ipoq Jaguusu pue 420140 seudoidde 0}
pauodes pue UsyeUspuUn usaq aaey sjuswebuele
juswisBruepy Ainsesl] JO SMalAa) Juspuadapu] e
sure|dwod Jojjiounod sbulesy uoljeullLIBIep pue
JuaLWISSasse 10} sjuswabuelie [eoo| pajusws|dull
sey 88)1IWWoD SpJepuels 800g AeN 8ouIS e
swinJo} ejeudoidde Aq palepisuoo pue peonpoud
Senssl 80URLISA0D 82BBd BIPUBXS|Y JO SMBINSY o
600z sunp/Aepy Ul pesibe 8q
01 Ajg¥l] 81N10NJ1S PaSIASY "8iNJoNJIS 8O0UBULIBAOY)
1SNJ| S,UiplIyD PasiAsl uo 00T (Ldy. Ul
pPa}NsSU09d siauped pue SiIsquIsi ‘SISO [IoUNo) e
‘obueyo
J0J suoljepusuiLLIODa) AUB / UsMe] Useq sey uonoe
1eYyM JO sajepdn oipouad 8Agdal 0] 18uige) /
Jequisw 10uUIge) 8yl ‘senssi Bunuesed ereiodioo
uo suonesuNwWwod pue sbuysuqg ‘Bulure
Jaguiswi Joy 1yBislano saey osle 0} - 600g [Hdy Ul
paysijgeise dnoir Aiosinpy Bunjusied e1elodio) e

6002
Rey i Buiuresy BuipienBeles [euoilippe aAieo9)

8OUDPIAS 10 83UBINSSE
ul sdeb psyijuspi
$S9IPPE 01 SuoloYy

:Aq paouaping

:@oueINSSEe
10 so|dwexs/s82inos

TJUSLUUOCIIAUD
aaurwianob ajelodiod
8yl Jo sjuswole Aoy

JE

Z Xipuaddy

aouapins Buipoddns Jo xule\ — 60/800¢ 1USWSIR1S SOUBLISAOY) [enuuy




Gg 10 G ebed

00p*60-90-G 1 A douspire Buipoddns Jo xuew - 60-8002 SOV

Damsma-D4N

rage2to

"Juswebebus uo sidiouud Aay sepnjoul yoiym

800Z sunp Ui peaibe 90UBUIBAOY) JO 8P0D) dSH  ©

paonpoJd 8g [IM YIOMBLIER)
8y1 Jo uoisian ysi|bug ueld v “ylomawiely
8U1 UO UOIBHNSUOD / SUOIFRDIUNWIWOD olgnd

jo eBels Jayuny e aq |Im 818U} 01/600Z Bulng e

uolelusweidwi
10 WBISISA0 Yum 1sISse 0} peonpo.d ag

lm uejd Atsalep B 4SH AQ Juswissibe Buimojjod e

'6002 1udy 81ef Ul dSH Aq eidiound ul pesibe

8Q 0} YJomaluel swebebug Ajunwiwon Yeiq s

6002 1Udy |2 uo ysiuy
01 enp poLad UoBYNSUOD ~ ABMISPUN MIOMBLUEBI)

juswabebus AJunNWLIOD Yelp UO UOHBYNSUOD) e

7109 Aqg Jo-ubis jeuy Bunremy "600z YoIB

Ul papniouod aiom siebiel Yy 8yl Jo ysaljel y e

ONd dSH
8y} o} Aepenb podal pue vy eyl uiyum siebie;
BAl108dsal Jleu) Jo sjuswebeuew eouewioped

yim pebieyo ale spieog onewsyy ay| e

800¢ aunp ul Tjon Ag peubis Ajjeuiio) sem
Jusweaibe vy [eull 8L "dSH eul yum psienobeu

pue padojeAsp sem Yy mau s Aebule e

8|doad AebuleH eia 00z |Mdy Ul SlUBpISai
Ile 01 painquisip Buteq si pue 002 YoIe Ul
paje|dwoo sem ABsjens Ajunwiwon) s|jgeureisng

s AebuieH jo syuswansiyoe o elepdn Uy e

1uswsalby

B0UBPIAG 10 8dueInsSse
ut sdeb psynuspi

SSaIppe 0} SUoIoY

:AQ peouspiag

‘9oueINSse
jo so|dwexs/s8ainog

JJUSWIUOIIAUS

9oueuIan0b ejeiodioo
8Y3 10 s1usuwiae Aoy

484

2 Xipuaddy

2ouapiAe Buipoddns jo XuU1BW — 60/8002 1USWISIRIS 92UBUISAOE) |BNUUY




Gg o 9 ebed

00p°60-90-G1 A ®ouspiAe Builioddns jo xinew - 60-8002 SOV

MOUS S)|NSal ABAINS [JB1S INO "JUBWIBASIUDE IO}
syebie) [enpiAlpul Yylim sueld ssauisng s,801A19S ayl

Buipnoul ‘siep|oysyels jje pue
1B1S 0] Pelesiunuiwos Apes|o

w0} saAnoalgo ureiuod sjestesdde yels fenplaipuj aJe saA1osalqo s Ajuoyine sy ez
"mainal ue|d sseuisng a4d syl UiIm
Jeak piw pemeiaal s suejd ssauisng ayj isurebe
ss046014 ‘SIS0 pue Sainsesl aouewloped s1ebpng psieloosse
YUM ‘9S8y] 8ASIYDE JJIM HUN SSauIsNg yoes yum payorew Aues|o
moy 1no Buies ‘seoinias 8yl Joj suejd ssauisng aJe pue sue|d |eluswupedsp
BU1 Ul pa108|IaI 81 SBAI108[0 S,|IouUN0D 8y | Ul pa1osyies aJe seAioslap pe
"seljioud s,]1Iounod 8y} Buipuny sjqejieae
01 Buipnjoul ‘s80In0Ss8) s8jed0|[e pue Ueld [Iouno) 0} a1ejaJ pue suonebljqo
ay1 spoddns 1} "J1ounoo a8y} 4o} 18Bpng Jesh esiul Aioiniels jediouud o1 paubie
ay1 1no s18s Abaleng [eloueuld wWis ] WNIpsiy 8yl aJe SaAI108[qo pue senoud o7
+ ‘AenIns siuspisal [enuue Jno
(a\| ur wepoduw ase Aes sjuepisal 1eym Ag psuuiojul
[h) aJe soA109(go S,J1IoUN0D 8y "PaAsIyoe 8g ||IM
MaU 8s9U1 MOU pUE [I0UN0D 8yl JO safoud 8yl Ino s1es
ol pue saAijoslqo Abalens Ajunwiwo) syl 0} paxull (uoneynsuoo
S| ueld Jlouno) sy ‘ubredwes ainyny syl edeys ~ W04} YOBQpPes) JUNoooe
AeburieH Aes inoA eaeH ‘8y} ybnouys siepjoysyels ojul Bupjey) pesibe uesq
pue SJUSpISa) YLM UOIIB}NSUOD SAISUSIXS aney saAnoslgo reuonesiuebio
Jaye padojersp sem ABsiens Auunwiwo) ey pue saiuoud s Ajioyiny ey az
600¢
aunp Ul dSH 01 paiuesaid ag 0} uoleusws|duw
UO JUBWSIRIS [Bnuuy uonelusws|dwl
j0 1Bisieno sey dnoub aoueusenoh diysieuped
-SS0.40 YyoIym Joj paonpoid 4SH 10} Juswsiels
aoueuIsn0b 81e40dl00 OS|e SI yoIym uejd uoioy
90UBPIAS 10 8DOUBINSSE :JUSLLIUOAIAUS
uil sdeb payiuapi 9ouUBINSSE aoueuionob syeiodiod
SSalppe 0} SUOHoY :AQ paousping 10 sejdwexs/sa801nos 2y} jo syuswaie A9y | JoH

Z Xipuaddy

souopiAe Buipoddns Jo XUl — 60/800¢ 1USWS1RIS 80UBUIBAOKL) [BNUUY




Gg J0 / ebed

00p’60-90-G 1 A dousplAe Bujoddns Jo xulew - 60-8002 SOV

paiinbai se
dnoub Bupjiom mainsl
uolniisuos ybnouq

sjusuipuswe By e

an3o o1 siseq Jenbai
B U0 sanssi aoueuianoh
UO UOIBLLLIOJUI

siseq Jeinbes e uo

UoINHISU0D 8y} 0} Buiees senss| 90UBUISAOD UO

parepdn yum pepiroid aie gNTI0 1Byl 2insus |Iim

8|gelswil — 6002 |idy Q¢ uo pesibe g 01 HMHO
BU} IO} sBIlIAIIoR JO awwelbold YIOM 01/6002

6/8002 Ui pas|dwod mairal uonebsleqg

JO 8WBLYDS 'S8|NY 8inNpadoid ‘sispiQ Buipuelg Jo

soe|d Ul e sjuswebuele

pue sejepdn 8pIn0ld  e| smalral pue doe|d Ul dnoto) BUBLIOA, UOHIMISUOD) e Buuoluow pue mainey ase
9]0J Ul paseq
pualie 0] siequiaul
o 10} Aosindwon "J821}J0 BuLIOUOW / 891IUILIOD) SPIBEpUR)S
v~ aJe so1doy uiepuad 8} WO} suoepuswiwioal Aue uo peseq
N 1Byl papusWIWIODl p8INPayos 8q [|IM SUOISSSS aining ‘papircid uesq
MW aq |Iim 1 areudoidde SABY 10NPUOD JO 8pOY JIBqUIBIA 8yl Uo sBuyslg e
(S SB DMATN aul ‘uopoes
O Aq pasonuow Aj9sojo 2lj108ds e se 8ouBUIBAOY) a1ei0dio)) sey pue aoe|d
alow aq O] S1UdASd Ul swweiboid uswdoeas pue BujuiesT Joquisyy e
Je 9ouepuUalle JoquIBpy e "018 Alfeydsoy pue syib jo JeisiBal ‘jsaisiul
‘POIBA0D JO suoleIR[O8p ‘SI8D10 PUE SIequUBLU 10} 10NPUOD
Ajerenbape aie sonssi 0 88p02 — 82e|d Ul 84 doUEPING JOV10S/V4dID
90UBUIBAOY) a1el10dio) Yum aulj Ul 8oueuIsnob o1esodiod jo suswisle |y e 1OUN0D
1ey} 2insuo 0] POMB3IASI "olSgeM psysiige1se | 8yl UIyIM pappequie aJe
aq 0} swweiboud [louno) uo paystgnd pue |1ouno) syl Agq peidope U9a(g Sey 92UBWIBA0Y) | siuswabueie soueuisaob
aiIn 0L/600¢ = Ajfewio) @auBUISAOL) 81100100 JO BPOD) (00T o 8lesodio) Jo 8pon 91e10di00 BAI108Y] eg
"1UB||90X8 aJe seljlioLd pue senjeA ‘UoISIA
Buipuelsiepun 4o} synsai AeAINs Je1s "800z
judy souis [esreidde ue pey aAey LEIS JO %06 18U} sieuped
9DOUDPIAD 10 BoUBINSSE JJUBSWIUOIIAUS
ui sdeb payiuapi :9ouBINSSE aoueuIan0b ajeiodioo
SSalppe 0} Suoijoy :Ag peosuaping jo se|dwexs/ssoinog a3y} jo syudswee A9y | j8Yy

Z Xipuaddy

aouapiAe Buioddns jo xulep — 60/8002 1USWDIBIS 9OUBUIBAOL) [BNUUY




Gz jo g ebed

00P'60-90-G1 A 8ouspine Buioddns jo xinew - 60-8002 SOV

uo s1equiap
lie ioj Bujuiely [eisusn) -
‘sjoquis 891HlIWOo)
Hpny / jsuiqe)

10} Buiuiesy oyoadg -

apnjoul |jim pue
senssi aoueUISA0D Uo
sjuswaiinbai Bujuses)

1O 1UNODOk el [|IM

"6002 AIne Ul DMATN
Aq pealibe aq 01

‘ABereis pue swweiboid
uswdoeas pue BuiuiesT JOqUISIA 8Ul JO Ued e

slequiawi

01/6002 10} swweibold aoueuIan0b a1el0diod Uo s | NQ [eluswpedsp [[e pue s192140 Aoy 0}
© 1uswdojoAs IOqUIBIN e pue gNI0 01 PNy JO pesH Ag uoneussald | papiroid Bujurel] 8oUBULIBAOK) pe
o ‘pabreyosip
O Areudoidde useq aney senjiqisuodsal
()] 12Ul Wuuoo sBupssw 9811ILULIOD WO SBINUIN e
Da "aoueUIen0b 91810d100 JO s10edse |je epnioul HOL e saljiqisuodsai
B "‘eoueUIBN0D 81810d109 404 AYjIgIsuodsal aouBUIBAOD YlMm
apN|oUl 80USIBI8. JO SWIB] S91HWWOD PNy | pabieyd 991|WOoD B S| al1ay ] og
sJegquiajy 01 1Uss Jepuiusy
— perepdn pue pauleluew Jo1sibal sisquusiy e
sisaJelul jo Jeisibai pue sieisibel Ayjendsoy
pue syib jo Buuonuow pue Buipiodel syeiodio) e
19010 Bunonuop Aq papinoid eoiape BuloBug e
(seo1niag [ebe] pue Aoeioows(
(2007 “MSIY ¥ UpNY JO SpesH) 9oueuIon0b Jo sesle
Aoy smeinel Bunesw Apauenb sieolO Aioinels e
90USPIAS 10 9OUBINSSE JJUSWIUOIIAUR
ui sdeb paynuep! :9oueINSse aouewanob ereiodiod
SSaIppe 0} SUOOY :Aq paousping 10 sojdwexs/se2In0g 2y} JO sluswoe Aoy | 19H

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo XUl — 60/800¢ 1USWAB]S 8OUBUISAOKL) [ENUUY




Gz Jo 6 obed 90pP°60-90-G1 ¥A 8duspiAe Buioddns jo xuleW - 60-8002 SOV

SMBIABI [BULIBIXS JO jewaluUl woll Buninsas spoday e
|y Jon0 spremdn UsALP S| 8ouBwIOUSd MOH  ©
passalippe s} soueuopad Jood moH ©
paueiurew Awubeui
sl pue painides s| ejep sourwioped MOH ©
painsse s Ajenb elep moH  ©
usyo moy
pue soueulopad uo spodsi senoal UM, ©
Saunsesws soueWIOURd
8] senosdde pue ssullIeep oYU\, ©
8uo yoes
1o} e1ep ay) Buie||oo 4o} ojgisuodsal s Oypy  ©

SSBUBAI08Y8 Sl
SsSIWIXeW 01 ‘010Z YOIy

mu Aq s108loid pue ysu ainsesiu aouewioued

CNl ‘eoueLLIopad 10} jIoUNOD yoes Buinsiyoe Joy s|qisuodsal s1 Oypp  ©

@ 8y} SSOJ0E pappaquie S pJe0s8ioos paouejeq syelodiod Buipnioul

MaU wisisAs || wewsbeueuws — SainseswW souewIopad JO $90IN0S ||y © Ajpuinos slelsedo swielsAs

o aoueuLIOMed :seljiuspl 1eyl eoe|d Ul yiomawel} 1uewebeuew souewlopad | soeld ul e siuswabuelne

M3U 8y} JBYl 8INSU] e luswebeuew souewloped paynuepl Aies|y ! sAosye pue saisusysidwon | juswebeuew 2oUBWIOHSd By

81ISgoM pue JBuBJUl S,[IOUN0D

UO 8|ge|ieAr 80UBUISAOY) 81eJ0dI0)) JO 9pon) e
S8NSsSs| 8ouUBUIOAOD Ay

Uo Mje| UelWG pue Jeug wes] ui usaib siepulusy e
81ISgem pue }oueJIUl UO B|gejieA.

‘ssul] Burpodes Buipniout ‘Aoljod pnelj-nuy e

18uBJIUl pue 8lIsgam uo Aoljod Buimolqg sjisIyp, e

alsgem
pUE J8UBJIUI UO 8|ge|leAB UOINYISUOY [IDUN0Y)

"$8NSS| 9oUBUIBAOS 818100100

1O SSeusJeme Isp|oysye]s
Jay10 pue o)gnd ‘s1eoIlO

o8¢

$ONss| 8oueulanob

SOUDPIAS 10 B8duBINSSE
ui sdeb paynuapi
SSAIppE 01 SUOOY

:JUBWIUOIIAUS
asuruisnob ajeiodion
9y} Jo swswele A9y | ey

.goueinsse

:AQ pasuapiag jo sajdwexs/sa0Inog

@ouapine Buipoddns jo xuUle — 60/800¢ JUSWDIRIS S9OUBUISAOL) [BnuuYy
2 Xipuaddy



Gz 40 01 obed

0P 60-90-G 1 vA 8ouspiae Buioddns Jo xiew - 60-8002 SOY

a1 o1 pejuesaid Apeinbel ate spuodas BuLioyuo

pue a1njosge Jo abpajmou

Py

SSOUBAIL09Y Sl
asIWIXeW 01 ‘0102 Uore
Aqg s108foid pue ysu
‘eouewLiopad 1o} 1oUNOD
BU1 $S0.I0B pappaquie si
wie1sAs || uswebeueul
souewlIOpad

Mmauayileylainsug e

UICH
wnipsw pue JesA Jusund ‘enusAsl pue [endeo

- spodes pue sBunesw Bupoyuow 1ebpng Ajyiuop
'S, |dM PUE S,1dAg UO spodai Jipne [euieixy
"PJED2I00S PadUR[e] ||BJaN0

Buipnjou ‘syebJel eouewioped feluswpedep

pue sapIM-|Iounod ‘feuoiieu Jo AJsaiep

ay] Uo siequuisw 0} pajussald ale suodel Jenbey

sewo01no pauueld
sy 1sutefe Bujuopad st
[[BM MOY SJEeME SI |IOUN0D 8y |

op

Dana D419

rayc 1o

spiepuels
palinbaJ sy} Buisessoul Ag ebueyd sSnonuiuoD
Bunoss J0) pue s, |dM 10 Aljigenns Buinuiuoo
ay) Buimelnel Joy wsiueyosw panosdde ue si aiey]
S IdX Butenlep

uo sseJboud uo spodal Ajyluow aJe asey]
‘pajuswe|du pue

panoidde usag sey welsAs Buloluow 1sngol v
‘sue|d 1UN SSBUISNg pue [BlUswWPEdSP Ul papnioul
aJe pue JUsLBe 82IAJ8S Yyoes 4o} peroidde

pue paysljgeise usag arey s,|d) ereudoiddy

P2J0HUOW pUE paysiigelse aJe
sJjoleolpul eouewiouad Aoy

ar

synse.
BuppelyoUSg HUN SSaUIsng Jo/pue [eluswpeds(
syun ssauisng jie Buueaod swwesboid

BuyjjoJ jo ved ale synsas Buppewyousq

Buipnjoul ‘smainai Aousiola/AsuoLl oy snjep
(spoday fenuue uj "6e) siebuel souewioped
1suieBbe juswieAsiyoe JO uosuedw oo Jesh Uuo Jes A
Juswebeuew souewlopad jo

22UBPIAS 10 8oURINSSE
ut sdeb payiuapi
SSOIppE 0} SUooY

:Ag paousping

:@ouBINSSE
JO sa|dwexa/sedinog

JUSWIUOIIAUD
aoueusanob sjesodioo
8y} Jo sluawele Aay

-48H

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xuUlep — 60/8002 1USWAIRIS S8OUBUIDAOY) [BNUUY




Gz 1o || abey

00P"60-90-G1 A 8oUSpiAe Buioddns Jo XUlBW - 60-800Z SOV

Ag pajuswaiduwi

aJe ue|d uoiloe Yyr ayi
Ul suonepuawiwooal
ay1 1ey} aunsug

‘ueld uonoe Yyr e

1uswebeuBW YSU JO MSIASI [ELUIO) JO 80USPIAT e
981ILILWIOD

Hpne pue gn3o Aq - [eacsdde [eLulo) JO 90UBPIAT e
"JeueJIUl 8y} Uo paysignd

pue aoe|d uj ABs1el)s Juswebeuew Ysu paaociddy e

sjeudoidde 1e panoidde

Ajlewo) useq seH e

YOIYM S
Buibeuew 1oy aoe|d u Aoijod
pue Abajess uenlm e si aisy |

[euonesado pue oibeiels
jo wewebeuew pue
uoleoiiIuapl sy} 4o} aoeld
ul sesseo0.d pue sweisAs
1SnNQgoJ sky |1IounoD 8y |

eg

'sjusebueiie syl

JO MBIABI [BUJSIUL JO [BLISIXS YJIM Ul Ul PaSIAS
ale sjuswebuelie Juswebeuew aouewlopsd ay| e

"SHIOMBLIBI) JUsLIBINSEaW aouBWIoLSd

Mau ‘ainionuis feuopesiueblio u sebueyo

O JUNODOE 8¥e)] 0} palepdn pue pamalnal Alienbe.
aJe swelsAs uewebeuew aoueuopad 8y e

wawebeuew
souewnopad sy senoaduwl
Aisnonunuoo j1ounon sy

oy

Dama-ND40
rage 219

'sessa00.d Buluueid
Hun ssauisnqg pue jeluswipedsp ‘erelodiod
8U] OlUl P8} 84 pue WSl WNIPaW 8y} JBAO UO
psuodal pue pPsysi|gelse aJe SpuUsi} 90UBWIOLS] e
"ol Jo pouad B JsA0 JowW ueaq aaeYy Asyl Usym
sjebue] eouewiopad jo Aynouyp eyl Buisesioul
Ag 1o} paALls sI JuswaAoIdWl SNONUIIUOY)
"‘gouewWIOpad [enioe o bl ul
pesinal aie ‘suejd ejdosad pue sueid jusweroidul
‘sue|d Jjun sssuisng pue [ejuswuedep
‘e1el0dI09 usnbesgns ul s1ebie) eouBwIOped e
"souewoped saoiduwi 03 sueld uoloe
pue suoliepuUBWWOoa) 8pnjoul spodal 8s1lIlWoD) e
"Aiesseosu s UOIOB BA1309.1100 asaym Bunybiybiy
‘sjinsaJ eouewIoOMed pejielep epnjoul spodal sy e
"s981IWwW oo s1endoidde pue Buige)

"S8WI00IN0 Ul SjuswaAosdwl
SAUP JBYl SUOISIOBp
poddns 01 pasn si paAsiyoe
seouewopad anneel

SDUBPIAS 10 3dueInsse
ut sdeb paynuspi
$Saippe 0] Suoiloy

:AQ peouspiang

:@0ueInsse
o sejdwexs/saoinog

‘JUBWIUOHAUD
aouewanob ajeiodioo
a2yl JO s1uswWwale AsH

-18Y

2 Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xuleN — 60/800¢ JUSWSIRIS 9OUBUISAOE) [BNUUY




Gg 10 z| ebed

00P'60-90-G1 A 8ouSpIAS Buroddns Jo Xujew - 60-800¢ SOV

Pana-220

pUB UONBORIIUSP! YSu 10} saInpado.d dnewsl1sAs e e padojeAsp skey [1ounod sy 26
ssao04d bujuueld ssauisng
[enuue 8y} Ul paiepIsuod
sl Juawabeuew YsiY e
juswissosse
Juspuadspul 01 109[gns aJe
Swis1sAs uswebeurew YSiY e
sie1s1Bal ysu [eluswpedap pue Jun ssauisng paulep ussq
Aoy 1o Bupsel Jeinbal a1e|dWod YpNe [BUISIU] | oaey JUSWISBBUBLL 3SI IO}
sy 1o} Ajjiqisuodsel sanljiqIsuodsss pue sejoy e
Yum s1e01140 Aoy sisi| ABsjens Juswebeury sy e WewsbeueW XS
Aatjod .uoidweyd, o1 pauiodde
wewebeuew Ysu Buuonuow 1o} Ayjiqisuodsal ueaq sey JobeuBw JoIUSS Y e
w_ [[eJon0 sey juswusbeuBA YSIH @ HPNY JO peBH e ysu
\ 'SHysU siepIsuod Bupjew uoisioeg e
D ssoesse uejd jeioueUl pue sssuisng GHN\_OQ\_OQ ® Aoud e se wsweabeuew
QU "Uollewojul weswsbeuew MSL 898 slaquisw
- ysu ereudoidde spnjoul spodal se1iWwo) e pue JusLueBeUBW JOIUSS e
‘Juswebeurul S @pPnjoul wCM_Q sseuisng [enuuy e | pue UQWCQEQ_QE_ >=3u—wm0003m
"sjuswisbuelie aJe yolym juswebeuew s 10}
1uswebeurWw Ysii peAcIdull UO SJUBWIWIOD YdD | sesse20.id pue Sainioniis Jesio
"'SeINUIW 881IWLWIOD PNy e | pajuswaldwi Sey |1Iounod ey as
yoeoudde 1je1s ueasal |je
81210d100 S |IDUNOD MBIASA 0} Paysiiqelse 0] PSIBOIUNWILLIOD U98Q SeH o
dnoJg Bunieslg uswebeue|y Msiy oibe1eng e siseq
'9911ILIWIO0D Jpne Jeinbai B UO PEMOINDL S| e
'6002 Jaquiaosa(] pue g\N30 u1oq Aqg siseq Jejnbai e uo Abejels S|eAs| Joquisll pue J8oijo NS
92UBPIAS 10 90oUBINSSE ‘JUSWIUCIIAUD
ui sdeb paijiuapi :9ouUBINSSE aouewanob syeiodiod
SSaIppE 0} SUOIVY :Ag paousping J0 sa|dwex9/s82In0g By} Jo suswoe Asy | 48YH

Z Xipuaddy

aouapins Buipoddns Jo xUIB — 60/800¢ IUSWSIRIS 8OUBUIBAOK) [BNUUY




Gz Jo g} ebed

00p'60-90-G 1 ¥A 80USPIAS Buioddns Jo Xurew - 60-8002 SOV

SI TNV 01 8bus|eyd [ebs| oyl 1By} JusAe sy}

ul eoejd ul sjuswebuelie Aousbuiuos sey |Iounon) e

wv)

[lenIN\ SeNLIoYINY [BO0T 8Y) paulof sey [Iounoy) e

"Sjuswipedep o} Bujpiodal pue swie|o |nysseoonsun

PUB |N}SSO00NS 0 90USPIoUl 8Yl BULIONIUO e

'$]000104d JJOOM, BUL YIM 80UBPIOIE

ul pebeuew Bueq aJe swie|o aoueINsSu| o

‘AiBuipioooe paisnipe aie puny ayj o}
SUOHINQLIIUOD PUB UOIEN[EA [BLIBNIOR JUspuadapul

JejnBas 0} 109[gns aJe suoisinoid souBINSUI-j8S @

3su Buioueuy oy sjuswebuelre
Jesjo pue peysijgel1ss

"18W 8Je 8ouUBINSU] 1O} Sjuswalinbal [ebe) |y e [[eM SBY |IoUNoOD 8y | ag
e\ 9911IWIWON
N PNy pue siaquisiy 1ueAsal ‘siebeuew
o Joluss 01 papodsl aie SHpNe Ul paijuap! sysu Aey] e
n% aoejd ul Bulipne paseq sl JO 90USPIAT e
o ‘[OAS] JoquUIBUL pUB JBoIl0
ereudoidde o3 ¥su jo Buipodal seinbai Jo aouspIng e
8]0A0 Buipodes yoee Jo ped se pasojiuow
pue PapJod8al PalIUSP] 8g 0] SeNSS! Ysu
Ae¥ aiinbaJ sjuswebuese Juswebeuew 1000l e
sue|d SS8UISNQ Ul PBPN|OUl SYSU A8y e st Buniodss
aoe|d Ul sie1s1681 pue Buipiooal 1o} seinpesoid
NS Jlun sseuisng pue [eluswiuedsp ‘eieiodio) e paulep j|em sey |1Iounod ay| pPS
yeis
AQ poolsiepun si yoiym ysii
"'SHUN SsauIsSNq |e ssoJoe paljdde JO uoleneAs pue uoneoIIIusp!
Ajjuelsisuod pue peslbe useq aABY UOIBN[EAS ay} 01 yoroudde eei0di00
9DUSPIAS IO BOUBINSSE ‘JUBWIUOIIAUD
ui sdeb paynuapi :@oueINSse aouruianob ayriodiod
SSaIppE 0} SUOIIOY :Aq peousping j0 sojdwexs/s82iN0g a2y} jo suswele A8y | i9H

2 Xipuaddy

aouapins Buipoddns jo Xuie — 60/8002 1USWSIRIS S2UBUISAOL) [BNUUY




Gg 1o t7| ebed

20P*60-90-G 1 #A 8ouepiAe Buipioddns jo xiew - 60-8002 SHY

SSOUBAIDBYS S
asIWIXew 01 ‘010g udiep
Aqg s108loid pue Msu
‘eoueuLIOMad O} |IDUNOD
Y] $S0I0E pappaguus si
wieisAs 1} uswebeuew

Ul perepdn pue pemainal aJe (sie1sibal ysu pue
swabeuew 108foid ‘Buiuueld Aynuiuoo ssauisng
‘Alojes pue yiesy) SeniAlloe ysu As) jje aunsus o}

yiomawelj sepinoid ABajesis ysu Jo Juswebeueyy e

saniAnoe Juswebeuew 10ofoud ‘Buiuued

SS8UISN| ||B Ul PaSSaIppE Juswabeuel ysiy e
sJe1siBal ysui jo Bunepdn pue mainal seinbay e

SysSl A8Y JO UOISN|OUl 8y} 1O} SUoIj08s dlj1oads aAey

ue|d SSauIsng pue SMaIney ue|d ssauisng-aid e

IoUN0D

souewiopad 99NIWWOD ay1 1noybnouyl peppaquis
MaU Byl Jeyl ainsug  e| lpne pue gNTD 1B SHsu Aey jo Buiode jenbey e S| JusLuabeuBw YSiY ug
erendoadde aieym suonduosep
gofl ‘suejd Yiom pue ssauisng ‘siaisibal ysi
N Ul pepnjoul aJe saljjigisuodsal Juswebeuew Ysiy e
mn__ ‘sigisiBal MsIi Jun $sauisng pue "S)su s8y) buibeuew
jeluswipiedep ‘e1eiodiod Ul pajielep SISUMO MSIH e | 1O} 8|qelunodde aue siebeuep Bg
%u seoInIeS [ePeT Jo pesH 01 senss| 4su ybiu/Aey|
mm wbBHyBIy 01 wiuo} ysu e Buie|dwiod sspnjoul
YoIyM UOIIBIPSIO0E [9X87] OARY S82IAISS [eDaT] e
Buiuren
JuswaBreueL Ysi YIm papircid 8Je PeAjOAUl Jels
pue sie1s1691 Msu ol1oads aney syoefold [eoeds jiy e
uswebeuew
ysil sepnjoul Buiuies; siebeuew 1o08foid e 1JB1S JUBASO)
sie)s109. Msu dopasp 01 ssev04d su} Joj Bujuresy uswebeuew
10 ped se Bujures; Juswsbeuew Ysu uayeuspun 3su Jo swwesboid
oABY swes) Jueluebeuew [euswpedsp |y e| e padojersp sey Ajuouyine ey 1S
|N1SS800NS
80UBPIAS 10 8OUBINSSE :JUBLIUOIIAUS
ui sdeb paynuepl :aoueINsSse aoueusanob ajeso0diod
SSalppe 0} SUoioY :AQ paduaping 10 sojdwexa/saoinos 2y} Jo suswPR A9y | jeY

Z xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xulBp — 60/8002 1USWSIRIS 80UBUISAOL) [BnUUY




Gg 40 G| sbed

20P'60-90-G 1 A 8ouspiAe Buioddns Jo xulew - 60-800Z SOV

uswabeuew eouewopad ‘siaisibas ysu
‘Alnunuoo sseuisng ‘Juswebeuew 108foid ‘Q9H
— S8I1IAII0. Juswabeuew Xsu A8 ||e 0] Seoualalel
sepnjoul ABa1elis Juswebeuew Ysu 818400100 8y |
salnuUIW pue

sepuabe | NG pue gn30 Ag peouspine - s, I NG
pue giN3D 01 8oiApe apiroid pue sesseooud
uswisbeuerw ysu eyl poddns Jpne jeulslu]
sasseo0.d abusjjeys

pue sieisibai ysu uo sejepdn ‘luswebeuew

ysu syl buimeinai Aleinbay
Buiuren uswabeurwl Msii
Buimainal pue Buipircid
aonoeld poob

Buueys pue jusweabeuew
Msu Bunesjunwiwon
saAlieniul Juswebeuew
3SI mau Buiaug

Msu Buiddepsao

o seale BuiAuepi
‘seibslrilS Ysu

uo weay 1wbw ayesodion

Mm )S1 UO spodal Jejnbal saAIe08) 981ILILI0Y) PNy Buipoddns pue BuisIApy e
0N usweabeurw 3siu Jo uoneuswe|dwi :Aq sseo0ud JusLuebeuew Ysu
D uo spoda. Jeinbas 8AIBI8I PUR [IDUNOD 8y} 0} enjen sppe (juajeainbe
n% 8y} ssoJor Juswabeuew Ysu Joj Ayjigisuodsal 10) pleoq juswebeurw
o yum Apoq 81e40di09 | ISAO SB 108 gINTD 3Su o1es0diod ay | IS
wswebeuew 108loid ‘Buiuueld ssauisng SpPosU SJ9sn 1oL SWislsAs
JOJ 8|ge|ieAe uoijeuLIoUl JuswebeueWw YSiY uonewIoul Juswebeuew siy 3G
aoe|d Ul pue paaibe
Ajlewioy 4SH 404 yomaulely Jusiusbeuep Msiy
‘peliuepl usaq aaey sdiysisuped Asy |1y
‘[oAs} Jaguisiu
pue Jsoiyo ereudoidde sy) 01 spew spodey
‘pouiad
108l0id 8y} BuLnp pemainal pue s1o8fosd Jofew paJiepisuoo Ajny aie
JO Yels 8y} 8J0J8q USyBUepUN SJUBLISSOSSE YSIY Buppiom diysieuned ui sysiy fg
9]0A2 Bujuueld ssauisng yum aui
9DUDPIAD 10 BJURBINSSE JUDLLIUOJIAUS
ut sdeb psynuapi :@oueInsse aouewsnob ayeiodioon
s$s9ippe 0] SuUolIY :AQ peouspiAg jo sojdwexs/ss0inog Ay} jo suswele A8y | jeY

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo xule — 60/800¢ 1USWSIRLIS 8OUBLIDAOK) [Bnuuy




Gz 40 9} ebed

00P*60-90-G1 ¥A ®ouspirs Buipoddns jo xujew - 60-8002 SOV

suochiiepuswiuiodal

Asy jJo uoneuawadwy e

suonoe
pue sjgeiswy jo9loid
pJeOg 9OUBUIBAOK)

"9p02 jenuapnid yim eoueldwod

JO JUSLUSSSSSE IPNE [BUISlUl PUR [BUISIXT e

"81ISgOM

pue 1eueul ‘sBulsLg ‘UoIONPUI BIA UOIJBUILISSSI  ©

‘Aeinbeu

paldope sey {ounon e
He1s

WUBASJSI |[B 0] Palediunwiuiod
Ajopim pue pamaines Aejnbe.
‘panosdde Ajjewio) ueaqg aaey

sysu [ediouud a1ebijw
01 saJnpanoid pue

swiaisAs sepnjoul yoiym

Damsaan-DDA

uollBlLIOU| pelepdn pue pamairal ‘pancidde Ajjewnoy yolym aoe|d ui suonenbal | |oJIUOD [BUISIUI JO WSISAS
1o uoneuswadwy e aJe 1SIXe SUOoIoNIISUl pue suoleinbal [eloueuld e [BIOUBUI} USLIUM 8JB 8J8Y] | 1SNQOJ B Sey |1Iouno) eyl €9
siebeuew
Ul @oUSpiuUoD saldsu) e
sjuewieal}
ysu Buiuiwielep ul yoddns
pUB 92IAPE SOPINOIH
uoioe
y uonebiuw Msu Buisiuoud
N__ ul pyoddns sspinoid e
D ssao0.d
D) sisAjeue pue UONEIIIIUSPI
m siebruew 0} 8ouelsSISSE 8piroid 01 soe|d MSuU 8yl ul poddns epinold e
ul aJe sejou aouepinb doysxiom juswebeuew Msiy e uonenwuoy Aoijod pue
sseo0.d Bupnjew uoisioep poddng e
wswaebeuew ¥su sy} poddns 0} swwesboid ‘pue 8oiApe
1pne jeulalul [enuue Ul peijioads saoinosey e pue suoido Jeyo pue senss|
sellljiqisuodsai asAjeue 01 s|is Aressaosu
sepn|oul uonduossp qof — Jedijo 81eiodiod ay1 yum pejuiodde useq
Sk 108 jusWwabeuBA YSIH pue IpNY JO peeH e sey Jeoio Msu a1esodlod v wg
buipodal ysi Jo}
synsal sy} BuileuIpIo-00 e
(s)ers1bol
90UBpIAS 10 8oUBINSSE JUSBLUUOIIAUS
ui sdeb payiuspl :|8ouBINSse aoueuianob ajesodiod
SSaJppe 0] SUOIIOY :Aq paouaping 10 sojdwexa/sa2unos By} JO Suswve AdY | j8H

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo XU1BIN — 60/800¢ lUSWS1R1S 80UBUISAOL) [BNUUY




Gz jo /| ebeyd

00p'60-90-G| A 80ouUspIAe Buiioddns Jo Xurew - 60-800Z SOV

‘sieguwieul

usag aAey yoiym aoeld

pue sJ82ij40 J10j 8oe|d Ul }ONPUOD JO SBP0D Ul 1oNpuUOod JO S8p0o ale aiey | 99
‘peresIuNWWod pue paaoidde dgH 1o}
Aoljod Buipodal [ejpuaplUOD pue BuimojgepIsiym
slisgem pue 1oueJiul Ul piay si Aajjod ‘Hels je
‘Hels ||e O} sjiews ‘elsgem 0} PO1BDIUNWILIOD AjPpIM puE
‘JolIv|sSMau Jels ‘uoljeulwessip Jo sejdwex3 pamainal Apenbal ‘penocidde
'siequisw Ag jeroidde [ewio Ajrewioy usaq sey yoiym
‘parepdn pue pamainal Aleinbas ussq sey aoejd ul Aoyjod uondniioo
pue sisixe Aoljod uondniod pue pnel-i1eunon pue pnelj J8lunoo e si aley | ole]
‘joug wes | pue Joi8|sMau Jels ‘alsgem "EIS ||B O} po1BsjunwiwioD
_mm_v ‘JoUBJIUI BIA UOIIBUILISSSIP PUB UOIROIUNWIWON Ajepim ‘pamaina.
N 'siequisl Ag jeacsdde jewiod Apeinbal ‘penosdde Ajjewioy
(1)) ‘AuenBes psiepdn pue pemsins usag sey yoym eoe|d ui Aoijod
~d9 usaqg sey pue s1sixa Aoijod BuimojgaisIyp Buimojgeisiym e si aley 29
o sune|Ing wewsinooid
‘JSUBJIUL BIA UONBUILLIBSSIP PUB UOIIBDIUNWIWOYD "Hels [je 01 pejediunuwiuo0
"11oUNOY [N} BIA paAsIyoe S| [eacidde [euio Ajopim pue pamairai Apeinbe.
‘Buspus) aul-uo ‘poncidde Aj[ewio) ussqg aney
‘Bupsuped B8 seinpasoid mau JeAcd 01 perepdn yoiym eoe|d Ul sisepio Bulpuels
pue Apejnbas pamainal aie ‘1Sixe slepio Buipuels 10BJIUOD USHUM BJE aJay | asg
aouepinb 3IoM swielsAs [eroueuly A8y jo Lied se ypne [eulsiul
v4dI1D poasiaal Aq pejsel st epo) fenuepnid yim soueldwo)
pue sjuowsbueLe peldope 8poo [ejUSpPNId
uswabeuew useq sey juswebeuely Ainseal] uo 8poD Y4dID ay} yum aouendwon e
Ainseal} JO mainal "siep|oy uswebeuepy
1uspuadepul BUImojjo} 196pnq |je 1o} uonebsep 186png 10 BWBYOS Ainseali] uo 8poD v4dID
8DUSPIAS 10 BOUBINSSE JJUSWIUOHIAUD
ul sdeb paynuspl ‘8ouURINSSeE aoueusanob ajelodiod
S$Saippe 0} SUoiloYy :Aq paousping jo sejdwexs/saounog a3y} jo sjusuwele A8Y | :18YH

2 Xipuaddy

aouapine Bujuoddns jo XuUIBN — 60/8002 1USWSIRIS 82UBUISACK) [BNUUY




GZ o g1 ebed

00p"60-90-G1 A @ouspiAe Buioddns Jo Xujew - 60-8002 SOV

‘SISBq
Jenbai e uo polsel Ajjny
ale s,dDg Hun ssauisng

pue jeiusuwnedsp

siseq JejnbaJ uo alepdn pue MaiAs) 0}
swuswalinbas sepnjoul ABaless juswsbeuB YSIY
dDg wepioul Jofew jo Bunssl Jenbey

10y AousBuiuod IA1D yum aoueldwod

ur — ooe|d ui aJe sue|d AUNUIUOD SSaUISNg

Jeinbal 0} 10slgns aiy e

bunsel
Jenbal 01 100lgns sy e
sueid ey}

pue seaJe 90IAIeS [BONIIO |8
Jo} dn umeip usesq eaey sueid

Pasna-290R~

IIe 1By} 8insusa 01 paaN Hun ssauisng pue [eluswpedsp ‘epelodion AINUIIUOD 82IAI8S/SSauIsSNg 19
SUOISIO9pP
pue saloljod 1usLwaIn00id JO SSBUBAIID9S
Buniojuow 4o} pasn st yolym pajusws|du
MOU LIBISAS juswiabeueip 10B11U0CD MBN
Jsue|smau sweainooid
Je|nbal eiA uoneuIwSSSIp 0 sojdwex] $490110
O ‘siequuaw Aq Aoljod jo jeacsdde jeunio- UBAS|8. |[B O] Pe1BOIUNWIWOD
N__ ‘sjusLuealbe yiomawely “Ba seAneniul pue panrocidde Ajjewio}
N M8U JO 1uUnoooe ayel 01 Aenbes perepdn pue ‘dn umelp ueaq sey Aoljod
> POMBIASS UBa( Sey pue sisixe Aojjod juswiaindoid wsweinooud s1esodiod uo
o jeuBAlul UO S[gelieny ‘JBlS JuBASiRl J|B
‘siaquisw Ag swayos jo [eacidde jewio 0} peleuILBSSIP pue paroidde
"SUOIIOUBS pur S|0J1U00 aenbape seetodiooul Ajreunio) ‘dn umelp ueaq
pue 00z Ul palepdn uonehs|ep Jo sweyos sey uonebsjep Jo sWwayos v 69
s}salalul 9911IWILWIO0N) spJepuels 8yl Ag pemeinel ‘peamainal pue
10 Jo1s1601 S192140 10} pue siegusul [enpiaipul Aq patepdn s Jsisibal sy parepdn Apeinbel ‘paureiuie
sjuswebueie WIBUOD) e "SIequUISW 0} SISIXe Sisalalul o Je1sibey s1 s1s8401Ul JO Jasibal v 10
‘uononpul ayelodiod
0 Yed se siapels Mau 0} pue (9002 AInr)
pajepdn usym YJeis e o1 Ajjeuwlio} pepiroid seido) "JelS ||je 0} pajeojunuiwod
‘'slaquisw Ag sepon) Jo [eacsdde jeuio Ajepim pue panrosdde Ajjewo)
90UDPIAS 10 doURINSSE JJUDUIUOIIAUS
ul sdeb paynuspi :90UBINSSE aoueuian0b aye10di00
SSalppe 0} SUoioY :AQ paosusping 10 sajdwexa/seaInog 2y} Jo sluswee A9y | 18H

Z Xipuaddy

aouapins Buipoddns Jo XUIBN — 60/8002 1USLWISIEIS 9OUBUISAOY) [enuuy




Gz 10 51 8bed

00pP’60-90-S1 A 8duspiAe Bupoddns Jo xujew - 60-8002 SOV

‘'spodal pue sjelsslel

3SH B0 Aoljod 10 SSBUBAIL08Ye JO S0UBPIAT e

Jole|smau ‘sBuislig ‘1eueiul

pue sysgem B9 uoneulwessIp Jo ssidwexy e
"siequiswi Ag Aoijod 8y} JO [eaoidde jeuwioq e

‘pomsinal Apejnbal

"HEls ||e O} pa1esiunwiuIod
ue9eQ sey pue mainal Jejnbal 01
108(gns si ‘pancidde Ajjewio}
‘dn umelp ueaq sey Aoljod

DaAama-DND"7

ueeq sey pue sisixe Aoljod A1ejes pue yiesH e Ajejes pue yiesy a1esodioo v wg
"spodal Juswssesse pue uoiuido ydo e
"spodas Ipne [euisixg e "Jusuissasse Juspuadapul
"Wodes Jipne [enuuy e | JeinBai 0} 108IgNs S| YJoMmale.)
"syodei pue sue(d Hpne [euisiUl e |  |OJIUOD [BUJBIUI S, IOUNOD BY | i9
- sIseq [enuue ue uo Jaisibal
N 3SU 818J0dI00 Byl SMBIAS) 891WIWOD PNy e
N speay 1un ssauisng
__nuv pue sJojoslIp [enpiAipul ‘gINTD Aq paioyuow pamaInal
S pue pameinai Apenbes aue sioisibal ysiy e pue paJojuow Apenbal
L paysiqeise aJe pue SHsU A8y JO uswsAoW
useq aAeY ‘SIOIEDIPUL YSU 8PNJoUl YoIym sisisiBal ay1 MoeJ; 01 dn umelp
Sl JIUN sseuisng pue [eluswipiedep ‘ejelodio) e  USSQ SARY SIOIEDIPUI YSI A9 %9
SSOUBAIL08YO S
BSIWIXeW O} ‘01L0Z YyoIe
Aq s1osloid pue Msu
‘aouewUlopad 10} [10UNOD "S)sSI A8y ebeuell 0] PaUBISSE 8Je SIBUMO YSIH e
By} $S0.I0B pappaquus si ‘Apeinbe SYsU payiiuspl sbeuewl
welsAs || uswebeuew pajepdn pue PemeIAS) ‘PaIOHUOW 8J. S|0JIU0D ABY e 01 S|0U0D A8Y sspnjoul
souewIOpad ‘way} ebeueus 0} S|0JU0D sJe1s168J XS Jun ssauisng pue
MBU 8yl 1Byl &Insuy e Ajluspi pue sysu A8y 1IN0 18 sialsifal ysiy e [ejuswipedsp ‘e1eiodiod ay | fe]
ENEY
9DUSPIAS 10 82oUBINSSE :JUBWIUOIIAUD
ui sdeb paynuapi :aoueINsSse aouruIan0b sjel0dioD
SSaJippe 0] Suoiloy :AQ peduaping 10 s8|dwexa/s82in0g By} JO sluswve A9y | :1aY

2 Xipuaddyy

2ouapine Buipoddns Jo Xule — 60/800¢ 1USWSIERIS S90URUISAOY) [BnuUUY




Gz 10 0g ebed

00pP’60-90-G1 A @ousplAe Bupoddns Jo Xujew - 60-8002 SOV

0LOcC yoiep

Aq passaippe Ajny

aJe MalAsY ealy lulop
pue 89IA18S SHNPY
‘90IAIBS SUOIBIO|Y
BuisnoH 9y} JO smainal

slagquisw pue gNgo 01 SISeq Ajyjuow
B U0 soueLIoped Jeylo pue adueul ‘S |dM

uo spodel wisisAs Juswebeuew souewWIOUSd
SISEq [enuue ue Uo SWajsAs

[eroueUl A8y JO SMBIAS] 8XeLIapUN JIpNe |BuJSju] e
uo pauodsals pue

usyeuepun Asains sjuepises Juspuadepul jenuuy e

paysi|ge1ss pieog sewooinO Alllend e
Buipsenbajeg

JON0D 01 paysligelss Apoq Jjequisiy juspusdspu] e
siequiein

pue gNZ0 01 pauodal ale yoiym D90D/A31S40
‘B 9 suoijouny uonoadsul [BUIBIXS ‘S80IN0SY

paule1qo pue payiuspl

8Je seoueInsse
feutoixe sieudoiddy e

8OUBINSSE JO S82IN0S

a1eudoudde paijuspl
sey Aluoyine ey e

o0 pue suoijoadsul 10 89S pue YdD B0 $80IN0Ss 1USLISSOSSE :slopinoid
mN__ juspuadapul SNOLIBA WO} PBUIBICO SOUBINSSE [BUIBIXT e BSOUBINSSE [BUIBIXS puk
o ayi Jo 1no Buisue sseoo.d Buiuueid sseuisng ayj Ul pappaquie 90UBINSSE JO SO0INOS [BUIBIXS [ewiaiul pereubisep wolj
o)) SUOIIBPUSWIWIODBS ale pue sISeq [enuue ue uo papiroid aie pue jeuwssiul aiedoidde PaAI0B) BIE SUBLUSIE]IS
© aylleyrainsugy e SIUSWISIE]S SOUBINSSE JOV PUB JOJOSIIP [BUIBIU| e paulluielep sey Ajuouyine oy sourinsse ajeldoiddy e/
"0l S8WO021IN0
‘siequunu Buispewiwns spodal 8siWWoD) e
'so|l) syueldwon e
'sio1s0d ‘sie|jes] ‘ewweiboid uoponpul ‘ldueiul ‘pemainal Apejnbes
pue e)isqom "B-e uoneulwessip jo sojdwexy e g pue ‘siep|oyeNelS JUBAS|SI
‘slequisw Ag Ao1jod Jo [eaoudde [euiog e Jeylo pue olgnd sy ‘yels
"sjuswialinbej 1UBA8I8) ||jB 0] pslediunuwuiod
Aioinjels JueAs|el jjB Yum Juelduod sl einpedold e ‘panocidde Ajjeuwnso) ‘dn umelp
‘perepdn pue pamainal Apeinbas ueaq usaq sey ainpesoid pue
sey pue s1sixe ainpeooid pue Aoljod sureidwo) | Aoijod sjuiejdwoo 81eiodiod v ug
9OUSPIAS 10 8OUBINSSE JJUSWUOIIAUS
ul sdeb paynuspl :aourINSse aoueusonob ajeiodiod
SS9JppE 01 SUOHOY :Aq peousping 0 sojdwexa/sanineg a8yl Jo swuawse A9y | ey

Z Xipuaddy

souapins Buipoddns Jo XU — 60/800¢ 1USWSIB1S 9JUBUIBACK) [BNUUY




GZ J0 Lz 9bed

00p'60-90-G | A 80ouspiAe Bunioddns Jo Xujew - 60-800Z SOV

[N} pUe 881IWWOY 1PNy 01 podal Ag peouspine
pue 82110BId JO 89P0 V4dID &Ul yiim saljdwoo

Dama-ND00

AjIng yoiym UOISIAIP IIPNE [BUISIU| UB SBY JIOUN0s) sjuswiebuelie JIpne [eulalu] 9/
9011WWO0
eAs|el 01 pauodal
Apeinbeau si ssaiboid
pue wes] uswebeuew
JOIUBS JUBABIBI
Ag pamainai pue peisanbai
aJe SUOHEpPUSLILLIODSI
uo spodas dn mojjo4 e
a1eldoidde
/U_ se panoidde pue
\ sseo04d Buipodas Apsuenb enbei jo ped paJjedeid aJe suejd UOOY e
D Sk suoljepuswIWOsa) Jipne jo dn Mojj0) sapnjoul 9911WILIOD
W 9911WWOY HPNY — PaIolUoW aJe suejd uoloe ||y ejeudoidde o} pspodai
N JBUOISSIWIWOYD) 92UB}IBAING JO 8010 B8 pue wies] uswebeuew
suonouUN} UoIloedsul SNOLBA PUR SIOlIPNE [BUISIXD JOIUBS JUBABIB)
w0y spodal JueAs|al [[B SBAIS08. 991IWIWI0D HpNY Ag pemeinal aie suoday e
SIoqUIBIA pUB gD 03 pauodal ale Aljesueo palejjoo
(leweixe pue [eulsiul) suodal aourInsse Aoy |1y 8Je spodal 8ouBINSSE [BUISIXT p/
siseq [enuue ue uo papinoid aie papinoid
SJUSLUBIELS 9OUBINSSE JOV PUEB JOJD8IIP [euloiu] 8Je seoueInsse [eluswipedag 9/
SiSeq [enuue ue poaibe
UO SJIONPNE [BUJISIXS YlIM posibe ale sj01juod ey pue paiiuap! usaq saey
S8|l} HPNe Uo PIBY (e — SWelsAs [eloueul uaAIb 8q 01 S| 80UBINSSE YOIYM
(e Ul S|0JIU0D A8 8l 1USWINOOP HpNne jeulaiu] U0 Sj0JIU09 A8y a1eudosddy a/
9DUBPIAS 10 9DUBINSSE -Justiuosiaue
ut sdeb paynuepi :aoueInsse aoueusan0b a1el0dion
SSoIppe 0} SUoIoY :AQ peousping 10 so|dwexs/s821N0g By} Jo siuswae A8y | 18y

2 Xipuaddyy

9ousapine Buipoddns jJo XUl — 60/800¢ 1USWSIRIS 80UBUISAOL) [enuuy




Gg 10 gg ebed

0P 60-90-G1 #A @ouspiAe Buipoddns jo Xulew - 60-8002 SOV

10 AJjeol1uoi1o9i8) piay S 90USPIAS 8JaUM JO Sjiele e
Xuew

SOy Buisn papioos) PUB PBIIIUSP] SOOUBINSSY e
seouUrINSse aoueUIenob ssesse 0] dnoub aio2
w0} $801AI8S [eboT] JO peaH ‘SO0IAISS JSqQUIBIN

dnoub 1eo1}0 Joluss
8oUBUIEAOD 0} paiedo|e
Aupqisuodsal [eJon) e
S9OURINSSE
aouewsnob Buoe)joo

JO pesH ‘1usuwebeueiy YSIY @ HPNY JO PeoH e 10} paysI|geISe WSIUBYISIA as
S|041UOD Ul SSoUMESM JO
seaJe Ajjuspi 01 siepinoid
92UBINSSE [BUIBIXS
pue [BuIslUl paulsp
sjuewabueie uonesiuebio | 8y} WOl spodsi s1enjeAs
aoueUIBA0b 81210dI00 SOPN|OUl S81HWIWOD ay1 1noybnouyy peuyep Apes|o pue aA1e0a. ‘Ajiuspl
upny 69 aousIael JO SULIBY JIBY} UIYHM 8Je S80UBINSSE JO UOIEN[EAS | 0} sluswabuele ajenbspe
D PBUIBIUOD SealiWWo)) A8y J0} saljjiqisuodsay e 8y} Jo} seijigisuodsay apew sey Aliouyine sy eg
ad aouewLIOpad 80IAI8S PUE [BIOUBUY
® Uo 18uIgen pue ginNgD o1 suodal seinbai sepiaoid siuswebuele
MU pue aoeid Ul WOISAS DULIOHUOW 80UBULIONSd e Buuoyuow sourULICUSd 65,
0 ‘018 Aupendsoy pue syib jo Jeisibal ‘1salaul
JO SUOIIBJB|08P ‘SISDIJ0 PUB SJoguusLu 10} 10NPU0D
0 $8p02 - aoejd Ul 8 8ouepINB JOVIOS/V4dID
S8Nss| 1Ua.LND 198|j81 0} Yum aul] ui eouewianob a1e1odiod JO sjuswse Iy e
2ouBLIBAOL) a1eiodion) "alsgem
JO 8pOY) [B207] [lounoD uo paysiignd pue [punoy aul Ag psidope suswebueie
2y1 a1epdn pue MOIADY - e Aj[euuio} 80UBUIBAOK) 818400400 JO 89P0 [BD0T] @ soueuIaA0b 81el0dion i/
S91IWWIOD HpnY
0] pepiroid swalsAs [eloueul) Aoy UO spodey e
"WIOM S1I UO 1pNe [euisixe Ag souelol
90UBPIAS 10 9oUBINSSE JJUSLWIUOIAUS
ut sdeb payiuspi :8ouUBINSSE aouruianob sjeiodion
$S8IppE 01 SUOHOY :Ag paouspiag 10 sejdwexa/sesInog a8y} Jo suswee Aey | joH

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xulBIN — 60/800¢ 1USWA1B1S S0UBUISAOL) [BNUUY




Gz J0 £ ebed

00p*60-90-G1 YA souspiAe Buioddns Jo XuleWw - 60-800Z SOV

0} dnoib Bupom 8109 SE 108 SadIAISS JIaqUIB) JO
pesH pue saoineg [ebs 10 pesaH ‘Upny JO pesH

sey SHY 8y} jo uone|idwod

ussq sey luswelels

® auyy Joy Aupgisuodsay 9OUBUISAOY) [ENUUY UY | BOL
paJojuoul
pue psijusws|duw
S| PUB SOSSOUNEaM
[O1JUOD paljiiuspl
ssaippe 01 pealbe si
ue|d uonoe sjeudoidde ue
ueid panoidde pue | 1Byl 8.NSuUS O] WSIUBYOSW
uoIjoe 8y} JO SISBQ 8yl SO} XUJEW SOUSPING SOY dn umelp st uejd uonoe uy 1sShqod e si aJey | e6
pebus|ieys pue psuloped
n - Juswssesse der) e
9] aulpesp Aioiniels Aq
N uone|dwoo 1o} s|gelsWil] e
”_nuv wisiueyosLw
S uonen[eAs psuyaq e
L seoueinsse jo AlAllos(go
pue souspuadapul ‘sysu
JoA0 soueINsSe Buipnjoul
ainpaooid uonenjens
0} se @ouepIinb Jjes|) e
(p1dY st @oUBPING
J9UM 0} Mul| Jes|o
Buimoys Jo ‘aji} 8ouspIne
Jayue) saoueinsse
saul|pesp AIOINIELS 198W 0] pealibe ajgeiawl} pue [e JO PIODa) [elIUSD)
s19011)0 A8y uesmiaq aoe|d Ul sbuiesw Jenbey e pap.iooa) pue pesibe
XUIEW SOV 8y} Ul papJlodal si (Ajenuetu oJe seoueINsSSe palinbay e
30UBPIAD IO BoUBINSSE JUBWIUOIIAUD
ui sdeb payiuspi :90uBINSSE aouewanob ajer0diod
SS8IPpE 0} SUOHOY :AQ paouaping 10 sojdwexa/s821n0g 9y} JO suswve A9y | 18y

Z Xipuaddy

aouapind Buipoddns jo XUl — 60/8002 1USWSIRIS 80UBUISAOK) [BnuUy




Gg 10 g ebed

00P'60-90-G1 A 8ouspIAe Buioddns Jo XUjBW - 0-8002 SOV

(uonesiueblio

BU1 JO JaquuaW JOIuss 1sowl
pue Jao10 JOIUSS 1SoW "9°))
siuswalinbal A10IN1els Yim
aouepIoooer Ul a1eudosdde

SOy 40 sauoleubis aJe pue psulep aie D|S pue
ale |Iounon) 8y} 1O JBpeaT] puk SAIINDSXT 8y e SOV 8yl 03 seuojeubls ay | arl
BwJoj-0id Y4dID dui yim
20UBpIODOE Ul ‘pajussald
S9IHWWOND Sl SHY 8yl Uo (8811wiod
PNy pue 18uige) ‘aingD Ag meinal 1o} SHY pauysp Apes|o paiebsiep 10) Aloyine
yeip sepirnoid uswabeuey ¥SiY R HPNY JO pesH  e| s Buipods. Joy Aljiqisuodsay 8y} o1 wodal enuue Uy | BLL
Alioyine eyl
991HWILION UpNY Ag pancidde pue pabus|eyo
m,v_U pue giNT0 Ag sseooid abus|eyd pue mainey e ‘pPOMBINGI SI SO BU L 201
N aulpesp Aioinels
uswabeuew 3su g ay] S}9sW 1Byl B|gBIeWI}
Hpne Jo peaH AQ paiojuow pue aoeid Ul sjgelswl] e uononpold SHY ue s iy | aot
a saulepinb
V4dID Ylim 8ouepiodoe Ul
S| pue ‘900g suonenbey
(puejbuz) (uawpuswe)
Y9V 8ul Aq pasine)
Se ‘002 suoneinbsy
HpNY pue sjunodoy
9y} Ul 1IN0 1S 8jgeiaulil
pue sjuaLuaiinbei
'6002 IMdY £ Uo gINTD O1 peiusseid SOV yeig e Aioinyels syi Yyum
goy 9)1Idwod paubisse usaq 20UEBpPJIO20R Ul payelp
82UBPIAS 10 8JUBINSSE JJUBLUUOIIAUS
ui sdeb payuspi 190UBINSSE aoueutonob ayeio0diod
SSalppe 0} SUonoY :AQ paousping 10 sa|dwexa/seoInog BU] Jo siuswele Aoy | :joy

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo XUl — 60/800¢ 1USWalelS 80URUIBAOL) [BNUUY




Page 233

Gg 10 Gg ebed

00P60-90-G L PA 8ouspIAe Buipoddns Jo xu1ew - 60-8002 SOV

"18W 89 10U |jIIm AByl swnsse S1UN02%E AJoJNiels 8yl yum
0} uoseal ou ‘sbupesw Asy oy sepusbe uo goy uolyse} Ajpwiy e ul paysignd
‘sauljpesp AJOJniels YUm sulj Ul SOY O UOHONPOId e 8q 0} Aj@l| s} podau 8y oLl
9DUSBPIAS IO B0UBINSSE JUBUIUOIIAUR
ui sdeb payiuspl :@0ueINSsSe aoueusanob sjeiodion
SS8IppE 0} SUOIOY :Aq paouspiag J0 s9dwexsa/seoinog ayl jo suswele Ay | 1i8Y

Z Xipuaddy

@ouspine Burioddns jo xule — 60/800¢ JUSWAIRIS 9OUBUISAOL) [BnuuyY




Page 234



Page 235

Gz jo | ebeyd

90p*60-90-G} yA 82uaplAe Buipoddns jo xuyew - 60-8002 SOV

1901140 JBYI0 pue gN3D ‘1IBuIgqe) 8y} 0} spoday
paiinbal se sjesw

pue sanssi [BUOIINNISUOD uo YBISIeA0 sey dnoib
Buppiom Jequiew Aped-ss0.0 B SI YIIUM HMHD

lojuow pue ypum Aldwod
‘Juswisidull ‘e3ediuntuwIog
‘arenjens ‘Ajjuspl

0} sainpes0osd aanosy3 o]}
6002 Y21 ,,0€ Uo j1ouno) jiny Aq
pesibe pue HANYD AQ PasIOpus awsyods pasinal
- 6002 UoJep ul pa1s|dwiod SEM UdIUM MBIASI
‘sjuswasnbel a9a1 jo ped se psiepdn uonebsieg jo swsyog
aAne|siba| yum jueydwos siuswaainbal
pue asodind 10} )i} ansus Aoinyels Juenelel Jo seidoo ploy seoinleg [efe
o} siseq olpouad e uo| Adoo piey ul pue 18uUBIUI UO S|GE|IBAE UOINHISUO)
pamainal aq o} uoijebajep ‘siseq Jejnbal uo
O awLYyos aoiorid pamalAal S| pue suoijouny A1oinjels Aey saiiuapl suonebiqo
1S8q Ylim aoUBpIOdOR U| uonebe|ep Jo SWSYDS pUB UOIINIISUOD [I0UNOY Aioniess Jo piey ploosy at
"YoIB Wy
«0€ U0 1ounog jiny Ag peaibe awsyos pasirai
- 6/800¢ Ul pamainal uonebaleq o aweyosg
(19210 LG LS 48010 Bunoluop ‘@dinIeS pred
jo pesH) sisbeuewt Jueasal Jo suonduossp qop
SHBUD 8INJoNS
‘siseq Jeinbo.
j1oUNOY uo pamalasl pue soejd Ul uonebsisp Jo aWwsyog
1IN} Aq se8h yore poaibe 80uUBI9al JO suLIB] 88lILIWOYD
Buiaq aiojaq Ajjenuue ‘paulep ‘Buisusol ‘B ‘sealULIOD paysiiqe;se suonebigo
POMBIA] SBOIILIWIOD | [IOUNOD JYidads JBylo jie pue ‘Jeulge) sy} Jo ajoy Arewoy aJe suonebiqo | Aloinyels fediound Apuspl
Ile 10} 9ouUaI9jal JO SWIB | "UONNHISUOD S JIounon) Aioness oy senyiqisuodsey | 0} PBYSIARISS WSIUBYDIS el
80USPIAS JO 8JoUBINSSE ‘JUBWIUOHAUD
ut sdeb payjuapi :doueINSSE aoueuianob airiodiod
$SaIppE 0] SUoioY :AQ paousping JO ssjdwexs/seoInog a8y} Jo syuswee A9y | :joYy

Z Xipuaddy

9ouapine Buioddns Jo xule — 60/8002 JUSWSIEIS SOUBUISAOKL) [BNUUY




Page 236

Gg 0 g obed

20P"60-90-G1 A @ouspiAe Buioddns Jo Xulew - 60-8002 SOV

s1991}J0 10} sseooud festeidde ayy ut Aousiedwiod
Aoy B sI ssaualemy JeuoniesiuebiQ pue jeolljod e
ssaualeme
reuonesiuefio pue [eofijod uo juswsle olyioads
e sey ssebeuew Joj swwesboid diysiepes e
6/8002 Buunp paisaiiep
pue padojaasp Buteq s1eo1jj0 pue sisquiawl
10} swwesboid aoepsiul freoniod ayy 1e Bupliopy e
"93]JILUILIOY) SPJBPUELS O} pauodel pue paiojuow
Bulurel] 8oUBUIBAOH |EOIYIS 1B 80UBPUSHE JOQUIBIN
‘siaysaljel
[enuue yim 1onpuog jo epo) uo Buiuresy Buipnjoul
Buiufes) UORONPUI BABY SISqUBW Palodle Aimau |l e
“(8002 Ae Uil epew sabueyo Juss8l JSoW)
uone|sibe| ueosl Ag paiinbel 8poo siequaw 0}
SjusWIpUSWE 0] Papuodsss PUB SONss| 80UBLIBAOD
JesIyie 10} JUBISISA0 Sey 8810 Spiepuels e
‘uononpul uo swwesboud
pue ABejens oyoads sey swiwesboid QN e
soj04 oy10ads 10} BuIUIES} UOHONPUI UIYIM PBpN[oU| e
‘yeis
| 01 penssi-aJ PUE siseq Jejnbel e uo pamalas)
‘gor|d Ul 1ONPUOD JO 8P0Y SISO PUE SIOQUISN
SJUBAD
Buieniq Jaguisw ‘eousisjuo) s epee ‘B8 seipoq
JueAgjal Aq palinbai se paispisuod pue peiedeid
uoisioep Joj suodal / sBuysug - uoneisibs] mau
j0 suoneoldw 8y} uo sdnoib Jsqwew pue sdnoib

pasn ale
pue 1s1x8 abueyo ane|sibs|

90UBPIAD 1O 9lURBINSSe
ut sdef paynuapi
SS9IppE O] SUoHIY

:Aq paousping

:9ouURINSSE
jo so|dwexs/sasInog

‘JUSWIUCHAUSD
aouewiaaob sjeiodiod
al} 1o sjuawoe Ao)

48y

Z xipuaddy

aouapIne Burpoddns Jo Xure — 60/8002 JUSWIIELS SOUBUISACY [enuuy




Page 237

G2 Jo ¢ abed

00pP’60-90-G+ pA @duspine Buioddns Jo xurew - §0-800Z SHV

01 siequisw jaued Bulpienbajes ‘600z Ae / udy
ul jsued o} pajuiodde sq 0} Jequiewl Juspuadapuy
"peaibe Yol 600z udy ul paysliqelss |sued
ao11081d pue Aoljod Buipienbejes s,usipjiyd maeN
6002 Mdy — ga4 wouy

BuiprenBejes isysaijal PaAIBaL SIOJIdUNOD ||V
800¢ 98Q ul

paiiodde Jreyn pieog Buipienbsjeg juspusdspuy)
feaocidde 4oy

6002 Iidy-piw Ul Jsisiuiw s,usIpiiyd pue 31840
0} papiwgns pue paonpoid uejd uoioe Yy yeiq
‘pepodal pue soe|d ul sued

U010 - S82IN0S8Y 10 8SN YdD ‘SJUN0ooe [eul

10} "B suopepuswiwooal podal Jipne jeuss1xy
sjuejdwoo psydn Aue

0} ssuodssl Ul us)e] UOIIOE 8AID81I00 JO S0USPIAT
aouewIBA0b jeoyle

‘B e seale Ysu Ay paynusp! Jo uolieiuswsidu

:24 suejd suonoe uo suodal BuOHUO
‘suoljepuswwiosl ysuiebe

JUsWOASIYOE JoHuowW 0} aorid Ul suejd uoijoy

198D ‘48 ‘a31sd0 e sjuswissasse punoj
[eusaixe pue suodel JIpne [eulsixs/euisiu] e  aJe sour|dwod-uou JO sease
“Usye} Ussq Sey UoljO. JBy] 91IISUCWSP 0} 0USPIAT | S49UM UBME] S| UOIIOB 9AI1081T pL
‘SI90lj0 pue s;leqwiswl Joj sewwesbod | [ 1T
JuswdolaAap 8NN} LLIOJUI M SBWO2INO "Sddd
SJequual JO aunjesy A B S| SSBUBIEMY [BOINIOd e
888204d uoioONpPUI 182140 Jo Led pue
90U8PIAS 10 douBINSSE JUSWIUONAUD
u) sdeb paynuspi aoueINSSeE aouruianob ajeiodion
SS3IPpPE 0} SUoIloY :AQ paouapial jo sajdwexa/se0In0g ay} jo syuswele Aoy | 1oy

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo xuleN — 60/800¢ 1USWSIRIS 9OUBUISAOL) [BNUUY




Page 238

Gz Jo  ebed

00P'60-90-G1 A ©ouspiAe Buiioddns jo xuleW - 60-8002 SOV

ealy [B007 84} JO AsAlsp 8y} ybnoayy paiouuow
s uonejuswseidwi sy pue pasibe Ajulol ussq
aney Abere.is 8y} o seAnoelqo eyl '9102-,002
ABereng Ayunwwo) AsbuueH eyl padojensp
sey sieuped sy yum Jayeboy ‘1ounod sy

®

seAosigo pue sapuoud uo
SJOP|OYSHEIS YlIM UOIIBYNSUOD

SoAloalqo
ales0diod ysygelss
01 8oe|d Ul WISIUBYIBIN

124

"gorid Ul sue|d uoioe pesibe

YIM ‘Selpog Jequisu pue Jaoyjo ajeudoldde o}
pauiodal pue usyeuspun usaq aney siuswebuele
uewebeuep Ainsesl| jo SMa|A8) Juspusdepul
sjurejdwon Jojiounod sbuesy uoleuILLIBISP pue
JUSLISSasSE 1o} sjuswiabuelie [eoo) pajuswsiduul
SBey 98]HWIWOY) SPIBPUELS 8002 AB 90UIS
swinioj s1eudoidde Aq paiepisuod pue paonpoid
s8nss| aourLIBAOD adkjed BIpURXSlY JO SMaIAeY
6002 sunp/Aep Ui pesibe aq

01 Aj8¥l] ©INJONUIS PISIASY "9INJONJIS B0UBUIBAOY)
1SN1L S,UBIPIYD PasiAeL uo 600Z Idy. Ul
pPalNSU00 sisuped pue SIsquIBIN ‘SJBDILO |IPUN0D
‘abueyo

0} suonepuswwooal AuB / us)e) useq sey uojjoe
1eyMm Jo serepdn oipouad aAledas 0} JBulgeD /
Jequiswi Jeuigen sy ‘senssi Bunuaied e1eiodiod
uo suonEDIUNWWOD pue sbuysuq ‘Bulures
Jaquiawu oy 1yBISIano aaey osie 0} - 600z Iudy ul
paystgelse dnour) Aiosinpy Buijusted erelodio)

600¢
Kepy ui Buiuresy BuipsenBajes jeuoilippe aAlsd8l

92UBPIAS 10 8ouUBINSSe
ui sdeb paynuepl
ssS8Ippe 0] SUoHoY

:AQ paousping

:9oueInsse
10 sojdwiexa/s82InN0g

:JUSWIUOHAUSD
aouewanob sjeirodiod
By} JO sjuawale Ad)|

18y

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xule — 60/800¢ 1USWSIRIS S9OUBUISAOY) [enuuy




Page 239

Gg 1o g ebey

00p'60-90-G | ¥A 8oUSpIAS Buipoddns Jo XueW - 60-8002 SOV

‘uswabebus uo sidipund A8y sepnjoul Yyoigm
8002 dunp ul pesibe aouBUIBAOL) JO 8POD dSH
psonpoid 8q {jim Yomawel

8y} jo uoision ysibug ueld v omewely

8Y} UO UOBYNSUOD / suonesiunwiwod sygnd

jo ebeys Jayuny e 8q |IM 81841 01/6002 Buting
uoneyuswaidu

10 bisiano yum 1sisse o0} paonpoud aq

Im ueid Asaisp e dSH Ag uswesibe Buimoljo
"600¢ Iudy 81| Ul dSH Aq sidiound u psaibe

8q 01 Miomawel Juswsbebugy Ayunwwon yeiq
6002 Idy L g uo ysiuy

01 enp pousad UoIBYNSUOD — ABMIBPUN YIoMSLUE.)
swabebus AJuUNWIWIOD Yeip Uo UolBYNSUO)
109 Aq yo-ubis jeuy Buniemy "6002 UoBN

ul papnouoD aiem s1abiel vy 8y} Jo ysaler y
DINd dSH

ayy 01 Apspenb podal pue yy] syl uiyim s1ebie)
aAloadsels siay} Jo spuswebeuew sourwiopsd
yum pabieyd ase spieog onewsy] ayj

8002 aunp ul oo Aq paubis Ajjew.io} sem
Jusweaibe vy [eul 84l "dSH 8yl yum pejeiobeu
pue padojonsp sem ] mau s, Asbulien

ajdosd AsbuneH eia ooz judy Ul sjuspisal

Ife 0} painguisip Buleq si pue 600 Yo ul
palejdwoo sem ABsjess Alunwwon) sjgeurelsng
s AebuiieH jo sjuswaAsIyoe Jo ajepdn uy
"JuswieaIby

DOUBPIAD 10 |soueINSSe
ui sdeb psynuapi
SS8ippe 0} suoloy

:Aq psousping

:@oueINSSE
jo sojdwexs/sa0Inog

JUBWIUOHIAUS
aouewanob aieiodion
B8y1 Jo suswsie Asy

494

2 Xipuaddy

aouapiAa Buipoddns jo xule — 60/8002 1USWAIEIS 9OUBUISAOK) [BNUUY




Page 240

Gg Jo g efed

00p"60-90-G 1 HA @ouspire Buioddns jo xurew - 60-800Z SOV

MOUS S]jnsal ABAINS LIS INO "JUSWIBASIYOR U0}
s1ebie] [enpiAlpul Yiim sued ssauisng S,80IA18S By}

Buipnioul ‘sisployae;s jje pue
4JB1S O} PaeoiuNUILWIOD Apes|o

wJoj seAnoslqo ueiuoo sjesierdde yeis [enpiaipul e aJe saAnos(qo s Ajuoyine sy ez
‘maina) ueld ssauisng aud ayl yim B
Jeak piw pamsinai si sueld ssauisng ayy isurebe
sseiboid "SISOD pue sainsesw souewouad s1efpng pejeloosse
UM ‘9SBL1 9ABIYDE. [IIM JUN SSeuisng Yoes Uum payoiewl Auesio
moy no Bunies ‘saoinies syl 10} suejd ssauisng aJje pue sueid jeluswpedsp
BY} Ul pa1os|jal ale SOAIB0S[qO S JIounoo 8y e Ul pa1osyiai ake saAlosiao pe
‘senuoud s, jiounod ay} Buipunj sjgejee
0] Buipnjou; ‘se0InN0sal S81ed0jje PUE ueld |Iouno) 0} 91eja1 pue suonebiqo
sy} spoddns 3] “j1ounoo ey} Joy 1eBpng Jesh saiyl Aioinmers jediouud o} paubije
syl 1o s19s ABojeng [eloueuld WIS WNIPBIN By ale saAl0slqo pue sapuoud 2z
"ABAINS S1USPISa) [enuue JNo
ut Juepioduw a1e Aes sjuspisal Jeym Ag psuniojul
ase seAn08lqo s jIounod 8y paAsIyoe g |IM
8S8Uj} MOY PUE |IoUN0d 8y} JO selioud 8y} INo sjes
pue saAosfqo ABsjens Ajunwiuio) sy} 03 paxul| {(uoneynsuoo
si ugld j1ouno) ey ubredwed aunny ey} edeys ~ W04} MOoBqpas) Junodoe
AebBuieH Aes 1noA eneH By} ybnoiyl sispjoysyels o1 Buryey) pesibe usaq
puUe SjUSpPISal YIIM UOIIBYNSUOD BAISUSIXS aAeY saA1109(qo jeuonesiuebio
Joye padojensp sem Aberens Anunwiwop eyl e pue senuoud s Ajoyiny eyt qz
600¢
aunp ul dSH 01 pejussaid aq 0} uoheswS|dw!
Uo JUSWaE]S [enuuy uoljejusws|dul
j0 wbisisno sey dnoib soueussrob diysieuped
-SS049 UoIyMm 1o} paonpoid 4SH 40} Wuswslels
aouewIsnob ajel0diod osie si yoiym uejd uoioy
9oUBPIAS 10 9OURINSSE JJUBWIUOHAUS
ui sdeb paynuapi :@ouRINSSE aoueuIaA0b ateiodiod
SS2IppEe 0} SUoHOY :AQ peouspiag 10 sejduiexs/seoinog 9y} JO sjuswale A9 | J9YH

2 Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xule — 60/800¢ JUSWSIEIS SJUBUISAOY) jenuuy




Page 241

G2 jo / obey

00p'60-90-G | A 8ouUspIne Builoddns Jo XLjew - 60-8002 SOV

pannbai se

dnoif Bupjiom mainsi

uoinmsuos ybnouq
sjusWIpuUaWe 18yl

g3 o1 siseq Jenbal

B U0 S9Nnss| aoueuIonob

U0 UOHBULIOUI

siseq Jeinbai e uo

UoIINHISUOD 8y} 01 Bunelal sensst aouruIBA0S U

porepdn yym papiaoid aie gA30 1Byl 8INsSuUs jim

a|qelsw} — 600g [Hdy ¢ uo pesibe 8q o} HMHO
8y} 40} SaAlOR Jo swwelBoid MIOM 0L/6002

6/800¢ Ul palsidwos mainal uonebeieg

JO awWLBYSg s8Ny ainpasold ‘siepi Buipuelg jo

eoeid ui e sjuswsbuelre

pue sejepdn opinOid e| smalral pue aoeld Ul dnoig) BUPLIOAA UOINJISUOD) e Bunoyuow pue mainey ag
9]0. Ul paseq
pusajie o} siaquisul
Joy faosindwos *J921440 Bunoyuow ; 891lULI0D) spiepurls
aJe soidoy uiepao 8y} WOoJ} SUoHBpUSWILWODal AUB U Paseq
1BY) papuswiwonal pPaiNPayYos 84 JjIM SUOISSSS ainin{ ‘papincid ussq
aq pm H aeudosdde 8ABY 12NPUOD JO 8pOD Isquisiy 9yl uo sbuysug
SE OMAIN 21 "UoIBS
AQ paiouuow ARsoo oyoads B se aoueuIen0r) aleiodion sey pue aog|d
210Ul 8Q 0] SJUSAD ut swwelboid Juswdojaaq pue Bujules jequisiy e
1B 90UBpUBIE 1I8qUIBIN o ‘010 Ayeudsoy pue syib jo 1sysibal ‘1salsiul
‘PalanoD JO suonRIR|D9D ‘SISOILH0 PUR SIBqUIBW 10} 10NPUOD
Aj@1enbape aie sonss) 10 s8p02 — aorid u aue souepinb INYIOS/V4dID
8oUBWIBAOL) ajeiodion ylim aul) uy eouewianob a1eiodios Jo sjuswsle iy ¢ I2UNOD
1BY] 2INSUS O] Pamainal "sUsgem POUSHORISe | 8yl LIyIMm peppaquue aie
2q 0} swweibod j1IounoD uo paysyagnd pue ounon) eyl Aq psidope usaq sky 8oUBUIBA0Y) | sluswsbuelie ssueusonob
ain oL/sooe o Ajfewio} 8ouBUIBACK) 8je10dI0)) JO 8p00) [BO0T] e a1e10di09) JO 8p0D 81e10dI00 AT e
"UB|jeoxe aJe sanuoud pue senjea ‘uoIsIA
Buipuelsiapun 1o} synsal ASAINS {e1S "8002
judy souis jesieidde ue pey aAey Je1S JO %06 1B} sisuped
90USPIAD 10 BOURINSSE :JUSWIUOHAUS
ul sdeb psynuapi :aourInsse aoueutanob ayelodios
SSBIPPE 0} SUOoIOY :Aq paousping jo ssjdwexa/saounog 8y} jo spuswae Aoy | oy

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jJo xuleN — 60/8002 1USWAIEIS 9OUBUIDAOK) [BNUUY




Page 242

Gz jo g ebed

00p*60-90-G 1 A @oUSpIAS Bulioddns jo Xieul - 60-8002 SOV

uo siequIsiN
lie Jo} Buiuren jereusy) -
‘sloquiswt 99)IlIwo))
npny / jpuiqe)

10} Buiuresy oyoedg -

apnjoul |jim pue
sensst aoueuidAob uo
sjuswalinbai Hujuies)
JO JUNODJE 3)e] [IIM
"6002 AIne Ul DMATN
Aq paaibe aq 0}
01/6002 10} sawweiboid

uswidojeAa( IBqUIBN .

‘ABerens pue swweiboid

swdojens(] pue Bujuies JOqUIBN SUl JO Led e

aouewIaA0b a1el0dliod uo s | NG [eluswedsp
pue g3D 01 1PNy J0 pesH AgQ uolejuasaid

*

siequisw
[le pue s1ao10 Asy 0}
pepinoid Buluiel} 9oUBUISACY

pe

"pabreyosip
Ajerendoidde useq eaey sanijigisucdsal

1eyl WHipuoo sbunesiu 98]ILUloD WOl SBINUIN @
-aoueuionob ayeiodioo jo sjoedse e epnjoul HOL ¢

“aoueuIanob ayelodiod Joy Ajjigisuodsal
apn|ouUl 90UBIBIBS JO SWIS] 88JHWWI0D PNy

sanijiqisuodsei
aoueuIBAOD UUM
pabieyo 99100 B S| 1oy

g

sjaquiaiy 0] Juss Jspulusy

- psepdn pue pautejuew Jelsibes siequisyy e

sysaselul Jo Jo1siBal pue sieisibal Ayjendsoy

pue syib jo Buuoyuow pue Buipioosl ejeiodio) e
100130 Buuonuoy Ag pepinoid aoinpe BuiobuQ e

(seoiniag [eba pue Aoseioows(
(8007 “YSiY ¥ UPNY JO SpesH) 80uBLISAOD JO seale

£ay smainal Bunseiu Agauenb sieonO Aoinjels e

S0UBPIAS 10 adueINsSse
u) sdeb payuep!
$Sa4ppe 0] SuoloYy

:Ag paosusping

:@9ouBINSSE
o sajdwexs/seaInosg

“JUSWIUOHIAUD
soueuioacb sjerodion
ay1 Jo sjuswale Asy

Jey |

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo XUl — 60/800¢2 1USWSIELS 9OUBUISAOY) [Bnuuy




Page 243

Gz 10 6 abed

00P'80-90-G} pA 8duapire Buioddns jo xiew - 60-800Z SOV

SSOUBNII08YD Si
asjwixew o} ‘0102 Yorew
Aq s1osfosd pue ysu
‘aoueuIopad 10} 1OUNOD
8Y1 SS0I0B psppaquue si
wiB1sAs || wswabeurw

SMBIASI [BUJIRIXS JO [eulaiul wol) Bunnsal suodsay
awi} 1sno spremdn USAUP S| souBWOMed MOH ©
psessalppe s soueulopad Jood MOH ©
psuieluew Ayubayul
S} pue painided si elep aosueuiopied MoK
painsse st Ajjenb elep moHy ©
usyo moy
pue asuewLIopad U0 SUOAS) S8AIBOBS OYM,  ©
seinsesw soueuopad
8y] senosdde pue sauiuLIBIep OUp ©
suo yoes
Joj erep ayj Bunejoo oy sjgisuodsal st OUpy  ©
alnsesil soueuLIOuad
yoes Buinsiyoe 10} 8jqIsuodsss §) OUM  ©
pJ4ed8109s paouejeq oyelodiod Buipnjoul
- S2INsesw souewiopad JO S82IN0S |Iy  ©

O

®

Ajpunnol eyeiado swisisAs

aouewioped saynuapl eyl aorid ul yJomawel Juswsbeuew souewiopad | soeld u) sie syuswebueiie
MU Byl leyl ainsuy e Juswebeuew souewopad paljuept Ales|) e aall08Ye pue sAisusyaidwo)) | Juswebeuew 8oUBULIONSd ey
91ISgOM PUE JBUEBIUI S, |IDUNO0D
Uo 3|ge|leAR 8OUBUIBAOK) 8)e10dI0)) JO 8p0)) e
S8NSS| 80uURUIBAOD Aoy
uo Mfej pews pue joug wes | ui ueAlb siepuiusy e
‘ SlISgeMm pUE JBuBILI UO BjgejiBAr
‘souy] Buipodas Buipnjour ‘Aoljod pnesj-iuy e
1ouUBUI pUE B)isgem uo Aoljod BuIMO|q SIISIUM ¢ |  ‘senss| 9oueUIBAOB 81eJ0dI00
21Isgam JO SsaualemE Jap|oysyels
pue jaueliu] Uo SjgejieAR UOHINJISUOD JIOUN0D) e Jsyio pue oqnd ‘sieoiy0 ag
$8Nss| adueuIBA0D
90USPIAS 10 DOURBINSSE JUSUWIUOHAUD
ui sdeb paijijuspi :aoueInsse asuewianob ejeiodiod
SSaIppEe 0} SUoKOY J0 sejdwexa/seainog ay} Jo sluswve Aoy | 48y

2 Xipuaddy

:Aq pasuspiag

aouapine Burpoddns Jo XUIB — 60/800¢ JUSWSIRIS SOUBUIBAOL) [enuuy




Page 244

Gz J0 01 ebed

00pP*60-90-G} A douspIae Buioddns jo xiew - 60-800¢ SOV

T

ay} 01 pauesaid Apenbal ase suodel Bulioyuoy

pue sinjosge o abpajmou)

Py

SSOUBAIL08HS Si
SSIUIXBW O} ‘0102 yosen
Aq s1oefosd pue ysu
‘eouewuiopad 10} 1OUN0D
3U1 SSOJ0B pappaquIa S|
wesAs || juswebeurll
souewIopad

MBU By} 1Byl 8insuz e

RITIEY
WNIpaw pue Jesk Juaund ‘snusaAal pue [edeo

- spodes pue sBunesw Bupopuow 186png AjyjuoN
'S |dM PUE S, |dAg uo spodal Jpne jeussix3
‘PIROBIODS PBJUEIR] [[BISAO

Buipnioul ‘syeble} soueuuoped jeluswipedsp

pue 8pIM-}IoUNoD ‘[euoijeu Jo AIsAljep

By} Uo slequuaLl 0} pajuasasd ale spodal Jeinbey

saLwooINo pauued
sy 1suteBe Bujuopad sty
[1oM MOY ajeme S JIounod sy

4

splepuels
painbaJ ay} Buiseasoul Ag ebueyo snonujpuod
Bunnoes 10} pue s,|dy Jo Aljiqenns Buinuiuoo

sy} Buimainel 10y wsiueyosw perosdde ue s| aley |
"S.IdM Buueallep

uo sseiboid uo spodal Ajyiuow are aisy]
‘paiussjduwl pue

panoidde usaqg sey walsAs Buuojuow 1sngol
‘suejd Jun sssuisng pue fepuswipedsp ur pspnjoul
aJe pUE JUBLIBIS 9IIAISS OB JOo) peoidde

pue paysiqelse usaq aaey s,|dM teudoiddy

paJo)uoW pue paysiiqelss aie
sJoeoIpUl ouewIopad Asy)

qy

synse.
BuBBLIYOUSQ HUN SS8UISNg Jo/pue [eluswipedsd
spun ssauisng Jje Bupenoo swwelboid

Buyjos o ped ase synsal Buppewyousg

Buipnioul ‘smairas Aousidlye/Asuoul 10j snjep
(spodes fenuue Uy '6-9) syebie} souewopsd
1surebe jusLsAsIyoE o uosuedwod Jesh uo Jes i
weswebeuew souewiopsd jo

SOUBPIAD 10 BJUBINSSE
ui sdeb paynuspl
$88IppE 0} SUoNOY

:Aq pasusping |

:@oueInsse
jo sodwexa/ssoinog

JJUBSWUOHAUD
asueusdA0b sjetodiod
8yl Jo sjuswaje As)

ks

Z Xipuaddy

aousapine Buipoddns jo xue — 60/800¢ 1USWAIEIS SOUBLIBAOY) [Bnuuy




Page 245

Gz jo L} abey

90P°60-90-G | ¥/ @ouspiae Bupoddns jo xu1ew - 60-8002 SHV

Ag pojuswsidul

aJe uejd uooe Yy oyl
Ul SUCIIEPUSWIWODSI
9y} eyl aunsuj

‘ugld uonoe Yyvr

®

JuswabEUEBW YSI JO MBIASI [BLUIOJ JO 80USPIAT
991UILIOD

upne pue gin30 Ag — [eaocidde jeuuio) Jo 8ouspiag
"Joue4Iul 9y} uo paysygnd

pue aoejd uj ABajess uswabeuew ysu paroiddy

aleudoidde e parosdde
Ajjeuuioy usaq seH e
UOIYM NS
Buibeuew Joy aoeid ur Aojjod
pue ABajesis usliim B sl aJsy |

feuoiiesedo pue oibejens
J0 weawabeuew pue
uonesyiuap! ayy Joj aoeld
Ul $8$$920id pue swsisAs
1snqoJ sey |1ounod ay |

eg

‘sjusebuenie sy}

JO MaIABI [BLISIUL JO [BUIBIXS UIM BUi| Ul pasSIng.
aJe sjuswebueire Juswabeuew souewlousd oy
"SHJOMBWEBL} JUSWISINSESW doueLUIousd

Mau ‘aunjonns jeuonesiuebio u sebueyo

JO 1UNODJE e} 0} palepdn pue pamsaiasl Alenbal
ale swaelsAs Juswebheuew ssueuopsd 8y

wswebeuew
souewloped sy seacsdul
Aisnonunuoo j1ounoD ey

o

‘sessaoo.d Buiuued

Hun ssausng pue {eiuswiiedsp ‘eielodion

8Y] OJUf P8} aJe pue ULIB] WNIpaw 8y} J8AO Uo
psuodal pue pays|igeiss aie spusi} 80UBULIOLSd
"3} Jo pouad e JSA0 18w ussq aary Ayl usym
sjebie; aouewopad Jo Aynoiip syl Buisesaioul
AQ 10} pOALES SI JUBWBACIdW] SNONUIIUOYD
‘souewiopad jenioe jo b ul

pasinai ale ‘sueid ajdoad pue sueid Juswsacidul
‘sueid jiun ssauisng pue fejuswipedsp

‘arei0dio0 snbasgns ui syebie) eouswiousd
‘souewsiopad sacudul 0} suejd uonoe

pue SUOHEPUSWIWLIOIBI 8pNoUl suods) sajiluwo)
"AIBSS808U S| UOIOE 8A1108.1100 aseym Bunybiyybiy
‘synsas souewopad pajelap epnjoul spodal sy
'seaIWWoo areudoidde pue 1suigeD

"SSWODIN0 Ul sjuawsaoiduly
SALIP 1By} SUOISIOaP
yoddns 03 pasn si paasiyoe
ssouewIopad sAnee)

20UIPIAD 10 3dueInsse
ut sdeb paynuapi
SS8IppE 0} SUOHOY

:AQ pasusping

:@oueINSSe
10 sojdwexs/ssoinog

JJUSWIUOHAUD
aoueuianob ayerodion
ay} JO sjuswWve A

484

2 Xipuaddy

9ouapine Buipoddns Jo Xule\ — 60/8002 1USWSIRIS 9OUBUIDAOL) [Bnuuy




Page 246

Gz jo g| ebed

00P"60-90-G | A doUBpPIAG Buioddns Jo Xuyew - 60-8002 SOV

puE UOITeoliIusp! 3si Joj saunpadoid onewsisAs e e padojensp sey |Iounod ayl 26
sseooid Buiuueld ssauisng
fenuue 8y} Ul PaISpPISUCD
s) juswebeuewl ¥siy e
JuswISSosse
1uspuadspui 0} 108{gns aJe
SLIBISAS Juswebeurw YSIY e
sie1siBal ysu [ejuswipedap pue Jun ssauisng paulyep ussq
sy jo Buysey Jejnbas a1e|dwios ypne [euidlu] | oaey JuswabeuBWw YSU 10}
s 1o} Ajigisuodsel seniqiIsuodsas pue sejoy
yim s1oo1yjo Asy sisi| ABejess juswabeueN Ysiy o uswabeuew Ysi
Aojod .uoidweyo, oy pajutodde
jusweBeuew ysu Buponuow 1o} Anirqisuodsal uesq sey Jebeuew Joluss y o
[leJon0 sey juswabeuB MSIY 9 UIPNY JO PesH e su
‘sysi siepisuod Bupjew uoisioeq e
SSOSSE Cmmﬂ jeioueUl pue sssuisng mwﬁbOQuOO L] \SIOCQ e se wC@E@@@CQE
‘uoeuIOlul wewsbeuew ySH 89S sIBquisw
ysu ereudoidde spnjoul spodsl 8aiLILIO) @ pue juswebeuBLW JolUSg e
"JuswisBeurLL YS1 8pnjoul mcma ssauisnNg fenuuy ®| pue Umucm_hmxar:_ >:3n_.mwm003m
"syuswiebuelre aJB UoIym jusebeurw ysi 1o}
swoebeurw ¥su paroidwl UO SJUSWIWOD YdD | $9ss800id pue Sainjonis Jes|o
"SOINUILL 99JIILIOD PNy o  pajuswsjduwl Sey J1ounod 8y} as
yoeoudde HBIS 1uBASel jje
81100100 S [IDUNOD MBIASS O} Paysiigelse 0] PSIEDIUNWIWIOD U9S( SEH o
dnoun Buuselg uswabeuey ysiY oibe1ens e siseq
'98]IWIWOD JpNe Jeinbal B UO POMBINDI S| ®
‘6002 Joeqwiada( pue gINID uiog Aq siseq Jejnbai e uo ABsjenis S|aA8| Jequusul pue JBdIo ysu
80UBPIAS 10 BoUBINSSE JUSWIUOIIAUD
ui sdef paynuapi :9ouBINSSE aouruIanob sjeiodiod m
SS8ippe 0] SUoHdYy :Aq paouspirl 0 so|dwexa/sa92IN0s ayj jo sjuswope Aoy | oY |

Z Xipuaddy

aouapinse Buipoddns Jo xule — 60/800¢ 1USWSIEIS SOUBUISAOY) [enuuy



Page 247

Gz 1o g1 ebed

90P"60-90-G} ¥A 8duspine Buipoddns Jo xurew - 60-8002 SOV

sl JNV1 03 8busjieyo [EDBs| 8y} 1BUS JUBAS B}

ut soed ui sjuswabueue Aouabuluod sey ouno)
v

[enin senlIoyINy [eo07 8y} paulof sey j1ouno)
‘syuswipedsp o) Buiuiodal pue swield [Nysssoonsun
puUE |n§sSe00Ns JO aouapioul 8yl Buniojiuop
'51020104d  JJOOAA, UL UlIMm 82UBpIoDOE

up pebeuew Buieqg ale swield soueinsu|
"AiBuipioooe pajsnipe ale punj ayj 0}
SUOIINQLIIUOD PUE UOIIBN|BA jElIBN]1OE Juspusdeapul
Jeinbal 0} 109[gns aJse SuoISIA0Id 8oUBINSUI-J|OS

ysu Buioueuy Joy sjuswebuee
1B8j0 pue paysijgelse

"J9W 8l 8ouBINSU] 10} sjuswiaiinbal |ebs) ||y e [IoM SeY |1oUNnoD 8y | oG
SoRIWILWIOND
HPNY pue siaquuisyy JueAsel ‘siebeuew
Jojuss 0} papiodas sle Supne Ul psyiuspl SHsU As)] e
soeld i Buipne peseq YsuU JO SOUSPIAT e
"[eA8] JequusLL PUB JBDI0
sreudoidde o} ysu jo Buipodal sginfial Jo souUspIAg e
810A0 Bujpodal yoes Jo ped se paiojiuow
puB papJoda) PaRIIUSP! 8Q O} SBNSS| YSU
Aoy aainbal syuswsbBueue uswebeuew 108foid e
suejd SSBUISNQ Ul PapN|oul SYSL ASY] e st Buipoda
aoeld U s19)sIBsl pue Buipioos. Jo} sainpeooid
MSH JUN Sseuisng pue jeluswipedsp ‘ereiodion e pPaulap oM Sey JIouUNoD sy | ps
yels
AQ poojsispun si Udiym Msu
'SHUN sSaUIsShq (e ssoloe psijdde JO uoiENjEAS pUB UOEIYIUSP!
Ajjusisisuoo pue peaibe ussq 9ABY uolien|eas ay} 01 yoeoudde ajeiodiod
90UBPIAS 1O SOURBINSSE :JUSLIUOHIAUD
ut sdeb paynuspt .eouBINSSe aoueusanob ajeiodion
SSaIppE 0} SUOHIoY :AQq paouspial 10 sojdwexs/se2inog 8y} Jo spuswole A9y | [19Y

2 Xipuaddy

aouspine Buipoddns jo Xie — 60/8002 1USWAIRIS 80UBUISAOL) [BNUUY




Page 248

Gz Jo ¢1 abed

00P°60-90-G1 pA ®oUBPIAS Buipoddns jo xujew - 60-8002 SOV

SSOUBAII0aYe S
asiwxew 0} ‘0102 yoIepw
Ag syosfoid pue ysu
‘eourwIopad 104 IOUNOD
8y} $s0Joe poppaquue Si
walsAs ]| uswebeuew
souewuopad

MBU By} JBy} &Insug e

ul perepdn pue pemainal ale (sislsibal ysu pue
swsbeuew 108foid ‘Bujuueid AyNuluod ssauisng
‘A18)ES pUB Y}[eay) SSIHAILOR XSl A8 |[e 8insus 0}
suomatuel) sepiroid ABsjess ysu jo uswebeuey
salIpAloe. Juswebeuew josfoid ‘Buluued

ss8UISNq |8 Ul passalppe Juswabeuew ysiy
sioisiBal ysu jo Buirepdn pue mairal Jeinbey

SHysli A8 JO UOISN|OUL BU} 10} SUOI08S O1j108ds aAeY
uejd SSeuisng pue SMaIASY ueld ssseuisng-a.d
991IWILLIOD

upne pue gw3o 1e sysu Aey jo Buipodas seinbey

[IoUNoo

ay1 ;noybnoiyy peppequie
si Juswebeuew Msiy

ys

ajendoidde aleum suonduosep

gol ‘sue|d yiom pue ssauisng ‘sieisibal ysu

ul papnjoul ale sapljiqisuodsal uswebeuew 3siy
‘sie1s1Bal Msu Hun ssauisng pue

reluswipedsp ‘e1eiodiod u pajielsp SIBUMO MSiY

‘sysi ey} Buibeuew
10} 8|geuNoooe ale sisbeue

6g

sooinieg [ebe Jo peaH O} senssi ysu ybiy/Aey
wByuBIYy 01 wuoy Msu e Bunsidwoos sepnjoul
UOIUM UOIBJPSIOOR |9X87] SABY S8OIAISS [eber
Buiuren

Juswiebeurw S YIM papiroid a1 PBA|oAUl jjels
pue sie1sibal ysu oyioads aaey sioefoid jeroads |y
sweabeuew

ysu sepnjoul Bujutes) siebeuew jo8foid

sieysiBal ysu dojeasp o} ss800.d 8y}

jo ped se Bujuren Juswabeueul ysu usyeuspun
oAey swes) uswabeuew [ejuswpedsp |y

yels easlel
Jo} Buiuresy uswsbeuew

ysu jo swwesboud

e padojensp sey Ajoyine ay|

1S

90UapIAS 10 8oUBINSSE
ui sdeb paynuapl
§S8IPPE 0} SUOoIIdY

jnisseoons

:Aq pasuapiAg

:@oueINSSE
o sajdwexs/saoinog

"JUSLIUOIIAUD
aouewanob ayerodion
ay] Jo sjuawsaie Ay

o

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xule — 60/800¢ USWSIE]S 8OUBUISAOY) [BNUUY




Page 249

GZ 10 G| abey

00p*60-90-G 1} pA 8douspire Builioddns jo xujew - g0-8002 SOV

wswabeuew sourwiopsd ‘sieysibal ysu
‘Alinunuoo ssauisng ‘wswebeuew 108foid ‘SYH
— SoljAloR Juswabeuew Ysu A9y || 01 seouslalel
sepnjoul ABsjes Juswebeuew ysu 91ei0di00 8y |
sajnuILW pue

sepusbe | NG pue gW3D Aq peouspine - s, 1 NG
pue giNgD 0} 90IApe apiacid pue sesssooud
wswesbeuew s syl woddns ypne jeussiu]
sassaoo.d sbusyjeys

pue siaisibas ysi uo sajepdn ‘uswebeuew

S UO suodal Jeinbal seAie0as 881ILILICY PNy
wswabeuew Ysu o uopeuswaldu

uo suoda. jeinboi AR08 DUB JIOUNOD

ay1 sso.or Juswebeuesw ysui Jo} Ajigisuodssal

Msu oyl buimeinas Aueinbey e

Buiures Juswabeuew ysu

Buimelnas pue BuIpInCId e

aonoeid poob
Buueys pue juswebeuew

¥Su Bupesiunuiuon e

sannemul Juswabeusw

NS mau BuiALg e

“su Buiddepsnao

0O seale Buifjijuep] e

‘seiboaiesis ysu
uo wes} wubw ayelodiod

Buipoddns pue BuisIApy e

:Aq sssooud uswebeuey ysu
8y} 01 anjeA sppe (jusjeainbe
10) pseoq uswebeurw

UM Apoq 818100400 |[eJ9n0 SE 108 gINTD  » 3Su a1elodiod sy IS
uswsbeuew 1098foid ‘Buiuue|d ssauisng SpB88uU SJ9sSN 199W SWISAS
10} 8|gejeAr uonBULIO JusWwebeUBW XS o | uonBWIOI JuBWSBRURL YSIY 3G
aoejd Uy pue pasibe
Ajeunio) dSH 4o) yiomawely JusiusbeuBiy JSIy o
‘pPayiuep! usaq aAey sdiysieuped AS) Iy e
‘|oAs] Jequisw
pue Jsoiyo sieudoidde ayy 01 spew suodey e
‘pouad
108foid sy} Buunp pemainai pue syoefoid tofew PaIBPISUOD Ajjn} aJe
JO UBIS 8} 10§48 USMELIOPUN SJUBLUSSISSE YSIY Buppiom diysisuped ui sysiy Is
aj0Ao Butuueld ssauisng yim aul|
8OUBPIAS IO BouBINSSE JUSLLIUOHAUD
u1 sdeb psynuspi :@ouRINSSE aoueuan0b eiei0dios
$S2Ippe 0} SUOoNOY :Aq pasusping 10 sa|dwexa/sv0In0g oy} Jo sluswve A8y | oY

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo xule\ — 60/8002 1USWSIRIS 82UBUIBAOL) [enuuy




Page 250

GZ 0 91 abed

20P"60-90-G1 A 9ouspiAs Buiioddns Jo xujew - 60-8002 SHV

SUOIIBEpUSWILIOTS)
A9y jo uonejuswodw) e
suonoe
pue ajqelaw j0ofosd
pieOg 90UBUIBAOK)
uoljruLIoju|

"apo9 fenusprid yum aoueldwod

JO JUSWISSOSSE JIPNE [eUISlUl PUB [euisiXsy e
‘alsgem

pue 1oueui ‘sBulslg ‘UoONPUI BIA UCHBUIWSSSI]  ©
"‘Aenbal
pajepdn pue psmainal ‘pancidde Ajewlof

paidope sey {Iounon e
yes

JUBASISI [j& 0] PBIBIIUNUILLIOD
Alepim pue pamainal Apenbal
‘pancidde Ajjeulio) ussq aney
yoym aoeid uj suonenbail

sysu fedouud syebiyw
0} sainpaooid pue
SWI9ISAS Sapnjoul yoiym
JONUOD jeuJBIUI JO WBISAS

jo uoneuswRdWy e aJe 1SIX® SuUOoioniIsuUl pue suonenbai jeroueuld e [elouUBUY USTIUM 2Je 8J8Y ] |  1ShqOJ B Sey {1Iouno) syt eg
siebeuesw
Ui @0UspIUOD sandsu] e
sjuswieal]
ysu Buuiusep ul yoddns
pue 80IAPE S8pINOId e
uopoe
uonebiyw ysu Buisnuoud
ul poddns sepinoid e
ssaooid
sisAjeue pue uopesyiIuspl
siebBeuew 0} soue)sisse apinoid o} soejd S 8yl Ut poddns apinold e
uj a.e ssjou souepinh doysxiom juswebeuew dsiy e uonejnwioy Aotjod pue
ssao04d Bupjew uoisap poddng e
wswebeuew Ysu 8y} poddns o} swwe.bold :pue soInpe
HpNe [eulalul [enuue Ul paijioads seoinosey ¢ pue suondo Jayo pue senss|
saiigisuodssi asAjeur 0} s|iis Aresssosu
sepnjout uonduosap qol — 1810 81eiodiod 8yl yum peajujodde usaq
sk sjoe uswabeuey ¥SiY pue lipny JO pes e sey 1801440 Ysu 8eiodiod wg
Buipiodal Msu 104
synsal ay} Buileuiplo-0D e
(s)ie1s160.
9DUBPIAS 10 8oURINSSE jusuiuoliaue
u sdeb payiuepi ;goueinsse aoueusonob ajriodiod
S$S8JppE 0} SUOIOY :AQ paouspinl J0 sa|dwexa/seninog Y} Jo suswle A9y | J8Y

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo xu1eW — 60/8002 1USWSIELS 8OUBUISAOY) [Bnuuy



Page 251

Gg 10 /| ebed

90p'60-90-G1 A 8dUSPIAS Buiioddns Jo Xlew - 60-800Z SOV

‘sjaguIsWl ussq aAey yoiym aoeid
pue sJ90140 Jo} 80B|d Uf JONPUOD JO SBPOYD e U} JONPUOD JO SOPOD BJe 818y | 89
‘paedIuNWWoD pue pasosdde dSH o}
Aojjod Bujpodal feljuspiuod pue BUIMOIGeISIUM
alsgem pue Joueliul ut play st Aojjod e ‘yels e
‘JelS |e 0} sjiews ‘ajsgem 0] paIEDIUNWIWOD AjBpIM pue
‘Jo)}o|SMaU JJelS ‘UoHBUILISSSIP JO sejdwexy e pameinal Apeinbal ‘penocidde
‘slaquisw AQ jeaosdde jpuiio e Ajjeunso} usaq sey yoiym
‘pajepdn pue pamaiasl Apeinbal ueaq sey aoejd uy Aoyjod uondniioo
pue sisixe Aojjod uondnuIcd pue pRes-iejuncD pue pnesj Jajunod e si aiay | P9
‘Jolg wea| pue Jalis|sSmau jels ‘alsqeam "JB1S ||e 0} PalediuntiwoD
‘JoURAIUS BIA UOIIBUILUSSSID PUE UOIBDIUNWLWOD) AlepIm ‘pomainss
‘'siaquisw Aq jeaocsdde jeuiio] e Apeinbas ‘panosdde Ajeuio}
‘AieinBai pajepdn pue pamainsi ussq sey yoiym aoepd uy Aojod
uoeaq sey pue sisixs Aoljod BuImoigajiSIym Buimolgepsiym e sy ausy 29
sunapng juswainosoud
‘JouenUl BIA UOHBUILUSSSID PUB UOHEDIUNWIWIOYD o "Hels |je 01 pelesiuntuuod
"1ouUN0Y N} BIA paAsiyoe S| fercsdde [euiod e | Ajspim pue pemeinal Apenba
‘Buiiepus) sul-uo ‘ponocidde Ajjeunio) useq sAey
‘Bupeuried B8 sainpeoold mau JOA0D 0] patepdn yoym soeid ui siepso Buipuels
pue Apeinfbas pamainal sie ‘1Sixe siapio Buipuels e JOBJIUOD USIILIM BJB alay | a9
souepinb Wom swaisAs eioueul Asy jo Led se Jpne [eulaiul
v4dID posiaal Aq paise} s| 9p0) [elUSPNId UM BouBlidwo) e
pue sjuswebuene pajdope 9po2 [efuspnid
Juswebeurw usaq sey juswebeuey AiNseasj U0 8pPO) V4dID 8y} yum aouelidwo) e
Ainseau} Jo Molnal "sispjoy swebeuepy
1uspuadapul Buimoljoy 196pnq jie 10} uonebsjep 186pNQ JO BWSYDS e AINseas] Uuo 8pon V4diD
B0USPIAD 10 doURBINSSE JUSWIUOHIAUS
u1 sdeb paynuep! :PoueINSSe aoueusanob selodiod
SSaIppE 0} SUoioY :Aq paouspiag Jo ssjdwexs/sa01nog 8y} jo syuswvie Aoy | :joY

2 Xipuaddy

@ouspIAs Buipoddns Jo XUle — 60/8002 1USWSIEIS S9OUBUISAOL) [BNUUY




Page 252

Gz jo g} ebed

00p'60-90-G | A 8ouspiAs Builioddns Jo XujeW - 60-800Z SOV

‘siseq
JenBal e uo paysel Ajjnj
aIe s, 409 Hun ssauisng

pue jelusuipedap

siseq Jeinbal uo sjepdn pue MaiAs) 0}
sjuswalinbal sepnjoul ABeiens JuswsbeuBN MSIH o
d0g wepioul Jofew jo Bunsey enbay e

10y AousBunuon jIAD yum soueldwod

ul - aoed ul aie sueid AjnupUOD ssauishqg

lenbas 0y 109lgns aly e

Bunssy
Jenbas 0y 109fgns aly e
:sueyd ayy

pue seale a0IAIeS |BONLID ||B
104 dn umelp ussq aaey sueid

|le 1By} 8insua 0} paaN Hun ssauisng pue [euswiedsp ‘ejelodion e AJNURUOD BoIAleS/SSaUISNG 19
SUOISIDBaP
pue saioljod juswaino0.d JO SSSUBAILOBYS
Bunopuow o} pasn si yoiym pajuswsiduwl
MOU WIBISAS JuswaBeuRi 10BIIUOD MBN
Japeismau Juswainoold
reinBal eiA uoneuLIeSSIP JO sojdwexy s $1901}J0
'siequaiu Aq Aoyjod jo |ercidde [eulioq e jueAs|al jje O} PEIEDIUNWILLIOD
‘sjuswesibe yiomawel ‘69 seAneniul pue paaocidde Ajjewlo}
MBU JO Junoooe aye} 0} Aueinfas pejepdn pue ‘dn umelp ussq sey Aoijod
POMBIASI USa( SBY puB SISIX8 Aoljod juswiainoold e wswainooid arelodiod uo
jsuBiUl UO S|gBjieAy e ‘Jje1s JueAsil (e
‘slequisw Ag awsyos Jo [eroidde euio4 e | o} pejeulwsssip pue peaoidde
"SUOIIOUBS pue Sj0Aju0D ajenbepe sajeiodiodul Ajjewoy ‘dn umelp usaq
pue go0z Ul peiepdn uonebalep Jo sweyos e sey uonebaep JO BWBYDS 69
SGETE] S9JIWLIWOYD Spiepuels 8y} Aq pemairsi ‘PamaInsl pue
JO ._mww_mmc ,S1901}J0 10} pue sisqguusiu jenpliaipul >Q Umwmﬁaz ] \.mﬁm_amg Yyl e _umwm.uaz 2 ;Q:m@ ‘paulelUeW
sjuswsbuele WIUOD) o "SI8QUUSLL 10} SISIXD S1SaIolUl JO Jo1siDoy e s] siseJeiu] jo Jeisibal v 19
‘uononpul 818104109
j0 ped se siauels mau o} pue (9002 Ainr)
pajepdn usym yeis |le o3 Ajjewo} papiroid seido) e ‘IJBIS |{e O} Pajeoiunuiuwod
'sioquisl AQ Sepon) Jo jeacsdde jewio4 o] Ajepim pue peaocidde Ajewno)
asuUBpIAS 10 s8oueInNSse JUBWIUOHAUS
u1 sdeb paynuspi 18oueINSSe aoueusanob sielrodion
$S3IppE 0} SUOIoY :Aq paousping jo saduiexs/se0Inog By} JO sluswdle Aoy | 1J9Y

2 Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo XUl — 60/8002 JUBWS1L]S 9OUBUISAOY) [enuuy




Page 253

Ge 10 51 sbey

Q0p°60-90-G1 YA 8ouspiAe Bupioddns Jo Xipew - 60-8002 SOV

‘SHodsl pue sjelisial

JSH B9 Ao1j0d JO SSBUBAII08YS JO BoUBPIAT
“JeneIsmau ‘sbBuysiiq ‘lsuenul

pue slsgem ‘B9 uoneuIBSSIP JO sejdwexy
‘sisquiew Agq Aoijod ayy jo jeAacidde jewio
‘pamainal Apenbal

"HE1S B 01 paiediunwion
usaq sey pue mainsl Jejinbai o1
108lgns s ‘panocidde Ajjewio)
‘dn umelp usaq sey Aoyjod

ueaq sey pue sisixe Aoljod A1ejes pue ylesH | Ajeges pue yyesy o1esodiod y wg
‘spodal Juswssasse pue uoludo yd) e
‘spodal Jpne feulsixy e "JUBLUSSASSE JUspusdspul
"podas Hpne [enuuy e | JenBal 0} 108lgns SI YJomawely
‘spodas pue sugjd Jpne [eusslu]  e|  |0JJUOD [BUIBIUI S,|1OUNOD BY | 19
Siseq [enuue ue uo Jsjsibal
3SU 818100100 8Yl SMBIASI 991ILIWIOD LIpNYy  »
spesy Jun ssauisng
pue S101084D [BNpIAIPUL ‘GINTD Ag paiojuoul pPSMBINS)
pue pamsinai Apeinbes ole sioisibol sy o pue paJojuow Auenbai
paysige1ss aJe pue S)si A8y JO JUBSLWIBAOW
uaaq aABY ‘SIOIEDIPUL MSI BPNjoUL YoIym sielsiBei By} MoeJ; 01 dn umelp
3SII Jun ssauIsng pue [euswpedep ‘e1eiodio) | useq SABY SIOIROIPUI MSI A le)
SSOUBAID8Ye SI
BSILLIXBLL O} ‘0102 Udiew
Aq syo9efoid pue ysu
‘soueuliopad 40} [1ouUNoo ‘s)su Aoy ebeuewi 0] poubISSE 88 SIBUMO YSIY @
8y} $$0I0B pappaquie si ‘ApeinBsi sysu paynuap; ebeuew
wielsAs || uswsbeurw pelepdn pue pemeirs. ‘PBIOJUOW BB S|OJUOCD Ay e 01 S|0U0D A8 sepnjoul
souewopad ‘wayy ebeusw 0} s|j04U0D sJeys1Ba1 ys1 Hun sssuIsng pue
MBU 3y} 1By} ainsuy e Ajiuap! pue sysu As) N0 198 sialsiBal sl o jeluswipedsp ‘sjelodios oy fe]
ETEY
90USPIAS IO SOURINSSE JJUSWIUOIHIAUD
u1 sdeb paynuapi :aoueINsSse aouewanob ayes0dios
$SaIppe 0} SUoIOY :AQ paouaping j0 sajdwexa/sooinog oy} jo suswsle Aay| | :joH

2 Xipuaddy

9ouapine Buipoddns jJo xulei — 60/800¢ 1USWSIEIS 92UBUISAOL) [BNUUY




Page 254

GZ J0 0z ebed

00p'60-90-G | ¥A 8ouBpIAs Buioddns Jo Xuew - 60-800Z SOV

010¢ yoten

Aq pessaippe Ajny

ale MalnaY ealy Juiop
pue 92IA18S S}NPY
‘80IAIBS SUONEBIO|Y
Buisno} ay} JO smoinal
pue suonoadsul

slaquua pue gnNg0 01 siseq Ajyiuow
e uo souruLIopad JBYI0 pUB 80uBUY ‘S, |dM

uo suodal wsisAs uswebeuew aouBwIOUSd e
SISBQ [ENUUE UB UO SWSISAS

[elouUBUY ASY JO SMSIAS BYBLIBPUN LPNE jBLIBIU| e
uo pauodals pue

usyeUapUN ABAINS SJUSPISA) uspusdapul enuuy e

paysI|ge1Ss pieog SaWoong Aljen s
Buipsenbejeg

JBA0D 01 Paysiigeiss Apog Jagquisyy Juspuadapu) e
siaquisin
pue gNF0 0} pauodal are yolym D00/A31S40
‘68 suoiouny uooadsul [BUIRIXS ‘S82IN0SAY
JO @8 pue ydD ‘B8 $80IN0S JUBWSSESSE

paulelqo pue psiyiuspl
aJe ssourInsse
jeussixe sjeudoiddy e

a0ueINSSEe JO $82UN0Ss

sjeudoidde payiuspi
sey Alioyineayy e
:slepinoud

acmvcmawﬁc_ SNOUBA WO} PBUIBIQO B3URINSSE [BUIBIXT o 9OUBINSSE [BUIBIXS pue
ay} jo 1no Buisue sseooid Bujuueid ssauisng sy} Ul pappsguwe 2OUBINSSE JO S80IN0S [BUIBIXS lewian pajeubisep wiol)
SuolEpUSWILLIODSI aJe pue sISeq [enuue ue uo peplaoid ale pue |euwislu syeudoidde DPBAIB00) 848 SJUBWBle]S
oyl jeyl aunsuy e SJUSWIBRIS 90UBINSSE JOVY PUE JOIOBIIP [eUIDIU] e  paulwialep sey Ajioyine ay| aoueinsse ajelidoiddy e/
"018 SBWO0OIN0
‘siaquunu Buisuewiwns spodsal 8v1jiuwo) e
‘sajiy sjueldwon e
'si91s0d ‘si8|jes) ‘awiweliboid uononpul ‘1sueiiul ‘pamsinal Ajenbal
pue sjisgem B8 uoneulLIBsSIP Jo seldWEXT e g pue ‘SIOP|OUSHE]S JUBASIRI
‘Sieguisl >Q >0=OQ JO _m>0‘_aam jBWIO4 o Jsyjo pue o:a:a a8yl ‘Hers
‘sjuswaiinbal UBAS|8M ||B 0] PSIEIUNWILLIOD
Aioiniels UeAs|as jje yim Jueldwoo si einpedold  e| ‘parocidde Ajeuwsso) ‘dn umeip
‘perepdn pue pamainal Apeinbal ussq uaaq sey ainpaooid pue
Sey pue sisixe ainpesoid pue Aoijod suejdwo) e Aonjod suejdwoo eyelodiod v ug
20UBpIAS 10 SOUBINSSE JJUSWUOHAUD
w sdeb paynuepi :@0uURINSSE aoueuwianob sjeiodiod
ssaippe 0} Suoloy :Aq psousping {0 so|dwexa/seninog Byl Jo sjuswee As) | 118y

2 Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo X1 — 60/800¢ 1USWSIEIS 9OUBUISAOL) [ENUUY




Page 255

GZ o L g 8bey

90p'60-90-G1 ¥4 8oUBPIAS Buroddns Jo XujeWw - 60-8002 SOV

N} pue 890D Ipny 01 yodal AQ paouspire
pue 890198.Id O 9P0D Y4dID 9Ul yim seydwod

Ajing Yoiym UOISIAID JPNE [BUJSIUl UB SBY IDUNOD) o sjuewebuele Jpne [eusaiu] 9/
..... 981110
jueAslal 0] pauodal
Apenba.l st ssaiboid
pue wes] swesbeuew
JOjUSS JUBABIBI
AQ pamainal pue paisenbsi :
8Je SUONBPUBLILLODS)
uo spodas dn mojjo4 e
sleldosdde |
se penroidde pue
sso004d Buipodsi Apenenb JenBes 1o ped peledaid ale suejd uoiOYy e
SEe suoljepuswiwiodal Jipne jo dn mojjo} sepnjoul 291IWIWOD
S9THUWIIOYD UPNY — PaJolUoW 8.k suejd uoloe jjy sreudoidde o} payiodal
JBUOISSILULLIOYD) aougjjiaaIng Jo 8010 Be pue wes] uswebeusw
SuUOIIoUN} UoHVadsul SNOLIBA PUE SIOlIPNE [BUISIXS JOIUSS JUBABIal
w0} spodal JUBAS[RI B SOAIB08. 991IILUILIOD 1PNy AQ pemainal ale spoday e
SIoqUISIA puB gNTD 0} pauodal aie Aljesued paie|jjod
(leuteixe pue jeusslul) suodal @oURINSSE AdY [l o | ale SUOdB) 8oURINSSE [BUISIXT pJ
SISeq jenuue ue uo papiaoid ale pspiaocid
SjusWale)S SOUBINSSE JOV PUB JOJOBIIP [BUIBIU] |  BJe saoueINsse [ejuswiedsq 9/
SIseq [enuue ue posibe
UO SIOHPNE [BUIOIXD UIMm posibe aJe S|0/uU0D Ag)y] o pue paiuspl usaq aney
$3J1} 1IPNe Uo pjay | — SWaIsAS jeioueuly usAlb 8q 01 SI 80UBINSSE YoIym
[[e Ul SjOJIU0D A8Y 8Uj} JUSLWINOOP JIpNe jeuidlu) e uo s|03u09 Asy ereudoiddy a/
DOUBPIAD JO BOURINSSE Jusuiuodiaue
u sdeb paynuapi |aouemsse aouruioaob mumuoa‘.out
$S9JPPE 0} SUOIoY :Aq paousping jo sajdwexa/saainog 8yl Jo sjuswes Aoy | ey

2 Xipuaddy

aouspine Buipoddns Jo XujeN — 60/8002 IUSWSIRIS 92UBUISAOL) [enUUY



Page 256

Gz 10 gg abed

00p'60-90-G A 8oUSPIAS Buipoddns Jo xulew - 60-800Z SOV

10 Ajjediuciioee) pjsy St 90USPIAG BJ1SUM JO S|iBla(q e
Xiew

SOy Buisn papi0oss pue PaiIUSP] SBoUBINSSY e
SeoUBINSSE 8ourUIBN0D ssesse 0} dnolb 8100
w0} $921AI8G BB JO pesH ‘S8DIAIeS JaqUUB|

dnouf 1800 Joluss
soueuaAcb 0} paieooje
Aujiqisuodsal jlelong e
SHOUBINSSE
aoueuianob Buiyos|joo

JO peoH ‘Juswabeueiy 3SIH 9 UPNY JO pEsH e 10} PBYS|IgeISo WISIUBYOBN asg
S|OJIUOD Ul SSBUNBOM JO
sease Apuspi 01 siepinoid
90UBINSSE [BUISIXS
pue Jeulajul pauysp
sjuewebuelie uonesiueblo | 8y} wouy spodal ajenjens
2oueWIBACD 81210d100 SBPN|OU; S8IHWIWIOD 8y} 1noybnoiyl pauyep Apes|o pue aAoa. ‘Ajuspl
Hpny 6o soualBel JO SWIBY AIBY} UIYNM oJe SOOURINSSE JO UoiienieAs | 0} slusweabuelie ajenbepe
pPaUIRIUOD Sa8ILILLIOY) A8y 10} Senljigisuodsay e ayj 40} seiljigisuodsay apew sey Aluoyine sy eg
aouewIouad 90IAI8S PUEB [BIDUBUY
uo 18uIgeD pUE gINID 0} spodai Jeinbau sepiroid sjuswabuene
pue aoeid U WelsAs Buuoyuow souBwLIOpNSd Buuouow sourBWIOHad 67
"019 AYjendsoy pue syib jo Jaisibal ‘1sesaul
JO SUOIBIR|09P ‘SISO1J0 PUB SIS JO§ }ONPUOD
10 sep02 — eoeid uj aJe souepinbd JOVI0S/V4dID
SONsSs| JUa.LIND }09)81 0} yuim aulj Ul souewisaob 81e10diod JO sjuswse |Iy e
92UBUIDAOY) ajelodion "alisgam
JO 8p0o9) 1807 jlounon uo paysiignd pue j1puno) ayy Ag psidope sjuswebuene
2y} @1epdn pue mMojAdY - e Ajjeuwio) 9ouBLIBACY) 81ei0dio)) JO BP0 (820 aoueuIBAOB B1RI0dI0) v
88]ILUIWIOY YpNY
01 papiroid swelsAs [eroueuy Aoy uo spodeay e
"WIOM S} UO Jipne jeulsixe Aq aoueysl
90UBPIAS JO 9oURINSSE o "JUSWUOIIAUS
ut sdeb paijuseps .soueinsse aoueutanob syerodiod
SSalppe 0} SUCHOY :AQ paosusping J0 sajdwexs/sasinog 8y} jo syuswele Av)y | joYy

Z Xxipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns jo XUl — 60/8002 JUBWalelS 90UBUIDA0Y) [enuuy




Page 257

Gz 0 gg ebed

00p'60-90-G} A 82usplae Buipoddns jo Xurew - 60-8002 SOV

0} dnoib BuplIOm 2103 Sk 198 S92IAI8S JIBQUIBIA JO

pesH pue seoineg [eba Jo pesH ‘IPNY JO peaH e

sey SOV au} Jo uone)dwod

ueaq sey Juswelels

8y} Jo} Anpigisuodsey SOUBUISAOY) feNuUUY UY | BOL
paJjojuoLl
pue psjuawus|dul
S| pUE SBSSaUNEaM
j0J1u00 pajuspl
ssaippe o} paaibe s|
uejd uonoe ereudoidde ue
ug|d psaoidde pue | jey) ainsus 0} wisiueyosw
UOI1oE 8U} JO SISBQ BY] SWIOJ XIIJBW B8JUBPING GOY @ dn umelp si ueid uoioe uy 18NQOJ B S a8y e
pabusjjeys pue pauiioysad
— Juswissosse dery e
aulpesp Aloinels Aq
uona|dwoD 1o} s|geIau| e
wisiueyosw
uoflen|eAs psuysqg e
saoueInsse Jo Auanosiqo
pue souspuadapui ‘sysi
JoAo soueinsse Buipnoul
ainpaooid uoienjeas
o} se aouepinb Jeag|) e
(p1dY s1 ®oUBPING
aIsym O} YUl Jes|o
Buimoys Jo ‘aji} 80UsPIAG
Jayye) seoueinsse
saulpesp AJOINIE]S 19eW O} paaibe sjgelswi} pue [ JO pioDal [elua) e
S190140 A8y usamiaq aoe|d ui sbupiesw renbey e pPap.I0oal pue pasibe
XUlBW SOY 8yl Ul pap.iooal s| (Ajjenuew aJe seoueInsse pasnbay e
80UBPIAS 1O BouURINSSe ) JUSWUOIAUD
ui sdeb payniuapi :9ouUBINSSE aoueLan0b aie10dios
$S9Ippe 0} SUOHOY :Aq pasuapin]g j0 sojdwiexs/seninog oL} JO spuswve Aoy | JeH

2 Xipuaddy

aouapiae Buipoddns Jo XuleN — 60/8002 JUSWalelS 90UBUISAOK) [Bnuuy




Page 258

GZ 10 $g ebeyd

20P"60-90-G1 A @ouspiae Buiioddns Jo xulew - 60-8002 SOV

(uonesiueblio

By} JO JsquIsuL JOIUSS JSOotl
puB JSIO IoIUSS 1SoW "9))
sjuswalinbai Aloiniels yum
aouepioooe U eyeudosdde

SHY Jo sauojeubis 8Je pue pauysp aie DIS pue
ale [IouNno”) 8y} JO JapesT puB BAIINISXT JBiy) SOV 8y} 03 saloleubis sy qtt
ewlo}-0id Y4dIO 8ul Yyim
S0UBPIODDE Ul ‘pajussad
99]HWIWOD S| SHY Y} U0 (881D
upny pue jsulge)d ‘gNI0 Ag meirsl 1o SOY paulep Auesio pejebsjep 1o) Ajioyine
Help sepirosd juswebeueiy YsiY B HPNY Jo pesH e s) Buipodas Jo) Aypgisuodsay 9y} 0] wodai jenuue Uy | BLL
Awioyne ayy
990D HpNY Ag peaoidde pue pabusjjeyo
pue giN30 Aqg sseo0id abusjieyd pue maney e ‘pamainel sl SOY By L 201
sulpesp Alolniels
wewebeuew Msu g 8y} slesw 1Byl sjgeiewn
1pne Jo peaH AQ pasoliuow pue soeid Ul 8jqelswl) e uonionpolid goy ue s asey ] aot
sauljepinb
V4dIO yum aouepioooe uj
S| pue ‘gooe suonenbay
(purBug) (juswpuawe)
Y2V 8y} AQ pesinel
se ‘c00g suoneinbay
PNy pue Siunoooy
Yl Wi 1IN0 18 s|geiBWl
pue sjuswsainbal
"800 Idy £ uo gNTD ©) pejussaid SOV yeiq e Asoinjess eyl yum
SHY 9)dwod paubisse usaq 80UBPIOO0R Ul payBIp
SDUBPIAS 10 BOUBINSSE JuswiuoliAue
ut sdeb paiyjyuspi :9oueInsse aouewanrob ajei10dioo
s$saippe 0] Suoiloy :AQ peousping 10 sejdwexa/se2Inog 8y} JO SlusWoe A9y | [J9Y

2 Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo xuUIB — 60/800¢ JUSWSIRIS SOUBUISAOK) [BenUUY




Page 259

GZ 10 Gg abed

00p*60-90-G} vA 82uUspIAS Buioddns §o xuew - 60-8002 SOV

"J18W 8q jou jjiim Aay} swnsse
0} uosesl ou ‘sBujesw Asy Joy sepusbe uo goy
‘saulpesp AI0JNBIS YUM Bul| Ul SOV JO UOIONPOId o

SJUN0OOE AJOINJELS 8y} Yum
uolysej Ajsuny e Ul paysignd
aq o} Ajo)| 1 Yodes sy}

oLt

90UBPIAD 10 9oUBINSSE
ul sdef paynuap!
$S3Ippe 0} SUoloYy

:AQ paousping

:80uUBINSSE
jo sejdwexa/sa2Inog

:JUBUIUOIIAULD
aouruwianob sjeiodiod
8y} JO sjusuwIsid A3y

494

Z Xipuaddy

aouapine Buipoddns Jo xuUle — 60/8002 1UBWAIRIS 9DUBUIDAOL) j[enuuy




Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 261 Agenda Item 15

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 30 July 2009

Report Title: Risk Management update — Quarter 1 2009/10

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer (

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.qov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the current position on risk management
implementation across the Council and provide a revised risk management strategy
for consideration and approval.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council’s risk
management framework is in place and operating effectively. Internal audit reviews
key risk registers, the controls in place to manage the identified risks.
Recommendations for improvement are made, where appropriate.

2.2 Risk management forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources
assessment and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports
to both managers and the Audit Committee on the implementation of the Council’s risk
management policy and strategy ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended note the implementation of the risk
management strategy across the Council.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)
4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’'s Risk Management




Page 262

Policy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and provide
information on its implementation across the Council, progress reports are provided
on a regular basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the
implementation of the Council’s risk management framework throughout the authority.
This report focuses on the work undertaken during the first quarter of 2009/10 to
ensure the risk management framework is complied with.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that no specific legal issues arise out of the contents.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer has no additional comments to make.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks are managed across all areas of the council, which
have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements in managing risks
and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides to all sections of
the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of risk registers and internal audit reports. Their
comments are included in the final report which is circulated in accordance with the
agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments
12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 263

internal audit to implement the risk management framework is part of the contract
with Deloitte and Touche which was awarded following a competitive tendering
exercise in compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this
contract are contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management
revenue budget. Service departments manage risks as part of the routine work to
achieve their business plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices
13.1 Appendix A — Update on risk registers

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1The Council's Risk Management strategy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that
it reflects current operational requirements and best practice. The latest version was
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 23 April 2009.

15.2 The Chair of the Audit Committee requested that a report on risk management and
compliance with the Council’s strategy be presented to the Committee on a quarterly
basis. The review and testing of risk registers formed part of the 2009/10 annual audit
plan which was approved at the Audit Committee meeting on 23 April 2009. This is an
ongoing process to ensure the key controls to manage identified risks are effective and
operate as intended.

16. Risk Registers

16.1 The Council has been implementing a new performance management system
(Covalent) which also includes a risk management module. Risk registers will be
managed electronically at business unit, department and corporate level.

16.2 Appendix A shows the latest position for all Business Units and Directorates as at 30
June 2009. During 2009/10, a number of organisational changes have taken place
across the Council. Within Urban Environment, the Enforcement Business Unit is now
contained within Frontline Services Business Unit. Within PPP&C, Neighbourhood
Management Business Unit is now contained within Safer Communities Business Unit.
The risk registers for Enforcement and Neighbourhood Management have been
incorporated into the new Business Unit structure and will be reported within this for
2009/10.

16.3The majority of risk registers have been reviewed in accordance with the planned
programme of audit work. The electronic Covalent system will replicate the existing

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 264

format for the council’s risk registers, but will provide Business Unit Managers with a
more effective and flexible reporting and monitoring process than the previous manual
process. The electronic system is able to produce a variety of reports and information to
suit the managers’ requirements. The electronic system allows managers to view and
sort their current risks individually, or by risk rating; RAG status; or actions due.

16.4 The process to input the current risk registers on to the performance management
system started in the first quarter of 2009/10. This was undertaken by Internal Audit,
supported by the Policy and Performance team. During the first quarter 2009/10, risk
registers from Corporate Resources, PPP&C, and ACCS have been loaded onto the
Covalent system and training has been provided to the departmental representatives.
The risk registers for Urban Environment, OD&L and CYPS will be loaded onto
Covalent by Internal Audit during quarter 2 and training will be provided to departmental
representatives. It is anticipated that electronic reporting will be in place across all
departments of the Council by October 2009. During the transition period, managers
across all departments are still undertaking regular reviews of their risk registers in
accordance with the risk management strategy.

16.5Covalent automatically sends email reminders to the business unit representatives
when updates are due and the system will provide an audit trail to allow for monitoring
and follow up by Internal Audit. Internal Audit will also provide resources (as part of the
annual audit plan) to assist business units on an ongoing basis and to ensure that all
actions and updates are being done in accordance with the relevant timescales.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 265

7Jo [ 98eq

6002 AN $90IMIBS AJlunwiwo) pue ainjind s)npy GETq (SOQV) seolnes
Ajunwwio) pue ainyngd s}npy vz
600¢ aunp SHIOMISN S,U3IplIYY ng SdAD | X4
600¢ aunp juswdojeAs( @ Hoddng ssauisng ng SdAD [44
600¢ aunp uoisnjouj pue spJepuelg jooydg ng SdAD 34
600¢ aunp Sajjiwed g uaipjiyo ng SdAD 4

600¢ sunp 90IMBS §,8]d0dd BUNOA B UBIPIIYD daq (SdAD) @o1nies
s,0/doad BunoA pue ualpjyd 6l
6002 [1dY soolAIeg Apadold ejelodio) ng 30| 8l
6002 udy Juswiainoold ajesodio) ng I Te) Il
6002 [udY Juswabeue Ysiy g ¥pny ng d0 9l
6002 Iudy doueul ajesodio ngd d0 Sl
6002 Iudy uoljexe]| |ed07 g sjijousg ng d0 vl
600¢C Ydteiy S9JIAIBG JBwoIsSn) ngd d0 €l
6002 1Hdy S90INIBS || ng ¥0| 2l
6002 IHdy S90jAIDg [eba] nd d0 b
600z aunp $80IN0S3Y 8)elodio) 1daq (YD) seoinosay ajelodio) ol
600z aunr Bulusea ¥ Juswdojaas jeuonesiuebiO ng ao-3Ion 6
600z aunp uoddng Jaquwispy pue Aoeloowa( (8207 ng ao-3Ion 8
6002 aunp $80IN0Say uewnH ng ao -3o .
6002 aunp Juswdojeraq jeuonesiuebio 1daqg Jawdojena( jeuonesiuebiQ - 39 0
6002 Iudy @ouew.opad g Aaljod nd Oddd - 30 S
6002 Ae suojediunwiwoy ng Oddd - 30 14
6002 AeN sajjunwwo) Is8jeg nd Oddd - 30 €

6002 udy UOEDIUNWWOYD 1daQg uonesiunwiwo) ¥ sdiysisuped
9 sdiysiauped aouewlopad Aaljod aouewlopad Adljod - 30 Z
6002 udy J9)s1bay ajelodio) | sjerodio) an3n - ejesodio) L

ajepdn
Juadal Jsow Jo ajeq B} J9)sibay ysiy joAe7 Juswpeda(

v xipuaddy

Arewwng ajepdn 193s169Yy YSIY - 01/6002 | 4911end Joday ssaibouid




Page 266

730 7 9%ed

‘5890014 BuluUE|d SSaulsng JuaLind 8y} Jos|ja. 0} pajepdn Buisq Ajuaiino ale sia)sibal ysu aroqe sy |
Juswabeuepy pooysnoqybloN e
pue 'SS8IIUNWIWOY) Jojes e

J0 uondaoxa 8y} Yim ‘syluow Z| ised ayj ul pamsines usaq aAey sis)sifial ysu IV

60 Aenuer yuswdojeaaq Aaljod g Buluueld ng an FAS
6002 IHdy S90IAIBS |uljjuol] ngd an LE
6002 AInp BuisnoH Ayunwiwo) g d1bsjells ng an 0¢

80 Joqwaldes JUswIUOIIAUT ueqin 1deQ (3N) wswuosAuz ueqin 62
6002 AeN sele.qI @ bulules ‘ain}nd ngd SO0V 8¢
6002 AeN SOIIAIBS UOl1eald8y Nng SOV LC
6002 AeN S82IAISS NPy ng SOV 9¢
6002 A\ ABsjens 9 buluoIssIWWO) ng SO0V | &¢

alepdn
JUa9aJ JSoW Jo aje o)l Jo)sibay ysiy |[oAd7 Juswuedaq

Krewwing ajepdn 12)s169y XSy - 01/6002 L 191enp Hoday ssaiboid

v xipuaddy




Page 267 Agenda ltem 16

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N o) .]

Audit Committee On 30 July 2009

Report Title: Whistleblowing — implementation and use of the Council policy

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To advise the Audit Committee of the operation and use of the Council's
Whistleblowing policy.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing referrals made under the
Council's Whistleblowing policy and undertaking investigations, where appropriate, to
reduce risks and improve controls.

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Audit Committee notes the content of the report.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring council policies on Whistleblowing
and Anti-fraud and Corruption as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate
this, the Audit Committee reviews and approves the Council’s policies for these areas.

4.2 This report provides further information on the implementation and usage of the
Council's Whistleblowing policy.




Page 268

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Head of Audit and Risk Management acts as one of the lead officers in relation to
the Whistleblowing policy. This report outlines the implementation and use of the
Council’s policy.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that no specific legal issues arise out of the contents

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer has no additional comments to add.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how the Whistleblowing policy is used within the Council. It is
best practice for local authorities to implement and publicise a Whistleblowing policy
which will allow employees to report and raise concerns. Providing opportunities to
report concerns can enable the council to improve conditions for those who live and
work in the borough.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation has been undertaken with Human Resources in the development of the
Whistleblowing policy and to ensure that all reports made under the policy are
appropriately recorded.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The costs of
ensuring the Council complies with the Whistleblowing policy are contained and
managed within the Audit and Risk Management and relevant service departments’
revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices
13.1 N/A

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2




Page 269

15. Background

15.1 As part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 2006
Code of Practice, Haringey needs to ensure that there are appropriate processes in
place for the reporting and investigation of allegations of fraud and corruption.

15.2 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) — Use of Resources — includes the
requirements to have appropriate arrangements in place which are designed to
promote and ensure probity. It is therefore important to ensure that the Council can
demonstrate compliance with the CAA and best practice requirements.

15.3 The Council fulfils these requirements by having an Anti-fraud and corruption strategy
and Fraud Response Plan. In addition, the Council has a Whistleblowing Policy which
complements and supports the anti-fraud and corruption strategy. These policies and
strategies are reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The
last update was approved at the Audit Committee meeting on 22 July 2008.

15.4 The Whistleblowing policy is within the remit and ownership of the Council’s Monitoring
Officer, and is drawn up in consultation with Human Resources and Audit and Risk
Management. The Head of Audit and Risk Management is responsible for recording
any concerns or reports received under the Whistleblowing policy and liaises with the
Head of Human Resources and directorates across the Council to ensure that the
policy is complied with.

16. Implementation and use of the policy
16.1The Council's Whistleblowing policy has been in place since November 1998, following
the publication of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 and central government
guidance which stated that every local authority should instigate such a policy to
enable workers to raise concerns about malpractice confidentially inside and, if
necessary, outside the organisation. The Council’'s Whistleblowing policy applies to all
Council employees and any member of staff can raise concerns using the policy.

16.2 The Council's Whistleblowing policy has been regularly reviewed since its introduction
and conforms to the best practice guidance from Public Concern at Work, the
independent charitable organisation which advises on whistle-blowing and governance
matters.

16.3 The Whistleblowing policy is published on the Council’s intranet site. In addition, The
Council utilises its corporate newsletters — Smart Talk and Team Brief — on an annual
basis to:

e Remind all staff that the Council has a Whistleblowing policy;

e What the policy covers;

e How to report or raise concerns; and

e What the Council will do to respond to any concerns raised in good faith.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 270

16.4 In addition to the annual articles in Smart Talk and Team Brief, the Chief Executive
writes to all staff individually on a regular basis to remind staff of the Council’s
expectations in respect of standards of behaviour and fraud and corruption and how to
report and raise concerns. The latest reminder was sent to all staff in July 2009.

16.5 The Whistleblowing policy applies internally to all Council employees. The Council’'s
anti-fraud and corruption policy has a wider remit and applies externally as well as
internally within the Council and incorporates the email and telephone reporting facility
‘Fraudcall’. Use of the Fraudcall facility is reported to the Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis, as part of the routine progress reporting process. During 2008/09, a
total of 22 referrals were made via Fraudcall. These referrals are all reviewed by
internal audit and either passed to the relevant department to enable further review, or
investigated by internal audit.

16.6 During 2008/09, the Council’'s Whistleblowing policy has not been used by any
members of staff. Reports made anonymously via Fraudcall and anonymous
allegations sent in from outside the organisation may have been made by staff, but
because the concerns and allegations have been raised anonymously, it was not
possible to confirm the source. During 2007/08, one referral was made under the
Council’'s Whistleblowing policy. The subsequent investigation revealed that the alleged
fraud related to Enfield council and was referred to their fraud investigation team.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



el Agenda ltem 17

Haringey Counci

Agenda item: [NO ]
Audit Committee On 30 July 2009

Report Title: Report on the work of the Audit Committee 2008/09

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To advise the Audit Committee of the proposed report to Full Council in respect of the
work undertaken by the Audit Committee during 2008/09.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2.2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports to both
managers and the Audit Committee on progress against the agreed audit plan and the
implementation of audit recommendations ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

2.3 External audit is also a key part of the overall governance and control framework and
their work to the Audit Committee gives further independent assurance and reporting.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Audit Committee approves the draft report on the work of the Committee
during 2008/09. '

3.2 That the final version of the report is presented to the next available Full Council




Page 272

meeting for information.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee Terms of Reference require it to report the work it has
undertaken to full Council. In order to facilitate this, a draft report is provided for
review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Audit Committee has responsibility for audit, governance and risk management
across the Council. Regular reports are presented to the Audit Committee and
additional work is requested during the year to ensure that the Audit Committee fulfils
its responsibilities.

6.2This report looks at the work undertaken by the Audit Committee during 2008/09. The
details within the report have been complied from the agendas, reports and minutes of
the Audit Committee during the 2008/09 municipal year.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that no specific legal issues arise out of the contents.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer has no additional comments to add.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with the work of the Audit Committee during 2008/09 which
includes any recommendations made to improve governance and service delivery
across all areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore improve
services the Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with the Audit Committee to review and approve the final
version of the report in accordance with the committee’s agreed terms of reference.




Page 273

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
undertaken to produce the report is contained and managed within the Audit and
Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices
13.1  Appendix A — Annual report to Full Council

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
14.1 Audit Committee Agendas and Minutes 2008/09.

5. Introduction

5.1 Haringey Council's Audit Committee has been established for a number of years,
in accordance with best practice, with agreed Terms of Reference which match
CIPFA guidance. In fulfilling its Terms of Reference the Audit Committee produces
an annual report of the work it has completed during the year which is submitted to
a meeting of the Full Council for information.

6. Reporting Process

6.1 Members requested that a draft version of the Committee’s annual report be
presented to the Audit Committee to ensure that all Members had the opportunity
to review and provide input to the report.

6.2 The draft annual report of the Audit Committee is attached as Appendix A to this
report. The draft report has been compiled using the agreed agendas, reports and
minutes of the 2008/09 municipal year. During this year, the Audit Committee met
on five occasions: 24 June, 22 July, and 28 October 2008; 3 February and 23 April
2009.

6.3 Agreed recommendations and Member comments, where appropriate, have been
included to reflect the outcome of the meetings. The report is structured against
headings which reflect the Audit Committee’s agreed terms of reference, rather
than chronological order of committee meetings in order to prevent repetition and
duplication.



Page 274

Appendix A
1. Background

1.1 The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee require it to maintain an overview
of the Council's arrangements for corporate governance and the regulatory
framework; internal control; risk management; and internal and external audit. This
report has been produced to advise Full Council of the matters considered by the
Audit Committee at its meetings during the municipal year 2008/09, in fulfilment of
its Terms of Reference. It is presented to Full Council for information.

1.2The Audit Committee is required to meet at least four times per year in accordance
with the Council’s reporting and financial cycles. During 2008/09, the Committee
has met on five occasions and each meeting was quorate. Members’ attendance is
recorded in Appendix B attached to this report.

1.3CIPFA best practice guidance recommends that the Council’s Section 151 Officer
(or his deputy) and Head of Audit and Risk Management should attend each
meeting, with other Chief and Senior Officers attending as required. The Council’s
external auditors, Grant Thornton, also attended all meetings of the Committee
during 2008/09. Actual attendances are recorded in Appendix B to this report.

2. Summary

2.1The Audit Committee takes its responsibilities very seriously and considers its role
in enhancing the Council’s internal control environment to be significant in assisting
the Council achieve the highest possible rating as part of the Comprehensive
Performance Assessment (CPA) process. During 2008/09, key achievements for
the Committee were:

e Contributing to the CPA process and assisting the Council achieve a score of 3
out of 4 for Internal Control, including an improved score for risk management
arrangements, as part of the Use of Resources assessment:

 Providing input into to the Internal Audit function thorough review and approval
of the annual audit plan and quarterly review process, including monitoring
implementation of audit recommendations as part of the formal follow up
reporting process;

* Reviewing and approving the Council’s internal audit strategy; and

e Contributing to and approving the Council’'s Annual Governance Statement.

2.2 The purpose of the Audit Committee is to provide independent assurance of the
adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control
environment, independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial
performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and
weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.
Over the last year the Audit Committee has fulfilled its purpose and terms of
reference and presented a challenge in relation to the Council's system of internal
control and financial reporting arrangements. Over the next 12 months it is
intended that the proposed developments will continue to enhance and develop the
Committee’s role and provide an effective challenge to all areas of the Council.



Page 275

2.3 The following sections describe the work of the Audit Committee in relation to the
key tasks identified within the committee’s agreed Terms of Reference which were
in effect during 2008/09. The Audit Committee agrees and maintains a work
programme for its main areas of activity. The reports received during the 2008/09
municipal year are shown at Appendix C.

3. Corporate Governance and regulatory framework

3.1 The core functions of the Audit Committee in this area are:

To maintain an overview of the Council's Constitution in respect of finance and
contract procedure rules and codes of conduct and behaviour.

To maintain an overview of the Council's arrangements for Corporate
Governance and agreeing necessary actions to enable the authority to
implement best practice as set out in statutory and other guidance.

To receive and recommend for adoption the Council's Statement on Internal
Control (now Annual Governance Statement).

To monitor council policies on ‘Whistleblowing’ and Anti-fraud and Corruption.
To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive, a Director, or any
Council body.

To consider the Council's compliance with its own and other published
standards and controls.

3.2 During the 2008/09 municipal year, the Audit Committee has:

Received reports on a quarterly basis on compliance with the Council’s finance
and contract procedure rules as part of the annual programme of internal audit
work

Received reports on a quarterly basis on counter-fraud activity relating to
Housing Benefit and Council Tax benefit

Received and approved the revised and updated Council policies for
Whistleblowing, Anti-fraud and Corruption, and Fraud Response Plan

Received and approved the anti-fraud and corruption strategy relating to
Housing Benefit and Council tax Benefit fraud

Received and approved the revised and updated Council anti-money laundering
policy

Received a report on the implementation and use of the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers (RIPA) Act 2000 across the Council

Received a report from the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner detailing
their findings following an inspection of the Council’'s use and applications of
RIPA

4. Risk Management

4.1 The core functions of the Audit Committee in this area are:

To approve the Council’s Risk Management Policy and receive regular reports
on compliance with the policy across the authority.

To review the effectiveness of systems for the assessment and management of
material areas of risk within Haringey and monitor their maintenance and
development in accordance with the Risk Management Policy.

4.2 During the 2008/09 municipal year, the Audit Committee has:



Page 276

Received and approved the revised and updated Risk Management Policy and
Strategy

Received reports on a quarterly basis on implementation of the Council’s risk
management strategy

Received and reviewed the Council's corporate risk register on an annual basis

5. Audit activity
5.1Internal Audit. The core functions of the Audit Committee in this area are:

To consider the Head of Audit and Risk Management’s annual report and
opinion, and a summary of Internal Audit activity (actual and proposed) and the
level of assurance it can give over the council's corporate governance
arrangements.

To consider and approve the Council’s Annual Internal Audit Plan and ensure
that it is consistent with the scope of the audit engagement or service delivery
arrangements.

To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the
Council's providers of Internal Audit Services.

To consider quarterly reports in respect of internal audit activity including
ethical oversight issues and any major findings arising from internal audit
reviews and ensure that appropriate corrective action has been taken.

To consider a report from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not
implemented within a reasonable timescale.

To approve any significant changes to the strategic or annual audit plan as
requested by officers

To receive reports from the Head of Audit and Risk Management on
appropriate matters

5.2During the 2008/09 municipal year, the Audit Committee has:

Received the Head of Audit's annual report and assurance statement for
2007/08, including a summary of internal audit activity

Received and approved the Council’s 2008/09 annual internal audit plan and
internal audit strategy

Received quarterly reports detailing internal audit activity of the Council's
internal audit service provider (Deloitte and Touche), and the in-house audit
team, including details of agreed performance management indicators
Received quarterly reports on implementation of all recommendations made
internal audit

Received a report on the internal audit of governance arrangements at
Alexandra Palace and Park (APP Trust and APTL Company)

Received and approved the Terms of Reference for Internal Audit

Received and approved revised reporting formats and approach for internal
audit activity

5.3 External Audit. The core functions of the Audit Committee in this area are:

To receive and note the Annual Audit Plan from the external auditor.

To receive the Annual Audit Letter from the external auditor and make any
appropriate recommendations to the Council or The Executive in respect of
these matters.

To receive quarterly and annual reports in respect of external audit activity
including ethical oversight issues.



Page 277

To question officers and Executive Members on the above matters

To make any appropriate recommendations to full Council or The Executive in
respect of these matters.

To commission work from Internal and External Audit.

To liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the Council’s
external auditor.

5.4During the 2008/09 municipal year, the Audit Committee has:

Received and considered the 2008/09 external audit and inspection plan
Received quarterly reports providing updates on key external audit issues and
progress against the agreed 2008/09 external audit plan

Received the external auditor's report detailing the outcome of their review of
Health Inequalities in Haringey, covering the Council, Primary Care Trust and
the Haringey Strategic Partnership.

Received a follow up report in respect of progress against the agreed action
plan for the Health Inequalities review.

Received a report detailing the external auditor's report in respect of the
Comprehensive Performance Assessment — Use of Resources for 2008.
Received the external auditor’'s report on the outcomes of the annual grant
work

Received the external auditor's report following their review of probity and
propriety arrangements within the Council.

Received a report detailing the audit and inspection fees for 2009/10.

6. Accounts

6.1 The core functions of the Audit Committee in this area are:

To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically to consider whether
appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are
concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be
brought to the attention of the Council.

To consider the External Auditor’s report to those charged with governance on
issues arising from the audit of the accounts.

6.2 During the 2008/09 municipal year, the Audit Committee has:

Received a report detailing the accounting policies and 2007/08 annual
statement of accounts

Received a report detailing the outcome of the annual audit of the 2007/08
statement of accounts, reporting an unqualified audit opinion.

Received a report detailing the accounting policies for the 2008/09 statement
of accounts

Received a presentation on the new International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and the Council’'s proposed preparation work over the next
two years

7. Other issues

7.1 During the 2008/09 municipal year, The Audit Committee also:

Received and approved the Audit Committee 2008/09 work plan



Page 278

Received and approved a report on the work of the Audit Committee for the
2007/08 municipal year

Received a report on the results of the CIPFA benchmarking exercise for
internal audit in 2008/09

Agreed to receive progress reports from 2009/10 onwards on action plans from
external inspections



Appendix B

Page 279

Member/Officer attendance at Audit Committee Meetings 2008/09

Member/Officer

24 June
2008

22 July
2008

28
October
2008

3 February
2009

23 April
2009

Members

Clir Khan (Chair)

Clir Mallett (Vice-
chair)

Clir Diakides

Clir Bull

Clir Gorrie

Clir Davies

Clir Mughal

b SN RN S

B SIS

PP &

Other Member attendances

Clir Wilson

TIPS S

N/A

N/A

Clir Adje

<
>

N

N/A

Officers

Chief
Officer

Financial

N

Head of Audit & Risk
Management

Head of Corporate
Finance

RSN

Deputy Head of
Benefits & Local
Taxation

L]

N;
N4
NG

S RSN S

< < < <| K

External Auditor
(Grant Thornton)

2

<,

<.

<,

Head of Finance -
Accounting & Control

<,

Joint Director of
Public Health

Acting Head  of
Benefits & Local
Taxation

R R

Notes/key

J/= attended

A = apologies for absence recorded
N/A = not a member




Page 280

Audit Committee Activity 2008/09

Appendix C

Function/lssue

24 June
2008

22 July
2008

28
October
2008

3 February
2009

23 April
2009

Cor

porate Governance and regulatory framework

Whistleblowing
Policy, Anti-fraud
and corruption
Policy, Fraud
response Plan

Approved

Housing Benefit and
council tax benefit
counter fraud
progress report

Noted

Noted

Noted

Noted

Housing Benefit and
council tax benefit
anti-fraud strategy

Approved

Anti-money
laundering policy

Agreed

Implementation and
use of RIPA

Noted

Office of
Surveillance
Commissioner's
inspection report and
action plan

Approved

Risk Management

Risk Management
Policy and Strategy

Approved

Corporate Risk
Register

Agreed

Risk Management
Progress

Noted

Noted

Noted

Audit Activity — Internal audit

Internal audit
strategy & plan
2008/09

Approved

Annual internal audit
report

Noted &
referred to
full Council

Progress report
2008/09

Noted

Approved

Noted

Noted

Internal audit terms
of reference

Approved

Internal audit
reporting

Approved

10




Page 281

Function/Issue

24 June
2008

22 July
2008

28
October
2008

3 February
2009

23 April
2009

arrangements

Review of
governance
arrangements at
Alexandra Palace

Approved

Audit Activity — External audit

Audit and inspection
plan 2008/09

Noted

Progress report
2008/09

Noted

Noted

Noted

Health Inequalities
report

Noted

Health Inequalities
update report and
action plan

Noted

Probity and Propriety
Report

Agreed

CPA Use of
Resources report

Noted

Annual grant work

Agreed

Audit and inspection
fees 2009/10

Approved

Accounts

Statement of
accounts 2007/08
and accounting
policies

Agreed

Outcome of the
2007/08 external
audit and action plan

Agreed

Accounting policies
2008/09

Approved

Presentation on
IFRS

Noted

Other issues

Committee work
programme 2008/09

Approved

Internal audit
benchmarking report

Noted

National Fraud
Initiative

Noted

Annual report on
Audit Committee
work

Approved
and
referred to
full Council

11




Page 282

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Grant Thornton - Audit Progress report
	7 Audit Strategy Document for the year ending 31 March 2009
	8 Grant Claims and Returns Planning Memorandum 2008-09
	9 Report on Information Technology Controls
	10 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 2008/09
	audit  inspection letter Mar09

	11 Progress report on counter fraud activity relating to housing benefit and council tax benefit - quarter 1
	Appendix 1 Q1 0910

	12 External Inspection Housing - progress report
	Housing Improvement Plan v8 July09
	Appendix 2 to AGS report Letter to Haringey - final report 19 Nov 08
	Appendix 2 FINAL REPORT POST REVIEW 19 Nov 08

	13 Internal Audit progress report - 2009/10 quarter 1
	Progress report 2009-10 Qtr 1 - Appendix A FINAL VERSION
	Progress report 2009-10 Qtr 1 - Appendix B
	Progress report 2009-10 Qtr 1 - Appendix C

	14 Annual Governance Statement 2008/09
	AGS 2008-09 final version - signed
	Annual Governance Statement final version - Appendix 2 to covering report.doc

	15 Risk management update
	16 Whistleblowing - report on implementation and use 2008/09
	17 Draft report to Full Council on the work of the Committee in 2008/09

